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BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 
 
 
 
 
 

December 17, 2015 
4:00 p.m. 

 
 
 
 

HCC Administration Building 
3100 Main, 2nd Floor Auditorium 

Houston, Texas 
 



 
 
 
 

 

Strategic Plan 2012-2015 
 

Creating Opportunities for Our Shared Future 
(Approved by the HCC Board of Trustees, June 22, 2012) 

 
 
Mission 

Houston Community College is an open-admission, public institution of 
higher education offering a high-quality, affordable education for academic 
advancement, workforce training, career and economic development, and 
lifelong learning to prepare individuals in our diverse communities for life 
and work in a global and technological society. 

 
Vision 

 

HCC will be a leader in providing high quality, innovative education leading 
to student success and completion of workforce and academic programs. 
We will be responsive to community needs and drive economic 
development in the communities we serve.  

 
 
Strategic 
Initiatives  

Initiative #1: Increase Student Completion 

Initiative #2: Respond to Business and Industry 

Initiative #3: Develop 21st Century Learners 

Initiative #4: Support Faculty/Staff Professional Development and 
Student Leadership 

Initiative #5: Support Innovation 

Initiative #6: Support Entrepreneurialism 

Initiative #7: Leverage Partnerships 
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NOTICE OF A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

 
December 17, 2015 

 
Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Houston 
Community College will be held on Thursday, the seventeenth (17th)) day of December, 2015 
at 4:00 p.m., or after, and from day to day as required, at the HCC Administration Building, 2nd 
Floor Auditorium, 3100 Main, Houston, Texas. The items listed in this notice may be 
considered in any order at the discretion of the Chair or Board and items listed for closed 
session discussion may be discussed and/or approved in open session and vice versa as 
permitted by law. 
 
I. Call to Order 
 
II. Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
III. Approval of Minutes 
 

Approval of Minutes from the Academic Affairs/Student Services Committee, Audit 
Committee, Board Governance Committee, Chancellor Evaluation Committee, and  
Committee of the Whole on November 12, 2015, and Chancellor Evaluation 
Committee and Regular Meeting on November 19, 2015. 

 
IV. Awards, Presentations, and Recognitions 

 
A. HCC Foundation Check Presentation. 
 

V. Chairman’s Report 
 

A. Trustees District Reports. 
 
VI. Chancellor’s Report 
 

A. Student Success Stories. 
 

B. Faculty Senate Report (President of Faculty Senate). 
  
VII. Hearing of Citizens 
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VIII. Consent Agenda 
 
A. Strategic Planning  

 
1. HCC Strategic Plan 2016-2019. 

 
B. Audit 

 
2. Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2015. 

 
C. Facilities and Finance 

 
3. Resolution Authorizing the Acceptance of Public Facilities from the Houston 

Community College System Public Facility Corporation. 
 

4. Investment Report for the Month of October 2015. 
 

5. Monthly Financial Statement and Budget Review for October 2015. 
 

6. Authorize Procurement Method for Parking Lot Maintenance and Report on 
Condition. 

 
7. Online Learning Management System. 

 
8. Sale of 11.75 Acres in Missouri City. 

 
9. Authorize Purchase of Palmetto Cul-de-Sac Right of Way at Eastside 

Campus. 
 

10. Authorize Executive of Texas Cooperative Purchasing Network Contract 
with TDIndustries. 

 
11. Proposed Settlement Between Lorenzo Walker and HCC. 

 
D. Chancellor Evaluation 
 

12. Chancellor’s Evaluation for 2014-2015 and any other related matters, as 
necessary. 

 
13. Chancellor’s Evaluation Timeline for 2015-16. 
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IX. Topics for Discussion and/or Action 

 
A. Board Governance 
 

1. Personnel Agenda (Faculty). 
 

B. Facilities and Finance 
 

2. Strategic Real Estate Study. 
 
3. Update on Bond Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Related Matters. 
 

X. Adjournment to closed or executive session pursuant to Texas Government Code 
Sections 551.071; 551.072 and 551.074, the Open Meetings Act, for the following 
purposes: 

A. Legal Matters 

1. Consultation with legal counsel concerning pending or contemplated 
litigation, a settlement offer, or matters on which the attorney’s duty to the 
System under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct clearly 
conflicts with the Texas Open Meetings Laws. 

2. Proposed Settlement Between Lorenzo Walker and HCC. 

B. Personnel Matters 

1. Deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, 
discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee, or to hear complaints 
or charges against the chancellor, employees or board members, unless the 
officer, employee, or board member who is the subject of the deliberation 
or hearing requests a public hearing. 

 
C. Real Estate Matters 

 
1. Deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property for 

Agenda items if deliberation in an open meeting would have a 
detrimental effect on the position of the System in negotiations with a third 
person. 

2. Sale of 11.75 Acres in Missouri City. 

3. Authorize Purchase of Palmetto Cul-de-Sac Right of Way at Eastside. 
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XI. Additional Closed or Executive Session Authority 

If, during the course of the meeting covered by this Notice, the Board should determine 
that a closed or executive meeting or session of the Board should be held or is required 
in relation to any items included in this Notice, then such closed or executive meeting 
or session as authorized by Section 551.001 et seq. of the Texas Government Code (the 
Open Meetings Act) will be held by the Board at that date, hour and place given in this 
Notice or as soon after the commencement of the  meeting covered by the Notice as  
the Board may conveniently meet in such closed or executive meeting or session 
concerning:  

Section 551.071 – For the purpose of a private consultation with the Board’s attorney 
about pending or contemplated litigation, a settlement offer, or matters on which the 
attorney’s duty to the System under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional 
Conduct clearly conflicts with the Texas Open Meetings Laws. 

Section 551.072 – For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value 
of real property if deliberation in an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on 
the position of the governmental body in negotiations with a third person. 

Section 551.073 – For the purpose of considering a negotiated contract for a 
prospective gift or donation to the System if deliberation in an open meeting would 
have a detrimental effect on the position of the System in negotiations with a third 
person. 

Section 551.074 – For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or 
employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee, unless 
the officer or employee who is the subject of the deliberation or hearing requests a 
public hearing. 

Section 551.076 – To consider the deployment, or specific occasions for 
implementation of security personnel or devices, or a security audit. 

Section 551.082 – For the purpose of considering discipline of a student or to hear 
a complaint by an employee against another employee if the complaint or charge 
directly results in a need for a hearing, unless an open hearing is requested in writing by 
a parent or guardian of the student or by the employee against whom the complaint is 
brought. 

Section 551.084 – For the purpose of excluding a witness or witnesses in an 
investigation from a hearing during examination of another witness in the 
investigation. 
 
Should any final action, final decision, or final vote be required in the opinion of the 
Board with regard to any matter considered in such closed or executive meeting 
or session, then such final action, final decision, or final vote shall be at either: 
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A. The open meeting covered by this Notice upon the reconvening of the public 
meeting, or 

B. At a subsequent public meeting of the Board upon notice thereof, as the Board 
shall determine. 

XII. Reconvene in Open Meeting 
 
XIII. Adjournment 
 
XIV. Dinner 
 

Following the conclusion of all business, the Board of Trustees will meet for dinner in 
the Chancellor’s Conference Room, 12th Floor, Suite 12D15, System Administration 
Building, 3100 Main, Houston, Texas 77002, where the Board may generally discuss 
System business, but will not take action on such business. 
 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING OR GIVING NOTICE 

 
On this     14th        day of   December    2015 at or before 4:00 p.m., this 

Notice was posted at a place convenient to the public and readily accessible at all times to the 

general public at the following locations: (1) the HCC Administration Building of the Houston 

Community College, 3100 Main, First Floor, Houston, Texas 77002; and (2) the Houston 

Community College website, www.hccs.edu. 

 

       

Rose Sarzoza-Pena 
Manager, Board Services 



Minutes 



  
MEETING OF THE 

ACADEMIC AFFAIRS/STUDENT SERVICES COMMITTEE 
OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

November 12, 2015 
 

Minutes 
 
The Academic Affairs/Student Success Committee of the Board of Trustees of Houston 
Community College held a meeting on Thursday, November 12, 2015, at the HCC 
Administration Building, Second Floor, Auditorium, 3100 Main, Houston, Texas. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT  
Eva Loredo, Committee Chair 
Dave Wilson, Committee Member 
Zeph Capo, Alternate Committee Member 
Carolyn Evans-Shabazz 
Robert Glaser 
Neeta Sane 
 
ADMINISTRATION 
Cesar Maldonado, Chancellor 
Melissa Gonzalez, Chief of Staff 
Ashley Smith, General Counsel 
Kimberly Beatty, Vice Chancellor, Instructional Services, Chief Academic Officer 
William Carter, Vice Chancellor, Information Technology 
Butch Herod, Vice Chancellor, Innovation, Planning and Institutional Analytics 
Teri Zamora, Senior Vice Chancellor, Finance and Administration 
Margaret Ford Fisher, President, Northeast College 
Madeline Burillo, Interim President, Southwest College 
Debra McGaughey for William Harmon, President, Central College 
Zachary Hodges, President, Northwest College 
Phillip Nicotera, President, Coleman College 
Irene Porcarello, President, Southeast College 
 
OTHERS PRESENT 
Jarvis Hollingsworth, Board Counsel, Bracewell & Giuliani 
Other administrators, citizens and representatives from the news media 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Ms. Eva Loredo, Committee Chair, called the meeting to order at 3:05 p.m. and declared the 
Board convened to consider matters pertaining to Houston Community College as listed on the 
duly posted Meeting Notice. 
 
(The following Trustees were present:  Evans-Shabazz, Sane, Glaser, Loredo, Tamez, and 
Wilson). 
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STUDENT SUCCESS UPDATE 
Dr. Kimberly Beatty shared the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board Strategic Plan. The 
60x30 theme, which focuses on 60% of Texans ages 25-34 by 2030 will have a certificate or 
degree. She presented the following: 
 
Aligning with the THECB Strategic Plan – STUDENT SUCCESS REPORT 
 

The 2015 – 2030 Plan Includes Four Student-Centered Goals 
• 60x30 
• Completion 
• Marketable Skills  
• Student Debt 

 
Dr. Beatty noted HCC would align and support the State plan through HCC Student Experience 
Model. And she continued with the presentation: 
 

HCC Student Experience Model 
• Connection 
• Progress 
• Jobs 
• Entry 
• Completion (Transfer) 

 
Ms. Sane inquired if faculty and staff will be trained differently.   
 
Dr. Beatty noted there is a package available for staff and faculty to see what we do, and how it 
relates to the new experience.  She informed that some training for advisors and faculty will be 
required. 
 
Dr. Maldonado noted there will be significant training in transforming the Student Services 
division.  He informed that the presidents are leading six projects relating to retention and 
student’s success and that there will be multiple trainings in the next fiscal year.  He discussed  
the Early Alert System that will use services that have and will be looking at a new website to 
make it easier to communicate with students. He informed for Spring 2016, there will be a lot 
relating to supporting the strategies and we will use our own strategic plan and transformation 
goals, metrics, and compliance to align with the State’s 60x30. 
 
Ms. Sane inquired if an extra budget for training would be needed. 
 
Dr. Maldonado apprised that in improving the student experiences there will be a cost 
component, and it will be in the next budget cycle. He stated we would begin to see some of 
the CIP projects come before the Board from an expense standpoint. 
 
Mr. Glaser inquired if information will be provided regarding the student progress as  he/she 
will be going through the system and success.  
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Dr. Maldonado reported that as part of the new web design, students would be provided a 
dashboard for their own use.  He stated that the advisory and faculty would have access to the 
student’s dashboard to inform them of the progress and provide support to the students. 
 
(Ms. Sane stepped out at 3:18 p.m.) 
 
HCC LIBRARIES PLAN 
Dr. Maldonado noted the libraries are something we have discussed from time to time and it 
has been consistent on the agenda for the past few months. And as part of the ongoing 
transformation and student experience he realized we need to have a data driven decision on 
the accessibility of the libraries. He noted that Drs. Beatty and Levey has been working on a 
blue print to address and explore library access to best service the students. 
 
Dr. Levey gave an overview of the HCC Libraries. The plan was drafted by AVC/Instructional 
Services, Executive Director, Library Resources & Services and HCC Library Council.  He 
presented the following: 
 
HCC Libraries: Embracing Innovation to Support Student Success: 
 

• Library Services 
• Governance 
• Staffing 
• Collections and Access 
• Facilities 
• Technology 
• Assessment  

 
(Mr. Capo arrived at 3:37 p.m.) 
 
Trustees Evans-Shabazz, Glaser and Loredo thanked Dr. Levey for the presentation. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
With no further business coming before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 3:44 p.m. 
 
Minutes recorded, transcribed & submitted by: 
Rose Sarzoza-Pena, Manage, Board Services 
 
Minutes Approved as Submitted:   ____    



  
MEETING OF THE 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

November 12, 2015 
 

Minutes 
 
The Audit Committee of the Board of Trustees of Houston Community College held a meeting 
on Thursday, November 12, 2015, at the HCC Administration Building, Second Floor, 
Auditorium, 3100 Main, Houston, Texas. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT  
Robert Glaser, Committee Chair 
Dave Wilson, Committee Member 
Adriana Tamez, Alternate Committee Member 
Carolyn Evans-Shabazz 
Eva Loredo 
 
ADMINISTRATION 
Cesar Maldonado, Chancellor 
Melissa Gonzalez, Chief of Staff 
Ashley Smith, General Counsel 
Kimberly Beatty, Vice Chancellor, Instructional Services, Chief Academic Officer 
William Carter, Vice Chancellor, Information Technology 
Butch Herod, Vice Chancellor, Innovation, Planning and Institutional Analytics 
Teri Zamora, Senior Vice Chancellor, Finance and Administration 
Margaret Ford Fisher, President, Northeast College 
Madeline Burillo, Interim President, Southwest College 
Debra McGaughey for William Harmon, President, Central College 
Zachary Hodges, President, Northwest College 
Phillip Nicotera, President, Coleman College 
Irene Porcarello, President, Southeast College 
 
OTHERS PRESENT 
Jarvis Hollingsworth, Board Counsel, Bracewell & Giuliani 
Other administrators, citizens and representatives from the news media 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mr. Glaser, Committee Chair, called the meeting to order at 2:54 p.m. and declared the Board 
convened to consider matters pertaining to Houston Community College as listed on the duly 
posted Meeting Notice. 
 
(The following Trustees present: Evans-Shabazz, Tamez, Glaser, Loredo and Wilson). 
 
(Trustee Shabazz stepped out at 2:55 p.m.) 
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INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY REPORT 
Mrs. Brockman provided an overview on the Follow-up Status Report and its status: 
 

• 12-09 Fixed Assets (Complete) 
• 14-14 Business Continuity Plan (1-2 In Progress 3 Complete) 
• 14-21 Payroll (Complete) 

 
Mrs. Brockman continued a follow up on Internal Audit Plan Status Report: 
 

• 15-11 Financial Management (In Process) 
• 15-16 Web Presence (In Process) 
• 15-17 Veteran’s Affairs Dept. (In Final Stages) 
• 15-18 IT Governance and Planning (In Final Stages) 
 
Additional Audits Investigations: 
• 15-102 SE Issues 
• 15-103 Faculty Benefit Issue (results indicate that no net benefit to the individual) 

 
QUARTERLY CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE ATTESTATION 
Dr. Maldonado informed that in an effort to help build the confidence in Administration and 
the trust between administration, members of the Board of Trustees, and the public, beginning 
this quarter he would offer a quarterly control and compliance attestation letter.   
 
(Trustee Evans-Shabazz returned at 3:02 p.m.) 
 
Mr. Glaser inquired if the external auditors had reviewed the letter.  
 
Dr. Maldonado explained the letter had not been reviewed with external auditors.  He noted it 
will be discussed with the external auditors to the extent that it can be modified to best fit the 
mission of the external auditors.  
 
Mr. Glaser apprised he would review open items from external auditors from previous years.  
 
Mrs. Zamora reported open items from previous years will be addressed in the December 
meeting.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
With no further business coming before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 3:04 p.m. 
 
Minutes recorded, transcribed & submitted by: 
Rose Sarzoza-Pena, Manager, Board Services 
 
Minutes Approved as Submitted: __________  ____  



  
MEETING OF THE 

BOARD GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

November 12, 2015 
 

Minutes 
 
The Board Governance Committee of the Board of Trustees of Houston Community College 
held a meeting on Thursday, November 12, 2015, at the HCC Administration Building, Second 
Floor Auditorium, 3100 Main, Houston, Texas. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT  
Adriana Tamez, Committee Chair 
Robert Glaser, Committee Member 
Zeph Capo 
Carolyn Evans-Shabazz 
Eva Loredo, Alternate Committee Member 
Neeta Sane 
Dave Wilson 
 
ADMINISTRATION 
Cesar Maldonado, Chancellor 
Melissa Gonzalez, Chief of Staff 
Ashley Smith, General Counsel 
Kimberly Beatty, Vice Chancellor, Instructional Services, Chief Academic Officer 
William Carter, Vice Chancellor, Information Technology 
Butch Herod, Vice Chancellor, Innovation, Planning and Institutional Analytics 
Teri Zamora, Senior Vice Chancellor, Finance and Administration 
Margaret Ford Fisher, President, Northeast College 
Madeline Burillo, Interim President, Southwest College 
Debra McGaughey for William Harmon, President, Central College 
Zachary Hodges, President, Northwest College 
Phillip Nicotera, President, Coleman College 
Irene Porcarello, President, Southeast College 
Janet May, Chief Human Resources Officer 
Remmele Young, Associate Vice Chancellor, Governmental and External Relations 
 
OTHERS PRESENT 
Melissa Mahalick, Board Counsel, Bracewell & Giuliani 
Other administrators, citizens and representatives from the news media 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Dr. Adriana Tamez, Committee Chair, called the meeting to order at 1:04 p.m. and declared the 
Board convened to consider matters pertaining to Houston Community College as listed on the 
duly posted Meeting Notice. 
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(The following Trustees were present: Capo, Glaser, Loredo, Tamez and Wilson). 
 
TASB LOCALIZED POLICY MANUAL 
Mr. Hollingsworth gave an overview of the policies.  He noted that the TASB Local polices would 
not take effect until mid-April or Spring 2016.  He noted that the Board will need to approve an 
interim set of polices in December.   
 
(Dr. Evans-Shabazz joined the meeting at 1:31 p.m.) 
 
Mr. Capo noted the current policy remains in place. This is a functional process to move the 
college to a new system and no current policy in place should be changed or deleted during the 
process.   The changes will be looked at one by one. 
 
Mr. Hollingsworth shared the DGBA (LOCAL) Personal Management Relations and Employee 
Grievance policy. He noted that the Chancellor requested the Board consider the policy since it 
is not in place at this time.   
 
Dr. Tamez inquired if the policy would be pulled and brought before the Board Governance 
Committee.  
 
Mr. Capo noted he would like to see the policy come forth, but wanted to focus on what is in 
place and bring the policy back for the next committee meeting.  He informed that we are 
removing the TASB language and putting in place what the Board has already approved. 
 
Mr. Hollingsworth noted he will bring to the Board in December some clean up polices with 
non-essential changes before the TASB transformation in January.  He informed that he would 
set aside any new policies for discussion in January, or sometime later, and that some polices 
had already gone into enforcement.   
 
Mr. Hollingsworth noted he would bring forth the policy the Board really needs to act on in 
January 2016. 
 
Dr. Tamez noted that we do not need to wait until January for new legislation.  She noted that 
the Board is counting on the Board Counsel to make sure we remain in compliance.  
 
Mr. Capo requested a coding for the red and blue lines, and a list of the policy numbers that are 
new and separate from the current policies.   
 
Mr. Hollingsworth requested the Board consider FLD (Local) Students Rights and Complaints for 
future discussion. 
 
 
 
 
PROPOSED REVISIONS TO BOARD BYLAWS  
Mr. Hollingsworth noted the Board Bylaws has a good set of rules. 
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(Ms. Sane joined the meeting at 1:42 p.m.) 
 
Mr. Hollingsworth noted Article A: Campaign Finance Reports require current Board members 
to post Campaign Finance Reports for each year of service on the College District website.   
 
Ms. Tamez requested that past Trustees information be removed from HCC website, subject to 
the document retention policy. 
 
Mr. Hollingsworth noted Article A: Ethics, Code of Ethics Compliant Forms be maintained by 
Board Services, and the form be used for the Board and senior staff. 
 
Mr. Wilson recommended the committee consider unsigned complaints  as not valid.  
 
Ms. Sane inquired who would review the process. 
 
Mr. Capo noted the process has not changed in this venue regarding Board members and senior 
staff.  He noted that the process would remain the same as it has always been. 
 
Mr. Hollingsworth noted the Board amended the By-Laws last year, Article E:11, the chair may 
initiate an independent investigation.  He informed that it is after the approval of the Board.  
 
Mr. Hollingsworth noted Article E requires the Chancellor to review all appointed committees 
and members of the community with the Board prior to establishment, and will provide the 
Board with a semi-annual report of the membership of each committee. 
 
Mr. Glaser recommended listing the committees online.  Dr. Evans-Shabazz recommended 
gauging to ensure all communities are included. Ms. Loredo indicated by having the listing 
online would let us know of the committees that no longer exist, and when new committees 
are formed. 
 
Mr. Capo referenced Article E.2.e, Appointing Campus Committees and Article F.7, 
Community Advisory Committees. Mr. Capo requested clarification between Article E.2 and 
Article F.7.  
 
Mr. Hollingsworth noted the way it is written, campus committees is under prevue the preview 
of the Chancellor and community advisory committees are the prevue of the Board. Mr. 
Hollingsworth noted he would bring a full recommendation to the Board regarding the 
committees in a future committee meeting. 
 
Mr. Hollingsworth noted Article H, Item 4, Public Statements and the Media. He informed that 
the Board speaks through one voice, the Chair. He informed that this proposes the Board 
member to notify Board Services that news media have contacted them and provide the topic.  
Mr. Capo noted it should be inserted “contacted regarding HCC businesses”. 



Houston Community College  
Board Governance Committee Meeting – November 12, 2015 - Page 4   

 

 

 
Mr. Hollingsworth noted that when the Chancellor is contacted by news media on Board 
related issues or related to Board members, it is suggested that he notify the Board through 
Board Services at his discretion. 
 
Mr. Hollingsworth noted Article H, Item 5c.d. Update to reflect the revisions for full training 
requirements of new Board members and the requirements to complete the financial training 
within the first year, rather than the first two years, along with the Texas Higher Education 
Coordinating Board training. 
 
Mr. Hollingsworth noted Article H, Item 7, Requests for Documents.  He apprised that changes 
made reflects the accordance with the Attorney General opinion to ensure that HCC is in 
compliance. 
 
Mr. Hollingsworth noted Article H, Item 8, Board Member Complaints. He informed that the 
Chair has the discretion to determine if the information requested is reasonable and related to 
the duty of a Trustee.  He noted that this is standard of the Attorney General opinion in which 
the request be reviewed.  
 
Mr. Hollingsworth noted Article H, Item 8 relates to a sitting Board member has a complaint 
against another Board member or a member of the administration.  He informed the complaint 
should be in writing and follow the process defined in Article A.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
With no further business coming before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 2:21 p.m. 
 
Minutes recorded, transcribed & submitted by: 
Rose Sarzoza-Pena, Manager, Board Services 
 
Minutes Approved as Submitted:   ____    
 
 
 



  
MEETING OF THE 

CHANCELLOR EVALUATION COMMITTEE 
OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

November 12, 2015 
 

Minutes 
 
The Chancellor Evaluation Committee of the Board of Trustees of Houston Community College 
held a meeting on Thursday, November 12, 2015, at the HCC Administration Building, Second 
Floor, Auditorium, 3100 Main, Houston, Texas. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT  
Adriana Tamez, Committee Chair 
Zeph Capo, Committee Member 
Eva Loredo, Committee Member 
Robert Glaser 
Neeta Sane 
Carolyn Evans-Shabazz 
Dave Wilson 
 
ADMINISTRATION 
Cesar Maldonado, Chancellor 
Melissa Gonzalez, Chief of Staff 
Ashley Smith, General Counsel 
Kimberly Beatty, Vice Chancellor, Instructional Services, Chief Academic Officer 
William Carter, Vice Chancellor, Information Technology 
Butch Herod, Vice Chancellor, Innovation, Planning and Institutional Analytics 
Teri Zamora, Senior Vice Chancellor, Finance and Administration 
Margaret Ford Fisher, President, Northeast College 
Madeline Burillo, Interim President, Southwest College 
Debra McGaughey for William Harmon, President, Central College 
Zachary Hodges, President, Northwest College 
Phillip Nicotera, President, Coleman College 
Irene Porcarello, President, Southeast College 
 
OTHERS PRESENT 
Jarvis Hollingsworth, Board Counsel, Bracewell & Giuliani 
Other administrators, citizens and representatives from the news media 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Dr. Adriana Tamez, Committee Chair, called the meeting to order at 2:22 p.m. and declared the 
Board convened to consider matters pertaining to Houston Community College as listed on the 
duly posted Meeting Notice. 
 
(The following Trustees were present: Capo, Evans-Shabazz, Glaser, Loredo, Sane, Tamez and 
Wilson). 
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CHANCELLOR’S EVALUATION FOR 2014-15 AND PERFORMANCE GOALS FOR 2015-16 
Motion – Ms. Evans moved and Mr. Capo seconded.  
 
Dr. Maldonado provided a review copy of the Chancellor’s Evaluation for 2014-2015 and 
Performance Goals for 2015-16 to the committee for consideration. Dr. Polonio of ACCT and 
Committee Chair, Dr. Tamez assisted with drafting the instrument. 
 
(Trustee Glaser stepped out at 2:23 p.m.) 
 
(Trustee Glaser returned at 2:24 p.m.) 
 
Dr. Tamez stated the committee has until November 30th to approve both 2014-15 Chancellor’s 
Evaluation and 2015-16 Performance Goals. 
 
Dr. Maldonado appraised that specific to the goals for next year, and in working with the 
consultant, the data selected has a long horizon in terms of affecting results from strategic 
changes that the administration makes.  He noted, included in the instrument is a fiscal 2018 
plan and a 2016 target so the Board can look from the 2016 target for accountability standpoint 
for Chancellor and Administration.   
 
Mr. Capo reported that a draft copy of the cover letter, a summary by ACCT and matrix was 
provided to the Chief of Staff. Mr. Capo requested that the minutes be reviewed regarding the 
approval of the Chancellor’s Evaluation. 
 
Dr. Maldonado conveyed he would remove Appendix A and the historical numbers but the five 
Domains following the Summary Analysis would remain. He would edit the summary page. 
 
Dr. Tamez inquired if the instrument should be forwarded to the Board before November 30th.  
 
Mr. Capo advised the 2014-15 Chancellor’s Evaluation and 2015-16 Performance Goals should 
be posted for November’s meeting. 
 
Mr. Wilson inquired if the Chancellor’s evaluation could be done before the Chancellor’s 
contract deadline in October and if the evaluation could be coordinated with the Chancellor’s 
contract.  
 
Mr. Capo conveyed he will check to see if the final piece is required to be brought back to the 
Board before it is completed or made a record since it is an employee evaluation.  
 
Mr. Hollingsworth stated the contract was amended to move the objectives back in order for 
the Board to complete it by the deadline November 30th.  



Houston Community College  
Chancellor Evaluation Committee Meeting – November 12, 2015 - Page 3   

 

 

Mr. Capo apprised that the 2014-15 evaluation is complete, however, the goals for 2016 need 
to be finalized. 
 
Dr. Tamez will provide an update to the Board regarding the process. 
 
Mr. Capo inquired regarding the rational for developing and identifying the goals and targets 
for the Contextual Performance Indicators (CPI), Domains: finance, participation, enrollment, 
and success and graduation rates. 
 
Dr. Maldonado stated the enrollment numbers are driven by Domain #2 Success. The number 
of awards and transfers in it assume 65% persistent rates to back field the students that are 
graduating. And we are increasing significant numbers in technical awards and enrollment. Dr. 
Maldonado conveyed that extensive thought went into the methodology of putting the 
numbers together and the goals are reachable. 
 
Mr. Capo appraised as to where the plans are to engage students that have been separated 
from the school system for a length of time and to ensure that they get back into the 
workforce.  
 
Dr. Maldonado advised the strategies to be used to increase enrollment and to reach the 2018 
plan are multiple, and will include reaching to different segments of the community. He noted it 
is not laid out, but are part of the strategies used to outline the Centers of Excellence and 
Academic programs and the partnerships with ISD’s.   
 
Dr. Tamez inquired of students over 18 of age that are not included in the stretch goal.  
 
Dr. Maldonado advised they are included, but not broken out in the plan.  Strategies have been 
set to reach out to all groups.   
 
Dr. Tamez requested we compare with other community college enrollment goals.  
 
Dr. Maldonado advised other institutions are germane, but the target is what we are doing with 
Centers of Excellence and graduation rates. 
 
The motion made to approve the performance objectives for 2015-16. 
 
Motion – Dr. Tamez moved and Ms. Loredo seconded. 
 
Vote on Motion – The motion passed with a vote of 2-1, with Mr. Capo opposing. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
With no further business coming before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 2:53 p.m. 
 
Minutes recorded, transcribed & submitted by: 
Rose Sarzoza-Pena, Manager, Board Services 
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Minutes Approved as Submitted:   ____    



 
 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE  
 

November 12, 2015 
 

Minutes 
  
The Board of Trustees of Houston Community College met as a Committee of the Whole on 
Thursday, November 12, 2015, at the HCC Administration Building, Second Floor Auditorium, 3100 
Main, Houston, Texas. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT  
Zeph Capo, Chair 
Robert Glaser, Vice Chair 
Carolyn Evans-Shabazz 
Eva Loredo 
Neeta Sane 
Dave Wilson 
 
ADMINISTRATION 
Cesar Maldonado, Chancellor 
Melissa Gonzalez, Chief of Staff 
Ashley Smith, General Counsel 
Kimberly Beatty, Vice Chancellor, Instructional Services, Chief Academic Officer 
William Carter, Vice Chancellor, Information Technology 
Butch Herod, Vice Chancellor, Innovation, Planning and Institutional Analytics 
Teri Zamora, Senior Vice Chancellor, Finance and Administration 
Margaret Ford Fisher, President, Northeast College 
Madeline Burillo, Interim President, Southwest College 
Zachary Hodges, President, Northwest College 
Phillip Nicotera, President, Coleman College 
Irene Porcarello, President, Southeast College 
Janet May, Chief Human Resources Officer 
Carme Williams, Executive Director, HCC Foundation 
 
OTHERS PRESENT 
Jarvis Hollingsworth, Board Counsel, Bracewell & Giuliani 
David White, President, Faculty Senate 
Lillie Aranda, President, COPA 
Melissa Mihalick, Board Counsel, Bracewell & Giuliani, and other administrators 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mr. Zeph Capo, Chair, called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. and declared the Board convened to 
consider matters pertaining to Houston Community College as listed on the duly posted Meeting 
Notice. 
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(The following Trustees were present: Capo, Evans-Shabazz, Glaser, Loredo, Sane and Wilson). 
 
UPDATE ON BOND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) RELATED MATTERS 
Dr. Maldonado noted  Mr. Charles Smith will provide the update on the Bond Capital Improvement 
Plan (CIP). 
 
Mr. Smith informed that all information is accessible to the public on the HCC website. He 
presented the 2013 CIP Report for October 2015.   
 
Mr. Smith reported that at the end of October the CIP program employed 28 interns. He reported 
that cumulative amount paid represents 31% of the budgeted funds. He noted Small Business 
percentage is above goal and unlikely to remain at that level due to the difficulties of engaging 
small business funds.   
 
Mr. Smith apprised there are two major permits remaining, Coleman and  Acres Home, and 
scheduled to go in on Friday, and the Central South Campus will follow shortly thereafter.   
 
Mr. Smith apprised that CIP program is on track and on budget. 
 
Mr. Glaser inquired if the designer of the West Loop garage will allow for any floors in the future.  
Mr. Smith stated the designs would support two additional floors.  
 
Mr. Glaser inquired if the Brays Oaks project contractors were placed on a future list of bids. Mr. 
Smith reported they were on the list. 
 
Mr. Wilson inquired of the spending on the construction.  Mr. Smith apprised that $33 million was 
spent on the CIP program throughout October 30th.  Mr. Wilson inquired of the “spend down” for 
March 19th deadline.   Mr. Smith reported the amount is down to $272 million to meet deadline.  
He noted it will be challenging to meet the “spend down” in March due to weather, delay of 
permits and as well as the Missouri City project delay due to a bond election.  
 
Mr. Wilson inquired if the bond to purchase the Sienna Planation passed. Mr. Smith stated the Fort 
Bend County bond election to purchase the Sienna Planation building passed.  
 
Ms. Sane commented that the schedule indicates the building would be ready by June 2017. 
Trustee Sane requested the community not be put on hold and kept informed. 
 
Dr. Maldonado reported there was a delay due to the county transaction anticipated to be 
completed four months ago.  
 
Mr. Capo inquired if a permit was purchased for North Forest.  Mr. Smith reported a permit has not 
been requested due to discussion between the college, local members of the community, other 
interest groups and stakeholders as to what should be built there. He noted the community was 
briefed on last week and the work continued on the architect package.  He stated he expected the 



Houston Community College  
Committee of the Whole November 12, 2015 - Page 3 

 

 

permit to be submitted, but did not previously have the consensus to submit the package until 
meeting was completed. 
 
Dr. Maldonado stated pending the approval of the agenda, allocation of the expected revenues, is 
one of the major elements.  He expects to submit the packages tomorrow. He noted we will 
continue to work with the community to share the idea design, but the relation with the 
community is solid and we are moving forward with partnerships. 
 
Mr.  Capo inquired of other projects permits applications and permits not received.  
 
Mr. Smith reported Northline Academic Building permit was submitted but pending. As well as the 
first of multiple packages for Coleman had been submitted but pending.  These are the only two 
permits pending from the city. 
 
Mr. Capo requested permit application numbers.  
 
Mr. Capo requested an update on the contract compliance and a copy of the report. 
 
Mr. Smith noted that RL Townsend will conduct the reviews and two has been conducted and were 
provided in the Weekly Administrative Brief. Ms. Debbie Townsend will make a presentation in 
December. 
 
Mr. Wilson requested an overview of the cutback on the projects. Mr. Smith noted that in summary 
we keep all programmatic activities intact and looked at footprints of the building to make them 
more efficient.  
 
Mr. Wilson requested an analysis is provided to the Board regarding the cutback and details on the  
Sienna Plantation/Missouri City swap. 
 
Mr. Glaser requested an update on the Bond Oversight Committee meeting. 
 
Mr. Smith appraised he meets with the Bond Oversight Committee quarterly and the next meeting 
is scheduled for December.  He noted the committee is pleased with the way the budget is being 
handle and the way things are going. 
 
Dr. Tamez requested a report on attendees at the Bond Oversight Committee meetings. 
 
PAYMENT OF IMPACT FEES TO THE CITY OF HOUSTON 
Dr. Maldonado stated this item is being brought forward to comply with a commitment made with 
the City of Houston and Mayor to bring forward their offer. It does not signify approval or support 
by the Administration. It is the Administration’s recommendation the Board deny the 
recommendation made by the City of Houston. 
 
Motion – Glaser moved and Tamez seconded. 
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Motion made to deny the paying of the impact fees to the City of Houston.  
 
Vote – The motion passed with a vote of 6/0. 
 
DISTRIBUTION OF ANTICIPATED PROCEEDS FROM THE SALE OF PROPERTY AT MACGREGOR AND 
288 
Motion – Ms. Evans-Shabazz moved and Ms. Sane seconded. 
 
Dr. Maldonado noted the Board authorized Administration to move forward with disposing of the 
MacGregor property through a sale.  The allocated funds pursuant to the sale and bring forward to 
the Board for consideration making the allocation from our current fund balance and reimbursing 
that amount to the fund from the proceed of the sale of MacGregor property.  He noted there is a 
need to move forward with finalizing the designs, submitting permits and moving the projects 
forward that will be impacted by the use of these funds. He noted the recommendation is to 
authorize the budget of approximately $13,629,203 representing reimbursement to the CIP fund 
from the anticipated sale proceeds of $13,850,00 from the property located at MacGregor and 288, 
to Bond CIP projects. 
 
Mr. Glaser inquired the lost and gain of the buildings based on the magnitude of numbers be 
changed from one project to another.  
 
Dr. Maldonado asked Mr. Smith to explain the adjustment made on the Coleman project. 
 
Mr. Smith noted the Coleman project was carried on the books at $120 million of construction cost 
one year ago. Mr. Smith reported on the number of floor and garage adjustments, but noted the 
Coleman project is not losing anything through the transaction. 
 
Ms. Sane inquired the need to approve now and not after the sale is complete. 
 
Dr. Maldonado commented that in order to finish the design and submit the building permits the 
project must have the capital needed for the construction. He noted that without the approval the 
projects stops.   
 
Ms. Evans-Shabazz inquired if there are any of properties we anticipated in selling in order to help 
fill some of the other projects.    
 
Dr. Maldonado apprised other sales would be brought before the Board in the near future.  
 
Vote – The motion passed with a vote 6/0.  
 
ADJOURNED TO CLOSED SESSION 
Mr. Capo adjourned the meeting to Executive Session at 4:53 p.m. notice having previously been 
given and reiterated in accordance with Sections 551.071, 551.072, and/or 551.074 of the Open 
Meetings Law. Mr. Capo stated that any final action, vote or decision on any item discussed in 
Executive Session would be taken up in Open Session or in a subsequent Public Meeting. 
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Mr. Capo reconvened the meeting in Open Session at 5:28 p.m. and entertained any motions on 
pending matters. 
 
(Trustees present: Glaser, Loredo, Sane, Wilson, Evans-Shabazz) 
 
INVESTMENT POLICY 2016 
 
Motion – Sane moved and Loredo seconded. 
 
Ms. Zamora reported that there were two things that changed 1) the state statute requires 102% 
for collateralization and 2) Administration recommend adding William Blair and Company to the list 
of qualified brokers. 
 
Vote – The motion passed with a vote 5/0. 
 
INVESTMENT REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 2015 AND MONTHLY FINANCIAL 
STATEMENT AND BUDGET REVIEW FOR SEPTEMBER 2015 
 
Motion – Loredo moved and Sane seconded. 
 
Ms. Zamora commented the investment report is a tool, which shows the Board other monies 
invested for producing income. 
 
Vote – The motion passed with a vote 5/0. 
 
Ms. Zamora presented a summary of the Monthly Financial Statement and Budget Review for 
September 2015. 
 
Vote – The motion passed with a vote 5/0. 
 
 (The following Trustees were present: Sane, Evans-Shabazz, Glaser, Loredo and Wilson). 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
With no further business coming before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 5:42 p.m. 
 
Minutes recorded, transcribed & submitted by: 
Rose Sarzoza-Pena, Manager, Board Services 
 
Minutes Approved as Submitted:      ___  



  
MEETING OF THE 

CHANCELLOR EVALUATION COMMITTEE 
OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

November 19, 2015 
 

Minutes 
 

The Chancellor Evaluation Committee of the Board of Trustees of Houston Community College 
held a meeting on Thursday, November 19, 2015, at the HCC Administration Building, Second 
Floor Auditorium, 3100 Main, Houston, Texas. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT  
Adriana Tamez, Chair 
Zeph Capo, Committee Member 
Eva Loredo, Committee Member 
Carolyn Evans-Shabazz, Alternate Committee Member 
Robert Glaser 
Neeta Sane 
Dave Wilson 
 
ADMINSTRATION 
Cesar Maldonado, Chancellor 
Melissa Gonzalez, Chief of Staff 
Valerie Simpson for Ashley Smith, General Counsel 
Kimberly Beatty, Vice Chancellor, Instructional Services, Chief Academic Officer 
William Carter, Vice Chancellor, Information Technology 
Butch Herod, Vice Chancellor, Innovation, Planning and Institutional Analytics 
Irene Porcarello, President, Southeast College 
Teri Zamora, Senior Vice Chancellor, Finance and Administration 
Margaret Ford Fisher, President, Northeast College 
William Harmon, President, Central College 
Madeline Burillo, Interim Acting President, Southwest College 
Zachary Hodges, President, Northwest College 
Phillip Nicotera, President, Coleman College 
Janet May, Chief Human Resources Officer 
 
OTHERS PRESENT 
Jarvis Hollingsworth, Board Counsel, Bracewell & Giuliani; and other administrators. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Dr. Adriana Tamez, Committee Chair, called the meeting to order at 3:18  p.m. and declared the 
Board convened to consider matters pertaining to Houston Community College as listed on the 
duly posted Meeting Notice. 
 
 
Motion moved  
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CHANCELLOR’S PERFORMANCE GOALS FOR 2015-16 
 
Dr. Narcissa Polonio presented via video conference the Chancellor’s Performance Goals for 
year 2016 through year 2018. 
 
Summary of FY2016 to FY2018 Goals  
Domain 1: Participation: Enrollment Growth 
The Participation Domain defined with the THECB Higher Education Accountability system used 
to track performance on critical measures that add more students to an institution. 
 
Mr. Capo requested what is the base line number that we are starting with to calculate the 2%.  
 
Dr. Polonio reported that it is based on the 2014 actuals and it takes into effect when the 
Chancellor’s does a 3 year projection.  
 
Domain 2: Success 
The Success Domain defined within the THECB Higher Education Accountability System used to 
track performance on critical measures that contribute to student completion. 
 
Mr. Capo inquired what are the pieces that help determine the course and class that should be 
lined up to ensure the goals are aligned? 
 
Dr. Polonio stated it should be aligned in the Strategic Plan and with the Workforce Program. 
 
Dr. Maldonado reported we will begin with the facility utilization and align our courses with the 
labor market demands. The strategic plan will be used to guide the strategies that we put 
together for which and when the courses should be offered. 
 
Domain 3: Fiscal and Facilities 
Fiscal and Facilities Domain consists of financial measures as defined in the THECB Higher 
Education Accountability System plus local measures designed to track performance on 
financial and CIP matters. 
 
(Trustee Sane arrived at 3:35 p.m.) 
 
Dr. Tamez inquired regarding the facilities audit review as it relates to what we own, the CIP 
management and completion dates and asset report.  
 
Dr. Maldonado advised the chart is included in Domain #3 as asset management. 
 
Dr. Tamez requested that an asset report be included in Domain #5 quarterly.  
 
Domain 4: External Relations 
The External Relations Domain relates to activities that nurture community support and 
appropriate recognition for the college. 
 



Houston Community College  
Chancellor Evaluation Committee Meeting – November 19, 2015 - Page 3   

 

 

Dr. Tamez requested Domain 4.6  be revised to reflect the emphasis on the Chancellor being 
out in the community.  She requested the sentence restructure reflect the following: Working 
collaboratively with the Board and individual trustees to promote HCC throughout the service 
area “including specific outreach directly to the community”. 
 
Domain 5: Governance 
The Governance Domain relates to the support and information provided to the Board and 
activities that foster board collaboration to achieve the mission of the institution and foster 
quality education, effective and efficient operations and performance. 
 
(Trustee Mullins arrived at 4:10 p.m.) 
 
Ms. Sane asked if our goals for 2015-2016 at HCC are in line with the national goals to increase 
the participation and graduation rate by 50% by 2020.  
 
Dr. Polonio advised that the strategic plan would better answer those questions at this point.  
She noted that you would have a better feel once you get the strategic plan.  The plan should 
cover your institutional effectiveness and student success plan.  
 
Trustee Capo recommended Domain 5.3 be changed to “improve public image and relations” 
instead of improve media relationships. 
 
Dr. Tamez apprised that she does expect us to meet our stretch goals. 
 
Vote – The motion passed with a vote of 3-0. 
 
ADJOURNED TO CLOSED SESSION 
Dr. Tamez adjourned the meeting to Executive Session at 4:11 p.m. notice having previously 
been given and reiterated in accordance with Sections 551.071, 551.072, and/or 551.074 of the 
Open Meetings Law. Dr. Tamez stated that any final action, vote or decision on any item 
discussed in Executive Session would be taken up in Open Session or in a subsequent Public 
Meeting. 
 
Dr. Tamez reconvened the meeting in Open Session at 4:46 p.m. and entertained any motions 
on pending matters. 
 
(The following Trustees were present: Capo, Loredo, Mullins, Sane, Tamez and Wilson) 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
With no further business coming before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 4:46 p.m. 
 
Minutes recorded, transcribed & submitted by: 
Rose Sarzoza-Pena 
Manager, Board Services 
 
Minutes Approved as Submitted:   ____ ____________ 



 

 

REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

November 19, 2015 
 

Minutes 
 

The Board of Trustees of Houston Community College held a Regular Meeting on Thursday, 
November 19, 2015 at the HCC Administration Building, Second Floor Auditorium, 3100 Main, 
Houston, Texas. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT  
Zeph Capo, Chair 
Robert Glaser, Vice Chair 
Adriana Tamez, Secretary 
Carolyn Evans-Shabazz 
Eva Loredo 
Sandie Mullins 
Neeta Sane 
Dave Wilson 
Chris Oliver 
 
ADMINISTRATION 
Cesar Maldonado, Chancellor 
Melissa Gonzalez, Chief of Staff 
Valerie Simpson for Ashley Smith, General Counsel 
Kimberly Beatty, Vice Chancellor, Instructional Services, Chief Academic Officer 
William Carter, Associate Vice Chancellor, Information Technology 
Butch Herod, Vice Chancellor, Innovation, Planning and Institutional Analytics 
Teri Zamora, Senior Vice Chancellor, Finance and Administration 
Madeline Burillo, Interim President, Southwest College 
Margaret Ford Fisher, President, Northeast College 
William Harmon, President, Central College 
Zachary Hodges, President, Northwest College 
Phillip Nicotera, President, Coleman College 
Irene Porcarello,President, Southeast College 
Janet May, Chief Human Resources Officer 
Carme Williams, Executive Director, HCC Foundation 
Remmele Young, Associate Vice Chancellor, Governmental and External Affairs 
 
OTHERS PRESENT 
Jarvis Hollingsworth, Board Counsel, Bracewell & Giuliani 
David White, President, Faculty Senate 
Lillie Aranda, President, COPA 
Other administrators, citizens and representatives from the news media 
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CALL TO ORDER 
Mr. Zeph Capo, Chair, called the meeting to order at 4:47 p.m. and declared the Board 
convened to consider matters pertaining to Houston Community College as listed on the duly 
posted Meeting Notice. 
 
(The following Trustees were present: Oliver, Capo, Evans-Shabazz, Glaser, Mullins, Sane, 
Tamez, Loredo and Wilson) 
 
PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mr. Dave Wilson led the prayer and the pledges. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Motion –   Capo motioned and  Sane seconded. 
 
Vote - The motion passed with vote of 9/0. The following minutes were approved: 
 
Minutes Special Meetings October 1, 2015, from the Academic Affairs/Student Services 
Committee, Audit Committee, Committee of the Whole, and Special meeting on October 8, 
2015, Regular meeting on October 22, 2015, and Special meeting on October 30, 2015. 
 
AWARDS, PRESENTATIONS, AND RECOGNITIONS 

 
Mr. Capo announced The Consulate of Mexico in Houston selected the HCC Foundation 
as recipient of a $63,000 gift for student scholarships for the 2015/2016 academic year. 
This is the largest gift the Mexican Consulate has ever given to a single educational 
institution. 
  
Mr. Capo noted the gift is already providing support for tuition, books and fees for 
Mexican, Mexican-origin or low-income undergraduate students living in the U.S. who 
are enrolled in HCC and seeking a degree or certificate and do not have access to any 
other type of scholarship or financial aid. The scholarships will be a maximum of $1,000 
per student. 
 
Mr. Capo announced a formal signing ceremony was recently held to commemorate the 
scholarship agreement.  
 

Mr. Capo invited Consul General of Mexico Oscar Rodriguez Cabrera and his delegation 
Minerva Hernandez in the Community Affairs Office and the new Consul for Community 
Affairs, Karla Nevarez to the podium for the check presentation. Joining was HCC 
Foundation President,  Shawn Taylor, HCC Foundation 1st Vice President, Mary Williams, 
and HCC Foundation Executive Director, Carme Williams.  

 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT: 
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Mr. Capo opened the floor for Trustee Reports: 
 

• Trustee District Reports 
District IV – Dr. Evans-Shabazz informed she is looking forward to the construction of 
the Coleman College.  She will participate in “Stop the Violence” on Saturday where she 
will provide HCC materials near her district.  She also participated in the Foundation 
scholarship luncheon and attended Stafford campus and met with high school students. 
 
District V – Mr. Glaser informed he participated in the Foundation Scholarship Luncheon 
and a “Go Tejano” event that provided scholarships to the students. 
 
District VII - Ms. Sane thanked the Fort Bend County voters for passing the bond to 
move HCC to Texas Parkway.  
 

 District III - Dr. Tamez informed she attended a STEM symposium at the Southeast 
College and book signing event along with Trustees Loredo and Evans- Shabazz. 

  
 District I – Mr. Capo noted he worked with the “International Community” and they 

work with HCC to support the undocumented students who enroll in HCC. 
 
 District VIII – Ms. Loredo thanked the community for participating in Veteran events 

honoring the veterans.  She attended the book signing where 5 scholarships were given 
on behalf of John Quinones. She thanked the Foundation for the scholarships and Mary 
Williams.  She attended a community event at Southeast campus recruiting students 
and passing out literature to encourage students to enroll at HCC. 

 
• Board Meeting Schedule 

Mr. Capo announced the next scheduled meeting date for the Committee and 
Committee of the Whole meetings is Thursday, December 10, 2015 and the Regular 
Meeting will be on Thursday, December 17, 2015. 
 

CHANCELLOR’S REPORT  
Dr. Cesar Maldonado provided the Chancellor’s Reports on the following: 
 
Thanksgiving Message 

• Dr. Maldonado reported as one of the largest community colleges in the nation and the 
number one institution serving international students, HCC continually monitors the 
pulse of what is happening around the world.  We were saddened and shocked to learn 
of the brutal attacks in Paris this week.   Like the rest of the world, we are coping with 
the widespread impact.    

 
• It is incumbent upon us to remain focused on keeping our students and our campuses 

safe - not just for our international students, but every student, every faculty member, 
every staff member, and all guests who spend time at Houston Community College.  We 
take this task seriously and emphasize its importance daily.  
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• As we approach the season of Thanksgiving, I would like to ask that each of us take a 

moment to reflect on the horrific events that have touched the lives of so many this 
past week.   Also, please ponder the blessings that all of us at Houston Community 
College are able to celebrate as a part of one of the most prosperous and innovative 
cities in the nation. 

 
Recognition of Rose Pena 

• Dr. Maldonado announce the selection of Ms. Rose Sarzoza-Pena as the Manager of 
Board Services.  Ms. Sarzoza-Pena has an extensive background within Houston 
Community College including Campus Manager, Acting College Operations Officer, Lead 
Counselor and Counselor/ Job Developer.  She has a Master’s in Education from Sul Ross 
State University and a Bachelor of Arts from Texas State University.  We are delighted to 
have Ms. Rose Sarzoza-Pena lead Board Services.   

 
STAR Award  

• Dr. Maldonado reported that HCC’s VAST Academy is one of seven finalists for the Texas 
Higher Education Coordinating Board’s 2015 Star Award for exceptional contributions 
toward meeting one or more goals for the Texas Higher Education plan. Star Award 
winners will be revealed tomorrow, November 20 at the 2015 THECB Leadership 
Conference begin held in Austin.  

• The VAST Academy offers comprehensive transition programs and services which 
provide workforce certificates, meaningful credentials, pre-college courses and support 
services to individuals with intellectual and/or learning disabilities from 2nd through the 
8th grade level and beyond.  

• Dr. Maldonado gave a special thanks to Sue Moraska, VAST Director, and to all of the 
faculty and staff for their hard work and dedication to this wonderful program.  
 

COE Presentations 
• Dr. Maldonado stated that starting this month; we will begin highlighting a Centers of 

Excellence at each board meeting.  This month we will be highlighting one of the great 
work that the faculty, staff and administration of Coleman College are doing to support 
our students through Transformation.   

 
Student Recognitions 

• Dr. Maldonado presented Dr. Nicotera for Coleman College’s Student Success Stories 
presentation.  
 

• Student Success Stories 
Dr. Maldonado noted HCC recognizes current and former students for their hard work, 
determination, dedication and leadership on and off campus.  He announced HCC is 
proud to honor and celebrate their accomplishments; they are the definition of success.  
 
The following students were recognized by Dr. Nicotera: 
 
o Kate Rogers, Central College 
o Moji Shirdel, Coleman College 
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o Mark Gonzales, Northeast College 
o Elilalai Barkhouse-Geyer, Northwest College 
o Carletta Winston, Southeast College 
o Abe Gonzalez, Southwest College 

 
• Faculty Senate Report  

Dr. Maldonado presented Mr. David White, President, Faculty Senate. 
 
Mr. White recognized Dr. Evans-Shabazz and new incoming Trustee Hansen for their 
presence at the November 13th Faculty Senate meeting. 
 
Mr. White stated the Faculty Senate continues to hold open forums at different 
campuses and faculty turnout has been productive. He encouraged administration to 
visit faculty at campus locations. 
 
Mr. White thanked Dr. Beatty for meeting with the Chair Caucus, which operates 
independently from the Faculty Senate and Ms. Graves for organizing the meeting with 
Faculty Senate.  
 
Mr. White stated Faculty Senate is working on reviewing academic honesty and working 
on proposals that will be presented in the future.  
 

HEARING OF THE CITIZEN 
The following individual were present to speak: 
 

• John Jay Portillo  
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Motion – Mr. Oliver moved and Dr. Tamez seconded to approve the consent agenda with the 
exception of item A.1.2.3. The motion passed with a vote of 9/0. The following items were 
approved:  
  

• Investment Policy 2016. 
• Investment Report for the Month of September 2015. 
• Monthly Financial Statement and Budget Review for September 2015. 

 
CHANCELLOR’S PERFORMANCE GOALS FOR 2015-16 
Mr. Capo pulled Chancellor’s Evaluation for 2014 -15 from the agenda.  
 
Motion – Ms. Sane moved and Oliver seconded. 
 
Vote – The motion passed with a vote of 9/0. 
 
Mr. Wilson requested for clarity regarding document received today, and did it update the 
document received on Monday and is there a 72 hour requirement for the Board to review.    
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Mr. Capo stated the document received is a pairing down from what was included in the 
original document with an adjustment to final goals and domains discussed in the committee. 
 
Mr. Wilson noted he did not have enough time to review the document and therefore will not 
vote. 
 
Motion –Mr. Oliver moved and Tamez seconded. 
 
Vote – The motion passed with a vote of 8/1 with Wilson abstaining. 
 
PAYMENT OF IMPACT FEES TO THE CITY OF HOUSTON 
 
Dr. Maldonado stated that this item is being brought forward to comply with a commitment he 
made with the City of Houston and Mayor to bring forward their offer. It does not signify 
approval of support by the Administration. It is the Administration recommendation that the 
Board deny the recommendation made by the City of Houston. 
 
Mr. Oliver inquired if fees not paid what would happen. 
 
Dr. Maldonado apprised that we would continue to make payment on construction projects 
that we are not required to pay.  Or if we don’t pay, I don’t know if anything will change. 
 
Dr. Tamez inquired if council members have been asked if college is exempt. 
 
Mr. Oliver stated his city council person commented that the city will seek to collect fees.  
 
Mr. Capo commented that there needs to be a legitimate decision, and allow the legal process 
to pursue if either party does not come to a conclusion. 
 
Dr. Maldonado noted he and the City made an honest effort, but were unable to come to the 
same legal conclusion. He discussed with the city council and mayor. There is nothing to 
indicate the City is slowing down the building permit process, however, they did indicate they 
will deny occupancy permits until the fees are paid.  
 
Ms. Loredo inquired if the college is able to continue to work on the projects. 
 
Dr. Maldonado reported we are able to continue to work provided we get a construction 
permit which is not contingent on impact fees.  
 
Dr. Evans- Shabazz stated if the City is judgement proof in regards to final reimbursement of 
the time we are not able to complete the projects.  
 
Mr. Capo advised that we would seek legal counsel at a later time regarding judgement proof. 
Mr. Capo voted to end the debate. 
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Vote – The motion passed with a vote of 9/0.  
 
Vote to approve the recommendation to deny payment to the City of Houston for impact fees 
for HCC construction projects. 
 
Vote – The motion passed with a vote of 9/0.  
 
DISTRIBUTION OF ANTICIPATED PROCEEDS FROM THE SALE OF PROPERTY AT MACGREGAOR 
AND 288 
 
Motion –Mr. Oliver moved and Dr. Evans-Shabazz seconded. 
 
Dr. Maldonado apprised the item is brought before the Board for approval of distributions of 
proceeds from the sale of the property located at MacGregor and 288.  

 
Mr. Oliver requested an itemized budget for expenses for these projects in an effort of cost 
savings.  
 
Dr. Maldonado reported we are providing some reports that have general categories for 
expenses for each project through the CIP project. 
 
Ms. Mullins inquired the timeline for the sale. 
 
Dr. Maldonado responded that we are in the process of negotiating the sale but anticipate 
timeline to be 4 to 6 months. 
 
Ms. Mullins inquired about the process of how the money would be distributed.  
 
Dr. Maldonado reported that there are no funds sufficient to complete the projects as fully 
envisioned at the bond sale.  This is the Administration recommendations.  He noted the 
money would not be missing if the property had not been bought and the projects had been 
short funded. 
 
Mr. Capo noted that funding was taken from the $425,000,000 CIP project to pay for things 
that were not included in the project; therefore, this is an attempt to fix the deficit, specifically, 
the culinary program and North Forest project. 
 
Mr. Oliver inquired of the current fund balance.  
 
Ms. Zamora stated the balance was $118 million at the end of 2014. She noted that there will 
be a healthy balance in the fund balance if we decide to use this. 
 
Ms. Sane inquired if we are moving forward based on Chuck Smith presentation at the COTW 
based the current needs.  
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Mr. Wilson stated we are spending money we do not have and it is not written in the action 
item.  It does not say anything about taking money out of the fund balance.  He noted he was 
not aware of the money being taken out of the fund balance. 
 
Ms. Mullins suggested that the wording be revised. 
 
Motion to close the debate. 
 
Vote – The motion passed with a vote of 8/1 with Wilson abstaining. 
 
Amended Motion – Mr. Capo motioned to amend as follows:  amend the recommendation to 
reflect $13,629.203 “from fund balance” and in the fiscal impact make change to “All sales 
proceeds will go to fund balance”. 
 
Vote – The motion passed with a vote of 8/1 with Wilson abstaining. 
 
Motion – To approve the recommended amendment. 
 
Vote – The motion passed with a vote of 8/1 with Wilson abstaining. 
 
(Trustee Sane stepped out at 6:40 p.m.) 

 
TOPICS FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION 
 

• Personnel Agenda (FACULTY) 
 

Motion – Mr. Glaser moved and Mr. Oliver seconded.  
 
Mr. Wilson inquired if all jobs are posted. 
 
Dr. Maldonado reported all jobs are posted. 
 
The motion passed with a vote of 8-0. 
 
REAL ESTATE MATTERS 
  

• Final Payment for San Jacinto Project 
 

ADJOURNED TO CLOSED SESSION 
Mr. Capo adjourned the meeting to Executive Session at 6:41 p.m. notice having previously 
been given and reiterated in accordance with Sections 551.071, 551.072, and/or 551.074 of the 
Open Meetings Law. Mr. Capo stated that any final action, vote or decision on any item 
discussed in Executive Session would be taken up in Open Session or in a subsequent Public 
Meeting. 
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Mr. Capo reconvened the meeting in Open Session at 7:45 p.m. and entertained any motions 
on pending matters. 
 
(The following Trustees were present: Capo, Evans-Shabazz, Loredo, Mullins, Tamez, Oliver) 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
With no further business coming before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 7:45 p.m. 
 
Minutes recorded, transcribed & submitted by: 
Rose Sarzoza-Pena 
Manager, Board Services 
 
Minutes Approved as Submitted:        



Consent Agenda 
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ACTION ITEM 
 

Meeting Date:  December 17, 2015 
 

Committee: Strategic Planning Committee 
 

ITEM NO. ITEM TITLE PRESENTER 
 

1 HCC Strategic Plan 2016-2019 Dr. Cesar Maldonado 
Dr. Edmund Herod 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve HCC Strategic Plan 2016-2019.   
 
COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE 
The HCC Strategic Plan establishes the broad direction for the College and our pathway to future success 
and excellence.  It is based upon HCC's Values, Mission, and Vision and ensures that all employees and 
other stakeholders work towards common goals.  The Strategic Plan is a living document which provides 
for greater adaptability, connectivity, and focus throughout the institution. 
 
 

DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND 
The proposed strategic plan was developed through an organic and inclusive process which provided 
opportunities for input from the College's internal and external communities.  As such, it represents the 
work of community and business leaders, as well as HCC faculty, staff, and students.   
 
Contributions to the Plan were obtained through a variety of means including the Transformation Team, 
the Strategic Planning Advisory Council, the Strategic Planning Work Groups, electronic surveys to our 
internal and external communities, and participant comments provided during the Chancellor's Listening 
Tour. 
 
Based upon the input received, the Plan embodies the intent of all the contributors and represents our 
best understanding of what HCC should be doing to ensure the future success of our students and our 
institution. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
n/a 
 
LEGAL REQUIREMENT 
n/a 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL ALIGNMENT 
Strategic Initiative:  Strategic Plan 
 
Attachment Title(s): Imagine HCC 2019: Strategic Plan 2016-2019 
 
 
 

 

This item is applicable to the following: 
 Central  Coleman  Northeast  Northwest  Southeast  Southwest  3100 



ACHIEVING THE VISION: 
STRATEGIC PLAN
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We imagine the future of HCC through  
the eyes of our students, our faculty,  

our community and our Board of Trustees. 

Since 2014, beginning with input from the Board and  
supported by vast research inside and outside HCC, we  
have begun to create the strategic pathway to achieve  

the bold, Board-approved Vision. 

We call our strategic pathway — IMAGINE 2019 
It is a plan that describes how we will achieve  

the Board-approved Vision. It also will bring to light the  
outcomes of a fully-aligned College. 

ACHIEVING THE VISION



Achieving the Vision
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IMAGINE AN ALIGNED INSTITUTION TOTALLY 
FOCUSED…ON STUDENT SUCCESS

IMAGINE 2019

+ + HCC WAY
(VALUES & BEHAVIORS)

TRANSFORMATIONSTRATEGIC PLAN
(VISION & 4 STRATEGY PILLARS)

EXCELLENCE
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13 

63  

4,275  

3,262  

751
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FOUNDATION FOR THE VISION

Trustees 

Executive Team Members 

Whole System Planning Participants 

Students 

Faculty/Staff 

Community Members 

Through online surveys, in-person interviews, internal workgroups, community 
outreach efforts, college listening tours and executive team meetings, a 

diverse group of thousands of perspectives and ideas were captured.  

The result is a bold plan of action for achieving HCC’s vision.  



•  Ad Hoc Committee of the Board of Trustees 

•  External Stakeholders: 
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EXCELLENCE DRIVEN INSIDE AND OUT

•  HCC Faculty Senate 

•  HCC United Student Council 

•  HCC Chancellor’s Cabinet

To achieve the Vision, we assembled a team of community leaders to help inform the pathway to 
Imagine 2019. Engaging an organic and highly inclusive process, we developed a Strategic Planning 
Advisory Council (SPAC) comprised of community and business leaders to drive the planning process. 
An internal work group composed of HCC stakeholders built on the SPAC’s outcomes and yielded a 
thorough and inclusive work process.
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STRATEGIC PLANNING ADVISORY COUNCIL AND 
INTERNAL WORK GROUPS

The Strategic Planning Advisory Council, in conjunction with the strategic planning 
workgroups comprised of faculty and student leaders, deans and directors, 

education support staff and key administrators, has invested hundreds of hours in 
developing the plan. Each group convened 3 times. 

External Meetings - 471 unique objectives captured 

Transcribed tape hours - 22 hours 

Internal Survey Responses - 850 responses 

External Survey Responses (including students) - 906 responses 

Number of open comments from Survey - 1,667 comments 

Chancellor Listening Tours - 6 colleges, 350 attendees,180 comment cards collected  
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KEY FINDINGS SUPPORTING THE VISION  
(INTERNAL SURVEY RESPONSES)

HCC SHOULD:     Number of 
  Respondents

Percentage Rating This Item 
Extremely Important or  

Very Important 

Insure Quality Instructional 
Programs And Courses 817 96%

Increase Student Retention and  
Persistence Rates 771 94%

Create Opportunities to Gain 
Knowledge, Skills, and Credentials 

in High Demand Fields
793 93%

Improve the Student Experience  
at HCC 776 91%

Improve the Effectiveness of our 
Administrative Services 777 91%
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STRATEGIC PLANNING COMPONENTS
The strategic plan is made up of a number of individual components, beginning with 
the organization’s mission. These building blocks come together to create a holistic 
picture of how HCC will navigate change in the future.  

The Strategic Planning process begins with the Vision. The Vision defines the desired 
future state of HCC and serves as the guiding image of success. 

Next, HCC’s Core Values and Behavioral Competencies serve as the cultural core of the 
institution. They define the “HCC Way” of doing things and the expectation the 
institution has set for all faculty and staff. 

Then come our Pillars of Success. These pillars are the 4 distinct areas that will guide 
HCC’s strategic efforts and they serve to reinforce the institution’s vision. Operationally, 
each pillar is made up of strategic priorities and initiatives that articulate how we will 
execute our strategy. These pillars also offer a framework of accountability for leaders 
to measure progress and ensure alignment across the organization through 
performance goals.



BUILDING THE STRATEGY: 

Community Leaders 
Faculty 

Students 
Staff 

Administration
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OUR MISSION
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Houston Community College is an open-admission, public 

institution of higher education offering a high-quality, 

affordable education for academic advancement, workforce 

training, career and economic development, and lifelong 

learning to prepare individuals in our diverse communities 

for life and work in a global and technological society. 



HCC will be a leader in providing high quality, 
innovative education leading to student success and 
completion of workforce and academic programs.  

We will be responsive to community needs and 
drive economic development in the communities  
we serve.

11

VISION ADOPTED DECEMBER 11, 2014



OUR CULTURAL CORE - THE HCC WAY
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• Academic Standards 

• Collaboration 

• Student Success 

• Educated Workforce 

• Culture of Trust 

• Innovation 

• Passion 

• Accountability 

• Student Commitment 

• Consistency

Our Core Values

• Delivering High Quality work 

• Accepting Responsibility 

• Serving Our Stakeholders 

• Supporting Organizational Goals 

• Driving Continuous Improvement 

• Acting with Integrity 

• Thinking Critically 

• Managing Change 

• Communicating Effectively

• Acting as a Champion for Change 

• Thinking Entrepreneurially 

• Leveraging Opportunities 

• Setting a Strategic Vision 

• Attracting & Developing Talent 

• Inspiring & Motivating Others 

• Acting Strategically 

• Demonstrating Beliefs & Principles 

• Managing Resources

Core Behaviors Leadership Behaviors

Our Core Values, Core Behaviors and Leadership Behaviors serve as the “cultural core” of HCC 
and articulate the desired culture that HCC will promote and strengthen in the years to come. In 
short, this defines the “HCC Way” of doing things and the expectation the institution has set for 
all faculty, staff and administrators. 
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DEFINING THE STRATEGIC PILLARS
I.STUDENT SUCCESS 
Our commitment to creating an environment in which students achieve their desired 
goals that lead to their success in both educational and occupational pursuits 

II. ORGANIZATIONAL STEWARDSHIP 
Actions which preserve and protect the use of our shared resources, of transparency 
in decision-making, and creating processes that manage, allocate and monitor 
resources crucial to the college’s mission 

III. PERFORMANCE EXCELLENCE 
Integrated approaches that result in the delivery of ever-improving value to 
customers and stakeholders

IV. INNOVATION 
In a changing world, innovation is leadership in the creation of new ideas, methods, 
processes, technologies, or products to address the challenges and opportunities 
associated with that change 
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STRATEGIC PILLARS
I. STUDENT SUCCESS 

A.Improve student preparedness, readiness and alignment 

B. Improve the student experience 

C.Increase student completion 

D.Ensure that instructional programs prepare students for success in current and future working environments

II. ORGANIZATIONAL STEWARDSHIP 

A.Ensure that the strategic plan serves as the basis for funding  

B. Improve and streamline business transactions and processes 

C.Increase diversity, inclusion and engagement throughout the institution

III. PERFORMANCE EXCELLENCE 

A.Focus on one HCC and consistency of quality experience across the campuses, departments, and facilities 

B. Foster an environment within the institution as a compelling place to work and learn 

C.Employ analytic measures to assess and guide performance excellence

IV. INNOVATION 

A.Build a culture that champions collaboration, creativity, and innovation 

B. Increase innovation in teaching and learning 

C.Expand the use of technology throughout the institution
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I. STUDENT SUCCESS

A. Improve student preparedness, readiness and alignment 
 1. Integrate 21st century skill sets as content across curriculum 

 2. Strengthen outreach and collaborative efforts with local ISDs 

 3. Focus on preparation and transition-to-college programs for adult learners 

B. Improve the student experience 

 1. Develop and implement an exemplary customer service model 

 2. Create an effective student orientation program which introduces career exploration and selection 

 3. Develop a success model using data to identify student needs 

C. Increase student completion 
 1. Use data to ensure courses and schedules match student needs 

 2. Provide continuous guidance and feedback to students to facilitate completion 

 3. Provide greater resources and access to supplemental learning 

D. Ensure that instructional programs prepare students for success in current and future working environments 
 1. Expand partnerships with business, industry, and other higher education institutions  

 2. Align COEs with business and industry needs 

 3. Establish career centers with COE’s and campuses 
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II. ORGANIZATIONAL STEWARDSHIP

A. Ensure that the strategic plan serves as the basis for funding  

 1. Adopt a future-oriented perspective towards budgeting, program development, and college operations 

 2. Align the budget and the budget development process with strategic priorities 

 3. Pursue opportunities for revenue  generation throughout the institution 

B. Improve and streamline business transactions and processes 

 1. Conduct a system-wide analysis of processes and procedures 

 2. Develop and implement consistent quality standards for operational units providing services to  
 employees or students 

 3. Create and sustain viable communication and feedback loops for stakeholders 

C. Increase diversity, inclusion and engagement throughout the institution 

 1. Develop new programs and metrics to advance diversity, global awareness, and multiculturalism 

 2. Attract and retain students and employees who embody the diversity of our communities 

 3. Create opportunities for engagement and networking throughout the college 
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III. PERFORMANCE EXCELLENCE

A. Focus on one HCC and consistency of quality experience across the campuses, departments, and facilities 

 1. Develop unified policy, procedures and operations manual 

 2. Review position, descriptions and staffing allocations to enhance institutional effectiveness 

 3. Use our cultural values to define “The HCC Way” 

B. Foster an environment within the institution as a compelling place to work and learn 

 1. Ensure the integration of our College’s values into the training and education of students and employees 

 2. Ensure the campus environment maximizes opportunities for learning and engagement 

 3. Develop programs, benefits, and recognitions which attract and retain the best talent for the institution 

C. Employ analytic measures to assess and guide performance excellence 

 1. Develop objective performance measures for performance evaluation of operational units and employees 

 2. Identify and pursue key awards and recognition as pathways to excellence 

 3. Establish a business review cycle that also includes a robust change management process 
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IV. INNOVATION 

A. Build a culture that champions collaboration, creativity, and innovation 

 1. Foster employee engagement and collaboration across the institution to maximize utilization of resources 

 2. Instill an entrepreneurial/creativity mindset in employees and students 

 3. Provide opportunities and training to encourage the pursuit of creativity and innovation 

B. Increase innovation in teaching and learning 

 1. Provide more faculty development opportunities based upon current teaching and learning research 

 2. Develop and provide access to high quality shared instructional resources  

 3. Provide systemic competency-based learning and assessment opportunities 

C. Expand the use of technology throughout the institution 

 1. Develop and model best practices in instructional technology 

 2. Form cross-functional teams to evaluate technologies for potential adoption 

 3. Design a user-friendly, interactive website
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IMAGINE 2019

A. Focus on one HCC and consistency 
of quality experience across the 
campuses, departments, and facilities

B. Foster an environment within the 
institution as a compelling place to 
work and learn

C. Employ analytic measures to assess 
and guide performance excellence

A. Build a culture that champions 
collaboration, creativity, and 
innovation

B. Increase innovation in teaching and 
learning

C. Expand the use of technology 
throughout the institution

A. Improve student preparedness, 
readiness and alignment

B. Improve the student experience

C. Increase student completion

D. Ensure that instructional programs 
prepare students for success in 
current and future working 
environments

A. Ensure that the strategic plan serves  
as the basis for funding

B. Improve and streamline business 
transactions and processes

C. Increase diversity, inclusion and 
engagement throughout the 
institution

VISION
Houston Community College will be a leader in providing high quality, innovative education leading 

to student success and completion of workforce and academic programs. We will be responsive to community 

needs and drive economic development in the communities we serve.

I .  STUDENT SUCCESS 

Board

The Transformation  

Guiding Group 

(G65) 

G-65

B
o

a
rd

I I . ORGANIZATIONAL 
STEWARDSHIP

 

 

 

III. PERFORMANCE 
EXCELLENCE

IV. INNOVATION

· Delivering High Quality of work

· Accepting Responsibility

· Serving Our Stakeholders

· Supporting Organizational Goals

· Driving Continuous Improvement

· Acting with Integrity

· Thinking Critically 

· Managing Change -  
  Adapting to Support Change

· Communicating Effectively

· Acting as a Champion for Change

· Thinking Entrepreneurially

· Leveraging Opportunities

· Setting a Strategic Vision

· Attracting & Developing Talent

· Inspiring & Motivating Others

· Acting Strategically

· Demonstrating Beliefs & Principles

· Managing Resources

BEHAVIORAL
COMPETENCIES

CORE VALUES

MISSION

C
O

R
E

LE
A

D
ER

SH
IP

· Academic Standards

· Collaboration

· Student Success

· Educated Workforce

· Culture of Trust

· Innovation

· Passion

· Accountability 

· Student Commitment

· Consistency

Houston Community College is an open-admission, public institution of higher education offering a high-quality, affordable 

education for academic advancement, workforce training, career and economic development, and lifelong learning to 

prepare individuals in our diverse communities for life and work in a global and technological society.

Strategic Planning 

Advisory Council 

Strategic Planning  

Work Groups

Online Survey

Listening Tour



PERFORMANCE GOALS ALIGNMENT
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PERFORMANCE 
GOALS

I. Student    
Success

II. Organizational 
Stewardship

III. Performance 
Excellence IV. Innovation

1. Participation

2. Success

3. Fiscal & Facilities

4. External Relations

5. Governance &  
    Board Relations

STRATEGIC PILLARS

Significant Moderate

Symbol Key
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ACTION ITEM 
 

Meeting Date:  December 17, 2015 
 

Committee:  Audit 
 

ITEM NO. ITEM TITLE PRESENTER 
 

2 Annual Financial Report for the  
Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2015  

Dr. Cesar Maldonado 
Teri Zamora  

Grant Thornton LLP  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the audited Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2015 as prepared by the 
auditing firm of Grant Thornton, LLP.    
 
COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE 
Grant Thornton LLP audited the financial statements of HCCS in accordance with U.S. general accepted 
auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.     
 

DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND 
The audit of compliance for federal and state programs followed standards of the OMB Circular A-133, 
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State of Texas Single Audit 
Circular.  Tests of the accounting records of the System and other procedures considered necessary in 
order to express an opinion and render the required reports were performed.  The approval of the 
audited financial report by the Board of Trustees is recommended prior to the public distribution of the 
annual financial report.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Funding for the audit was included in the FY2016 budget.           
 
LEGAL REQUIREMENT 
Section 51.005 Reports, Higher Education, Texas Educational Code, and Section 2101.011, Texas 
Government Code require that the governing board furnish the required number of copies of the audited 
annual financial report to the governor, comptroller of public accounts, state auditor, Texas Higher 
Education Coordinating Board, Legislative Budget Board and various other state, federal, and bond 
agencies by January 1 of each year.     
 
STRATEGIC GOAL ALIGNMENT 
Strategic Initiative:  Support Innovation 
 
Attachment Title(s): Annual Financial Report          
 
 
 
 
 

This item is applicable to the following: 
 Central  Coleman  Northeast  Northwest  Southeast  Southwest  3100 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
ORGANIZATIONAL DATA 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2015 
 
 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
 

OFFICERS  OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
Zeph Capo Chair 
Robert Glaser Vice Chair 
Dr. Adriana Tamez Secretary 

 
 
 Term Expires 

                MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES     December 31,     
 

Sandie Mullins Houston, Texas 2015 
Eva L. Loredo Houston, Texas 2015 
Dr. Adriana Tamez, Secretary Houston, Texas 2015 
Dr. Carolyn Evans-Shabazz Houston, Texas 2017 
Christopher W. Oliver Houston, Texas 2017 
Robert Glaser, Vice Chair Houston, Texas 2017 
Neeta Sane Houston, Texas 2019 
Zeph Capo, Chair Houston, Texas 2019 
David Wilson Houston, Texas 2019 
 
 

PRINCIPAL ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICERS 
 
Cesar Maldonado, Ph.D., P.E. Chancellor  
Teri Zamora, MACC Sr. Vice Chancellor, Finance & Administration 
Kimberly Beatty, Ph.D. Vice Chancellor, Instructional Services & Chief Academic Officer 
William Carter, Ph.D. Vice Chancellor, Information Technology 
Janet May, M.A Chief Human Resources Officer 
Rudy Soliz, Ed.D Acting President, Southeast College 
William Harmon, Ph.D. President, Central College 
Philip Nicotera, MD President, Coleman College 
Margaret Ford Fisher, Ed.D. President, Northeast College 
Zachary Hodges, Ed.D. President, Northwest College 
Orfelina Garza, Ph.D. President, Southwest College 
Charles Smith, P.E. Chief Facilities Officer 
Irene Porcarello, Ed.D Acting Vice Chancellor, Student Services 
Karla Bender, Ed.D. Controller 
Ronald Defalco, CPA Treasurer 
 
 



 
 

2 
 
 



 

3 
 

 

         
3100 Main Street • Houston, Texas  77002 • 713.718.2000 

 
 
 
December 10, 2015 
 
Honorable Chairman, Board of Trustees and Chancellor 
The Citizens of the Houston Community College System 

 
Dear Board Members and Chancellor: 
 
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Houston Community College System (HCCS) for the 
fiscal year ended August 31, 2015, is hereby submitted. This is management’s report of the financial 
position and results of operations to the Board of Trustees, taxpayers, Texas Higher Education 
Coordinating Board, grantor agencies, employees and other interested parties. The responsibility for both 
the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, 
rests with HCCS. 
 
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP) as established by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and comply with Annual Financial Reporting Requirements for 
Texas Public Community and Junior Colleges as set forth by the Texas Higher Education Coordinating 
Board (THECB).  The Notes to the Financial Statements are provided in the financial section and are 
considered essential for fair and adequate disclosure of all information presented in this financial report. 
The notes include the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Authorized Investments and other 
necessary disclosures of important matters relating to the financial position of HCCS. Notes are meant to 
supplement the information in the financial statements and should be read in conjunction with them. 
 
HCCS is reporting as a special purpose government engaged solely in business-type activity (BTA). This 
presentation of financial reporting combines all fund groups into a single column and resembles the 
format of the corporate presentation, thus complying with GASB Statements 34 and 35. 
 
To the best of our knowledge and belief, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in 
all material respects, the financial position of HCCS and the results of its operations and cash flows as of 
August 31, 2015. The financial statements have been completed in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.    
 
Governmental Structure 
 
The Houston Community College System was established as a public community college by voters of the 
Houston Independent School District (HISD) in an election held in Houston, Texas in 1971. HCCS 
separated from HISD and established its own board in 1989 and restructured into a multi-college system 
in 1992. The Houston Community College System operates under the Constitution of the State of Texas 
and the Texas Education Code.  The Board of Trustees is the official governing body of the Houston 
Community College System. The Board of Trustees is composed of nine members who are elected from 
single-member Districts and who serve without remuneration.  The Board of Trustees is elected to 
staggered six-year terms and has final authority to determine and interpret the policies that govern HCCS.  
As part of their duties, the Board of Trustees maintains a full schedule of community services, public 
appearances, speaking engagements and legislative affairs on behalf of HCCS. The Board of Trustees 
represents an impressive mix of individual talents and professional backgrounds enabling them to provide 
governance of the highest quality. Additional duties and responsibilities of the Board of Trustees are: 
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• To appoint, support, and assess the performance of the Chancellor 
• To clarify the mission of the institution 
• To approve long-range plans 
• To approve the educational program 
• To ensure the wellbeing of faculty, students and staff 
• To ensure strong financial management 
• To ensure adequate financial resources 
• To preserve institutional autonomy 
• To interpret the campus to the community 
• To interpret the needs of society to the campus 
• To assess their own performance  

Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees are held on the fourth Thursday of each month at the HCCS 
Administrative Building, 3100 Main, 2nd Floor Auditorium Boardroom, Houston, Texas 77002, unless 
otherwise announced.  Other meetings such as committees, workshops and special meetings are held on 
an as-needed basis. Public notices of all meetings are posted at the Administrative Building and on 
HCCS’ website.  The Board of Trustees envisions HCCS as the educational institution of choice for those 
who seek skilled training for the workforce, those who seek to upgrade their skills to enhance 
preparedness for economic opportunity, and those who seek lifelong seamless educational opportunities 
to enhance their quality of life.  The Board of Trustees views HCCS as an integral part of the economic 
and educational life of the community and supports their view by establishing quality partnerships, being 
responsive to community needs and assisting HCCS in providing this vital service.  
 
Profile 

Houston Community College (HCC) has a vision to be a leader in providing high quality, innovative education 
leading to student success and completion of workforce and academic programs.  HCC will be responsive to 
community needs and drive economic development in the communities we serve.  HCC is committed to 
meeting the needs of its diverse communities, providing academic courses for transfer to four‐year institutions, 
degrees and certificates in more than seventy fields of work, as well as continuing education and corporate 
training, lifelong learning and enrichment.  

Houston Community College is a diverse and complex multi-campus institution accredited by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools' Commission on Colleges to award associate degrees. With a population 
of 2.3 million, Houston is the fourth largest city in America and the largest city in Texas.  

The community is about one hour from the Texas' gulf coast. HCC is one of the largest institutions of higher 
education in the country with a Fall enrollment of approximately 70,000 students and 6 colleges with 22 
campuses in a 631 square mile service area. HCC students are served by nearly 2,400 full and part-time faculty 
members. HCC enrolls more international students than any community college in the country. 

The service delivery area (SDA) of Houston Community College includes the school districts of Houston, 
Stafford, Katy, Spring Branch, Alief, and portions of Fort Bend ISD located in Houston, Pearland, and 
Missouri City.   The area is economically, educationally and ethnically diverse.  While the average household 
income is $80,210, more than 23.8% of the households in the SDA have an income less than $25,000.  While 
36% of the population has some type of college degree, 23% of the population has no high school degree or 
GED.  The population’s ethnicity is 41% Hispanic, 28% white, 22% African American and 9% other.  There is 
a relatively large young population, with 829,423 individuals, or 36 %, under the age of 18 years old.  These 
factors give Houston Community College the potential of providing a large workforce pool for the service 
delivery area, the state and the nation’s economic growth, and the energy and healthcare sectors in particular.   

Houston Community College is committed to equipping students with the appropriate academic, technical and 
soft skills to allow them to succeed in the workplace.  A comprehensive approach is utilized, combining 



 

5 
 

academic and technical resources, relevant student services, talent development organizations, and career 
building activities.  By employing a comprehensive approach, HCC assures the vitality of its programs for 
today’s academic and industrial demands and tomorrow’s opportunities. 

Major Initiatives 

Houston Community College continues to improve its outcomes. HCC is among the top in the nation for 
preparing students for jobs. Community College Week now ranks HCC third nationally among two-year 
institutions in the number of Associate Degrees produced in 2014; which is an increase from a ranking of 4th 
in 2013.  Including Associates Degrees, Certificates, Core Completers, and Marketable Skills Achievers, 
HCC’s total awards for 2014 were 10,600 as compared to 8,195 during 2010. The focus on retention and 
completion continues in 2015 and 2016 through a variety of student services initiatives. 

The 84th Texas Legislature passed HB1, the General Appropriations Act, which provides $1.745 billion in 
instructional funding to community/junior colleges in Texas. 

With its proportionate share of the community college funding, Houston Community College pledges to: 

• Enhance higher education relationships with universities to provide students seamless transfer 
opportunities to continue their higher education; 

• Provide technical job-ready graduates that can meet the demands of the industry; 
• Provide students with the degrees and training necessary to increase their employment opportunities 

and/or career advancement; 
• Work cooperatively with community colleges and other partners to address Texas’ training needs; 
• Continue to strengthen relationships  with Texas public schools to promote high school graduation 

and college preparation with a variety of joint programs that directly emphasize STEM experiences; 
• Maintain close relationships with  industry to implement current business practices in the design and 

delivery of technical training programs, set new standards in the achievement of technical skills, and 
develop/redesign new technical programs to meet industry needs;  

• Maximize College’s resources by continually looking for ways to increase efficiency in all areas. 
 
To facilitate the organization into becoming all that it can be, in fiscal year 2014-2015, Houston Community 
College began its first phase of institutional transformation. HCC has moved from a “center of delivery” model 
to a “center of excellence” model in order to achieve its vision – one with relevance, fiscal accountability, and 
structural nimbleness and flexibility, one that supports our new vision.  
 
With 16 Centers of Excellence located strategically throughout the HCC’s servicing districts, each Center will 
provide expert faculty teaching and state of the art facilities and equipment.  This will allow students to focus 
on an in-demand field of study, with concentrated counseling and shared experiences with other like-minded 
students, thereby increasing persistence and student success rates.  
 
By allowing us to focus our resources and best faculty in one location, the Centers of Excellence will provide 
the following outcomes and benefits: 
 

• Increased capacity to serve the community with technical and academic programs; 
• Increased facility utilization rates; 
• Decreased costs of delivery of instruction and support services; 
• Increased productivity of human capital; 
• Increased accountability at all levels of the organization; 
• Increased external funding opportunities through industry, grants, and other non-traditional sources; 
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• Increased consistency and quality of student experience; 
• Increased student success. 

 
Tomorrow’s HCC will produce a more efficient college; a more interconnected college; a more responsive 
college; a more aligned college; a more innovative college; and a more successful student and graduate. 
 
Mission, Guiding Principles, Vision, & Strategic Initiatives |2012 ‐ 2015 
 
Mission 
 
Houston Community College is an open‐admission, public institution of higher education offering a high‐
quality, affordable education for academic advancement, workforce training, career and economic 
development, and lifelong learning to prepare individuals in our diverse communities for life and work in a 
global and technological society. 
 
Guiding Principles 
 
Freedom with Responsibility 
Commitment to Excellence 
Respect for the Person 
Sound Stewardship 
 
Vision 
 
HCC will be a leader in providing high quality, innovative education leading to student success and completion 
of workforce and academic programs. We will be responsive to community needs and drive economic 
development in the communities we serve. 
 
Vision – Strategic Themes 
 
HCC will be: 
 

• The economic engine for the region 
• A world class leader in higher education 
• A global leader in innovation and teaching 
• The educational institution of choice 
• The recognized leader among community colleges 
• A trusted leader proving innovative educational opportunities relevant to student success 
• Streamlined, nimble, innovative, and responsive 
• The institution that continually transforms learning 

 
Vision – Core Values 
 

• Set and maintain high academic standards 
• Collaboration 
• United through a common mission 
• Give the community a well-educated workforce 
• Culture of Trust – Demonstrating Integrity and Ethics 
• Lead by innovation in excellence 
• Demonstrate passion  
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• Accountability 
• Commitment to our students/student success 
•  Consistency across the institution 

 
Vision – Behavioral Competencies 
 

• Deliver High Quality of work 
• Accepting responsibility 
• Serving our stakeholders  
• Supporting organizational goals 
• Driving Continuous Improvement 
• Acting with integrity 
• Critical thinking  
• Managing Change – adapting to support change 
• Communicating Effectively 

 
Strategic Initiatives 
 
The seven initiatives of the 2012 – 2015 Strategic Plan are: 
 

1. Increase Student Completion through Advanced Educational Opportunities  
2. Respond to the Needs of Business and Industry for Skilled Workers 
3. Ensure Instructional Programs Provide the Knowledge and Skills Required for 21st Century Learners  
4. Enrich Institutional Capacity for Faculty and Staff Professional Development and Student Leadership 

Development 
5. Support Innovation as a Means to Improve Institutional Resilience 
6. Cultivate an Entrepreneurial Culture Across the Institution 
7. Leverage Local and International Partnerships for Institutional and Community Development 

 
All initiatives are important to moving the institution to the next level; however the focus on student success 
continues to be HCC’s top priority.  The College is in the final stages of developing its new strategic plan, 
which will be put into operation in January 2016. 
 
Financial Information 

HCCS management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls. Management 
ensures each department has a clear understanding of its assignment, whether it is adequately staffed, 
protects the cash assets, functions effectively in carrying out the overall plan of the Houston Community 
College System's business and maintains good records so that financial statements are in compliance with 
GAAP.  The internal control structure provides reasonable protection from fraud and waste.  The concept 
of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to 
be derived; and (2) the valuation of cost and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. 

Single Audit: HCCS receives federal and state financial assistance during the fiscal year, which results in 
HCCS being responsible to ensure adequate internal control and compliance with laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements related to those programs. The management periodically reviews the 
internal controls to ensure the adequacy of the controls. Additionally, during the federal and state single 
audit, the independent auditor tests the adequacy of internal controls and compliance with applicable 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements for the major federal and state programs. In the fiscal 
year ended August 31, 2015, the single audit identified no material weaknesses. 
 
Budgeting Control: The Board of Trustees adopts an operating budget annually, providing authority to 
expend funds in accordance with state law, board policy, and HCCS' approved budgeting procedures. 
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Included in the annual budget are the activities of the Unrestricted Fund, Auxiliary Fund, Operating 
Technology Fund and Retirement of Debt Service Fund.  HCCS has adopted the concept of Performance 
Based Budgeting. Performance Based Budgeting contains an integrated set of strategic goals with 
associated action plans, measures and targets, and priority funds dedicated to achieving them. The 
Performance Based Budget aligns the budget process to the strategies, goals and action plans of HCCS, 
which centers on the outcome of student success. Each HCCS department builds an action plan to support 
the goals and objectives so that our strategy is aligned from the top-down.   
 
The Office of Fiscal Planning and Budget monitors the overall budget activities.  Internal controls have 
been implemented to ensure that expenses fall within the budget and purchasing guidelines. An 
encumbrance accounting system is utilized to help maintain budgetary control, allowing expenses for   
prior fiscal years’ encumbered amounts to impact the previous years’ budget in which the original 
encumbrance was entered. 
 
Periodic financial and budget reports are submitted to the Board of Trustees to report on the status of all 
HCCS funds and accounts. Annual financial reports are prepared in accordance with relevant law. 
 
Internal and external audits are periodically conducted to evaluate all financial operations of HCCS. 
These audits ensure that HCCS resources are properly managed and accounted for and that the internal 
controls are effective and adequate, complying with approved policies.  
 
In accordance with HCCS' budgeting control policy, intra-fund transfers of budgets are allowed and must 
go through the approval process.  The transfer must be approved by the budget authority of the requesting 
department, and then forwarded to the Office of Fiscal Planning and Budget for processing.  Funds 
cannot be transferred from restricted budgets that are set up for salaries and fixed expenses. The transfer 
of budget between different fund groups is not allowed.  For example, budgets can’t be transferred from 
unrestricted to restricted and vice versa.   
 
The management and discussion analysis references topics pertaining to Houston Community College’s 
major initiatives, future outlook and financial information.  
 
Independent Audit 
 
The annual audit is conducted in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS) 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards (including GASB 34 and 35). 
The audit includes the basic financial statements of HCCS and supplemental schedules in the precise 
format prescribed by the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board.  All federal reports and schedules 
as required by The Government Auditing Standards and Office of Management and Budget Circular A-
133 (Single Audit) are included. The Single Audit financial reports consist of the Schedule of State 
Expenditures of Awards, Schedule of Federal Expenditures of Awards and the auditor’s report on 
compliance and internal controls.  HCCS' Board of Trustees engaged Grant Thornton LLP as the 
accounting firm to perform the annual financial audit.   
 
Awards 
 
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United State and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Houston Community College System 
for its compressive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended August, 31, 2014.  In order to be 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently 
organized comprehensive annual financial report.  This report must satisfy both generally accepted 
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.   
 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe that our current 
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s 
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaudited) 

 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
This section of Houston Community College System’s (“HCC” or the “System”) Annual Financial Report 
presents management’s discussion and analysis.   Management’s Discussion and Analysis is included to provide 
a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the financial position and changes in financial position of the 
System’s financial activity during the fiscal years ended August 31, 2015 and 2014. Since management’s 
discussion and analysis is designed to focus on current activities, and currently known facts, please read this in 
conjunction with the System’s basic financial statements and the notes thereto.  Responsibility for the 
completeness and fairness of this information rests with the management of the System. 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The financial statements of this annual report consist of three parts – Management’s Discussion and Analysis, 
the Basic Financial Statements, and Required Supplementary Information. The financial statements, consisting 
of the Statements of Net Position, the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and the 
Statements of Cash Flows are prepared in accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statements No. 34 (GASB 34), Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for 
State and Local Governments; and No. 35 (GASB 35), Basic Financial Statements and Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis for Public Colleges and Universities. 
 
These three statements will assist the reader in determining whether the System, as a whole, is performing 
financially better this year as compared to last year. The financial statements are presented using the accrual 
basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses 
are recorded when an obligation has been incurred.  
 
The Statements of Net Position report all of the System’s assets, liabilities and deferred outflows and inflows of 
resources. Net position, the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources, is subdivided into three categories to indicate the limitations on its use. Net 
investment in capital assets is not available for general use, since these are resources that have been invested in 
capital assets such as land, building and improvements, and equipment of the System. Restricted net position is 
not accessible for general use because the use of these assets is subject to third-party restrictions. Any remaining 
net position is classified as unrestricted and is available for general use. 
 
Over time, increases or decreases in net position indicate the improvement or erosion of the System’s financial 
health when considered with non-financial facts, such as enrollment levels and the condition of the facilities. 
 
The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position present the revenues earned and expenses 
incurred over the course of the fiscal year. Activities are reported as either operating or non-operating. 
Operating revenues are primarily those that result from instruction, the operation of the System’s auxiliary 
services, and federal and state grants. State appropriations and ad-valorem taxes, while budgeted for operations, 
are considered to be non-operating revenue. Depreciation on capital assets is included in operating expenses. 
Since state appropriations and ad-valorem taxes are a significant portion of maintenance and operations 
funding, classification of this revenue as non-operating will usually result in an operating deficit. 
 
Another important factor to consider when evaluating financial viability is the System’s ability to meet financial 
obligations as they mature. The Statements of Cash Flows present information related to cash inflows and 
outflows summarized by operating, non-capital financing, capital and related financing and investing activities. 
 
This discussion and analysis of the System’s financial statements provides an overview of its financial activities 
for the fiscal year. 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Unaudited) 
 
 
ANALYSIS OF OVERALL FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND 
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
Statement of Net Position 
 
The Statement of Net Position represents the System’s financial position at the end of the fiscal year and 
includes all assets, liabilities and deferred inflows and outflows of resources of the System using the accrual 
basis of accounting. The accrual basis of accounting is similar to the accounting basis utilized by most private-
sector institutions.  Net Position is the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and serves as a general indicator of financial stability. When 
permanent endowments (those that must be maintained in perpetuity) are included in this component, restricted 
net position must be further divided and displayed in two sub-components, expendable and non-expendable. 
 
From the data presented, readers of the financial statements are able to determine the assets available to 
continue operations of the System and how much the System owes vendors, investors and lending institutions. 
 
Current liabilities are generally those liabilities which are due within one year, and current assets are those 
assets which are available to satisfy current liabilities. Noncurrent assets include restricted cash and cash 
equivalents, capital assets, investments and other assets not classified as current. Noncurrent liabilities include 
bonds payable and other long-term commitments.  
 
Implementation of GASB 68, as amended by GASB Statement No. 71, impacts the current years’ Statement of 
Net Position.  Significant changes in assets, liabilities and net position are attributable to implementation of 
GASB 68, as amended by GASB Statement No. 71.  Deferred outflows on the pensions plan are related to 
changes in actuarial assumptions that occur at the plan level, differences in expected and actual economic 
experience at the plan level, contributions made to the Teacher Retirement System (TRS) after the measurement 
date, and the difference between the employer’s contributions and their proportionate share of contributions. 
Deferred inflows for the pension plan are related to the difference between projected and actual investment 
earnings and the difference between the employer’s contributions and their proportionate share of contributions.  
The net pension amount was measured at August 31, 2014 and was established per amounts recorded in TRS’ 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Statement and TRS’ Audited 2014 GASB 68 Allocation Schedules. 
 
Information regarding the recording of deferred outflows and deferred inflows related to the pension plan, and 
the net pension liability can be found in Note 14 in the accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements. 
 
This statement defines the financial position of the System and includes a comparison for fiscal years 2015, 
2014 and 2013.  
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Unaudited) 
 
 
Statement of Net Position 
 

2015 2014 2013 2015 to 2014 2013 to 2014
ASSETS:

          Current Assets 147,638,605$       125,749,264$      143,137,782$      21,889,341$       (17,388,518)$         

          Non-current Assets 421,599,334         495,063,620        566,848,096        (73,464,286)        (71,784,476)           

          Capital Assets 950,841,107         870,756,195        782,119,403        80,084,912         88,636,792            

1,520,079,046      1,491,569,079     1,492,105,281     28,509,967         (536,202)                

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

          Advance Funding Valuation 8,743,822             7,972,677            8,681,035            771,145              (708,358)                

          Pension 11,299,015           -                           -                           11,299,015         -                             

20,042,837           7,972,677            8,681,035            12,070,160         (708,358)                

TOTAL ASSESTS & DEFERRED 
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1,540,121,883$    1,499,541,756$   1,500,786,316$   40,580,127$       (1,244,560)$           

LIABILITIES:

          Current Liabilit ies 119,251,139         113,335,339        113,309,337        5,915,800           26,002                   

          Non-current Liabilit ies 1,035,030,536      1,011,479,574     1,048,413,740     23,550,962         (36,934,166)           

1,154,281,675      1,124,814,913     1,161,723,077     29,466,762         (36,908,164)           

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

          Advance Funding Valuation 795,245                874,770               -                           (79,525)               874,770                 

          Pension 20,626,539           -                           -                           20,626,539         -                             

21,421,784           874,770               -                           20,547,014         874,770                 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & DEFERRED 
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

1,175,703,459$    1,125,689,683$   1,161,723,077$   50,013,776$       (36,033,394)$         

NET POSITION:

          Investment in Plant, Net 290,770,960         244,073,582        230,705,769        46,697,378         13,367,813            

          Restricted-Expendable 13,290,548           14,803,614          1,215,548            (1,513,066)          13,588,066            

          Unrestricted 60,356,912           114,974,877        107,141,922        (54,617,965)        7,832,955              

TOTAL NET POSITION 364,418,420$       373,852,073$      339,063,239$      (9,433,653)$        34,788,834$          

Change
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Unaudited) 
 
Assets 
 
Fiscal Year 2015:    
 
In comparing fiscal year 2015 to fiscal year 2014, overall assets increased by $28.5 million.  Current assets 
increased by $21.9 million, due to increases in cash and cash equivalents (Note 4). Noncurrent assets increased 
by $6.6 million. This was comprised of a decrease of $73.4 million in restricted cash and long-term investments 
and an increase in capital assets of $80.1 million (Note 6). The increase in capital assets consisted of land 
purchases of $5.1 million, building purchases of $22.2 million and other capital expenditures of $48.5 million.  
 
Overall returns on investments decreased by $754 thousand in fiscal year 2015 due to the $51.8 million 
decrease in cash and investments from fiscal 2014. The investment portfolio is highly liquid with 76% of the 
assets invested in local government pools, money market funds and short-term certificates of deposit. All pools 
and money market funds are rated at the highest level. Certificates of deposit, high yield savings and other bank 
deposits are secured with U.S. Treasuries or United States agencies which have the full faith and credit of the 
United States government. The balance of the portfolio is invested in government-sponsored entities/agencies 
with “AAA” credit ratings. 
 
Fiscal Year 2014:    
 
In comparing fiscal year 2014 to fiscal year 2013, there was a decrease of $86.4 million in cash and cash 
equivalents, and long-term investments. The decrease is due mainly to land purchases of $30.7 million and 
capital expenditures of $50.9 million.  
 
Overall returns on investments increased slightly in fiscal year 2014 to a weighted average interest rate of .42% 
at August 31, 2014. The investment portfolio is highly liquid with 89% of the assets invested in local 
government pools, money market funds and short-term certificates of deposit. All pools and money market 
funds are rated at the highest level. Certificates of deposit, high yield savings and other bank deposits are 
secured with U.S. Treasuries or United States agencies which have the full faith and credit of the United States 
government. The balance of the portfolio is invested in government-sponsored entities/agencies with “AAA” 
credit ratings. 
 
Liabilities 
 
Fiscal Year 2015: 
  
Overall liabilities increased by $29.5 million from fiscal year 2014 to fiscal year 2015. Net pension liability 
increased by $67.4 million for FY 2015 due the implementation of GASB 68.  This is offset by a decrease in 
General Obligation bonds of $16.0 million due to principal payments. Notes payable decreased by $6.8 million 
due to principal payments. Revenue bonds of $77.8 million were issued which defeased $34.7 million of 
System revenue bonds and $42.3 million in PFC lease revenue bonds. There were principal payments made on 
all revenue bonds of $12.5 million and principal payments of $5.0 million were made on PFC lease revenue 
bonds. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities increased by $2.8 million.   
 
Fiscal Year 2014:    
 
Overall liabilities decreased by $36.9 million from fiscal year 2013 to fiscal year 2014. General Obligation 
bonds decreased by $10.0 million due to principal payments. Notes payable decreased by $8.1 million due to 
principal payments. There were principal payments made on all revenue bonds of $12.7 million and principal 
payments of $4.2 million were made on PFC lease revenue bonds. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
decreased by $3.9 million. Unearned revenues increased by $1.6 million due to an increase in Fall 2014 
enrollment versus Fall 2013 enrollment.  
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Unaudited) 
 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
 
Changes in total net position as presented on the Statements of Net Position are based on the activity presented 
in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. The purpose of the statement is to 
present the revenues earned by the System, both operating and non-operating, and the expenses incurred by the 
System, operating and non-operating, and any other revenues, expenses, gains and losses received or spent by 
the System. 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position present the System’s results of operations 
for the fiscal year. Operating revenues are generated from the services provided to students and other customers 
of the System. Operating expenses include those costs incurred in the production of goods and services which 
result in operating revenues, as well as depreciation and amortization. All other activity is classified as non-
operating revenues, expenses, gains and losses. Since a large portion of the revenue including Ad Valorem 
Taxes and State of Texas appropriations are classified as non-operating revenues, Texas public community 
colleges may reflect an operating loss with the increase or decrease in net position reflective of all activity.  
 
Total revenues and total expenses should be considered in assessing the change in the System’s financial 
position. When total revenues exceed total expenses, the result is an increase in net position. When the reverse 
occurs, the result is a decrease in net position. Further detail is presented in the Statements of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position and notes to the financial statements. 
 
A summarized comparison of the System’s revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the years ended 
August 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013 is presented in table below.  
 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
 

2015 2014 2013 2014 to 2015 2013 to 2014
Operating Revenues 113,965,188$     109,419,530$      111,074,122$    4,545,658$       (1,654,592)$       
Operating Expenses 380,786,541       373,470,694        360,977,093      7,315,847         12,493,601        

Operating Loss (266,821,353)      (264,051,164)       (249,902,971)     (2,770,189)        (14,148,193)       

Nonoperating Revenue, Net
333,784,328       298,839,998        266,649,417      34,944,330       32,190,581        

Increase in Net Position 66,962,975$       34,788,834$        16,746,446$      32,174,141$     18,042,388$      

Net Position, Beginning of Year 373,852,073$     339,063,239$      322,316,793$    34,788,834       16,746,446        
Cummulative Effect for Changes in 
Accounting Principle (76,396,628)        -                       -                     (76,396,628)      -                     
Ending Net Position 364,418,420$     373,852,073$      339,063,239$    (9,433,653)$      34,788,834$      

Change
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Unaudited) 
 

 
 

Revenues 
 
Fiscal Year 2015 
 
Overall, operating revenues increased by $4.5 million or 4.2% in fiscal year 2015 as compared to fiscal year 
2014 (Exhibit 2).  The System experienced an increase of 6.2% or $ 4.4 million in tuition and fee revenue; a 
decrease of 1.7% or $0.2 million in federal grants and contracts; and an increase of 58.2% in state grants and 
contract revenue. Tuition and fees increased due to an increase in workforce continuing education enrollment.  
Increases in state grant revenue are due to an increase in financial aid awards of the Texas Education 
Opportunity Grant. 
 
Non-operating revenues increased by 11.5% or $37.4  million over the previous year, mainly due to an increase 
in ad valorem tax revenue, along with an increase in other non-operating revenue (Schedule C).  The total tax 
base in the System’s taxing district increased from 2014 to 2015 by approximately 10%, resulting in an increase 
in the Maintenance & Operation portion of ad valorem taxes of $11.1 million.  An increase in debt service 
needs resulted in a corresponding increase in the Debt Service portion of ad valorem taxes in the amount of $19 
million.  Other Non-Operating Revenues increased by $5.8 million due to the gain realized on the defeasance of 
the 2006 Junior Lien Revenue Bonds and the 2005C and 2006 PFC Lease Revenue Bonds.  

 
Fiscal Year 2014 
 
Overall, operating revenues decreased by $1.7 million or 1.5% in fiscal year 2014 as compared to fiscal year 
2013.  The System experienced a decrease of 1% or $ 0.7 million in tuition and fee revenue; a decrease of 5% or 
$0.7 million in federal grants and contracts; and a decrease of 9% in state grants and contract revenue. Tuition 
and fees decreased due to enrollment declines experienced in the fall and spring semesters.  Decreases in federal 
and state grant revenue are due to several grants that ended during the period. These decreases are partially 
offset by increases in revenue from local grants and contracts and auxiliary enterprises.  
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Unaudited) 
 

Non-operating revenues increased by 5.4% or $16.6 million over the previous year, mainly due to an increase in 
ad valorem tax revenue, along with increases in  investment income and other non-operating revenue.  The total 
tax base in the System’s taxing district increased from 2013 to 2014 by approximately 10%, resulting in an 
increase in the Maintenance & Operation portion of ad valorem taxes of $7.9 million.  An increase in debt 
service needs resulted in a corresponding increase in the Debt Service portion of ad valorem taxes in the amount 
of $6.2 million.  The increase is offset by a decrease in interest paid on capital related debt of $16 million due to 
the capitalization of interest on construction in process.  Interest earned for FY 2014 was $3.7 million.  Non- 
operating revenue, net of expenses, increased by $32.2 million for a total increase in net position of $34.8 
million. 
 
Revenue by Source 

2015 2014 2013 2014 to 2015 2013 to 2014
OPERATING REVENUES:

Tuition & Fees, Net of Discounts 75,079,230$ 70,689,034$ 71,433,953$ 4,390,196$ (744,919)$ 

Grants, Contracts & Auxiliary:

     Federal 13,782,110 14,019,776 14,702,419 (237,666) (682,643) 

     State 8,772,358 5,543,642 6,156,585 3,228,716 (612,943) 

     Local, Private & Non-Governmental 2,786,499 2,747,018 2,688,266 39,481 58,752 

     Auxiliary 13,544,991 16,420,060 16,092,899 (2,875,069) 327,161 

Total Grants, Contracts & Auxiliary 38,885,958 38,730,496 39,640,169 155,462 (909,673) 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 113,965,188 109,419,530 111,074,122 4,545,658 (1,654,592) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES:

State Appropriations:

     Unrestricted 69,155,893 69,148,935 70,014,003 6,958 (865,068) 

     Restricted 13,093,602 12,526,784 12,091,225 566,818 435,559 

Total State Appropriations 82,249,495 81,675,719 82,105,228 573,776 (429,509) 

Local Property Taxes:

     M & O 125,073,172 113,987,287 106,097,476 11,085,885 7,889,811 

     Debt 48,383,832 29,402,457 23,158,801 18,981,375 6,243,656 

Total Local Property Taxes 173,457,004 143,389,744 129,256,277 30,067,260 14,133,467 

T itle IV Grants 95,673,111 94,092,798 94,423,841 1,580,313 (331,043) 

Gifts and Other:

     Gifts 1,260,854 1,436,292 1,591,888 (175,438) (155,596) 

     Other 10,888,464 5,547,833 2,202,119 5,340,631 3,345,714 

Total Gifts and Other 12,149,318 6,984,125 3,794,007 5,165,193 3,190,118 

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 363,528,928 326,142,386 309,579,353 37,386,542 16,563,033 

TOTAL REVENUES 477,494,116$ 435,561,916$ 420,653,475$ 41,932,200$ 14,908,441$ 

Change
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Revenue by Source 
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Expenses 
 
The schedules below provide a three-year historical record of the use of funds by functionality and natural 
classification. The expenses reported include both restricted and unrestricted funds, and are on the accrual basis. 
 
 

2015
% of 
Total 2014

% of 
Total 2013

% of 
Total 2014 to 2015 2013 to 2014

Salaries & Benefits 221,572,517$ 58.2% 212,766,231$ 57.0% 207,209,330$ 57.4% 8,806,286$ 5,556,901$ 

Scholarships, Net of Discounts 61,638,293 16.2% 58,733,940 15.7% 57,092,409 15.8% 2,904,353 1,641,531 

Departmental Expenses 76,091,223 20.0% 82,227,012 22.0% 77,183,320 21.4% (6,135,789) 5,043,692 

Depreciation 21,484,508 5.6% 19,743,511 5.3% 19,492,034 5.4% 1,740,997 251,477 

380,786,541$ 100% 373,470,694$ 100% 360,977,093$ 100% 7,315,847$ 12,493,601$ 

Operating Expenses by Natural Classification
Change
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2015
% of 
Total 2014

% of 
Total 2013

% of 
Total 2014 to 2015 2013 to 2014

Instruction 118,383,131      31.1% 112,628,406    30.2% 111,931,030      31.0% 5,754,725      697,376          

Public Service 10,295,409        2.7% 10,628,104      2.8% 11,638,013        3.2% (332,695)        (1,009,909)      

Academic Support 31,781,726        8.3% 26,699,201      7.1% 25,060,153        6.9% 5,082,525      1,639,048       

Student Services 31,448,417        8.3% 29,244,604      7.8% 29,165,865        8.1% 2,203,813      78,739            

Institutional Support 63,081,397        16.6% 62,673,369      16.8% 56,398,020        15.6% 408,028         6,275,349       

Operation/Maint. of Plant 28,820,028        7.6% 35,885,631      9.6% 31,438,811        8.7% (7,065,603)     4,446,820       

Scholarship/Fellowship 61,638,293        16.2% 58,733,940      15.7% 57,092,409        15.8% 2,904,353      1,641,531       

Depreciation 21,484,508        5.6% 19,743,511      5.3% 19,492,034        5.4% 1,740,997      251,477          

Auxiliary Enterprises 13,853,632        3.6% 17,233,929      4.6% 18,760,757        5.2% (3,380,297)     (1,526,828)      

Total Expense 380,786,541$    100% 373,470,694$  100% 360,977,093$    100% 7,315,846$    12,493,601$   

Operating Expenses by Functional Classification Change
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Fiscal Year 2015 
 
An analysis of operating expenses indicates an increase in fiscal year 2015 by $7.3 million or 2% compared to 
fiscal year 2014. The increases are namely in the instruction and academic support functional areas due to the 
following: 
 

• Increase in employee salaries and benefits costs related to general 2% raise and the increased costs of 
health benefits; 

• Increase in compensation of lab hours for faculty; 
• Increase in academic support function due to increase in IT projects. 

 
Fiscal Year 2014  
     
An analysis of operating expenses indicates an increase in fiscal year 2014 by $12.5 million or 3% compared to 
fiscal year 2013.The increases are namely  in the operations & maintenance of plant, institutional support and 
academic support functional areas due to the following: 
 

• Increase in employee benefits costs related to the reduction in the State’s contribution to TRS and 
ORP, an increase in health insurance premiums and compliance with the Affordable Care Act; 

• Land purchase and buildings improvements; 
• Increase in debt services. 

 
Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
 
Changes in net capital assets are the result of acquisitions, improvements, deletions and changes in accumulated 
depreciation and amortization.  In accordance with GASB Statements No. 34 and 35, the System does not 
record the cost of capital assets as an expense at the time of acquisition or completion of the asset, but rather 
shows the expense systematically over the expected life of the asset as depreciation and amortization expense. 
The amount shown in the accounting records for the value of the asset will decrease each year until the asset is 
fully depreciated or removed from service. As a result, the amount of capital assets shown in the Statements of 
Net Position may decrease from one year to another, even though new assets have been acquired during the 
year. Capital assets subject to depreciation and amortization include improvements to land (such as parking lots 
and signage), buildings, library books, furniture and equipment. Land is not depreciated. 
 
Fiscal Year 2015:  
  
There was a significant increase in net capital assets of approximately $80.1 million from fiscal year 2014 to 
fiscal year 2015. This increase was due primarily to a $91.4 million net increase in buildings, real estate 
improvements, equipment (net of accumulated depreciation). There also was a $12.6 million increase in land 
acquisitions, and a net decrease in construction in progress of $23.9 million which were funded from various 
bond proceeds. See Footnote 6 of the financial statements. 
 
Fiscal Year 2014:  
 
There was a significant increase in net capital assets of approximately $88.6 million from fiscal year 2013 to 
fiscal year 2014.  This increase was due primarily to a $36.0 million net increase in construction in progress, an 
increase in land of $30.7 million, and increases in buildings, real estate improvements and equipment of $21.9 
million (net of accumulated depreciation) which were funded from various bond proceeds. See Footnote 6 of 
the financial statements. 
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Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) 
 
 

Capital Assets: 2015 2014 2013 2014 to 2015 2013 to 2014

Land 157,283,434$  144,723,407$  114,019,147$ 12,560,027$     30,704,260$  

Construction in Progress 126,849,663 150,738,677 114,762,207 (23,889,014) 35,976,470

Buildings 550,301,121 463,274,451 457,973,817 87,026,670 5,300,634

Other Real Estate Improvements 86,389,217 77,620,452 58,068,903 8,768,765 19,551,549

Library Books 3,487,889 3,646,937 3,495,011 (159,048) 151,926

Furniture, Machinery, Vehicles 
and Other Equipment 19,922,240 22,566,058 24,102,939 (2,643,818) (1,536,881)
Telecommunications and 
Peripheral Equipment 6,607,543 8,186,213 9,697,379 (1,578,670) (1,511,166)

  

Total Capital Assets 950,841,107$  870,756,195$  782,119,403$ 80,084,912$     88,636,792$  

Change
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Outstanding Debt  
 

Outstanding debt: 2015 2014 2013 2014 to 2015 2013 to 2014
Notes Payable 162,127,985$            168,926,738$            177,016,888$            (6,798,752)$                      (8,090,150)$          
Revenue Bonds 232,296,438 202,858,816 215,574,705 29,437,621                       (12,715,889)          
PFC Lease Revenue Bonds 56,506,229 103,596,429 107,747,989 (47,090,200)                      (4,151,560)            
General Obligation Bonds 552,429,370 568,407,151 578,139,158 (15,977,781)                      (9,732,007)            

Deposits 440 440 -                             -                                    440                       
Net Pension Liability 67,428,372 -                             -                                 67,428,372                       -                        

Total Outstanding Debt 1,070,788,834$         1,043,789,574$         1,078,478,740$         26,999,259$                     (34,689,166)$        

Change
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Fiscal Year 2015:  
 
Bonds and notes payable decreased as follows: 
 

• Bonds and notes payable decreased as follows: 
• Decrease of $6,798,752 for principal payments on Maintenance Tax Notes. 
• Net increase of $29,437,621 due to issuance of $77,851,896 in bonds, defeasance of $34,695,000 and 

principal payments of $12,545,000.  
• PFC Lease Revenue Bonds decreased by $47,090,200 due to defeasance of $42,325,000 and principal 

payments of $4,965,000. 
• Decrease of $15,977,781 for principal payments on Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds and 

amortization of bond premium.    
     
Fiscal Year 2014:  
 
Bonds and notes payable decreased as follows: 
 

• Bonds and notes payable decreased as follows: 
• Decrease of $8,090,150 for principal payments on Maintenance Tax Notes. 
• Decrease of $12,715,889 due to principal payments on Revenue Bonds.  
• PFC Lease Revenue Bonds decreased by $4,151,560 due to principal payments. 
• Decrease of $9,732,007 for principal payments on Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds. 
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Future Outlook  

 
We are in the middle of transforming HCC into the College of the Future.  That future not only includes new 
technologies, but also comes with new opportunities, leadership, and strategies. 
 
An important part of HCC’s transformation is the focus on the student success experience. Phase 1 of the 
transformation focused on Instructional services. With the redesign of the curriculum and development of 
staffing standards for all instructional areas, the benefits include the following: 
 

• System-wide leadership in academic instructional areas 
• System-wide opportunities for collaboration among faculty within disciplines 
• Sixteen (16) Centers of Excellence aligned with the surrounding industry corridors 
• System-wide professional development opportunities for faculty through the Faculty Academy 
• System-wide goals on student success, retention, completion, and job placement 

 
As we embark on Phase II of the transformation, the focus concentrates on Students Services. A new model has 
been designed to support the success of our students, enhance the student experience, and support the success 
and completion goals established. Phase II of the transformation should result in the following benefits: 
 

• A consistent staffing model of all student service areas 
• A consistent staffing campus leadership model 
• Targeted support services for the Centers of Excellence 
• System-wide training for student services staff 
• A comprehensive student success and completion model 

 
The highlights and accomplishments of the transformation also include the following changes that will move 
HCC toward increased accountability and transparency as we move through the planning of the organizational 
redesign of student success. 
 
College Readiness 
 
College readiness is a metric that has been loosely defined and has become largely synonymous with dual credit 
programs, but it has a much broader scope.  Due to the high level of influence on HCC’s student success and 
HCC meeting its obligation to produce workforce ready and academically prepared graduates, we must view 
college readiness as applicable to other channels that bring students to HCC.  HCC’s college readiness endeavor 
will expand pathways for workforce readiness and academic success by developing and promoting academic 
and technical pathways from secondary to post-secondary education through many channels, such as dual 
credit, Early College High School (ECHS), Middle College High School (MCHS), Texas Success Initiatives 
(TSI) academics, continuing education, etc.  By developing strong relationships with our partner Independent 
School Districts (ISD), internal HCC departments, and external organizations associated with building 
educational pipelines, we align access to both academic programs and to ongoing technical education so 
students can have a strong foundation for choices in the future.  HCC’s goal is to have our students leave HCC 
ready for the modern workplace and academia – that they have portable, marketable skill sets that they can 
apply to opportunities that come their way, that they receive credit that can be applied to future educational 
goals. 
 
Diversity and Inclusion 
 
HCC is leading the nation as the most diverse community college. We are devoted to championing the cause of 
diversity, inclusion, and equality for everyone. Fiscal Year 2014-2015 began our second year of the system-
wide HCC Diversity & Inclusion Plan, highlighting the institution’s collaborative commitment to the evolving 
cultural and developmental nuances of all students, faculty, and staff. The Diversity & Inclusion committees 
and programs continuously build a culture that fosters an inclusive, welcoming learning environment 
throughout all HCC campuses. 
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Safety and Security 
 
Safety and security of all students, employees and visitors is of utmost importance to the leadership of HCC.  
To enhance the college’s ability to maintain safety and security, the HCC Police Department will begin 
implementation of its transformation plan.  The new structure has been designed to increase communication, 
training, and the deployment of personnel to quickly meet strategic needs while keeping our focus on the safety 
of our faculty, staff, students, and visitors. Some advantages of the new structure include the following. 
 

• Greater number  of officers familiar with each college location 
• Increased number of officers able to respond to incidents within shorter timeframes 
• More frequent and ongoing communication and training opportunities for officers 
• Increased levels of supervision on all shifts, including evening and weekends. 

 
As we continue this momentum, we will be challenged by economic change and changes in our stakeholder’s 
needs. Our role in building futures is still paramount for our students, for business, for the economy. The role of 
all faculty and staff is more important than ever. The faculty and staff define our success through their power to 
teach, inspire, motivate, and engage with every single person who enters our doors. We have much to be proud 
of at HCC. We are absolute in our focus on the student experience – on campus or in the classroom. It is our 
joint responsibility to give students the best guidance. Our responsiveness to our students should be constant 
and consistent. Only our collective work will best prepare our students for a four-year institution or the 
workplace. 
 
Houston Community College looks forward to welcoming new and continuing students; offering new courses; 
implementing a new organizational structure with a new budget; and new opportunities. 
 
The 2013 Capital Improvements Program (CIP) continues with full operations and mobilization on multiple 
active sites. The Program Execution Plan (PEP) continues to be in use for all aspects of the Bond Program 
activities. Planning and construction is underway to build several new HCC facilities. The bond referendum, 
approved by the voters in 2012 for $425,000,000, provides each HCC college with new or renovated facilities 
and the technology to meet student needs, especially in high-demand areas such as science, technology, 
engineering, and math (STEM) education, as well as health sciences. 
 
HCC is committed to innovation that creates resiliency. The seven initiatives adopted in the strategic plan 
encompass our efforts to address and meet the needs of our students and community. Stewardship, being one of 
our guiding principles, is the path to fulfilling HCC’s mission and acknowledges our guardianship of its 
resources and positive impact on the lives of our students and community at large. Sound stewardship 
incorporates adherence to the highest ethical standards in all professional and personal duties and 
responsibilities:  to deal honestly with others; to stand for what is right; and to secure the benefit of all by the 
wise care and utilization of our resources, including time, money, and people. 
 
Texas Association of Community College’s (TACC) model for funding community college instruction was 
initially adopted by the 83rd Texas Legislature for the 2014-2015 biennium.  The 84th Legislature continued this 
pattern of funding instruction at community colleges in the 2016-2017 biennium.  Overall, community college 
appropriations funded totaled $1.745 billion in instructional funds. The Core Operations-Student Success 
Points-Contact Hour Funding methodology includes the following: 
 

• $50 million for core operations ($1 million for the biennium to each community college) 
• 10% set-aside, about $169.2 million total, for Student Success Points (based on outcome versus inputs) 
• 90% distribution, based on contact hours: about $1.52 billion in general revenue for the biennium. 
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The cost sharing agreement established during the 83rd legislative session for employee benefits remains as 
established with the state funding 50 percent of the costs and community colleges paying the remaining 50 
percent of the costs. 
 
The State contributions to TRS and ORP are as follows: 
 

• TRS Retirement Rate: Employer share is 6.8 percent for FY 2016 and FY 2017 (same rate as the 
previous rate of 6.4 percent for FY2014 and FY2015).  The state share is 3.4 percent; the community 
college share is 3.4 percent. 

. 
• ORP Retirement Rate:  Employer share is 6.6 percent for FY 2016 and FY 2017 (same rate as for FY 

2014 and FY 2015).  The state share is 3.3 percent; the community college share is 3.3 percent. 
 
The ad valorem tax rate for calendar year 2015 was decreased to $0.101942 from the calendar year 2014 rate of 
$0.106890. The tax rate for Maintenance & Operations (M&O) decreased from the prior year’s rate and the rate 
for Debt Service also decreased due to the decrease in funding needed to cover debt payments in FY 2015-2016. 
The maintenance and Operations tax rate for 2015 is $0.075631 per $100 of assessed valuation.  The debt 
service tax rate is $0.026311 per $100 of assessed valuation.  These adopted rates are in line with the Board’s 
policy to minimize the tax burden on its constituents and provide for sufficient tax funds to support the fiscal 
year 2015-2016 operating budget and debt service. 
 
HCC’s outlook for the foreseeable future continues to be positive as a result of its strategic leadership, fiscal 
management and stable local economy. 
 
Contacting the System’s Financial Management 
 
This financial report is designed to provide the System’s citizens, taxpayers, students, investors, and creditors 
with a general overview of the System’s finances and to demonstrate the System’s accountability for the money 
it receives.  If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Vice 
Chancellor of Finance and Administration’s office at 3100 Main, Houston, Texas 77002. 
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ASSETS Restated

2015 2014
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 4) 101,545,222$        79,864,898$                    
Accounts Receivable and Other Receivable, Net (Note 5) 41,434,134            42,278,645                      
Prepaid Charges 4,659,249              3,605,721                        

     Total Current Assets 147,638,605          125,749,264                    

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 4) 85,872,540         186,368,727                    
Other Long-Term Investments (Note 4) 50,260,122         40,106,842                      
Restricted Long Term Investment (Note 4) 285,466,672       268,588,051                    
Capital Assets Net (Note 6) 950,841,107          870,756,195                    

     Total Noncurrent Assets 1,372,440,441       1,365,819,815                 

TOTAL ASSETS 1,520,079,046       1,491,569,079                 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
  Deferred Outflows Related to Pension 11,299,015            -                                  
  Advance Funding Valuation 8,743,822              7,972,677                        
     Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 20,042,837            7,972,677                        

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable (Note 5) 9,804,298           8,475,408                        
Accrued Liabilities 14,004,739         12,530,762                      
Compensated Absences (Note 16) 2,526,083           2,357,551                        
Funds Held for Others 830,289              852,319                           
Unearned Revenues 56,327,431         56,809,299                      
Notes Payable - Current Portion (Note 7 and 11) 8,783,299           7,785,000                        
Bonds Payable - Current Portion (Note 7 and 8) 26,975,000         24,525,000                      

     Total Current Liabilities 119,251,139          113,335,339                    

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Deposits 440                     440                                  
Net Pension  Liability (Note 14) 67,428,372         -                                  
Notes Payable (Note 7 and 11) 153,344,687       161,141,738                    
Bonds Payable (Note 7 and 8) 814,257,037       850,337,396                    

     Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1,035,030,536       1,011,479,574                 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,154,281,675       1,124,814,913                 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
  Deferred Inflows Related to Pension 20,626,539            -                                  
  Advance Funding Valuation 795,245                 874,770                           
     Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 21,421,784            874,770                           

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 290,770,960          244,073,582                    
Restricted - Expendable 13,290,548            14,803,614                      
Unrestricted 60,356,912            114,974,877                    

TOTAL NET POSITION 364,418,420$        373,852,073$                  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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2015 2014

OPERATING REVENUES:
  Tuition and Fees, Net of Discounts 75,079,230$             70,689,034$              
  Federal Grants and Contracts 13,782,110               14,019,776                
  State Grants and Contracts 8,772,358                 5,543,642                  
  Local Grants and Contracts 162,920                    116,899                     
  Non-Governmental Grants and Contracts 2,446,357                 2,441,076                  
  Sales and Services of Educational Activities 177,222                    189,043                     
  Auxiliary Enterprises 13,544,991               16,420,060                
     Total Operating Revenues (Schedule A) 113,965,188             109,419,530              

OPERATING EXPENSES:                             
  Instruction 118,383,131             112,628,406              
  Public Service 10,295,409               10,628,104                
  Academic Support 31,781,726               26,699,201                
  Student Services 31,448,417               29,244,604                
  Institutional Support 63,081,397               62,673,369                
  Operations and Maintenance 28,820,028               35,885,631                
  Scholarships and Fellowships 61,638,293               58,733,940                
  Auxiliary Enterprises 13,853,632               17,233,928                
  Depreciation 21,484,508               19,743,511                
     Total Operating Expenses (Schedule B) 380,786,541             373,470,694              
OPERATING LOSS (266,821,353)            (264,051,164)             

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):                             
  State Appropriations 82,249,495               81,675,719                
  Maintenance Ad Valorem Taxes 125,073,172             113,987,287              
  Debt Service Ad Valorem Taxes 48,383,832               29,402,457                
  Gifts 1,260,854                 1,436,292                  
  Investment Income, Net 2,950,156                 3,704,351                  
  Interest on Capital Related Debt (24,312,876)              (16,346,638)               
  Title IV Grants 95,673,111               94,092,798                
  Nursing Shortage Reduction 478,272                    171,333                     
  Other Nonoperating Revenues 7,460,036                 1,672,149                  
  Other Nonoperating Expenses (5,431,725)                (10,955,750)               
     Net Nonoperating Revenues (Schedule C) 333,784,328             298,839,998              
INCREASE IN NET POSITION 66,962,975               34,788,834                
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 373,852,073             339,063,239              
CUMULATIVE EFFECT FOR CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE (Note 14) (76,396,628)              -                                 
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF THE YEAR RESTATED 297,455,445             339,063,239              
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR 364,418,420$           373,852,073$            

 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31, 2015 AND 2014 

Exhibit 3 
 

 
Restated

2015 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from students and other customers 88,139,957$        86,573,534$       
Receipts from grants and contracts 22,598,284 25,207,015
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (69,694,738) (69,448,900)
Payments to or on behalf of employees (220,218,443) (213,136,663)
Payments for scholarships and fellowships (61,659,243) (58,715,132)

Net cash used by operating activities (240,834,183) (229,520,146)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from ad valorem taxes 172,098,474 141,036,343
Receipts from state allocations 82,249,495 81,675,719
Receipts from private gifts 1,260,854 1,436,292
Received Federal Direct Student Loans ( SA: Federal note 3) 87,452,991 109,967,108
Disbursement of Federal Direct Student Loans ( SA: Federal note 3) (87,466,957) (109,889,158)
Other Non-Operating Revenue 1,292,453 1,257,033
Receipts from Title IV 99,329,674 94,104,002
Receipts from Nursing 478,272 171,333

Net cash provided  by noncapital financing activities 356,695,256 319,758,672

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from the issuance of capital debt 77,851,897 40,472,857
Bond issue cost paid on new capital debt issue (534,300) (362,857)
Purchases of capital assets (81,350,578) (77,466,967)
Payments of expenses relating to capital assets in Plant Funds (4,161,937) (4,817,882)
Payments on capital debt and leases - principal (114,068,298) (68,920,000)
Payments on capital debt and leases - interest and fees (47,118,694) (46,335,639)
Net cash used by financing activities (169,381,910) (157,430,488)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 100,496,187 48,231,952
Interest on investments 1,736,875 2,262,392
Purchase of investments (27,031,901) (23,490,694)
Net cash provided by Investing activities 75,201,161 27,003,650

INCREASE(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21,680,324 (40,188,312)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 79,864,898 120,053,210

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR (EXHIBIT 1) 101,545,222$      79,864,898$       

 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31, 2015 AND 2014 
 

Exhibit 3 
 
 
 

RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH

Operating loss (266,821,353)$     (264,051,164)$    

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation 21,484,508 19,743,511
Deferred Outflows/Inflows 14,876,735 (708,358)
Addback Non-Cash Charges (Add in the Reserve) for Doubtful Accounts 2,063,172 1,533,270
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts Receivable and other Receivable (844,511) 4,159,704
Prepaid Charges 1,053,525 7,999,103
Accounts payables and accruals (12,142,361) 3,803,155
Unearned revenues (481,868) (1,966,494)
Deposits held for others (22,030) (32,872)

Total adjustment 25,987,170 34,531,018

Net cash used in operating activities (240,834,183)$     (229,520,146)$    

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 
NOTE 1 – REPORTING ENTITY 

 
Houston Community College System (the “System”) was established on May 8, 1971, in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Texas, to serve the educational needs of the Houston Independent School District, Alief 
Independent School District, City of Stafford and City of Missouri City.  The System also serves the school 
districts of Katy and Spring Branch at those districts’ requests. The System is a comprehensive public two-year 
institution offering academic, general, occupational, development, and continuing adult education programs 
through a network of colleges. 

 
Houston Community College System is considered to be a special purpose, primary government according to 
the definition in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  While the System receives funding from 
local, state and federal sources, and must comply with the spending, reporting, and record keeping requirements 
of these entities, it is not a component unit of any other governmental entity. 

 
GASB gives guidance in determining whether certain organizations for which the System is not financially 
accountable should be reported as component units based on the nature and significance of their relationship 
with the primary government. It requires reporting as a component unit if the organization raises and holds 
economic resources for the direct benefit of the governmental unit and the component unit is significant 
compared to the primary government. GASB guidance has been applied as required in the preparation of these 
financial statements. 
 
The Houston Community College System Public Facility Corporation “(PFC”) was incorporated on January 18, 
2005.  The PFC is a nonprofit public facility corporation and instrumentality formed by the System pursuant to 
the Public Facility Corporation Act and a resolution of the Board of Trustees of the System. The PFC was 
formed for the purpose of financing or providing for the acquisition, construction, rehabilitation, renovation, 
repair and equipment of public facilities for the benefit of the System. The PFC is reported as a blended 
component unit in the financial statements of the System. The PFC is a legally separate entity and is included in 
the System’s financial reporting entity because of the nature of its relationship to the System. Financial 
information for the PFC may be obtained from its administrative office. 

 
The Houston Community College Foundation (the “Foundation”) is a legally separate not-for-profit corporation 
controlled by a separate board of trustees, whose sole purpose is to advance and assist in the development, 
growth and operation of the System. The System does not appoint any of the Foundation’s board members nor 
does it fund or is it obligated to pay debt related to the Foundation. The financial position of the Foundation as 
of August 31, 2015 and 2014 and the cost of services provided by the System to the Foundation during the years 
then ended are not significant to the System. The Foundation has therefore not been included as a component 
unit in the financial statements of the System.  Financial information for the Foundation may be obtained from 
its administrative office. 
 
 
NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Reporting Guidelines 

 
The significant accounting policies followed by the System in preparing these financial statements are in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by 
GASB.  The accompanying financial statements are also in accordance with the Texas Higher Education 
Coordinating Board’s Annual Financial Reporting Requirements for Texas Public Community and Junior 
Colleges   
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 
NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 
 
Basis of Accounting 

 
The financial statements of the System have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting whereby all 
revenues are recorded when earned and all expenses are recorded when they have been reduced to a legal or 
contractual obligation to pay. 

 
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditures 
of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an 
extension of formal budgetary integration.  Under Texas law, appropriations lapse at August 31 of each year 
and encumbrances outstanding at that time are to be either canceled or appropriately provided for in the 
subsequent year’s budget.    

 
Tuition Discounting 

 
Texas Public Education Grants - Certain tuition amounts are required to be set aside for use as scholarships by 
qualifying students.  This set-aside, called the Texas Public Education Grant (TPEG), is shown with tuition and 
fee revenue amounts as a separate set-aside amount (Texas Education Code §56.033). When the award is used 
by the student for tuition and fees, the amount is recorded as tuition discount. If the amount is dispersed directly 
to the student, the amount is recorded as a scholarship expense.  

 
Title IV, Higher Education Act (HEA) Program Funds - Certain Title IV Higher Education Act Program (HEA) 
funds are received by the System to pass-through to the student.  These funds are initially received by the 
System and recorded as grant revenue. When the award is used by the student for tuition and fees, the amount is 
recorded as tuition discount. If the amount is dispersed directly to the student, the amount is recorded as a 
scholarship expense. 

 
Other Tuition Discounts - Student tuition and fees revenue are reported net of scholarship discounts in the 
accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.  The scholarship discount is the 
difference between the actual amount for tuition and fees charged by the System and the amount that is paid by 
students or by third parties on the students’ behalf. Student financial assistance grants, such as Pell grants, and 
other federal, state or nongovernmental programs, are recorded as either operating or non-operating revenues in 
the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.  To the extent that revenues 
from these programs are used to satisfy tuition, fees, and other charges, the System has recorded a scholarship 
discount. Schedule A provides a detail of tuition discounts. 
 
Budgetary Data 

 
Each community college district in Texas is required by law to prepare an annual operating budget of 
anticipated revenues and expenditures for each fiscal year beginning September 1.  The System’s Board of 
Trustees adopts the budget, which is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.  A copy of the approved 
budget must be filed with the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board, Legislative Budget Board, 
Legislative Reference Library, and Governor’s Office of Budget and Planning by December 1 of the respective 
year. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand and demand deposits with original maturities of 
three months or less from the date of acquisition.  The System has classified public funds investment pools 
comprised of Lone Star Investment Pool (First Public) and Texas Local Government Investment Pool (TexPool) 
to be cash equivalents. 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 
NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 
 
Investments 

 
Investments are reported at fair value.  Fair values are based on published market rates.  Short-term investments 
have an original maturity greater than three months but less than one year at the time of purchase.  Long-term 
investments have an original maturity of greater than one year at the time of purchase. Investment funds related 
to bond issues set aside for construction of capital assets are classified as restricted long-term investments. 
 
Prepaid Charges 

 
Expenses and costs paid in advance which pertain to the subsequent fiscal year(s), such as scholarships 
disbursed to students before August 31 for fall semester classes are accounted for as prepaid charges.  

 
Capital Assets 

 
Capital assets are stated at cost at the date of acquisition, or fair value at the date of donation.  Assets under 
capital leases are recorded at the lower of the present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of 
the asset. The assets are amortized over the lesser of their related lease terms or their estimated productive lives.  
The System reports depreciation under a single line-item, as would be done by an entity reporting as a business-
type unit.  Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets 
and is not allocated to the functional expenditure categories.  The threshold for capitalization of assets is $5,000. 
Renovations of $100,000 to buildings and infrastructure and land improvements that significantly increase the 
value or extend the useful life of the structure are capitalized.  The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that 
do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are charged to operating expense in the 
year in which the expense is incurred.  The following estimated useful lives are used for depreciable assets: 

 
 Buildings 50 years 
 Facilities and Other Improvements 20 years 
 Furniture, Machinery, Vehicles and Other Equipment 10 years 
 Telecommunications and Peripheral Equipment   5 years 
 Library Books 15 years 
 Leasehold Improvements                Lease Term 

 
Interest on Capital Related Debt 
 
Interest expense on capital related debt totaled $41,259,322 and $41,208,254 for fiscal years 2015 and 2014, 
respectively. Of these amounts, $16,946,447 and $24,861,616 was capitalized to construction in process for 
fiscal years 2015 and 2014, respectively, in accordance with provisions of GASB Statement No. 62. 
 
Unearned Revenues 

 
Tuition, fees, and other revenues received during the current fiscal year but related to the period after August 31 
of any one year have been reported as unearned revenues. Also reported as unearned revenues are public 
education grant revenues that must be matched to certain scholarship disbursements reported as prepaid 
charges. 
 
Income Taxes 

 
The System is exempt from income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 115, Income of States, 
Municipalities, Etc., although unrelated business income may be subject to income taxes under Internal 
Revenue Code Section 511(a)(2)(B), Imposition of Tax on Unrelated Business Income of Charitable 
Organizations, etc.  The System had no unrelated business income tax liability for the years ended August 31, 
2015 and 2014. 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 
NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 
 
 
Management Estimates 

 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported 
amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates that have the 
most impact on financial position and results of operations primarily relate to the collectability of tuition and 
taxes receivable, the useful lives of property and equipment, certain accrued liabilities, and the allocation of 
expenses among functional areas.  Management believes these estimates and assumptions provide a reasonable 
basis for the fair presentation of the financial statements. 

 
 
Operating and Non-operating Revenues and Expenses 
 
The System presents its revenues and expenses as operating or non-operating based on recognition definitions 
from GASB.  Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the 
System’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues are tuition and related fees and 
contracts and grants. The major non-operating revenues are allocations from the State, property tax collections 
and Title IV financial aid funds. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. 
Operating expenses include the cost of services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. The 
bookstore and vending machine operations are owned and managed by third parties.  
 
Federal Financial Assistance Programs 

 
The System participates in several federally-funded programs.  Federal programs are audited in accordance with 
the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133 Audit of 
States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, and the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance 
Supplement 
 
Reclassifications 
 
Certain 2014 amounts have been reclassified to conform to fiscal year 2015 presentation.   
 
On Exhibit 1, cash & cash equivalent has been increased by $49,966,068 having reclassified from restricted 
long-term investment. Also CD’s for $33,207,309 has been reclassified from cash & cash equivalent to other 
long-term investments. 
 
On Schedule A, $849,320 has been reclassified from State funded Continuing Education to Non-State funded 
Continuing Education. Also $73,586 has been reclassified from State Grants & Contracts to Federal Grants and 
Contracts for fiscal year 2014. 
 
Restated 
 
Cash flow for fiscal year 2014 has been restated due to reclassification between long-term investments and cash 
& cash equivalents by $16.69 million, thereby is increasing the cash balance from $63,176,139 to $79,864,898. 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 
Adoption of New Accounting Standards 

Effective with the fiscal year ended August 31, 2015, the System adopted GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting 
and Reporting for Financial Pensions which amends GASB Statement No. 27. Statement No. 68 was issued 
June 2012 and became effective for financial statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014.  With 
this implementation of GASB 68, the standard requires that statements define how pension liabilities will be 
calculated by plans and reported by employers and other non-employer contributing entities who prepare 
financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). For fiscal year 
2014 there was an increase in the net pension liability of $82.8 million. As of fiscal year end 2015, the liability 
was reduced by $15 million for a total liability of $67.4 million. 

Effective with the fiscal year ended August 31, 2015, the System adopted GASB Statement No. 71 Pension 
Transition for Contributions made Subsequent to the Measurement Date (an amendment of GASB Statement 
No. 68). Statement No. 71 amends paragraph 137 of Statement 68. At the beginning of the period in which the 
provisions of Statement 68 are adopted, there may be circumstances in which it is not practical for a 
government to determine the amounts of all applicable deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of 
resources related to pensions. In such circumstances, the government should recognize a beginning deferred 
outflow of resources only for its pension contributions, if any, made subsequent to the measurement date of the 
beginning net pension liability but before the start of the government's fiscal year. Additionally, in those 
circumstances, beginning balances for other deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions should not be recognized. The provisions of this Statement were applied simultaneously with 
the adoption of Statement 68. 

Beginning net position as of September 1, 2014 has been restated as follows for the implementation of GASB 
Statement No. 68, as amended by GASB Statement No. 71: 

Beginning net position 373,852,073        
Cumulative effect of change in accounting pricnciple (GASB 68 and GASB71):
     Net pension liability (measurement date as of August 31, 2014) (82,795,634)        
     Deferred outflow of District contributions made during FY2014 6,399,006            
Beginning net position, as restated 297,455,445        

 Pending Pronouncements 

The following GASB pronouncements have been issued but not yet implemented by the District: 

In February 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application (GASB 72).  The 
objectives of this Statement are to improve financial reporting by clarifying the definition of fair value for 
financial reporting purposes, establishing general principles for measuring fair value, providing additional fair 
value application guidance, and enhancing disclosures around fair value measurements.  The provisions of this 
Statement are effective for financial statements in periods beginning after June 15, 2015. 

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related 
Assets that are not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions for GASB 
Statements 67 and 68.  This Statement establishes requirements for defined benefit pensions that are not within 
the scope of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, as well as for the assets 
accumulated for purposes of providing those pensions.  In addition, it establishes requirements for defined 
contribution pensions that are not within the scope of Statement No. 68 and amends certain provisions of 
Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, and Statement 68 for pension plans and pensions that 
are within their respective scopes.  The provisions of this Statement are generally effective for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2015. 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 
Pending Pronouncements continued 

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other 
Than Pensions Plans.  The objective of this Statement is to improve the usefulness of information about 
postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB) included in the general 
purpose external financial reports of state and local governmental OPEB plans for making decisions and 
assessing accountability.  This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing 
standards of accounting and financial reporting for all postemployment benefits (pensions and OPEB) with 
regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and inter-period 
equity, and creating additional transparency.  This Statement also includes requirements to address financial 
reporting for assets accumulated for purposes of providing defined benefit OPEB through OEPB plans that are 
not administered through trusts that meet the specified criteria.  This Statement is effective for financial 
statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2016. 

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment 
Benefits Other Than Pensions.  This primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial 
reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other 
postemployment benefits or OPEB).  It also improves information provided by state and local governmental 
employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities.  The scope of this Statement 
addresses accounting and financial reporting for OEPB that is provided to the employees of state and local 
governmental employers.  This Statement establishes standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, 
deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expenses.  This Statement is effective for 
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017. 

GASB Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local 
Governments.  The objective of this Statement is to identify-in the context of the current governmental financial 
reporting environment-the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  The “GAAP 
hierarchy” consists of the sources of accounting principles used to prepare financial statements of state and local 
governmental entities in conformity with GAAP and the framework for selecting those principles.  This 
Statement reduces the GAAP hierarchy to two categories of authoritative GAAP and address the use of 
authoritative and non-authoritative literature in the event that the accounting treatment for a transaction or other 
event is not specified within a source of authoritative GAAP.  This Statement supersedes Statement No. 55, The 
Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments.  The requirements of 
this statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2015. 

In August 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures (GASB 77).  GASB 77 requires 
state and local governments for the first time to disclose information about tax abatement agreements.  GASB 
77 requires governments to disclose information about their own tax abatements separately from information 
about tax abatements that are entered into by other governments and reduce the reporting government’s tax 
revenues. GASB 77 is effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2015. 

The District has not yet completed the process of evaluating the impact of GASB Statements Nos. 72, 73, 74, 
75, 76 and 77 on its financial statements. 

NOTE 3 – AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS 

 
The System is authorized to invest in obligations and instruments as defined in the Public Funds Investment Act 
(PFIA) (Sec. 2256.001 Texas Government Code).  Such investments include (1) obligations of the United States 
or its agencies, (2) direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies, (3) obligations of political 
subdivisions rated not less than “A” by a national investment rating firm, (4) certificates of deposit, and (5) 
other instruments and obligations authorized by statute. 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 
NOTE 4 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 
The carrying amount (book balance) of the System's demand deposits with financial institutions as of August 
31, 2015 and 2014 was $10,127,654 and $21,177,412; and total bank balances equaled $24,341,228 and 
$81,824,415, respectively. Of the bank balances for fiscal year 2015, $250,000 is covered by FDIC, and 
$24,091,228 is collateralized in the System’s name. Of the Bank Balances for fiscal year 2014, $250,000 was 
covered by FDIC and $81,574,415 was covered by collateral pledged in the System's name.  Restricted Long-
Term investments include collateralized investments of $266,322 and $121,888,042 as high yield savings, 
$51,035,675 and $19,162,254 as Money Market. Restricted Long-Term investments include $161,972,691 and 
$211,972,691 as Certificate of Deposits, with a Bank as of August 31, 2015 and 2014 respectively. The 
collateral was held in an account of an independent third party agent.  
 
Cash and deposits included on Exhibit 1, Statement of Net Position, consist of the items reported below: 
 

2015 2014
Bank Deposits:

Demand Deposits $ 65,268,362 $ 170,292,124

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Petty Cash on Hand 50,083 51,730
Cash at Bank 7,934,571 49,966,068
Money Market Funds 102,507,050 25,201,664
High Yield Savings 1,528,242 10,598,707
TexPool 8,530,991 8,526,943
Lone Star 1,598,463 1,596,389

122,149,400 95,941,501

Total Cash and Deposits 187,417,762 266,233,625

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents (85,872,540) (186,368,727)

Cash and Cash Equivalents  ( Exhibit  1) $ 101,545,222 $ 79,864,898
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 
NOTE 4 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS – CONTINUED  
 
 
Items consisting of cash and investments included on Exhibit 1, Statements of Net Position, continue as shown 
below:   
 

Type of Security 2015 2014

U.S. Agency Securities 138,927,061             61,890,576               

Certificate of Deposits 196,799,733             246,804,317             

Total Investments 335,726,794             308,694,893             

Total Cash and Deposits 187,417,762             266,233,625             

Total Deposits and Investments 523,144,556$           574,928,518$           

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Exhibit 1) 101,545,222             79,864,898               

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents (Exhibit 1) 85,872,540               186,368,727             

Restricted Long-Term Investment (Exhibit 1) 285,466,672             268,588,051             

Other Long-Term Investments (Exhibit 1) 50,260,122               40,106,842               

Total Deposits and Investments 523,144,556$           574,928,518$           

Fair Value at August 31,

 
For fiscal year 2014, $49,966,068 has been reclassified from restricted cash and cash equivalent to cash and 
cash equivalent; as deposit belongs to CD’s for unrestricted funds has been reclassified from cash and cash 
equivalent to long-term investment. 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 
NOTE 4 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS – CONTINUED  
 
 
As of August 31, 2015 Houston Community College System had the following investments and maturities: 
 

Weighted Average
Investment Type Fair Value Maturity(Years)

U.S. Agency Securities 138,927,061$         2.08
Investment Pools 10,129,454             0.00
Certificates of Deposit 195,250,000           1.24
Cash and Money Market Funds 178,838,041           0.00

Total Fair Value 523,144,556$         

Portfolio weighted average maturity 1.04

 
Interest Rate Risk - In accordance with state law and System policy, the System does not purchase any 
investments with maturities greater than ten years. The System manages its exposure to declines in fair value by 
limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment portfolio to two years or less. The System's philosophy 
is to hold all investments to their maturity. 
 
Credit Risk and Concentration of Credit Risk - In accordance with state law and the System’s investment 
policy, investments in mutual funds and investment pools must be rated at least “AAA”, commercial paper must 
be rated at least “A-1” or “P-1”, and investments in obligations from other states, municipalities, counties, etc. 
must be rated at least “A”. The System limits the amount it may invest in any one issuer to no more than 50 % 
of its total investment portfolio. Currently, the United States has an AA+ credit rating as graded by Standard 
and Poor’s. 
 
The credit quality (ratings) and concentration of credit exposure of securities in excess of 5% of total 
investments as of August 31, 2015 is as follows: 
 Credit Credit  
 Rating Exposure 
Fannie Mae (Federal National Mortgage Association) AAA 2% 
Freddie Mac (Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation) AAA 5% 
FHLB (Federal Home Bank) AAA 12% 
FFCB (Federal Farm Credit Bank) AAA 24% 
 
The State Comptroller of Public Accounts exercises oversight responsibility over the Texas Local Government 
Investment Pool (TexPool). Oversight includes the ability to significantly influence operations, designation of 
management and accountability for fiscal matters.  Additionally, the State Comptroller of Public Accounts has 
established an advisory board composed of both participants in TexPool and other persons who do not have a 
business relationship with TexPool.  The Advisory Board members review the investment policy and 
management fee structure.  TexPool is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s. As a requirement to maintain the 
rating, weekly portfolio information is submitted to both Standard & Poor’s and the Office of the State 
Comptroller of Public Accounts for review. 
 
TexPool operates in a manner consistent with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Rule 2a7 of the 
Investment Company Act of 1940.  TexPool uses amortized cost rather than market value to report net assets to 
compute share prices.  Accordingly, the fair value of the position in TexPool is the same value as the value in 
TexPool shares. 
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NOTE 4 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS – CONTINUED  
 
 
The Lone Star Investment Pool (Lone Star) is a public funds investment pool established in accordance with the 
Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791, Texas Government Code, and the Public Funds Investment Act, 
Chapter 225, Texas Government Code.  Lone Star is governed by trustees comprised of active participants in 
Lone Star.  The board of trustees for Lone Star has the responsibility for adopting and monitoring compliance 
with the investment policy, of appointing investment officers, of overseeing the selection of an investment 
advisor, custodian, investment consultant, administrator and other service providers. Lone Star uses amortized 
cost rather than market value to report net assets to compute share prices. Accordingly, the fair value of the 
position in Lone Star is the same as the value in Lone Star shares. 
 

 
NOTE 5 – DISAGGREGATION OF RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES BALANCES 
 
Receivables at August 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows: 

 
2015 2014

Accounts Receivable (net of allowance for doubtful accounts 1,968,303$             3,646,150$        
     of  $287,236 for 2015 and 2014)
Student Receivables (net of allowance for doubtful accounts 30,469,222             31,188,884        
     of  $11,872,646 for 2015 and $9,809,474 for 2014)
Taxes Receivable ( net of allowance for doubtful accounts 3,193,512               3,190,367          
     of $4,256,846 for 2015 and  $4,451,926 for 2014)
Federal Receivables 1,523,454               1,454,081          
Other Receivables 4,279,643               2,799,163          

     Total Receivables 41,434,134$           42,278,645$      

Payables at August 31, 2015 and 2014, were as follows:

2015 2014
Vendors Payable 3,786,484$             4,871,348$        
Salaries & Benefits Payable 234,953                  51,906               
Student Payables 3,265,424               2,400,685          
Retainage Payable 1,378,233               -                         
Other Payables 1,139,204               1,151,469          

Total Payables 9,804,298$             8,475,408$        

Taxes receivable at August 31, 2015 and 2014 includes an accrual of $504,586 and $374,145 respectively, for property 
taxes assessed to service debt related to the Limited Tax Building and Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 and Limited Tax Genera  
Obligation Bonds, Series 2013.
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NOTE 6 – CAPITAL ASSETS 

           
Capital asset activity for the year ended August 31, 2015 was as follows:  
  

  

Balance
August 31, 2014 Increases Decreases

Balance
August 31, 2015

   Not Depreciated:
Land 144,723,407$   12,560,027$     -$                      157,283,434$   
Construction in Process 150,738,677     69,354,716       93,243,730       126,849,663     

Subtotal 295,462,084     81,914,743       93,243,730       284,133,097     
Depreciable Capital Assets:

Buildings 548,393,688     97,649,216       -                        646,042,904     
Other Real Estate Improvements 93,894,459       13,113,284       -                        107,007,743     
     Total Buildings and Other Real
            Estate Improvements 642,288,147     110,762,500     -                        753,050,647     

Library Books 17,773,159       349,645            70,419              18,052,386       
Furniture, Machinery, Vehicles
      and Other Equipment 76,276,711       1,786,264         -                        78,062,975       
Telecommunications and 
      Perpheral Equipment 37,196,197       -                        -                        37,196,197       

Subtotal 773,534,214     112,898,409     70,419              886,362,204     
Accumulated Depreciation:

Buildings 85,119,236       10,622,542       -                        95,741,778       
Other Real Estate Improvements 16,274,006       4,344,520         -                        20,618,526       
     Total Buildings and Other Real
            Estate Improvements 101,393,242     14,967,062       -                        116,360,304     

Library Books 14,126,222       508,694            70,419              14,564,497       
Furniture, Machinery, Vehicles -                        
      and Other Equipment 53,710,656       4,430,082         -                        58,140,738       
Telecommunications and 
      Perpheral Equipment 29,009,984       1,578,670         -                        30,588,654       

Subtotal 198,240,104     21,484,508       70,419              219,654,193     

Net Depreciable Capital Assets 575,294,112     91,413,901       -                        666,708,010     

Net Capital Assets 870,756,195$   173,328,644$   93,243,730$     950,841,107$   
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NOTE 6 – CAPITAL ASSETS - CONTINUED  
           

Capital asset activity for the year ended August 31, 2014 was as follows:  

 

Balance
August 31, 2013 Increases Decreases

Balance
August 31, 2014

   Not depreciated:
Land 114,019,147$      30,704,260$      -$                 144,723,407$      
Construction in Process 114,762,207        70,883,831        34,907,361      150,738,677        

Subtotal 228,781,354        101,588,091      34,907,361      295,462,084        
Deperciable Capital Assets:

Buildings 533,855,420        14,538,268        -                       548,393,688        
Other Real Estate Improvements 70,666,818          23,227,641        -                       93,894,459          

     Total Building and Other Real
            Estate Improvements 604,522,238        37,765,909        -                       642,288,147        

Library Books 17,161,906          691,394             80,141             17,773,159          
Furniture, Machinery, Vehicles
      and Other Equipment 74,834,651          4,096,602          2,654,542        76,276,711          
Telecommunications and 
      Perpheral Equipment 37,185,804          110,752             100,359           37,196,197          

Subtotal 733,704,599        42,664,657        2,835,042        773,534,214        

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings 75,881,603          9,237,633          -                       85,119,236          
Other Real Estate Improvements 12,597,915          3,676,091          -                       16,274,006          
     Total Building and Other Real

`             Estate Improvements 88,479,518          12,913,724        -                       101,393,242        

Library Books 13,666,895          539,468             80,141             14,126,222          
Furniture, Machinery, Vehicles
      and Other Equipment 50,731,712          4,668,402          1,689,458        53,710,656          
Telecommunications and 
      Perpheral Equipment 27,488,425          1,621,918          100,359           29,009,984          

Subtotal 180,366,550        19,743,511        1,869,958        198,240,104        

Net Deperciable Capital Assets 553,338,048        22,921,145        965,084           575,294,112        

Net Capital Assets 782,119,403$      124,509,236$    35,872,445$    870,756,195$      



 

46 
 

HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
NOTE 7 – NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 
 
Noncurrent liability activity for the years ended August 31, 2015 and 2014 was as follows: 

 
Balance as of Balance as of Current Noncurrent

September 1, 2014 Additions Reductions August 31, 2015 Portion Portion

Long-Term Notes Payable 168,926,738$        2,019,896$      (8,818,649)$       162,127,985$     8,783,299$   153,344,687$    

Bonds:
Revenue Bonds 202,858,816          77,851,897      (48,414,275)       232,296,438       15,640,000   216,656,438      
PFC Lease Revenue 103,596,429          -                      (47,090,200)       56,506,229         2,455,000     54,051,229        
General Obligation Bonds 568,407,151          -                      (15,977,781)       552,429,370       8,880,000     543,549,370      

    Total Bonds 874,862,396          77,851,897      (111,482,257)     841,232,037       26,975,000   814,257,037      

Deposits 440                        -                      -                         440                     -                    440                    
Net Pension Liability -                            -                      -                         67,428,372         -                    67,428,372        

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1,043,789,574$     79,871,793$    (120,300,906)$   1,070,788,835$  35,758,299$ 1,035,030,536$ 

Balance as of Balance as of Current Noncurrent
September 1, 2013 Additions Reductions August 31, 2014 Portion Portion

Long-Term Notes Payable 177,016,888$        -$                    (8,090,150)$       168,926,738$     7,785,000$   161,141,738$    

Bonds:
Revenue Bonds 215,574,705          40,530,224      (53,246,113)       202,858,816       12,545,000   190,313,816      
PFC Lease Revenue 107,747,989          -                      (4,151,560)         103,596,429       4,240,000     99,356,429        
General Obligation Bonds 578,139,158          -                      (9,732,007)         568,407,151       7,740,000     560,667,151      

    Total Bonds 901,461,853          40,530,224      (67,129,680)       874,862,396       24,525,000   850,337,396      

Deposits 440                        -                      -                         440                     -                    440                    

Total Noncurrent Liabilities $1,078,479,181 $40,530,224 (75,219,830)$     $1,043,789,573 $32,310,000 $1,011,479,574
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NOTE 8 – BONDS PAYABLE 
 
Student Fee Revenue Bonds: 
 
The System issued several Student Fee Revenue Bonds as Senior Lien Bonds or Junior Lien Bonds during the fiscal 
years 2005 through 2015 with interest rates ranging from .003% to 5.25% and maturities ranging from 2007 through 
2031. Debt service requirements are payable solely from and secured by a first lien on certain pledged revenues which 
include general fees, out-of-district fees and any other revenues or receipts of the System which may, in the future, be 
pledged to the payment of the bonds.  Certain outstanding bonds may be redeemed at their par value prior to their normal 
maturity dates in accordance with the terms of the related bond indenture.  All authorized bonds have been issued.  The 
System has never defaulted on any bond or interest payment. 
 
Public Facility Corporation Lease Revenue Bonds: 
 
The Houston Community College System Public Facility Corporation (PFC) issued $58,885,000 in Lease Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2007 on February 1, 2007 with interest rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.62%. The Bonds were issued at a 
premium of $3,094,498. Bond maturities range from April 15, 2009 through April 15, 2031. Bonds maturing on or after 
April 15, 2018 are subject to redemption prior to their scheduled maturities on April 15, 2017. Bonds maturing in the 
years 2020, 2022, 2027 and 2031 are subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity on various dates. Proceeds of the 
Bonds were used to construct a four-story 112,000 square foot building for the System’s Northline Mall Campus.  
 
The System and the PFC entered into a Lease with an Option to Purchase effective February 1, 2007, whereby the 
System will lease the facility from the PFC and will make semiannual lease payments to the PFC sufficient to pay 
principal and interest on the PFC Lease Revenue Bonds.  
 
Under terms of a Security Agreement dated February 1, 2007 the PFC has granted a first mortgage lien on and first deed 
of trust title on the Northline Mall Campus Project (the Northline Project) to a bank trustee on behalf of the owners of the 
Bonds. The PFC has also granted a first priority security interest in the personal property associated with the Northline 
Project. 
 
The PFC issued $36,950,000 in Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 on October 1, 2006 with interest rates ranging from 
4.00% to 5.00%. The Bonds were issued at a discount of $546,238. Bond maturities range from April 15, 2008 through 
April 15, 2031. Bonds maturing on or after April 15, 2017 are subject to redemption prior to their scheduled maturities 
on April 15, 2016. Bonds maturing in the years 2028 and 2031 are subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity on 
various dates. Proceeds of the Bonds were used to acquire and renovate a 285,000 square foot building for the System’s 
Alief Campus. These Bonds were defeased on July 22, 2015 with the issuance of the Combined Fee Revenue and 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2015. See Note 9. 
 
The System and the PFC entered into a Lease with an Option to Purchase effective October 1, 2006, whereby the System 
will lease the facility from the PFC and will make semiannual lease payments to the PFC sufficient to pay principal and 
interest on the PFC Lease Revenue Bonds. Under terms of the defeasance noted above, the System will exercise its 
Option to Purchase on April 15, 2016 and will be granted title to the Alief Campus. 
 
Under terms of a Security Agreement dated October 1, 2006 the PFC has granted a first mortgage lien on and first deed 
of trust title on the Alief Campus Project (the Alief Project) to a bank trustee on behalf of the owners of the Bonds. The 
PFC has also granted a first priority security interest in the personal property associated with the Alief Project.   
 
The PFC issued $19,155,000 in Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2005C on December 1, 2005 with interest rates ranging 
from 4.00% to 5.00%. The Bonds were issued at a discount of $170,064. Bond maturities range from April 15, 2007 
through April 15, 2030.  Bonds maturing on or after April 15, 2016 are subject to redemption prior to their scheduled 
maturities on April 15, 2015. Bonds maturing in the years 2026, 2028 and 2030 are subject to mandatory redemption 
prior to maturity on various dates.  Proceeds of the Bonds were used to acquire 39.03 acres of land at a cost of 
$3,658,550 on the Northeast campus for construction of a Public Safety Institute.  The Public Safety Institute consists of 
three facilities: a six-story fire tower, a two-story burn building and a shooting range at an approximate cost of 
$13,000,000. These Bonds were defeased on July 22, 2015 with the issuance of the Combined Fee Revenue and 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2015. See Note 9.  
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NOTE 8 – BONDS PAYABLE – CONTINUED  
 
 

Under terms of a Security Agreement dated December 1, 2005 the PFC has granted a first mortgage lien on and first 
deed of trust title on the Public Safety Institute Project (the PSI Project) to a bank trustee on behalf of the owners of the 
Bonds. The PFC has also granted a first priority security interest in the personal property associated with the PSI Project. 
 
The PFC issued $11,605,000 in Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2005A and 2005B on June 1, 2005 with interest rates 
ranging from 3.50% to 5.00%. The Bonds were issued at a premium of $492,931. Bond maturities range from April 15, 
2006 through April 15, 2028. Bonds maturing on or after April 15, 2016 are subject to redemption prior to their 
scheduled maturities on April 15, 2015. Proceeds of the Bonds were used to acquire the land and building comprising the 
System’s Westgate campus and 24.27 acres of land adjacent to the building. .  
 
The System and the PFC entered into a Lease with an Option to Purchase effective June 1, 2005, whereby the System 
will lease the facility from the PFC and will make semiannual lease payments to the PFC sufficient to pay principal and 
interest on the PFC Lease Revenue Bonds. Upon repayment of the Bonds on October 15, 2015, the System will be 
granted title to the Westgate campus. 
 
Under terms of a Security Agreement dated June 1, 2005 the PFC has granted a first mortgage lien on and first deed of 
trust title on the Westgate Campus Project (the Westgate Project) to a bank trustee on behalf of the owners of the Bonds. 
The PFC has also granted a first priority security interest in the personal property associated with the Westgate Project. 
 
Limited Tax Bonds: 
 
The System issued $144,155,000 in Limited Tax Bonds, Series 2003 (“Series 2003”) on December 01, 2003 with interest 
rates ranging from 2.0% to 5.0%. The Bonds were issued at a premium of $6,593,497. Bond maturities range from 
February 15, 2006 through February 15, 2028. Bonds maturing on or after February 15, 2014 are subject to redemption 
prior to their scheduled maturities on February 15, 2013.  On September 1, 2005 the System issued $1,825,000 in bonds 
as part of the $8,924,992 in Limited Tax Building and Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 (Series 2005). The Series 2003 
Bonds are direct obligations of the System and are payable from ad valorem taxes levied against all taxable property 
located within the System. The Series 2003 Bonds were used for the construction, maintenance and equipment of school 
buildings in the System and the purchase of necessary sites therefore, and to pay the costs of issuance related to the 
Bonds. The majority of the Series 2003 bonds were defeased in 2012. The final payment on the Bonds was made in 
2014. See Note 9. 
 
The System issued $109,490,000 in Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2011 (“Series 2011 Bonds”) on October 12, 
2011 with interest rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.00%. The Bonds were issued at a premium of $16,767,575. Bond 
maturities range from February 15, 2014 through February 15, 2028. Bonds maturing on or after February 15, 2022 are 
subject to redemption prior to their scheduled maturities on February 15, 2021. The Series 2011 Bonds were used to 
partially refund $112,195,000 of outstanding Limited Tax Bonds, Series 2003 (“Series 2003 Bonds”) with interest rates 
ranging from 5.00% to 5.25%. The optional redemption date of the Series 2003 Bonds was February 14, 2013. 
Additionally, the Series 2011 Bonds were used to totally refund $4,955,000 of outstanding Limited Tax Building and 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 (“Series 2005”) with interest rates of 5.00%. The optional redemption date of the Series 
2005 Bonds was November 14, 2011. 
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NOTE 8 – BONDS PAYABLE – CONTINUED  

 
The System issued $398,775,000 in Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013 (“Series 2013”) on March 19, 
2013 with interest rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.0%. The Bonds were issued at a premium of $55,392,571. Bond 
maturities range from February 15, 2015 through February 15, 2043. Bonds maturing on or after February 15, 2024, 
except those maturing in 2027, 2036 and 2037 are subject to redemption prior to their scheduled maturities on February 
15, 2023.  Bonds maturing on February 15, 2027 are subject to redemption on February 15, 2015. Bonds maturing on 
February 15, 2036 are subject to redemption on February 15, 2020. Bonds maturing on February 15, 2037 are subject to 
redemption on February 15, 2017. The Series 2013 Bonds are direct obligations of the System and are payable from ad 
valorem taxes levied against all taxable property located within the System. The Series 2013 Bonds will be used for the 
construction, maintenance and equipment of school buildings in the System and the purchase of necessary sites therefore, 
and to pay the costs of issuance related to the Bonds.  

 
 

Date Series 
Issued Par Value Maturity Date Interest Rate

Outstanding 
Balances at  

August 31, 2015

Outstanding 
Balances at  

August 31, 2014

2005 $51,285,000 04/15/2009 - 2020 3.250% - 5.250% -$                         5,230,000$              
2006 72,815,000 04/15/2007 - 2030 4.000% - 5.000% 18,000,000 53,010,000              
2008 54,540,000 04/15/2009 - 2030 4.000% - 5.250% 43,075,000 44,960,000              
2010 27,250,000 04/15/2012 - 2031 3.000% - 5.250% 23,550,000 24,535,000              
2011 33,940,000 04/15/2012 - 2025 4.000% - 5.250% 23,400,000 26,245,000

2014A 9,210,000 04/15/2015 - 2026 2.000% - 3.250% 8,555,000 9,210,000                
2014B 30,900,000 04/15/2015 - 2026 .0031% - 4.070% 30,270,000 30,900,000              
2015 68,865,000 04/15/2016 - 2031 2.000% - 5.000% 68,865,000 -                               

2005A $11,605,000 04/15/2006 - 2028 3.500% - 5.000% 7,885,000 8,315,000                
2005C 19,155,000 04/15/2007 - 2030 4.000% - 5.000% -                               14,775,000              
2006 36,950,000 04/15/2008 - 2031 4.000% - 5.000% -                               29,460,000              
2007 58,885,000 04/15/2009 - 2031 4.000% - 5.625% 47,170,000 49,070,000              

2011 109,490,000 02/15/14 - 2028 4.000% - 5.000% 97,120,000              102,730,000            
2013 398,775,000 02/15/15 - 2043 3.000% - 5.000% 392,580,000            398,775,000            

.
Total Principal Payable 760,470,000 797,215,000
Unamortized Premium and Discount, Net 80,762,037 77,647,396

Total Bonds Payable 841,232,037$          874,862,396$          

Student Fee Revenue Bonds:

Limited Tax Bonds:

PFC Lease Revenue Bonds (Blended Component Unit):
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NOTE 8 – BONDS PAYABLE – CONTINUED 
 
Debt service requirements to maturities as of August 31, 2015 are summarized as follows: 

 

Year ending August 
31, Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2016 15,640,000$        8,560,997$          24,200,997$        2,455,000$      2,708,425$      5,163,425$      8,880,000$       23,220,119$     32,100,119$     26,975,000$      34,489,541$      61,464,541$      
2017 15,480,000 9,033,665 24,513,665 2,580,000 2,585,675 5,165,675 10,145,000       22,758,244 32,903,244 28,205,000 34,377,584 62,582,584
2018 15,700,000 8,509,721 24,209,721 2,705,000 2,456,675 5,161,675 10,035,000       22,285,394 32,320,394 28,440,000 33,251,790 61,691,790
2019 16,265,000 7,938,899 24,203,899 2,840,000 2,321,425 5,161,425 11,355,000       21,768,544 33,123,544 30,460,000 32,028,868 62,488,868
2020 17,545,000 7,277,243 24,822,243 2,980,000 2,179,425 5,159,425 11,310,000       21,222,819 32,532,819 31,835,000 30,679,487 62,514,487

2021 - 2025 74,830,000 24,255,629 99,085,629 17,265,000 8,548,900 25,813,900 67,265,000       96,551,969 163,816,969 159,360,000 129,356,498 288,716,498
2026 - 2030 56,525,000 8,836,142 65,361,142 20,110,000 4,022,750 24,132,750 75,245,000       79,845,219 155,090,219 151,880,000 92,704,111 244,584,111
2031 - 2035 3,730,000           160,925              3,890,925           4,120,000        206,000          4,326,000        120,785,000     55,758,734 176,543,734 128,635,000 56,125,659 184,760,659
2036 - 2040 -                        -                        -                        -                    -                    -                    110,055,000     27,362,375 137,417,375 110,055,000 27,362,375 137,417,375
2041 - 2043 -                        -                        -                        -                    -                    -                    64,625,000       4,439,875         69,064,875       64,625,000       4,439,875         69,064,875       

$215,715,000 $74,573,222 $290,288,222 $55,055,000 $25,029,275 $80,084,275 $489,700,000 $375,213,291 $864,913,291 $760,470,000 $474,815,787 $1,235,285,787

Debt service requirements to maturities as of August 31, 2014 are summarized as follows:

Year ending August 
31, Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2015 12,545,000$        8,421,828$          20,966,828$        4,240,000$      4,726,279$      8,966,279$      7,740,000$       23,789,519$     31,529,519$     24,525,000$      36,937,626$      61,462,626$      
2016 13,305,000          7,864,978           21,169,978          4,445,000        4,519,204        8,964,204        8,880,000 23,423,369       32,303,369       26,630,000 35,807,550       62,437,550       
2017 13,665,000          7,502,160           21,167,160          4,665,000        4,303,854        8,968,854        10,145,000 22,961,494       33,106,494       28,475,000 34,767,507       63,242,507       
2018 14,100,000          7,070,966           21,170,966          4,875,000        4,090,554        8,965,554        10,035,000 22,488,644       32,523,644       29,010,000 33,650,164       62,660,164       
2019 14,580,000          6,592,094           21,172,094          5,095,000        3,866,629        8,961,629        11,355,000 21,971,794       33,326,794       31,030,000 32,430,517       63,460,517       

2020 - 2024 68,670,000          22,668,039          91,338,039          29,240,000      15,566,740      44,806,740      64,350,000 100,822,694     165,172,694     162,260,000 139,057,473      301,317,473      
2025 - 2029 46,120,000          8,833,546           54,953,546          35,605,000      8,375,288        43,980,288      72,235,000 83,938,719       156,173,719     153,960,000 101,147,552      255,107,552      
2030 - 2034 11,105,000          646,045              11,751,045          13,455,000      969,863          14,424,863      121,335,000     61,448,953       182,783,953     145,895,000      63,064,861       208,959,861      
2035 - 2039 -                        -                        -                        -                    -                    -                    108,115,000     32,648,625       140,763,625     108,115,000      32,648,625       140,763,625      
2040 - 2043 -                        -                        -                        -                    -                    87,315,000       7,846,375         95,161,375       87,315,000       7,846,375         95,161,375       

194,090,000$      69,599,656$        263,689,656$      101,620,000$   46,418,409$    148,038,409$   501,505,000$    401,340,185$    902,845,185$    797,215,000$    517,358,249$    1,314,573,249$ 

Limited Tax Bonds Total Bonds

Limited Tax Bonds Total Bonds

Student Fee Revenue Bonds PFC Lease Revenue Bonds

Student Fee Revenue Bonds PFC Lease Revenue Bonds
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NOTE 9 – DEFEASANCE OF LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
The System issued $30,900,000 in Combined Fee Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2014B and $9,210,000 in 
Combined Fee Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014A (“collectively Series 2014 Bonds”) on April 16, 2014. The Series 
2014 Bonds were used to fully retire the Senior Lien Revenue Bond, Series 2011T (“Series 2011T) of $16,000,000 and to 
partially refund $22,855,000 in Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 2005 (”Series 2005”) with interest rates ranging from 
2.43% to 5.25%. The optional redemption date of the Series 2011T Bonds was November 15, 2013 and the optional 
redemption date of the Series 2005 Bonds is April 15, 2015. 
 
Proceeds of $24,023,760 of the Taxable Series 2014B Bonds were placed in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent and will 
be used to redeem the Series 2005 Bonds on the call date of April 15, 2015.  The liability for these refunded bonds and the 
securities held by the escrow agent have been excluded from the Statement of Net Position.  
 
The advance refunding had the following results: 
• $266,931 in future cash flow deficits resulting from an increase in the aggregate debt service payments over the next 

twelve years. 
• Economic gain of $1,236,449, which is the difference between the present values of the old and new debt service 

payments. 
• Advance funding valuation of $874,770 was created, which is the difference between the reacquisition price of 

$40,030,239 and the carrying amount of the refunded bonds of $40,905,009. The valuation is deferred and amortized as a 
component of interest expense over the term of the defeased Series 2005 Bonds. 

 
The System issued $68,865,000 in Combined Fee Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 on July 22, 2015. The Bonds 
were used to: (1) partially refund $34,695,000 in Junior Lien Student Fee Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2006 with 
interest rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.00% with an optional redemption date of April 15, 2016; (2) refund $14,115,000 in 
Public Facility Corporation Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2005C with interest rates ranging from 3.50% to 5.0% with an 
optional redemption date of October 15, 2015; and (3) refund $28,210,000 in Public Facility Corporation Lease Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2006 with interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.0% with an optional redemption date of April 15, 2016. 
 
Proceeds of $80,089,681 of the Combined Fee Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 were placed in an irrevocable trust 
with an escrow agent and will be used to redeem the Junior Lien Student Fee Revenue and Refunding Bonds Series 2006, the 
PFC Lease Revenue Bonds Series 2005C and the PFC Lease Revenue Bonds Series 2006 on the respective call dates.  The 
liabilities for these refunded bonds and the securities held by the escrow agent have been excluded from the Statement of Net 
Position. 
 
The advance refundings had the following results: 
• $8,622,461 in future cash flow savings resulting from a decrease in the aggregate debt service payments over the next 

sixteen years. 
• Economic gain of $6,462,995, which is the difference between the present values of the old and new debt service 

payments. 
• Advance funding valuation of $1,479,504 was created, which is the difference between the reacquisition price of 

$80,089,681 and the carrying amount of the refunded bonds of $78,610,177. The valuation is deferred and amortized as a 
component of interest expense over the term of the defeased Series 2006 Bonds. 
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NOTE 10 – DEFEASED BONDS OUTSTANDING 
 
The defeased bonds outstanding at August 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows: 

Bond issue Year Refunded August 31, 2015 August 31, 2014

Series 2005 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds 2014 -$                              $22,855,000
Series 2006 Junior Lien Revenue Bonds 2015 34,695,000  - 
PFC Series 2005C Lease Revenue Bonds 2015 14,115,000  - 
PFC Series 2006 Lease Revenue Bonds 2015 28,210,000  - 

$77,020,000 $22,855,000

Par Value Outstanding

 
NOTE 11 – NOTES PAYABLE 
 
The System issued $19,590,000 in Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2011A (“Notes”) on October 12, 2011 with interest rates 
ranging from 3.00% to 5.25%. The Notes were issued at a premium of $2,467,247. Note maturities range from February 15, 
2013 through February 15, 2031. Notes maturing on or after February 15, 2022 are subject to redemption prior to their 
scheduled maturities on February 15, 2021.  The Notes are direct obligations of the System and are payable from ad valorem 
taxes levied against all taxable property located within the System. The Notes will be used for the renovation and equipment 
of existing facilities and replacement of information technology systems, and to pay the costs of issuance related to the Notes.  
 
The System issued $41,560,000 in Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2011 (“Notes”) on March 10, 2011 with interest rates 
ranging from 3.00% to 5.25%. The Notes were issued at a premium of $1,800,441. Note maturities range from February 15, 
2012 through February 15, 2031. Notes maturing on or after February 15, 2022 are subject to redemption prior to their 
scheduled maturities on February 15, 2021.  The Notes are direct obligations of the System and are payable from ad valorem 
taxes levied against all taxable property located within the System. The Notes will be used for the renovation and equipment 
of existing facilities and replacement of information technology systems, and to pay the costs of issuance related to the Notes.  
 
The System issued $47,645,000, in Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2010 (“Notes”) on July 29, 2010 with interest rates ranging 
from 2.00% to 5.00%. The Notes were issued at a premium of $4,925,575. Note maturities range from February 15, 2012 
through February 15, 2029. Notes maturing on or after February 15, 2021 are subject to redemption prior to their scheduled 
maturities on February 15, 2020.  The Notes are direct obligations of the System and are payable from ad valorem taxes levied 
against all taxable property located within the System. The Notes will be used for the renovation and equipment of existing 
facilities, and to pay the costs of issuance related to the Notes.  
 
The System issued $13,830,000, in Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2009 (“Notes”) on September 1, 2009 with interest rates 
ranging from 2.50% to 5.00%. The Notes were issued at a premium of $451,444. Note maturities range from February 15, 
2011 through February 15, 2025. Notes maturing on or after February 15, 2020 are subject to redemption prior to their 
scheduled maturities on February 15, 2019.  The Notes are direct obligations of the System and are payable from ad valorem 
taxes levied against all taxable property located within the System. The Notes will be used to pay for rehabilitation and energy 
conservation renovations to existing facilities, and to pay the costs of issuance related to the Notes. 
 
The System issued $54,975,000 in Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2008 (“Notes”) on March 1, 2008 with interest rates 
ranging from 3.00% to 5.00%. The Notes were issued at a premium of $1,937,320. Note maturities range from February 15, 
2009 through February 15, 2028. Notes maturing on or after February 15, 2019 are subject to redemption prior to their 
scheduled maturities on February 15, 2018.  The Notes are direct obligations of the System and are payable from ad valorem 
taxes levied against all taxable property located within the System. The Notes will be used for the renovation and equipment 
of existing facilities, and to pay the costs of issuance related to the Notes.  
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NOTE 11 – NOTES PAYABLE -CONTINUED 
 
 
The System issued $12,000,000 in Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2006 (“Notes”) on February 1, 2006 with interest rates 
ranging from 3.00% to 4.50%. The Notes were issued at a discount of $88,756. Note maturities range from February 15, 2007 
through February 15, 2026. Notes maturing on or after February 15, 2007 are subject to redemption prior to their scheduled 
maturities on February 15, 2016.  The Notes are direct obligations of the System and are payable from ad valorem taxes levied 
against all taxable property located within the System. The Notes were used for the construction of a central utility plant on the 
Central campus, and to pay the costs of issuance related to the Notes.  
 
 
The System entered into an agreement on January 30, 2015 for $2,019,896 with Key Government Finance, Inc. to finance the 
purchase of software maintenance contracts. The note is payable in annual installments of $673,299 over three years and is 
non-interest bearing.  
 
Maturities of notes payable at August 31, 2015 were as follows: 
 

Year ending August 31
 Central Utility 

Plant 
 Capital 

Improvements  Total 

2016  $              891,250  $           14,938,281  $            15,829,531 
2017                  888,050               14,931,256                15,819,306 
2018                  888,566               14,277,426                15,165,992 
2019                  887,681               14,259,095                15,146,776 
2020                  890,244               14,246,045                15,136,289 

2021 - 2025               4,441,359               71,213,695                75,655,054 
2026 - 2030                  889,575               52,623,963                53,513,538 

2031                             -                 4,876,350                  4,876,350 

Total Payments               9,776,725             201,366,112              211,142,837 
Less Amounts Representing Interest             (1,982,812)             (47,032,041)               (49,014,852)

Total Notes Payable 7,793,913$           154,334,071$         162,127,985$           
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Maturities of notes payable at August 31, 2014 were as follows: 

Year ending August 31
  Central Utility 

Plant  
  Capital 

Improvements    Total  

2015 888,550$              14,272,383$           15,160,933$             
2016                  891,250               14,264,983                15,156,233 
2017                  888,050               14,257,958                15,146,008 
2018                  888,566               14,277,426                15,165,992 
2019                  887,681               14,259,095                15,146,776 

2020 - 2024               4,443,778               71,223,868                75,667,646 
2025 - 2029               1,777,400               61,981,778                63,759,178 
2030 - 2031                             -                 9,754,406                  9,754,406 

Total Payments             10,665,275             214,291,896              224,957,172 
Less Amounts Representing Interest             (2,406,680)             (53,623,754)               (56,030,434)

Total Notes Payable $8,258,595 $160,668,142 $168,926,738

 
 
 
NOTE 12 – OPERATING LEASES 
 
The System leases certain educational facilities, offices and other equipment. Future minimum rental payments under non-
cancelable operating leases having remaining terms in excess of one year as of August 31, 2015 for each of the next five years 
and thereafter, and in the aggregate are as follows: 
 

Year ending August 31 Amount
2016 $1,086,170
2017 291,375
2018 283,563
2019 204,647
Total $1,865,755

 
Rent expense totaled approximately $1.3 million for the years ended August 31, 2015 and 2014. 
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NOTE 13 – LEASED FACILITIES 
 
The System leases office space to other entities under operating leases. Minimum lease payments due to the System under 
these operating leases as of August 31, 2015 are as follows: 
 

Year Ending August 31, Amount
2016 5,995,267$                   
2017 4,653,239                     
2018 1,720,606                     
2019 329,566                        
2020 254,204                        

Thereafter 234,720                        
Total 13,187,602$                 

 
 
The System received approximately $5.0 million in rental income for the years ended August 31, 2015 and 2014.     
 
 
NOTE 14 - RETIREMENT PLANS 
 
The State of Texas has joint contributory retirement plans for almost all its employees.  One of the primary plans in which the 
system participates is administered by the Teacher Retirement System of Texas.   
 
Teacher Retirement System of Texas 
 
Plan Description.  The System contributes to the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS), a cost-sharing multiple 
employer defined benefit pension plan that has a special funding Situation.  TRS administers retirement and disability 
annuities, and death and survivor benefits to employees and beneficiaries of employees of the public school systems of Texas.  
It operates primarily under the provisions of the Texas Constitution, Article XVI, Sec. 67, and Texas Government Code, Title 
8, Subtitle C.  The pension trust fund is a qualified pension trust under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.  The 
Texas Legislature establishes benefits and contribution rates within the guidelines of the Texas Constitution.  The pension’s 
Board of Trustees does not have the authority to establish or amend benefit terms. 
 
The State Constitution Article 16 provides that the State of Texas “must” make a contribution for individuals participating in 
the Texas Retirement System or Optional Retirement Program and action has been taken by the State to enforce their position, 
requiring community colleges to implement GASB 68 effective FY2015.  HCC will recognize its proportionate share of the 
collective net pension liability, pension expense and deferred inflows and outflows of the cost sharing plan as of the 
measurable date and amount determined by the State of Texas. 
 
All employees of public, state-supported educational institutions in Texas who are employed for one-half or more of the 
standard work load and who are not exempted from membership under Texas Government Code, Title 8, Section 822.002 are 
covered by the system. 

 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the Teacher Retirement System’s fiduciary net position is 
available in a separately-issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information. That report may be obtained on the Internet at 
http://www.trs.state.tx.us/about/documents/cafr.pdf#CAFR; by writing to TRS at 1000 Red River Street, Austin, TX, 78701-
2698; or by calling (512) 542-6592. 
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Benefits Provided. TRS provides service and disability retirement, as well as death and survivor benefits, to eligible employees 
(and their beneficiaries) of public and higher education in Texas. The pension formula is calculated using 2.3 percent 
(multiplier) times the average of the five highest annual creditable salaries times years of credited service to arrive at the 
annual standard annuity except for members who are grandfathered, the three highest annual salaries are used.  The normal 
service retirement is at age 65 with 5 years of credited service or when the sum of the member’s age and years of credited 
service equals 80 or more years. Early retirement is at age 55 with 5 years of service credit or earlier than 55 with 30 years of 
service credit.  There are additional provisions for early retirement if the sum of the member’s age and years of service credit 
total at least 80, but the member is less than age 60 or 62 depending on date of employment, or if the member was 
grandfathered in under a previous rule.  There are no automatic post-employment benefit changes; including automatic 
COLAs.  Ad hoc post-employment benefit changes, including ad hoc COLAs can be granted by the Texas Legislature as noted 
in the Plan description. 
 
Funding Policy.  Contribution requirements are not actuarially determined but are established and amended by Article 16, 
section 67 of the Texas Constitution.  The state funding policy is as follows:  (1) the state constitution requires the legislature 
to establish a member contribution rate of not less than 6% of the member’s annual compensation and a state contribution rate 
of not less than 6% and not more than 10% of the aggregate annual compensation paid to members of the systems during the 
fiscal year.  (2) Texas Government Code section 821.006 prohibits benefits improvements or contribution reductions if, as 
result of a particular action, the time required to amortize TRS’ unfunded actuarial liabilities would be increased to a period 
that exceeds 31 years, or, if that amortization period already exceeds 31 years, the period would be increased by such action.  
 
 
Employee contribution rates are set in state statute, Texas Government Code 825.402.  Senate Bill 1458 of the 83rd Texas 
Legislature amended Texas Government Code 825.402 for member contributions and established employee contribution rates 
for fiscal years 2014 thru 2017.  The 83rd Texas Legislature, General Appropriations Act (GAA) established the employer 
contribution rates for fiscal years 2014 and 2015.  

 
Contribution Rates 

         2014  2015 
  Member      6.4%  6.7% 
  Non-Employer Contributing Entity (State)  6.8%  6.8% 
  Employers      6.8%  6.8% 
 
  Employer # 0994 - 2014 Employer Contributions   $6,399,881 
  Employer # 0994 - 2014 Member Contributions   $5,951,580 
  Employer # 0994 - 2014 NECE On-behalf Contributions    $ 959,404 

 
As the non-employer contributing entity for public education and junior colleges, the State of Texas contributes to the 
retirement system an amount equal to the current employer contribution rate times the aggregate annual compensation of all 
participating members of the pension trust fund during that fiscal year reduced by the amounts described below which are paid 
by the employers.   Employers (public school, junior college, other entities or the State of Texas as the employer for senior 
universities and medical schools) are required to pay the employer contribution rate in the following instances: 
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• On the portion of the member's salary that exceeds the statutory minimum for members entitled to the statutory 

minimum under Section 21.402 of the Texas Education Code. 
• During a new member’s first 90 days of employment. 
• When any part or all of an employee’s salary is paid by federal funding sources, a privately sponsored source, from 

non-educational and general, or local funds. 
• When the employing district is a public junior college or junior college district, the employer shall contribute to the 

retirement system an amount equal to 50% of the state contribution rate for certain instructional or administrative 
employees; and 100% of the state contribution rate for all other employees. 

 
In addition to the employer contributions listed above, when employing a retiree of the Teacher Retirement System the 
employer shall pay both the member contribution and the state contribution as an employment after retirement surcharge.   
 
  
Actuarial Assumptions  
The total pension liability in the August 31, 2014 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions: 
 

Valuation Date  August 31, 2014 
Actuarial Cost Method    Individual Entry Age Normal 
Amortization Method   Level Percentage of Payroll, Open 
Remaining Amortization Period   30 years 
Asset Valuation Method   5 year Market Value 
Discount Rate 8.00%  
Long-term expected Investment Rate of Return*               8.00% 
Salary Increases*  4.25% to 7.25% 
Weighted-Average at Valuation Date   5.55% 
Payroll Growth Rate 3.50% 

*Includes Inflation of 3% 
 
 
The actuarial methods and assumptions are primarily based on a study of actual experience for the four year period ending 
August 31, 2010 and adopted on April 8, 2011.  With the exception of the post-retirement mortality rates for healthy lives and 
a minor change to the expected retirement age for inactive vested members stemming from the actuarial audit performed in the 
Summer of 2014, the assumptions and methods are the same as used in the prior valuation.  When the mortality assumptions 
were adopted in 2011 they contained a significant margin for possible future mortality improvement.  As of the date of the 
valuation there has been a significant erosion of this margin to the point that the margin has been eliminated.  Therefore, the 
post-retirement mortality rate for current and future retirees was decreased to add additional margin for future improvement in 
mortality in accordance with the Actuarial Standards of Practice No. 35. 
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Discount Rate  
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8.0%.  There was no change in the discount rate since the 
previous year.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan 
members and those of the contributing employers and the non-employer contributing entity are made at the statutorily required 
rates.  Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all future 
benefit payments of current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.  The long-term rate of return on 
pension plan investments is 8%.  The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimates ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension 
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  These ranges are combined to produce the 
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage 
and by adding expected inflation.  Best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class included in the 
Systems target asset allocation as of August 31, 2014 are summarized below: 
 

Target Allocation

Long-Term 
Expected 

Geometric Real 
Rate of Return

Expected 
Contribution to 

Long-Term 
Portolio 
Returns*

Asset Class
Global Equity
  US 18% 7.0% 1.4%
  Non-U.S. Developed 13% 7.3% 1.1%
  Emerging Markets 9% 8.1% 0.9%
  Directional Hedge Funds 4% 5.4% 0.2%
  Private Equity 13% 9.2% 1.4%
Stable Value
  U.S. Treasuries 11% 2.9% 0.3%
  Absolute Return 0% 4.0% 0.0%
  Stable Value Hedge Funds 4% 5.2% 0.2%
  Cash 1% 2.0% 0.0%
Real Return
  Gobal Inflation Linked Bonds 3% 3.1% 0.0%
  Real Assets 16% 7.3% 1.5%
  Energy and Natural Resources 3% 8.8% 0.3%
  Commodities 0% 3.4% 0.0%
Risk Parity
  Risk Parity 5% 8.9% 0.4%
  Alpha 1.0%
Total 100% 8.7%

  *The Expected Contribution to Returns incorporates the volatility drag resulting from the   conversion between 
Arithmetic and Geometric means returns.
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Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis 

The following schedule shows the impact of the Net Pension Liability if the discount rate used was 1% less than and 1% 
greater than the discount rate that was used (8%) in measuring the 2014 Net Pension Liability. 

1% Decrease in Discount 
Rate (7.0%) Discount Rate (8.0%) 1% Increase in Discount 

Rate (9.0%)

Houston Community College 
System proportionate share of 
the  net pension liability:

$120,490,413 $67,428,372 $27,747,848 

 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related 
to Pensions 
 
At August 31, 2015, the Houston Community College System reported a liability of $67,428,372 for its proportionate share of 
the TRS’s net pension liability.  This liability reflects a reduction for State pension support provided to the Houston 
Community College System.  The amount recognized by the Houston Community College System as its proportionate share of 
the net pension liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the 
Houston Community College System were as follows: 
 
Houston Community College System Proportionate share of the collective net pension 
liability  67,428,372$         

State’s proportionate share that is associated with Houston Community College System 959,404                

Total 68,387,776$         

 
The net pension liability was measured as of August 31, 2014 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension 
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.  The employer’s proportion of the net pension liability was 
based on the employer’s contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all employers to the plan for the 
period September 1, 2013 thru August 31, 2014. 
 
At measurement date of August 31, 2014, the employer’s proportion of the collective net pension liability was 0.002524331% 
which was an increase (decrease) of 0.00% from its proportion measured as of August 31, 2013.  The change in proportion 
was immaterial and therefore disregarded this year. 
 
There were no changes of assumptions or other inputs that affected measurement of the total pension liability during the 
measurement period. 
 
There were no changes of benefit terms that affected measurement of the total pension liability during the measurement 
period. 
 
There was a change in employer contribution requirements that occurred after the measurement date of the net pension 
liability and the employer’s reporting date.  A 1.5% contribution for employers not paying Old Age Survivor and Disability 
Insurance (OASDI) on certain employees went into law effective 09/01/2014. The amount of the expected resultant change in 
the employer’s proportion cannot be determined at this time. 
 
For the year ended August 31, 2015, the Houston Community College System recognized pension expense of $6,232,562 and 
revenue of $1,866,313 for support provided by the State. 
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At August 31, 2015, the Houston Community College System reported its proportionate share of the TRS’s deferred outflows 
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources

Differences between expected and actual economic experience  $            1,042,802  $                        -   

Changes in actuarial assumptions                4,382,919                            -   

Difference between projected and actual investment earnings                             -               20,608,864 

Changes in proportion and difference between the employer’s 
contributions and the proportionate share of contributions

                            -                      17,675 

Contributions paid to TRS subsequent to the measurement date                             -                              -   

Contributions Made After Measurement Date of 8/31/2014 
Through Current Year

               5,873,294                            -   

      Total  $          11,299,015  $         20,626,539  
 
The net amounts of the employer’s balances of deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year ended August 31: Pension Expense 
Amount

2016  $              4,239,880 
2017  $              4,239,880 
2018  $              4,239,880 
2019  $                 912,336 
Thereafter  $                 846,366 

 
Optional Retirement Plan 
 
Plan Description.  The state has also established an optional retirement programs for institutions of higher education.  
Participation in the Optional Retirement Program is in lieu of participation in the Teacher Retirement System.  The optional 
retirement program provides for the purchase of annuity contracts and operates under the provisions of the Texas Constitution, 
Article XVI, Sec. 67, and Texas Government Code, Title 8, Subtitle C. 
 
Funding Policy.  Contribution requirements are not actuarially determined but are established and amended by the Texas state 
legislature.  The percentages of participant salaries currently contributed by the state and each participant are 6.6% and 6.65%, 
respectively. As part of the College cost saving initiatives for fiscal year 2012, the College no longer provides subsidies for 
employees who participate in ORP.  Benefits fully vest after one year plus one day of employment.  Because these are 
individual annuity contracts, the state has no additional or unfunded liability for this program.   
 
Retirement Expense  

The retirement expense to the State for the System was $3,366,313, $3,236,549, and $4,407,127 for the fiscal years ended 
August 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 respectively.  This amount represents the portion of expended appropriations made by the 
State Legislature on behalf of the System 
 

The total payroll for all System employees was $183,861,448 and $174,038,989 for fiscal years 2015 and 2014, respectively. 
The total payroll of employees covered by the Teacher Retirement System was $111,189,787 and  
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$108,523,260 and the total payroll of employees covered by the Optional Retirement Program was $39,313,810 and 
$40,787,284 for fiscal years 2015 and 2014, respectively. 
 
 
NOTE 15 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PROGRAM 
 
The System’s employees may elect to defer a portion of their earnings for income tax and investment purposes pursuant to 
authority granted in Government Code 609.001. Both a 403(b) plan and a 457 plan are available.  The plan is funded by 
employee contributions such that the employer is not liable for the diminution in value or loss of all or part of the participating 
employees’ deferred amounts or investment income due to market conditions or the failure, insolvency or bankruptcy of a 
qualified vendor. The total number of employees participating in the program at August 31, 2015 and 2014 were 603 and 644, 
respectively. 

 
During fiscal years ended August 31, 2015 and August 31, 2014, employee contributions amounting to $3,997,037 and 
$4,030,815 were invested in the plan, respectively. 
 
 
NOTE 16 – COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 
Full-time employees earn personal leave at the rate of 12 hours for every month of service in the System up to a maximum of 
680 hours.  Each pay period 4 sick leave hours and 2 catastrophic leave hours will be accrued.  Leave hours are not available 
for use until accrued.  After the 680 hour maximum is reached, the full-time employee will accrue catastrophic leave of 12 
hours per month up to a maximum of 1,000 hours.  Earned personal or catastrophic leave unused by employees is not under 
any circumstances compensated by the System. Earned personal or catastrophic days may be used by employees for sick 
leave. 

 
Employees earn up to 160 vacation hours depending on the number of years employed with the System.  Up to 80 earned 
vacation hours may be carried forward by employees from one fiscal year to another, but must be utilized before the end of 
February of the following year or be lost.  An employee is compensated for any earned but unused vacation hours upon 
termination of employment with the System. Accrued compensable absences of $2,526,083 and $2,357,551 for earned but 
unused vacation hours in accordance with the vacation earning and carry-forward policy of the System has been included in 
the financial statements for the years ended August 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 
 
 
NOTE 17 – FUNDS HELD IN TRUST BY OTHERS 
 
The balances of funds held in trust by others on behalf of the Public Facility Corporation are reflected in the financial 
statements as restricted long-term investments. At August 31, 2015 and 2014, there were ten funds for the benefit of the Public 
Facility Corporation. These trust assets represent bond proceeds to be utilized for construction purposes. The assets of these 
funds are reported by the trustee at values totaling $1,549,733 and $1,554,088 at August 31, 2015 and August 31, 2014, 
respectively.  
 
 
NOTE 18 – COMMITMENTS 

 
The System has entered into contracts for the planning and construction of new facilities, as well as the renovation and repair 
of existing campuses. Commitments remaining under such contracts were $69,651,394 at August 31, 2015. The System has 
also entered into contracts for technology capital projects, with commitments of $991,269 remaining at August 31, 2015. 
Proceeds from the sales of various bonds and notes will fund the purchase and construction of new facilities and the 
technology projects. 
 
 



 

62 
 

HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 
NOTE 18 – COMMITMENTS - CONTINUED 
 
Community College of Qatar 
 
In May 2010, the System entered into a five-year service agreement with The Community College of Qatar (CCQ) to develop 
the community college model to meet the educational needs of Qatar. The agreement for the five-year period ended August 
31, 2015. 
 
NOTE 19 – CONTINGENCIES 
 
From time to time, the System is a defendant in legal proceedings related to its operations as a college.  In the best judgment of 
the System’s management, after consultation with its legal counsel, the outcome of any present legal proceedings will not have 
a materially adverse effect on the accompanying financial statements. 
 
The System has received Federal, State, and other financial assistance in the form of contracts and grants that are subject to 
review and audit by the grantor agencies.  Such audits could result in requests for reimbursement by the grantor agency for 
expenditures disallowed under terms and conditions specified in the contract and grant agreements.  In the opinion of the 
System’s management, such disallowances, if any, would not be significant in relation to the financial statements of the 
System. 
 
The Texas Association of Community College (TACC) has been advised by counsel that “Texas Constitution article 16, 
section 67(b)(3) provides that the State of Texas must contribute “not less than six percent nor more than ten percent of the 
aggregate compensation paid to individuals participating in the system,” referring to the State’s Teacher Retirement System 
(TRS) including the related faculty Optional Retirement Program (ORP).  
 
 
NOTE 20 – POST RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS 
 
In addition to providing pension benefits, the State provides certain health care and life insurance benefits for both active and 
retired employees.  Almost all of the employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age 
while working for the State.  These and similar benefits for active employees are provided through a self-funded State plan 
which is administered by an insurance company. The premiums are based on benefits paid during the previous year. The 
State's contribution per full-time employee ranged from $537.66 and $1,051.68 per month for the year ended August 31, 2015 
($503.14 and $984.12 per month for the year ended August 31, 2014) and totaled $8,109,445.33 for the year ended August 31, 
2015 ($20,012,887 for the year ended August 31, 2014). The cost of premiums for 582 retirees was $3,749,647.20 in the year 
ended August 31, 2015 (retiree benefits for 528 retirees cost $3,300,335 in the year ended August 31, 2014). For 2,318 active 
employees, the cost of premiums was $17,638,465.86 for the year ended August 31, 2015 (active employee benefits for 2,242 
employees cost $16,712,552 for the year ended August 31, 2014). On-behalf payments of these benefits were recognized as 
restricted revenues and restricted expenses during the year.  
 
 
NOTE 21 – POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS   
 
The System contributes to the State Retiree Health Plan (SRHP), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit 
postemployment healthcare plan administered by the Employees Retirement System of Texas (ERS). SRHP provides medical 
benefits to retired employees of participating universities, community colleges and state agencies in accordance with Chapter 
1551, Texas Insurance Code. Benefit and contribution provisions of the SRHP are authorized by State law and may be 
amended by the Texas Legislature. 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 
NOTE 21 – POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - CONTINUED  
 
ERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for 
SRHP. That report may be obtained from ERS via their website at http://www.ers.state.tx.us/. 
 
Section 1551.055 of Chapter 1551, Texas Insurance Code provides that contribution requirements of the plan members and the 
participating employers are established and may be amended by the ERS board of trustees.  Plan members or beneficiaries 
receiving benefits pay any premium over and above the employer contribution.  
 
The employer’s share of the cost of retiree healthcare coverage for the current year is known as the implicit rate subsidy. It is 
the difference between the claims costs for the retirees and the amounts contributed by the retirees. The ERS board of trustees 
sets the employer contribution rate based on the implicit rate subsidy which is actuarially determined in accordance with the 
parameters of GASB statement 45. 
 
The employer contribution rate represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal 
costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of the plan over a period not to exceed 
thirty years. 
 
The college’s contributions to SRHP for the years ended August 31, 2015 and 2014 were $3,749,627 and $3,298,891 
respectively, which equaled the required contributions each year. 
  

http://www.ers.state.tx.us/
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NOTE 22 – PROPERTY TAX 
 
The System's property tax is levied each October 1 on the basis of assessed values listed as of the prior January 1 for all real 
and business personal property located in System. 
 
At August 31: 2015 2014

Assessed valuation of the System 198,955,482,183$ 180,734,029,067$ 
Less: Exemptions (36,077,649,997) (34,213,942,090)

Net Assessed Valuation of the System 162,877,832,186$ 146,520,086,977$ 

 
Taxes levied for the years ended August 31, 2015 and 2014, based on the certified rolls, as reported by the taxing authorities 
amounted to $174,100,115 and $142,377,964, respectively, which does not include any penalty and interest assessed, if 
applicable. 
 
Taxes are due by January 31 of the year following the levy and are delinquent if not paid before February 1 of that year. 
 
The authorized and assessed tax rate for the System was as follows: 
 

     August 31, 2015                 August 31, 2014
Current Debt Current Debt

Operations Service Total Operations Service Total

Authorized rate per $100 valuation 0.50$             0.50$                  1.00$              0.50$               0.50$               1.00$               

Assessed rate per $100 valuation 0.077055$     0.029835$          0.106890$      0.077055$       0.201180$       0.097173$       

 
 
Tax collections for the year ended August 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows:   
 

2015 2014
Current Taxes Collected 173,168,964$        141,871,329$        
Delinquent Taxes Collected 1,989,360 1,863,095
Penalties and Interest Collected 1,481,775 1,370,704

Total 176,640,099$        145,105,128$        
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NOTE 22 – PROPERTY TAX – CONTINUED 
 
For the years ended August 31, 2015 and 2014 tax collections represent 99.47% and 99.64% of the tax levy, respectively. 
Taxes assessed are recorded in the System’s financial statements net of the related allowance for uncollectable taxes, based 
upon the System’ expected collection experience. The use of tax proceeds is restricted to either maintenance and operations or 
interest and sinking expenditures. 
 
The Harris County and Fort Bend County Appraisal Districts are responsible for the recording and appraisal of property for all 
taxing units in their respective counties.  The Appraisal Districts are required by State law to assess property at 100% of its 
appraised value. Further, real property must be reappraised at least every four years. Under certain circumstances, taxpayers 
and taxing units, including the System, may challenge orders of the appraisal review boards through various appeals and, if 
necessary, institute legal action. 
 
The System has entered into agreements with the county tax assessors to bill and collect the System’s property taxes, net of a 
collection fee. 
 
 
NOTE 23 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The Houston Community College Foundation (the “Foundation”) is a nonprofit organization with the sole purpose of 
supporting the educational and other activities of the System. The Foundation solicits donations and acts as coordinator of 
gifts made to the System. The Foundation remitted $506,709 and $908,590 to the System for scholarship awards during the 
years ended August 31, 2015 and August 31, 2014, respectively. The Foundation remitted $979,366 and $1,006,555 to the 
System to fund grant programs during the years ended August 31, 2015 and August 31, 2014, respectively. 
 
During the years ended August 31, 2015 and August 31, 2014, the System provided staff assistance to the Foundation at no 
cost.  The System’s management estimates the value of the services provided to the Foundation in fiscal years August 31, 
2015 and August 31, 2014 to be approximately $904,652 and $968,778, respectively. As of August 31, 2015 and August 31, 
2014, the amount due to the System from the Foundation was zero.   In January 2011, the Foundation signed a lease with the 
System for rental of office space at $1,200 per month. The Foundation paid the System $14,400 in rent during the years ended 
August 31, 2015 and August 31, 2014. 
 
 
NOTE 24 –SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
On July 22, 2015 the System defeased the PFC Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2005C with an outstanding balance of 
$14,115,000. The System exercised its Option to Purchase on October 15, 2015 the Public Safety Institute facilities and is in 
process of transferring the title from the PFC to the System. 
 
On October 15, 2015 the System retired the PFC Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2005A with an outstanding balance of 
$7,885,000. The System exercised its Option to Purchase the Westgate facilities and is in process of transferring the title from 
the PFC to the System. 
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 REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (RELATED TO PENSIONS) 
 
 
RSI.1 Introduction 
 
The TRS pension plan is considered to be a cost-sharing plan with a special funding situation.  As such, GASB 
68 paragraph 81.a.2 requires that community colleges present two Required Supplementary Information (RSI) 
schedules related to pensions.  The RSI schedules are intended to present information for ten years, but can be 
completed prospectively as information becomes available. 
 
RSI.2 Schedule of Employer’s Share of Net Pension Liability 
 
Employers participating in a cost-sharing plan with a special funding situation must present a 10-year schedule 
including the following information, determined as of the measurement date of the collective net pension 
liability: 

  
Schedule of Houston Community College System Share of Net Pension Liability 

For the Year Ended August 31, 2015 
Fiscal year ending August 31 2015
Total TRS pension liability 159,496,075,886$   
TRS net position (132,779,243,085)
TRS pension liability 26,716,832,801$     

TRS net position as percentage of total pension liability 83.25%

Houston Community College System proportionate share of collective net pension liability (%) 0.002524331%

Houston Community College System proportionate share of collective net pension liability ($) 67,428,372              

10,129,723              
     Total 77,558,095              

Houston Community College covered payroll amount 111,062,958            
Ratio of : ER proportionate share of  collective NPL/ER's covered payroll amounts 60.7%

*The amounts presented above are as of the measurement date of the collective net pension liability.

Portion of NECE's total proportionate share of NPL associated with Houston Community College System

**Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years.  Additional years will be displayed as they become available.  

 
RSI.3 Schedule of Houston Community College System Contributions 
 
Houston Community College System contributions to TRS are statutorily or contractually established.  
Employers participating in a cost-sharing plan with a special funding situation with statutorily or contractually 
established contribution requirements must present a 10-year schedule including the following information, 
determined as of the employer’s most recent fiscal year-end: 
 

a) The statutorily or contractually required employer contribution.  For purposes of this schedule, 
statutorily or contractually required contributions should exclude amounts, if any, to separately finance 
specific liabilities of the individual employer to the pension plan.  
 

b) The amount of contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation to the statutorily or 
contractually required employer contribution.  For purposes of this schedule, contributions should 
include only amounts recognized as additions to the pension plan’s fiduciary net position during the 
employer’s fiscal year resulting from actual contributions and from contributions recognized by the 
pension plan as current receivables.   
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c) The difference between the statutorily or contractually required employer contribution and the amount 

of contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation to the statutorily or contractually required 
employer contribution.  

 
d) The employer’s covered payroll.   

 
e) The amount of contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation to the statutorily or 

contractually required employer contribution as a percentage of the employer’s covered-employee 
payroll.   

 
RSI.3.1 Schedule of Houston Community College Contributions 
 
 

Schedule of Houston Community College District Contributions 
For the Year Ended August 31, 2015 

 
 

Fiscal Year Ending August 31st 2015
Legally Required Contributions: 7,441,218$          
Actual Contributions: 7,441,218            
Contribution deficiency (excess) -                       

Houston Community College System covered employee payroll amount 111,062,958$      
Ratio of Actual contributions/RE covered payroll amount 6.7%

* The amounts presented above are as of Houston Community College System most recent fiscal year-end

**Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years.  Additional years will be displayed as they 
become available.  

 
 

RIS.4 Notes to RSI Schedules 
 
Changes of Benefits Terms include: 
 
Information about factors that significantly affect trends in the amounts reported in the RSI schedules should be 
presented (for example, COLA increase) 
 
Changes of Assumptions: 
 
There were no changes of assumptions for the year ended August 31, 2015 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING REVENUES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2015 
With Memorandum Totals for the Year Ended AUGUST 31, 2014 

Schedule A 
 

  
  

 
 

See Independent Auditor’s Report 

    Total Restated
 Educational   Auxiliary August 31, 2015 August 31, 2014

 Unrestricted  Restricted  Activities  Enterprises     Total     Total
Tuition:

State Funded Courses:
In-District Resident Tuition 21,410,311$     -$                  21,410,311$   -$                  21,410,311$     20,885,668$    
Out-of-District Resident Tuition 7,961,485         -                    7,961,485       -                    7,961,485         7,848,313        

             TPEG (Credit) 1,730,840         -                    1,730,840       -                    1,730,840         2,385,439        
State Funded Continuing Education: 7,562,618         -                    7,562,618       -                    7,562,618         6,766,013        
TPEG (Non-Credit) 399,839            -                    399,839          -                    399,839            384,339           
Non-Resident Tuition 15,483,171       15,483,171     -                    15,483,171       14,652,333      
Non-State Funded Continuing Education 2,838,943         -                    2,838,943       -                    2,838,943         1,361,046        

Total Tuition 57,387,207       -                    57,387,207     -                    57,387,207       54,283,151      
Fees: -                       

Installment Plan Fees 997,845            -                    997,845          -                    997,845            991,859           
Non-Instructional Contract Training Fees 453,718            -                    453,718          -                    453,718            220,800           
General Fees 34,915,096       -                    34,915,096     -                    34,915,096       34,428,754      
Laboratory Fees 4,531,903         -                    4,531,903       -                    4,531,903         4,422,208        
Other Fees 11,252,840       -                    11,252,840     -                    11,252,840       11,176,420      
Out-of-District Fees 16,273,156       -                    16,273,156     -                    16,273,156       16,029,993      
Student Service Fees 2,270,185         311,981         2,582,166       2,032,934     4,615,100         4,097,206        

Total Fees 70,694,743       311,981         71,006,724     2,032,934     73,039,658       71,367,240      
Scholarship Allowances and Discounts:

Remissions and Exemptions-State (6,638,393)       -                    (6,638,393)      -                    (6,638,393)       (6,995,065)       
Remissions and Exemptions-Local (1,953,474)       -                    (1,953,474)      -                    (1,953,474)       (2,061,952)       
T itle IV Federal Grants (37,517,706)     -                    (37,517,706)    -                    (37,517,706)     (38,887,877)     
Other Federal Grants (2,741,222)       -                    (2,741,222)      -                    (2,741,222)       (2,527,554)       
TPEG Awards (1,505,558)       -                    (1,505,558)      -                    (1,505,558)       (1,506,869)       
Other State Grants (3,871,174)       -                    (3,871,174)      -                    (3,871,174)       (1,783,368)       
Other Local Grants (1,120,108)       -                    (1,120,108)      -                    (1,120,108)       (1,198,671)       

-                    
Total Scholarship Allowances (55,347,635)     (55,347,635)    -                    (55,347,635)     (54,961,356)     
Total Net Tuition and Fees 72,734,315       311,981         73,046,296     2,032,934     75,079,230       70,689,034      

Other Operating Revenues:
Federal Grants and Contracts -                       13,782,110    13,782,110     -                    13,782,110       14,019,776      
State Grants and Contracts -                       8,772,358      8,772,358       -                    8,772,358         5,543,642        
Local Grants And Contracts -                       162,920         162,920          -                    162,920            116,899           
Non-Governmental Grants And Contracts -                       2,446,357      2,446,357       -                    2,446,357         2,441,076        
Sales And Services 176,257            -                    176,257          965               177,222            189,043           

Total Other Operating Revenues 176,257            25,163,744    25,340,001     965               25,340,967       22,310,436      
Auxiliary Enterprises:

Bookstore -                       -                    -                      2,623,595     2,623,595         2,884,880        
Long-Term Parking -                       -                    -                      516,962        516,962            543,753           
Qatar -                       -                    -                      4,120,662     4,120,662         6,779,102        
Rental Of Facilit ies -                       -                    -                      5,646,222     5,646,222         5,502,779        
Restaurant -                       -                    -                      508,050        508,050            517,458           
Vending And Other Commissions -                       -                    -                      129,500        129,500            192,087           

Total Auxiliary Enterprises -                       -                    -                      13,544,991   13,544,991       16,420,060      
Total Operating Revenues 72,910,572$     25,475,725$  98,386,297$   15,578,890$ 113,965,188$   109,419,530$  

 *In accordance with Education Code 56.033, $2,130,679  and $2,223,442 of tuition for fiscal years ended August 31,2015 and 2014, respectively were set 
aside for Texas Public Education Grants (TPEG).



 

71 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2015 
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 Schedule B 
 

                   Benefits
              State Local 
Unrestricted Educational Activities                             

Instruction 93,741,512$           -$                           11,890,075$       3,925,102$              109,556,689$         104,054,989$        
Public Service 705,894                  -                             89,348                755,844                   1,551,086               1,382,418              
Academic Support 19,837,098             -                             2,224,595           6,359,347                28,421,040             23,497,772            
Student Services 20,870,110             -                             2,609,031           2,811,237                26,290,378             25,170,810            
Institutional Support 33,737,250             -                             5,077,168           21,532,988              60,347,406             60,004,032            
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 2,106,513               -                             267,093              26,446,422              28,820,028             35,885,631            

Total Unrestricted Educational Activities 170,998,377           22,157,310         61,830,940              254,986,627           249,995,652          
Restricted Educational Activities                             

Instruction 791,316                  7,297,957              81,932                655,237                   8,826,442               8,573,417              
Public Service 3,994,063               -                             547,429              4,202,831                8,744,323               9,245,686              
Academic Support 752,690                  1,544,356              116,740              946,899                   3,360,685               3,201,429              
Student Services 3,154,443               1,624,778              39,861                338,957                   5,158,039               4,073,794              
Institutional Support -                             2,626,510              -                          107,481                   2,733,991               2,669,337              
Scholarship and Fellowship -                             -                             -                          61,638,293              61,638,293             58,733,940            

Total Restricted Educational Activities 8,692,512               13,093,601            785,962              67,889,698              90,461,773             86,497,603            

Total Educational Activities 179,690,889           13,093,601            22,943,272         129,720,638            345,448,400           336,493,255          

Auxiliary Enterprises 1,738,008               -                             383,187              7,685,315                9,806,510               10,957,583            
Auxiliary Enterprises - Qatar Expenses 3,067,600               -                             655,960              323,563                   4,047,123               6,276,345              
Depreciation - Buildings -                             -                             -                          14,967,062              14,967,062             12,913,723            
Depreciation - Equipment -                             -                             -                          6,008,752                6,008,752               6,290,320              
Depreciation - Library Books -                             -                             -                          508,694                   508,694                  539,468                 
Total Operating Expenses 184,496,497$         13,093,601$          23,982,419$       159,214,024$          380,786,541$         373,470,694$        
                 (Exhibit 2)    (Exhibit 2)

Operating Expenses
Salaries 

and Wages 
Other

Expenses
2015
Total

2014
Total

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See Independent Auditor’s Report 
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SCHEDULE OF NONOPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2015 
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 Schedule C 
 
 

  Auxiliary Total Total
 Unrestricted  Restricted  Enterprises 2015 2014

NONOPERATING REVENUES:

       State Appropriations:
             Educational and General State Support 69,148,935$        -$                          -$                69,148,935$            69,148,935$        
             State Group Insurance -                           9,984,372             -                  9,984,372 9,302,498
             State Retirement Matching -                           3,109,230             3,109,230 3,170,857
            Other State Appropriations 6,958                   -                            -                  6,958                       53,429                 
                 Total State Appropriations 69,155,893 13,093,602           -                  82,249,495 81,675,719

       Maintenance Ad-Valorem Taxes 125,073,172 -                            -                  125,073,172 113,987,287

       Debt Service Ad-Valorem Taxes 48,383,832 -                            -                  48,383,832 29,402,457
       Gifts -                           1,260,854             -                  1,260,854 1,436,292
       Investment Income, Net 2,950,156 -                            -                  2,950,156 3,704,351
       Title IV Grants -                           95,673,111           -                  95,673,111 94,092,798
       Nursing Shortage Reduction -                           478,272                -                  478,272 171,333
       Other Nonoperating Revenue 7,455,995 -                            4,041           7,460,036 1,672,149
           Total Nonoperating Revenues 253,019,048 110,505,839 4,041 363,528,928 326,142,386

NONOPERATING EXPENSES:

       Interest on Capital-Related Debt (24,312,876) -                            -                  (24,312,876) (16,346,638)
       Other Nonoperating Expenses (5,431,725) -                            -                  (5,431,725) (10,955,750)
           Total Nonoperating Expenses (29,744,601) -                            -                  (29,744,601) (27,302,388)
NET NONOPERATING REVENUES 223,274,447$      110,505,839$       4,041$         333,784,328$          298,839,998$      

(Exhibit 2) (Exhibit 2)

 
 
 

 
See Independent Auditor’s Report
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SCHEDULE NET POSITION BY SOURCE AND AVAILABILITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2015 
With Memorandum Totals for the Year Ended AUGUST 31, 2014 

 Schedule D 
 

 

Capital Assets
Net of Depreciation

Unrestricted Expendable Non-Expendable & Related Debt Total Yes No

Current:
  Unrestricted 46,970,407$           -$                        -$                        -$                        46,970,407$           46,970,407$           -$                        
  Auxiliary enterprises 7,698,664               -                          7,698,664               7,698,664               -                          
Loan -                          480,121                  -                          -                          480,121                  -                          480,121                  
Plant: -                          
 Unexpended 5,687,841               -                          -                          -                          5,687,841               5,687,841               -                          
 Investment in Plant -                          12,810,427             -                          290,770,960           303,581,387           12,810,427             290,770,960           
     
 Total Net Position August 31, 2015 60,356,912             13,290,548             -                          290,770,960           364,418,420           73,167,339             291,251,081           
 Exhibit 1
 Total Net Position August 31, 2014,
 as restated 114,974,877           14,803,614             -                          244,073,582           373,852,073           129,778,491           244,073,582           

Exhibit 1
Cumulative Effect For Changes in 
Accounting Principle (76,396,628)            -                          -                          -                          (76,396,628)            (76,396,628)            -                          

Net Increase(Decrease) in Net Position 21,778,663$           (1,513,066)$            -$                        46,697,378$           66,962,975$           19,785,476$           47,177,499$           
Exhibit 2

Restricted
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
STATISTICAL SECTION NARRATIVE 

 
 
 
 
Statistical Section 
 
This part of the College’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information as a context 
for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required 
supplementary information says about the College’s overall financial health. 
 
Financial Trends 
 
This segment contains trend information to help the reader understand how the College’s financial performance 
and well-being have changed over time. 
 
Revenue Capacity 
 
This segment includes information to help the reader assess the College’s most significant local revenue source, 
the property tax. 
 
Debt Capacity 
 
This segment presents information to help the reader assess the affordability of the College’s current levels of 
outstanding debt and the College’s ability to issue additional debt in the future. 
 
Economic & Demographic Information 
 
This segment depicts demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment 
within which the College’s financial activities take place. 
 
Operating information 
 
This segment displays service and capital asset data to help the reader understand how the information in the 
College’s financial report relates to the services the College provides and the activities it performs. 
 
Sources: Unless otherwise stated, the information in this section is derived from the comprehensive annual 
financial reports for the relevant year. The College implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and 
Local Governments, in FY 2000-01; schedules presenting government-wide activities include information 
beginning from that year. 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands) 

(Unaudited) 
 

 Table 1 
 

 
 

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Invested in Capital Assets,
  Net of Related Debt $ 290,771    $ 244,073    $ 230,706    $ 234,825    $ 207,977    $ 197,013    $ 197,253    $ 190,084    $ 173,412    $ 146,493    
Restricted - Expendable 13,290      14,804      1,216        488           488           449           449           449           449           582           
Unrestricted 60,357      114,975    107,142    87,004      73,959      70,083      62,731      62,334      55,872      60,092      

Total Primary Government,
  Net Position $ 364,418    $ 373,852    $ 339,063    $ 322,317    $ 282,424    $ 267,545    $ 260,433    $ 252,867    $ 229,733    $ 207,166    

Net Increase in Net Position $ (9,434)      $ 34,789      $ 16,746      $ 39,893      $ 14,879      $ 7,112        $ 7,566        $ 23,134      $ 22,567      $ 15,626      

For the Year Ended August 31,
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
PROGRAM REVENUES BY SOURCE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 
  Table 2 

 

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

OPERATING REVENUES:
Tuition and Fees, Net of Discounts 75,079,230$   70,689,034$   71,433,953$   71,415,957$   67,907,897$   65,655,752$   64,689,510$   58,939,437$   54,389,997$   

Federal Grants and Contracts 13,782,110     14,019,776     14,702,419     16,848,269     16,064,089     16,243,394     12,480,512     13,001,562     12,924,612     

State Grants and Contracts 8,772,358       5,543,642       6,156,585       5,152,251       6,448,589       5,157,058       3,695,688       2,988,267       2,796,870       

Local Grants and Contracts 162,920          116,899          81,407            95,226            275,085          79,055            77,955            81,761            77,116            

Non-Governmental Grants and Contracts 2,446,357       2,441,076       2,413,531       2,497,892       1,283,150       1,286,822       854,759          467,151          605,832          

Sales and Services of Educational Activities 177,222          189,043          193,328          329,382          369,530          315,835          261,861          203,207          208,228          

Other Operating Revenues -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 527,125          

Auxiliary Enterprises 13,544,991     16,420,059     16,092,899     16,096,494     14,535,914     10,493,233     8,709,724       7,937,176       7,351,627       

Total Operating Revenues 113,965,188   109,419,530   111,074,122   112,435,472   106,884,254   99,231,149     90,770,009     83,618,561     78,881,407     

NONOPERATING REVENUES:
State Appropriations 82,249,495     81,675,719     82,105,228     81,839,826     84,838,315     84,665,409     81,677,836     80,863,825     77,302,202     

Ad Valorem Taxes 173,457,004   143,389,744   129,256,277   123,638,019   115,820,065   119,273,809   107,746,487   97,214,316     88,882,876     

Gifts 1,260,854       1,436,292       1,591,888       2,053,638       1,573,601       1,555,967       1,115,895       964,033          491,270          

Investment Income 2,950,156       3,704,351       (140,747)        789,917          566,945          900,323          4,213,587       11,160,656     17,507,157     

Disaster Relief Grants -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 1,415,592       1,525,611       -                 -                 

T itle IV (Pell) 95,673,111     94,092,798     94,423,841     102,023,662   96,171,936     75,639,561     41,239,311     31,591,860     30,325,297     

Nursing Shortage Reduction 478,272          171,333          111,309          14,038            151,786          73,453            19,969            33,974            66,969            

Other Non-operating Revenues 7,460,036       1,672,149       6,446,858       9,341,129       6,153,631       3,455,364       2,241,061       7,768,434       3,866,533       

Total Non-operating Revenues 363,528,928   326,142,386   313,794,654   319,700,229   305,276,279   286,979,477   239,779,757   229,597,098   218,442,304   

TOTAL REVENUES 477,494,116$ 435,561,916$ 424,868,776$ 432,135,701$ 412,160,533$ 386,210,626$ 330,549,766$ 313,215,659$ 297,323,711$ 

For the Year Ended August 31,
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
PROGRAM REVENUES BY SOURCE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 
 Table 2  

  
 

(percentage of total)

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

OPERATING REVENUES:
Tuition and Fees, Net of Discounts 15.72% 16.23% 16.81% 16.53% 16.48% 17.00% 19.57% 18.82% 18.29%

Federal Grants and Contracts 2.89% 3.20% 3.46% 3.90% 3.90% 4.21% 3.78% 4.15% 4.35%

State Grants and Contracts 1.84% 1.29% 1.45% 1.19% 1.56% 1.34% 1.12% 0.95% 0.94%

Local Grants and Contracts 0.03% 0.03% 0.02% 0.02% 0.07% 0.02% 0.02% 0.03% 0.03%

Non-Governmental Grants and Contracts 0.51% 0.56% 0.57% 0.58% 0.31% 0.33% 0.26% 0.15% 0.20%

Sales and Services of Educational Activities 0.04% 0.04% 0.05% 0.08% 0.09% 0.08% 0.08% 0.06% 0.07%

Other Operating Revenues 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.18%

Auxiliary Enterprises 2.84% 3.77% 3.79% 3.72% 3.53% 2.72% 2.63% 2.53% 2.47%

Total Operating Revenues 23.87% 25.12% 26.14% 26.02% 25.93% 25.69% 27.46% 26.70% 26.53%

NONOPERATING REVENUES:
State Appropriations 17.23% 18.75% 19.32% 18.94% 20.58% 21.92% 24.71% 25.82% 26.00%

Ad Valorem Taxes 36.33% 32.92% 30.42% 28.61% 28.10% 30.88% 32.60% 31.04% 29.89%

Gifts 0.26% 0.33% 0.37% 0.48% 0.38% 0.40% 0.34% 0.31% 0.17%

Investment Income 0.62% 0.85% -0.03% 0.18% 0.14% 0.23% 1.27% 3.56% 5.89%

Disaster Relief Grants 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.37% 0.46% 0.00% 0.00%

Title IV (Pell) 20.04% 21.60% 22.22% 23.61% 23.33% 19.59% 12.48% 10.09% 10.20%

Nursing Shortage Reduction 0.10% 0.04% 0.03% 0.00% 0.04% 0.02% 0.01% 0.01% 0.02%

Other Nonoperating Revenues 1.56% 0.38% 1.52% 2.16% 1.49% 0.89% 0.68% 2.48% 1.30%

Total Nonoperating Revenues 76.13% 74.88% 73.86% 73.98% 74.07% 74.31% 72.54% 73.30% 73.47%

TOTAL REVENUES 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

For the Year Ended August 31,
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 HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
PROGRAM EXPENSES BY FUNCTION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS  
(Unaudited) 

 Table 3 
  

 
 

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Instruction 118,383,131$    112,628,406$    111,931,030$    100,319,497$    112,617,877$    113,319,505$    105,158,760$    96,006,367$      92,249,139$      88,156,430$      

Public Service 10,295,409        10,628,104        11,638,013        11,868,925        11,766,675        11,477,787        9,988,399          9,868,651          11,362,415        11,435,129        

Academic Support 31,781,726        26,699,201        25,060,153        22,771,173        19,616,391        23,449,473        20,632,551        19,645,603        17,972,637        16,355,817        

Student Services 31,448,417        29,244,604        29,165,865        24,906,487        31,901,438        30,902,922        27,473,142        25,822,223        24,659,370        24,919,075        

Institutional Support 63,081,397        62,673,369        56,398,020        58,952,631        55,747,071        53,302,151        47,880,656        44,359,869        43,163,084        40,884,807        

Operation and Maintenance of Plant 28,820,028        35,885,631        31,438,811        27,969,778        28,350,817        35,937,690        32,628,588        26,917,292        26,782,535        23,055,592        

Scholarships and Fellowships 61,638,293        58,733,940        57,092,409        61,504,372        65,346,087        49,920,320        24,796,647        18,201,589        16,474,485        15,634,651        

Auxiliary Enterprises 13,853,632        17,233,929        18,760,757        15,736,795        14,607,330        9,740,078          8,718,772          6,698,807          6,726,829          3,919,787          

Depreciation 21,484,508        19,743,511        19,492,034        18,848,802        17,067,466        14,832,747        11,098,086        10,096,713        10,524,141        9,965,132          

Total Operating Expenses 380,786,541      373,470,694      360,977,093      342,878,460      357,021,152      342,882,673      288,375,601      257,617,114      249,914,635      234,326,420      

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES:

Interest on Capital Related Debt 24,312,876        16,346,638        36,827,644        28,498,392        29,424,886        25,379,834        25,375,863        20,640,888        21,187,768        17,201,531        

Hurricane Ike Expense, Net -                     -                     12,431               626,194             284,103             561,861             297,616             - - -

Other Non-Operating Expenses 5,431,725          10,955,750        10,305,162        20,240,555        10,550,397        10,274,777        8,934,397          7,768,434          3,682,262          5,597,748          

Total Non-Operating Expenses 29,744,601        27,302,388        47,145,237        49,365,141        40,259,386        36,216,472        34,607,876        28,409,322        24,870,030        22,799,279        

Total Expenses 410,531,142$    400,773,082$    408,122,330$    392,243,601$    397,280,538$    379,099,145$    322,983,477$    286,026,436$    274,784,665$    257,125,699$    

For the Year Ended August 31,
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
PROGRAM EXPENSES BY FUNCTION - CONTINUED 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS  
(Unaudited) 

 Table 3 
  

 

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Instruction 28.84% 28.10% 27.43% 25.58% 28.35% 29.89% 32.56% 33.57% 33.57% 34.29%

Public Service 2.51% 2.65% 2.85% 3.03% 2.96% 3.03% 3.09% 3.45% 4.14% 4.45%

Academic Support 7.74% 6.66% 6.14% 5.81% 4.94% 6.19% 6.39% 6.87% 6.54% 6.36%

Student Services 7.66% 7.30% 7.15% 6.35% 8.03% 8.15% 8.51% 9.03% 8.97% 9.69%

Institutional Support 15.37% 15.64% 13.82% 15.03% 14.03% 14.06% 14.82% 15.51% 15.71% 15.90%

Operation and Maintenance of Plant 7.02% 8.95% 7.70% 7.13% 7.14% 9.48% 10.10% 9.41% 9.75% 8.97%

Scholarships and Fellowships 15.01% 14.66% 13.99% 15.68% 16.45% 13.17% 7.68% 6.36% 6.00% 6.08%

Auxiliary Enterprises 3.37% 4.30% 4.60% 4.01% 3.68% 2.57% 2.70% 2.34% 2.45% 1.52%

Depreciation 5.23% 4.93% 4.78% 4.81% 4.30% 3.91% 3.44% 3.53% 3.83% 3.88%

Total Operating Expenses 92.75% 93.19% 88.45% 87.41% 89.87% 90.45% 89.28% 90.07% 90.95% 91.13%

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES:

Interest on Capital Related Debt 5.92% 4.08% 9.02% 7.27% 7.41% 6.69% 7.86% 7.22% 7.71% 6.69%

Hurricane Ike Expense, Net 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.16% 0.07% - - - - -

Other Non-Operating Expenses 1.32% 2.73% 2.53% 5.16% 2.66% 2.71% 2.77% 2.72% 1.34% 2.18%

Total Non-Operating Expenses 7.25% 6.81% 11.55% 12.59% 10.13% 9.55% 10.72% 9.93% 9.05% 8.87%

Total Expenses 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

(percentage of total)
For the Year Ended August 31,
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
TUITION AND FEES 

LAST TEN ACADEMIC YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 
 Table 4 

 
 

  

Academic 
Year Semester

 In-District 
Tuition 

 General 
Fees 

 Techno-
logy 
Fees 

 Student 
Activity / 
Services 

Fee 
 Recrea- 
tion Fee 

 Cost for 
12 SCH  

Increase from 
Prior Year-

Fall
2014-2015 Fall $ 372 $ 306 $ 118.80 $ 12 $ 6 $ 814.80 0.00%
2013-2014 Fall 372 306 118.80 12 6 814.80 0.15%
2012-2013 Fall 372 306 117.60 12 6 813.60 0.15%
2011-2012 Fall 372 306 116.40 12 6 812.40 18.56%
2010-2011* Summer 372 306 115.20 12 6 811.20 n/a
2010-2011 Fall 300 264 103.20 12 6 685.20 0.18%
2009-2010 Fall 300 264 102.00 12 6 684.00 1.79%
2008-2009* Spring 300 264 96.00 12 6 678.00 n/a
2008-2009 Fall 300 264 96.00 12 --- 672.00 2.28%
2007-2008 Fall 300 264 81.00 12 --- 657.00 2.82%
2006-2007 Fall 300 264 63.00 12 --- 639.00 8.67%
2005-2006* Spring 300 264 48.00 --- --- 612.00 n/a
2005-2006 Fall 276 264 48.00 --- --- 588.00 0.00%

Note: After Spring 2011, Workforce students no longer pay extra $1 per hour tuition; Recreation Fee previously known as Athletic Fee.

* Changes to Rates in Semester other than Fall.

In addition students may incur course related fees such as laboratory fees, testing fees, distance education fees and certification fees.

SEMESTER CREDIT HOUR (SCH)
IN-DISTRICT
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
TUITION AND FEES - CONTINUED 

LAST TEN ACADEMIC YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 
Table 4 

  
 
 

Academic 
Year Semester

 In-
District 
Tuition 

 Out-of-
District 
Tuition 

 General 
Fees 

 Techno-
logy 
Fees 

 Student 
Activity / 
Services 

Fee 
 Recrea- 
tion Fee 

 Cost for 12 
SCH  

Increase 
from Prior 
Year-Fall

2014-2015 Fall $ 372 $ 768 $ 402 $ 118.80 $ 12 $ 6 $ 1,678.80 0.00%
2013-2014 Fall 372 768 402 118.80 12 6 1,678.80 0.07%
2012-2013 Fall 372 768 402 117.60 12 6 1,677.60 0.07%
2011-2012 Fall 372 768 402 116.40 12 6 1,676.40 18.29%
2010-2011* Summer 372 708 402 115.20 12 6 1,615.20 n/a
2010-2011 Fall 300 672 324 103.20 12 6 1,417.20 6.40%
2009-2010 Fall 300 648 264 102.00 12 6 1,332.00 0.91%
2008-2009* Spring 300 648 264 96.00 12 6 1,326.00 n/a
2008-2009 Fall 300 648 264 96.00 12 --- 1,320.00 1.15%
2007-2008 Fall 300 648 264 81.00 12 --- 1,305.00 1.40%
2006-2007 Fall 300 648 264 63.00 12 --- 1,287.00 4.13%
2005-2006* Spring 300 648 264 48.00 --- --- 1,260.00 n/a
2005-2006 Fall 276 648 264 48.00 --- --- 1,236.00 0.00%

Note: After Spring 2011, Workforce students no longer pay extra $1 per hour tuition; Recreation Fee previously known as Athletic Fee.

* Changes to Rates in Semester other than Fall.

OUT-OF-DISTRICT

In addition students may incur course related fees such as laboratory fees, testing fees, distance education fees and certification fees.
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
TUITION AND FEES - CONTINUED 

LAST TEN ACADEMIC YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 
 Table 4 

  
 

Academic 
Year Semester

 Out of 
State / 
Inter-

national 
Tuition 

 General 
Fees 

 Techno-
logy 
Fees 

 Student 
Activity / 
Services 

Fee 
 Recrea- 
tion Fee 

 Cost for 
12 SCH  

Increase 
from Prior 
Year-Fall

2014-2015 Fall $ 1,140 $ 600 $ 118.80 $ 12 $ 6 $ 1,876.80 0.00%
2013-2014 Fall 1140 600 118.80 12 6 1,876.80 0.06%
2012-2013 Fall 1140 600 117.60 12 6 1,875.60 0.06%
2011-2012 Fall 1140 600 116.40 12 6 1,874.40 10.70%
2010-2011* Summer 1080 600 115.20 12 6 1,813.20 n/a
2010-2011 Fall 972 600 103.20 12 6 1,693.20 7.71%
2009-2010 Fall 912 540 102.00 12 6 1,572.00 0.77%
2008-2009 Spring 912 540 96.00 12 6 1,566.00 n/a
2008-2009 Fall 912 540 96.00 12 --- 1,560.00 0.97%
2007-2008 Fall 912 540 81.00 12 --- 1,545.00 1.18%
2006-2007 Fall 912 540 63.00 12 --- 1,527.00 3.46%
2005-2006* Spring 912 540 48.00 --- --- 1,500.00 n/a
2005-2006 Fall 888 540 48.00 --- --- 1,476.00 0.00%

Note: After Spring 2011, Workforce students no longer pay extra $1 per hour tuition; Recreation Fee previously known as Athletic Fee.

* Changes to Rates in Semester other than Fall.

OUT OF STATE/INTERNATIONAL

In addition students may incur course related fees such as laboratory fees, testing fees, distance education fees and certification fees.
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
ASSESSED VALUE AND TAXABLE ASSESSED VALUE OF PROPERTY 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 
 

 Table 5 

Fiscal 
Year

Assessed Valuation 
of Property

Less: Exemptions & 
Abatements

Taxable Assessed 
Value

(TAV)

Ratio of Taxable 
Assessed Value 

to Assessed 
Value

Maintenance
 & Operations

Debt    
Service

Total Direct
Rate (a)

2015 $     198,955,482,183 $       36,077,649,997 $     162,877,832,186 81.87% 0.077055 0.029835 0.106890
2014     180,734,029,067       34,213,942,090     146,520,086,977 81.07% 0.077055 0.020118 0.097173
2013     145,875,030,461       12,890,703,534     132,984,326,927 91.16% 0.079673 0.017500 0.097173
2012     159,141,889,758       31,729,564,366     127,412,325,392 80.06% 0.083399 0.013823 0.097222
2011     157,165,651,239       31,190,173,147     125,975,478,092 80.15% 0.074901 0.017319 0.092220
2010     158,860,572,423       28,430,763,993     130,429,808,430 82.10% 0.077839 0.014381 0.092220
2009     141,650,283,263       24,628,568,950     117,021,714,313 82.61% 0.077504 0.014926 0.092430
2008     128,541,398,956       23,751,022,792     104,790,376,164 81.52% 0.077505 0.014926 0.092433
2007     114,880,333,614       23,035,765,722       91,844,567,892 79.95% 0.081333 0.013842 0.095175
2006     103,397,321,246       18,595,499,000       84,801,822,246 82.02% 0.081333 0.014436 0.095769

Notes: Property is assessed at full market value.
(a) Total Direct Rate is per $100 Taxable Assessed Valuation

Source: Local Appraisal Districts
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
STATE APPROPRIATION PER FSTE AND CONTACT HOURS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Table 6 
 

 

Fiscal Year

State 
Appropriation 
(Unrestricted) FTSE**

State
Appropriation

per FTSE

2014-2015 $ 69,155,893        50,596             $ 1,367

2013-2014 69,202,364        49,448             1,400

2012-2013 70,014,003        49,824             1,405

2011-2012 70,232,038        52,032             1,350

2010-2011 65,957,104        * 53,418             1,235

2009-2010 65,791,457        50,445             1,304

2008-2009 63,627,432        43,835             1,452

2007-2008 63,627,433        39,602             1,607

2006-2007 61,312,488        38,641             1,587

2005-2006 61,312,368        36,922             1,661

Fiscal Year

State 
Appropriation 
(Unrestricted)

Academic 
Contract Hours

Voc/Tech 
Contract Hours

CEU 
Contract Hours

Total Funded 
Contract Hours

State
Appropriation

per Contact Hour

2014-2015 $ 69,155,893        15,873,248      6,122,448        2,290,228        24,285,924      $ 2.85

2013-2014 69,202,364        15,931,744      5,822,268        1,980,830        23,734,842      2.92

2012-2013 70,014,003        16,237,296      5,744,810        1,933,271        23,915,377      2.93

2011-2012 70,232,038        17,354,256      5,822,072        1,798,940        24,975,268      2.81

2010-2011 65,957,104        * 17,802,080      5,924,078        1,914,445        25,640,603      2.57

2009-2010 65,791,457        16,652,752      5,680,164        1,880,857        24,213,773      2.72

2008-2009 63,627,432        14,345,992      4,883,890        1,810,761        21,040,643      3.02

2007-2008 63,627,433        12,739,232      4,422,336        1,847,195        19,008,763      3.35

2006-2007 61,312,488        12,077,904      4,378,250        2,091,365        18,547,519      3.31

2005-2006 61,312,368        11,487,128      4,260,486        1,974,799        17,722,413      3.46

Note:

* Revised based on FY2011 AFR.

The methodology used to calculate FTSE (Full-time Student Equivalent) has  been revised for FY2012 and the total FTSE has been 
restated for all years shown. 

** One FTSE  is equal to 480 annual contact hours [30 semester credit hours (Fall 12SCH + Spring 12SCH + Summer 6SCH) x 16 
contact hours per SCH = 480 annual contact hours].  Total annual FTSE is equal to total funded contact hours divided by annual contact 
hours per student (480). 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS  

(Taxable Value) 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 
 
 

Table 7 
 

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Taxpayer Industry

Centerpoint Energy Inc Utility $        1,418,862,516 $          1,362,799,831 $         1,382,750,044 $ 1,153,697,187 $         1,119,456,415 $         1,122,000,954 $         1,155,200,888 $         1,039,824,086 $       1,020,251,119 $       1,031,341,633 

Crescent Real Estate Real Estate           792,215,117             917,216,307            831,337,622 716,169,026         1,129,509,857         1,027,978,140         1,136,315,715         1,378,543,156       1,213,068,497          880,336,507 

Cullen Allen Holdings Lp Real Estate                            -                               -                               -                                -                               -              632,088,821            679,738,613            740,183,451          597,559,584                           -   

Hines Interests Ltd Ptnrsp Real Estate                            -                               -                               -   1,163,749,277            967,638,791            855,622,627            649,533,262            962,302,817          982,519,591          574,840,017 

AT&T Mobility LLC Utility                            -                               -                               -   318,206,364            446,070,581            499,096,180            573,892,778            584,854,404                           -                             -   

Tpg 2101 Citywest 1 & 2 Lp Real Estate                            -                               -                               -                                -              497,060,529            469,096,180            520,865,513            576,224,151                           -                             -   

Chevron Chemical Co Oil & Gas        1,084,645,391          1,066,441,442            982,653,385 724,298,902            627,685,117            469,387,624            460,639,861            478,700,396          407,061,688          343,365,607 

Anheuser Busch Inc Brewery                            -                               -                               -   357,792,263            366,424,086            404,399,350            421,420,837            451,539,258          461,994,178          470,539,317 

Houston Refining Oil & Gas                            -                               -                               -                                -                               -                              -              407,442,917                            -                             -                             -   

Valero Energy Corp Oil & Gas                            -               418,086,374            426,028,458             363,437,432                             -                              -              374,025,572            386,831,716          309,554,958                           -   
Teachers Insurance Insurance                            -                               -                               -                                -                               -                              -                               -              578,530,234          512,401,996          300,049,967 
Shell Oil Co Oil & Gas           492,784,337                             -                               -               334,605,330            331,875,591                            -                               -                              -                             -                             -   
Southwestern Bell Utility                            -                               -                               -                                -                               -                              -                               -                              -            529,778,957          554,904,933 
HG Galleria I II III LP Real Estate           508,214,845             475,503,575            385,054,953             363,274,752            319,442,735            315,388,094                             -                              -            324,487,276                           -   
Triaechahn Allen Ctr LP Real Estate                            -                               -                               -                                -                               -                              -                               -                              -                             -            494,993,746 
Lyondell Chemical Co Oil & Gas                            -                               -                               -                                -                               -                              -                               -                              -                             -            295,571,464 
HG Shopping Centers LP Real Estate                            -                               -                               -                                -                               -                              -                               -                              -                             -            292,756,445 
Block 98 Partners Lt D Real Estate                            -                               -                               -                                -                               -                              -                               -                              -                             -                             -   
Exxon Mobil Corp Oil & Gas                            -                               -                               -               317,979,103            305,020,231            305,281,064                             -                              -                             -                             -   
Continental Airlines Airline                            -                               -                               -                                -                               -                              -                               -                              -                             -                             -   
1000 Louisiana LP Real Estate           499,000,000             504,063,645            426,551,193                              -                               -                              -                               -                              -                             -                             -   
Texas Tower LTD Real Estate                            -               562,735,621            409,839,382                              -                               -                              -                               -                              -                             -                             -   
Four Oaks Place Operating Real Estate                            -               464,133,747            401,202,733                              -                               -                              -                               -                              -                             -                             -   
BG HOLDCO LLC Real Estate                            -               444,102,836            398,000,000                              -                               -                              -                               -                              -                             -                             -   
BUSYCON Properties LLC Real Estate           505,450,307             536,989,676            453,269,103                              -                               -                              -                               -                              -                             -                             -   
Cousins Greenway & POC Real Estate        1,115,262,076                             -                               -                                -                               -                              -                               -                              -                             -                             -   
One, Two & Three Allen 

  
Real Estate           866,158,501                             -                               -                                -                               -                              -                               -                              -                             -                             -   

Southwestern Bell & ATT 
Mobility

Utility           476,957,952                             -                               -                                -                               -                              -                               -                              -                             -                             -   

Totals $ 7,759,551,042      $ 6,752,073,054        $ 6,096,686,873       $ 5,813,209,636        $ 6,110,183,933        $ 6,100,339,034       $ 6,379,075,956       $ 7,177,533,669       $ 6,358,677,844     $ 5,238,699,636     

$ 162,877,832,186  $ 146,520,086,977    $ 132,984,326,927   $ 127,412,325,392    $ 125,975,478,092    $ 130,429,808,430   $ 117,021,714,313   $ 104,790,367,164   $ 91,844,567,892   $ 84,801,822,246   Total Taxable Assessed Value

Taxable Assessed Value (TAV) by Tax Year
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS - CONTINUED  

(Taxable Value) 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 
 

Table 7 
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Taxpayer Industry

Centerpoint Energy Inc Utility 0.87% 0.93% 1.04% 0.91% 0.89% 0.86% 0.99% 0.99% 1.11% 1.22%
Crescent Real Estate Real Estate 0.49% 0.63% 0.63% 0.56% 0.90% 0.79% 0.97% 1.32% 1.32% 1.04%
Cullen Allen Holdings Lp Real Estate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.48% 0.58% 0.71% 0.65% 0.00%
Hines Interests Ltd Ptnrsp Real Estate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.91% 0.77% 0.66% 0.56% 0.92% 1.07% 0.68%
AT&T Mobility LLC Utility 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.25% 0.35% 0.38% 0.49% 0.56% 0.00% 0.00%
Tpg 2101 Citywest 1 & 2 Lp Real Estate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.39% 0.36% 0.45% 0.55% 0.00% 0.00%
Chevron Chemical Co Oil & Gas 0.66% 0.73% 0.74% 0.57% 0.50% 0.36% 0.39% 0.46% 0.44% 0.40%
Anheuser Busch Inc Brewery 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.28% 0.29% 0.31% 0.36% 0.43% 0.50% 0.55%
Houston Refining Oil & Gas 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.35% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Valero Energy Corp Oil & Gas 0.00% 0.29% 0.32% 0.29% 0.00% 0.00% 0.32% 0.37% 0.34% 0.00%
Teachers Insurance Insurance 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.55% 0.56% 0.35%
Shell Oil Co Oil & Gas 0.30% 0.00% 0.00% 0.26% 0.26% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Southwestern Bell Utility 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.58% 0.65%
HG Galleria I II III LP Real Estate 0.31% 0.32% 0.29% 0.29% 0.25% 0.24% 0.00% 0.00% 0.35% 0.00%
Triaechahn Allen Ctr LP Real Estate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.58%
Lyondell Chemical Co Oil & Gas 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.35%
HG Shopping Centers LP Real Estate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.35%
Block 98 Partners Lt D Real Estate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Exxon Mobil Corp Oil & Gas 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.25% 0.24% 0.23% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Continental Airlines Airline 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
1000 Louisiana LP Real Estate 0.31% 0.34% 0.32% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Texas Tower LTD Real Estate 0.00% 0.38% 0.31% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Four Oaks Place Operating Real Estate 0.00% 0.32% 0.30% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
BG HOLDCO LLC Real Estate 0.00% 0.30% 0.30% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
BUSYCON Properties LLC Real Estate 0.31% 0.37% 0.34% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Cousins Greenway & POC Real Estate 0.68% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
One, Two & Three Allen 
Center CO LLC

Real Estate 0.53% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Southwestern Bell & ATT 
Mobility

Utility 0.29% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Totals 4.75% 4.61% 4.58% 4.56% 4.85% 4.68% 5.45% 6.85% 6.92% 6.18%

Source: Local County Appraisal District

% of Taxable Assessed Value (TAV) by Tax Year
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN TAX YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 
Table 8 

Fiscal Year
Tax Rate 
Per $100

Tax Base 
(Assessed Value) Total Tax Levy

Actual 
Collections per 

AFR
% of 
Levy Amount

% of 
Levy 

2014-2015 0.106890  $ 162,877,832,186      $ 174,100,115       $       173,168,964 99.47% $            3,471,135 $      176,640,099 101.46%
2013-2014 0.097173  146,520,086,977 142,377,964             141,871,329 99.64%            3,233,799      145,105,128 101.92%
2012-2013 0.097173  132,984,326,927 129,224,860             126,900,573 98.20%            3,135,356      130,035,929 100.63%
2011-2012 0.097222  127,412,325,392 123,872,811             121,247,023 97.88%            4,017,805 125,264,828    101.12%
2010-2011 0.092220 125,975,478,092      116,179,580       113,187,929     97.42% 3,994,879          117,182,808    100.86%
2009-2010 0.092220  130,429,808,430      120,614,601       116,730,716     96.78% 3,995,418          120,726,134    100.09%
2008-2009 0.092430  117,021,714,313      108,163,171       105,021,974     97.10% 4,064,764          109,086,738    100.85%
2007-2008 0.092433  104,790,367,164      96,860,880         93,854,407       96.90% 4,164,454          98,018,861      101.20%
2006-2007 0.095175  91,844,567,892        87,413,067         85,811,200       98.17% 3,882,996          89,694,196      102.61%
2005-2006 0.095769  84,801,822,246        81,213,857         79,013,014       97.29% 3,882,996          82,896,010      102.07%

* "Collection in Subsequent Years" includes penalties and interest. 
Source: Local Tax Assessor/Collector's and District records.

Collected within the Fiscal 
Year of the Levy

Collections in 
Subsequent 

Years *

Total Collections to Date
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Table 9 
 

 

2015 2014 2013 2012** 2011 2010 2009* 2008* 2007* 2006*
General Obligation Bonds $ 552,429,370             568,407,151             $ 578,139,157          126,509,613             122,965,813             $ 128,335,993             $ 133,079,110             $ 137,982,325             $ 142,755,540           $ 147,393,756           
Notes 160,781,387             168,926,738             177,016,887          184,862,037             169,764,659             129,970,994             65,596,500               67,968,928               11,595,000             12,000,000             

Net General Bonded Debt 713,210,757             737,333,888             755,156,045          311,371,650             292,730,472             258,306,987             198,675,610             205,951,253             154,350,540           159,393,756           

Per Capita 303                           319.02                      $ 333.59                   $ 139.69                      $ 134.63                      $ 118.77                      $ 92.82                        $ 95.80                        $ 72.86                      $ 76.23                      
Per FTSE 13,068                      13,732.91                 $ 13,921.98              $ 5,511.88                   $ 5,104.01                   $ 4,723.11                   $ 4,153.09                   $ 4,711.77                   $ 3,593.56                 $ 3,904.89                 

As a Percentage of 
   Taxable Assessed Value 0.44% 0.50% 0.57% 0.24% 0.23% 0.20% 0.17% 0.20% 0.17% 0.19%

Revenue Bonds $ 288,802,667             306,455,246             $ 323,322,694          342,071,187             341,086,330             $ 356,162,958             $ 338,468,001             $ 352,607,948             $ 304,517,738           $ 163,843,158           
Notes 1,346,598                 -                            -                         -                            691,584                    1,383,167                 2,074,750                 -                            631,285                  29,912,400             
Capital Lease Obligations -                            -                         -                            1,304,824                 3,914,472                 6,524,120                 -                            34,395,970             35,436,616             
Deposits 440                           440                           -                         -                            -                                -                                -                                -                            -                         -                         
Net Pension Liability 67,428,372               -                            -                         -                            -                                -                                -                                -                            -                         -                         

Total Outstanding Debt $ 1,070,788,835          1,043,789,574          $ 1,078,478,739       $ 653,442,837             $ 635,813,210             $ 619,767,584             $ 545,742,481             $ 558,559,201             $ 493,895,533           $ 388,585,930           

Per Capita 456                           452                           $ 476                        $ 293                           $ 292                           $ 285                           $ 255                           $ 260                           $ 233                         $ 186                         
Per FTSE 19,619                      19,441                      $ 19,883                   $ 11,567                      $ 11,086                      $ 11,332                      $ 11,408                      $ 12,779                      $ 11,499                    $ 9,520                      

As a Percentage of 
   Taxable Assessed Value 0.66% 0.71% 0.81% 0.51% 0.50% 0.48% 0.47% 0.53% 0.54% 0.46%

*The methodology used to calculate FTSE (Full-time Student Equivalent) has  been revised for FY2012 and the "Per FTSE" calculation has been restated for all years shown.
   (FTSE includes both fundable & non-fundable contact hours)   Source: HCCOIR_DataMart (per FTSE).

For the Year Ended August 31
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Table 10   

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

TAXABLE ASSESSED VALUE $ 162,877,832,186    146,520,086,977    $ 132,984,326,927    $ 127,412,325,392    $ 125,975,478,092    

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS:
Statutory Tax Levy Limit for Debt Service 814,389,161           735,016,644           664,921,635           637,061,627           629,877,207           
Less: Funds Restricted for Repayment of 

General Obligation Bonds -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

Total Net General Obligation Debt 814,389,161           735,016,644           664,921,635           637,061,627           629,877,207           
Current Year Debt Service Requirements 31,529,519             28,852,217             22,600,842             18,904,514             20,616,717             

Excess of Statutory Limit for Debt 
Service over Current Requirements $ 782,859,642           $ 706,164,427           $ 642,320,793           $ 618,157,113           $ 609,260,490           

Net Current Requirements as a % 
of Statutory Limit 3.87% 3.93% 3.40% 2.97% 3.27%

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

TAXABLE ASSESSED VALUE $ 130,429,808,430    117,021,714,313    $ 104,790,367,164    $ 91,844,567,892      $ 84,801,822,246      

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS:
Statutory Tax Levy Limit for Debt Service 652,149,042           585,108,572           523,951,836           459,222,839           424,009,111           
Less: Funds Restricted for Repayment of 

General Obligation Bonds -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

Total Net General Obligation Debt 652,149,042           585,108,572           523,951,836           459,222,839           424,009,111           
Current Year Debt Service Requirements 16,768,273             11,034,759             11,059,125             11,069,990             10,258,879             

Excess of Statutory Limit for Debt 
Service over Current Requirements $ 635,380,769           $ 574,073,813           $ 512,892,711           $ 448,152,849           $ 413,750,232           

Net Current Requirements as a % 
of Statutory Limit 2.57% 1.89% 2.11% 2.41% 2.42%

Net assessed valuation has been restated for prior years to conform to property tax footnote in AFR.

Note: Texas Education Code Section 130.122 limits the debt service tax levy of community colleges to $0.50 per hundred dollars taxable assessed valuation.

For the Year Ended August 31 

For the Year Ended August 31 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
 (Unaudited)  

Table 11 
 
 

Fiscal Year Community 
Ended Technology Registration Laboratory Education Other Interest Vending Bookstore Rental

August 31 Total Tuition Fee Fees Fees Fees Fees Income Commission Commission Revenue
2015 $ 98,017,475   $ 11,646,452  $ 5,639,728   $ 51,188,252 $ 1,674,943 $ 11,523,728 $ 7,601,377  $ 543,991     $ 140,275   $ 2,623,595  $ 5,435,135  
2014 94,161,412   11,442,938  5,614,551   50,458,748 1,779,425 9,093,829   7,066,095  432,133     201,162   2,884,880  5,187,651  
2013 94,956,856   11,731,661  5,747,728   50,940,723 1,828,481 9,136,539   7,031,565  432,022     129,999   2,786,137  5,192,001  
2012 98,214,059   12,206,115  5,998,853   53,283,093 1,974,359 9,330,828   7,234,999  303,384     151,823   2,864,738  4,865,866  
2011 89,655,895   10,549,582  4,930,929   48,356,423 2,085,644 8,614,733   6,777,965  260,462     175,322   2,693,341  5,211,494  
2010 81,401,974   9,587,926    4,543,879   43,168,485 3,393,362 8,699,410   4,250,888  405,337     167,930   2,166,708  5,018,051  

2009 74,049,779   8,304,454    3,902,031   38,912,692 2,890,446 8,136,071   3,550,828  1,344,876  156,180   1,666,446  5,185,754  
2008 68,374,594   7,346,541    3,485,805   35,489,400 2,434,803 7,982,248   2,700,926  2,636,536  167,813   1,545,225  4,585,297  
2007 63,047,174   6,782,289    3,322,933   33,609,081 2,185,444 7,320,576   2,251,444  2,321,875  180,620   1,190,950  3,881,962  
2006 57,789,907   6,013,923    3,173,494   32,368,441 2,026,721 5,287,298   1,297,184  2,697,279  181,235   1,345,057  3,399,274  

Fiscal Year
Ended Coverage

August 31 Principal Interest Total Ratio
2015 $ 12,545,000   $ 8,421,828    $ 20,966,828 4.67
2014 11,320,000   9,658,049    20,978,049 4.49
2013 13,435,000   10,254,199  23,689,199 4.01
2012 12,715,000   10,579,416  23,294,416 4.22
2011 11,335,000   10,712,486  22,047,486 4.07
2010 10,770,000   10,325,724  21,095,724 3.86
2009 10,430,000   10,408,632  20,838,632 3.55
2008 7,520,000     8,402,868    15,922,868 4.29
2007 7,015,000     6,608,404    13,623,404 4.63
2006 5,750,000     6,867,244    12,617,244 4.58

Pledged Revenues

Debt Service Requirements 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS - TAXING DISTRICT 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 
Table 12 

 
 
 

Calendar Year 
Service Area 
Population 

Service Area 
Personal Income

Service Area 
Personal Income 

Per Capita

Service Area 
Unemployment 

Rate

2014 2,308,004 $ 68,275,374,328        29,582 3.7%
2013 2,263,741 62,320,789,730        27,530 5.4%
2012 2,228,995 64,750,075,755        29,049 4.8%
2011 2,174,361 61,960,591,056        28,496 5.1%
2010 2,174,919 60,334,427,979        27,741 5.1%
2009 2,140,484 56,172,721,612        26,243 5.1%
2008 2,149,766 51,992,090,710        24,185 5.8%
2007 2,118,315 52,815,947,895        24,933 6.3%
2006 2,091,041 51,383,150,493        24,573 4.7%
2005 2,063,673 45,089,191,377        21,849 4.8%

Sources: HCCS MapInfo Files with 2011 Board Redistricted Boundaries, Service Area additions per HB 3659, 
Northwest & Southwest College Boundary changes per exec. team, Sept. 2013; and Census and BLS data from 
Applied Geographic Solutions (AGS) on PCensus CD-ROM, TETRAD Computer Applications, Inc., Dec. 2014 
(with 2014 AGS for Business/Occupation info.), Dec. 2014.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

93 

HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 

Fiscal Years 2012-2015 
(Unaudited) 

 Table 13 
 
 

Houston-Sugar Land-Baytown MSA  
(Austin, Brazoria, Chambers, Fort Bend, 
Galveston, Harris, Liberty Montgomery, 

San Jacinto, Waller)
June 

2015 (p)
June 
2014

June 
2013

June 
2012

Trade, Transportation, & Utilities 607,500 594,900 564,300 547,800
Professional, & Business Services 477,700 466,800 429,700 410,900
Government 379,400 373,900 364,500 359,300
Education & Health Services 361,700 347,400 335,900 327,000
Mining/Logging & Construction 314,100 312,000 298,100 279,600
Manufacturing 247,000 255,300 252,800 244,600
Leisure & Hospitality 312,900 294,100 277,500 264,300
Financial Activities 146,700 148,100 143,200 141,000
Other Services 106,100 105,500 100,300 96,900
Information 33,900 33,300 32,700 31,500

Total 2,987,000 2,931,300 2,799,000 2,702,900

Trade, Transportation, & Utilities 20.34% 20.29% 20.16% 20.27%
Professional, & Business Services 15.99% 15.92% 15.35% 15.20%
Government 12.70% 12.76% 13.02% 13.29%
Education & Health Services 12.11% 11.85% 12.00% 12.10%
Natural Resources, Mining & Construction 10.52% 10.64% 10.65% 10.34%
Manufacturing 8.27% 8.71% 9.03% 9.05%
Leisure & Hospitality 10.48% 10.03% 9.91% 9.78%
Financial Activities 4.91% 5.05% 5.12% 5.22%
Other Services 3.55% 3.60% 3.58% 3.59%
Information 1.13% 1.14% 1.17% 1.17%

Total 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

(p) preliminary
Source: http://www.bls.gov/ro6/fax/houston_ces.htm
Note: Employees on nonfarm payrolls by industry supersector, not seasonally adjusted

Number of Employees

Percent of Employees
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
FACULTY, STAFF AND ADMINISTRATORS STATISTICS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 
Table 14 

 
 
 

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Faculty

Full-T ime 759 759 789 809 910 848 829 821 810 814
Part-T ime 1,687 1,742 1,715 2,781 2,921 2,345 2,049 2,499 2,513 2,391
Total 2,446 2,501 2,504 3,590 3,831 3,193 2,878 3,320 3,323 3,205

Percent
Full-T ime 31.0% 30.3% 31.5% 22.5% 23.8% 26.6% 28.8% 24.7% 24.4% 25.4%
Part-T ime 69.0% 69.7% 68.5% 77.5% 76.2% 73.4% 71.2% 75.3% 75.6% 74.6%

Staff and Administrators
Full-T ime 1,385 1,323 1,350 1,327 1,272 1,185 1,102 1,079 1,080 1,053
Part-T ime 1,170 1,413 1,443 1,088 1,169 1,323 1,259 1,504 1,408 1,226
Total 2,555 2,736 2,793 2,415 2,441 2,508 2,361 2,583 2,488 2,279

Percent
Full-T ime 54.2% 48.4% 48.3% 54.9% 52.1% 47.2% 46.7% 41.8% 43.4% 46.2%
Part-T ime 45.8% 51.6% 51.7% 45.1% 47.9% 52.8% 53.3% 58.2% 56.6% 53.8%

Students per Full-time**
Faculty 72.5 72.0 71.0 71.2 62.2 57.1 53.6 53.0 55.3 51.6
Staff Member 39.7 41.3 41.5 43.4 44.5 40.9 40.3 40.3 41.5 39.9

Average Annual 9/12 Month
Faculty Salary* $ 65,038   $ 64,962   $ 63,366   $ 63,473   $ 62,533   $ 62,833   $ 60,378   $ 56,047   $ 54,766   $ 55,228   

* Prior to 2009, average annual 9 month faculty salary reported.  
**All figures are calculated from the CBM001&00A reports combined.  
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
Annual Student Enrollment Trends by Residency Code 

Semester Credit Hour (SCH)  
Fiscal Years 2011 through 2015 (End of Term) 

(Unaudited) 
Table 15 

 
 

FY 2010-11 FY 2011-12 FY 2012-13 FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15

In-District 58,898                59,567                57,745             56,732              56,070               
Out-of-District 23,265                22,674                21,263             21,468              21,839               
Out-of-State 10,399                10,104                9,139               9,259                10,093               
Unduplicated Enrollment 92,562                92,345                88,147             87,459              88,002               

FY2010-11 FY2011-12 FY2012-13 FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15
Semester Credit Hour (SCH) 10,801                92,345                88,147             87,459              88,002               
Workforce Continue Education Unit (CEU) 17,134                16,971                17,705             16,344              18,170               
Non Funded Continue Education 1,673                  1,265                  1,116               4,708                2,214                 
Adult Literacy / High School 10,801                10,062                9,749               7,992                9,167                 
Unduplicated Enrollment * 120,805              119,185              115,534           113,688            115,575             

Note:  

* The unduplicated enrollment total cannot be arrived at by summing the columns. This is because students may take courses in multiple career types.

Students with Qatar or Saigon Tech tuition residency codes are not included.

Source: HCC OIR DataMart Files, End of Term, FY11 - FY15.

Annual Student Enrollment Trends by Career Type
Fiscal Years 2011 Through 2015 (End of Term)
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
ENROLLMENT DETAILS 

LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 

Student Classification* Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Freshman 27,504 49.97% 28,599 52.36% 29,955 53.48% 32,304 56.07% 32,660 57.71% 28,401 58.23% 25,883 58.78% 25,559 57.95%
Sophomore 14,681 26.67% 14,414 26.39% 14,380 25.67% 14,529 25.22% 13,447 23.76% 10,695 22.24% 9,883 20.14% 8,756 19.67%
Unclassified 5,213 9.47% 4,904 8.98% 4,677 8.35% 4,437 7.70% 3,390 5.99% 2,374 4.59% 2,042 4.31% 1,872 4.15%
Assoc. Degree 30 0.05% 37 0.07% 53 0.09% 64 0.11% 120 0.21% 165 0.40% 177 0.39% 168 0.37%
BS & Above 118 0.21% 152 0.28% 171 0.31% 279 0.48% 361 0.64% 514 1.45% 644 1.38% 601 1.40%
Continuing Ed. Only 7,495 13.62% 6,515 11.93% 6,778 12.10% 6,002 10.42% 6,614 11.69% 6,256 13.09% 5,817 15.01% 6,528 16.47%

Total 55,041 100.00% 54,621 100.00% 56,014 100.00% 57,615 100.00% 56,592 100.00% 48,405 100.00% 44,446 100.00% 43,484 100.00%

Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Less than 3 650 1.18% 652 1.19% 660 1.18% 835 1.45% 748 1.32% 624 1.38% 613 0.71% 310 1.51%
3-5 semester hrs 12,503 22.72% 12,363 22.63% 13,116 23.42% 13,153 22.83% 13,516 23.88% 10,755 23.01% 10,229 23.45% 10,198 23.48%
6-8 Semester hrs 14,009 25.45% 13,915 25.48% 13,433 23.98% 14,622 25.38% 13,781 24.35% 11,575 23.70% 10,532 23.69% 10,301 23.08%
9-11 semester hrs 9,791 17.79% 9,717 17.79% 9,999 17.85% 10,856 18.84% 10,359 18.30% 8,750 17.07% 7,589 16.00% 6,956 15.82%
12-14 semester hrs 9,103 16.54% 9,933 18.19% 10,438 18.63% 10,645 18.48% 9,958 17.60% 8,950 18.40% 8,176 17.92% 7,791 16.75%
15-17 semester hrs 1,376 2.50% 1,381 2.53% 1,470 2.62% 1,364 2.37% 1,443 2.55% 1,341 2.97% 1,318 2.91% 1,264 2.54%
18 & over 114 0.21% 145 0.27% 120 0.21% 138 0.24% 173 0.31% 154 0.39% 172 0.31% 136 0.35%
Continuing Ed. Only 7,495 13.62% 6,515 11.93% 6,778 12.10% 6,002 10.42% 6,614 11.69% 6,256 13.09% 5,817 15.01% 6,528 16.47%

Total 55,041 100.00% 54,621 100.00% 56,014 100.00% 57,615 100.00% 56,592 100.00% 48,405 100.00% 44,446 100.00% 43,484 100.00%
Average course load 7.7 SCH 7.7 SCH 7.8 SCH 7.8 SCH 7.8 SCH 7.9 SCH 7.8 SCH 7.7 SCH

Tuition Status*** Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Texas Resident 31,296 56.86% 31,806 58.23% 32,735 58.44% 32,896 57.10% 31,267 55.25% 26,003 49.86% 22,159 50.18% 21,820 49.87%

 (in-District)
Texas Resident 10,603 19.26% 10,592 19.39% 10,821 19.32% 12,056 20.93% 12,298 21.73% 10,446 25.32% 11,254 24.67% 10,728 25.20%

 (out-of-District)
Non-Resident Tuition 5,234 9.51% 5,124 9.38% 5,302 9.47% 6,332 10.99% 6,170 10.90% 5,528 11.39% 5,061 9.81% 4,264 8.07%
Tuition Waiver 413 0.75% 584 1.07% 378 0.67% 329 0.57% 243 0.43% 172 0.35% 155 0.33% 144 0.39%
Other 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Not Applicable

 (Cont. Ed.) 7,495 13.62% 6,515 11.93% 6,778 12.10% 6,002 10.42% 6,614 11.69% 6,256 13.09% 5,817 15.01% 6,528 16.47%

Total 55,041  100.00% 54,621  100.00% 56,014  100.00% 57,615  100.00% 56,592  100.00% 48,405  100.00% 44,446  100.00% 43,484  100.00%

Fall 2009 Fall 2008 Fall 2007Fall 2013 Fall 2013 Fall 2012 Fall 2011 Fall 2010

Fall 2009 Fall 2008 Fall 2007

Fall 2014 Fall 2013 Fall 2012 Fall 2011

Notes: *  Data source is the CBM1&A report.  Files were combined and unduplicated in favor of retaining SCH students.  Students taking Continuing education courses only are counted one 
time.  SCH students taking SCH and CEU courses are counted one time as SC.   **  Data source same as above.  SCH students taking SCH and CEU courses are counted one time as SCH.   *** 
Data source same as above.  Continuing education students are not classified as to residency status.

Fall 2010 Fall 2009 Fall 2008 Fall 2007

Semester Hour Load**
Fall 2014 Fall 2013 Fall 2012 Fall 2011 Fall 2010

 

Table 16 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
STUDENT PROFILE 

LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 

Gender Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Female 30,007   54.52% 29,652   54.29% 30,881   55.13% 31,985   55.52% 30,865   54.54% 26,452   54.65% 24,173   54.39% 23,603   54.28%
Male 25,034   45.48% 24,969   45.71% 25,133   44.87% 25,630   44.48% 25,727   45.46% 21,953   45.35% 20,273   45.61% 19,881   45.72%

Total 55,041   100.00% 54,621   100.00% 56,014   100.00% 57,615   100.00% 56,592   100.00% 48,405   100.00% 44,446   100.00% 43,484   100.00%

Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
White 9,302     16.90% 9,564     17.51% 10,242   18.28% 10,912   18.94% 11,393   20.13% 9,506     19.40% 8,623     21.40% 9,307     23.80%
African American 16,079   29.21% 15,631   28.62% 16,085   28.72% 17,346   30.11% 15,685   27.72% 11,558   22.85% 10,156   22.85% 9,938     23.18%
Hispanic 18,368   33.37% 18,346   33.59% 18,266   32.61% 17,812   30.92% 17,721   31.31% 14,160   29.83% 13,257   28.45% 12,371   27.94%
Asian 5,354     9.73% 5,542     10.15% 5,641     10.07% 6,107     10.60% 5,881     10.39% 4,832     10.52% 4,676     10.85% 4,718     10.63%
Native American 118        0.21% 118        0.22% 110        0.20% 131        0.23% 138        0.24% 121        0.23% 101        0.21% 91          0.24%
Foreign 4,040     7.34% 3,830     7.01% 3,884     6.93% 4,086     7.09% 4,270     7.55% 3,875     8.22% 3,654     7.34% 3,190     6.40%
Unknown 1,780     3.23% 1,590     2.91% 1,786     3.19% 1,221     2.12% 1,504     2.66% 4,353     8.95% 3,979     8.90% 3,869     7.80%

Total 55,041   100.00% 54,621   100.00% 56,014   100.00% 57,615   100.00% 56,592   100.00% 48,405   100.00% 44,446   100.00% 43,484   100.00%

Age Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Under 18 4,031     7.32% 3,962     7.25% 4,639     8.28% 2,908     5.05% 3,046     5.38% 1,886     4.00% 1,778     6.50% 2,826     6.00%
18 -21 15,074   27.39% 16,041   29.37% 16,027   28.61% 17,222   29.89% 17,205   30.40% 15,275   31.93% 14,191   30.26% 13,157   29.03%
22 - 24 8,753     15.90% 8,849     16.20% 8,962     16.00% 9,760     16.94% 9,328     16.48% 8,303     17.43% 7,745     16.56% 7,203     16.62%
25 - 35 16,903   30.71% 15,741   28.82% 15,842   28.28% 17,194   29.84% 16,569   29.28% 14,186   28.49% 12,663   27.91% 12,137   28.05%
36 - 50 7,688     13.97% 7,477     13.69% 7,862     14.04% 8,055     13.98% 7,957     14.06% 6,749     13.99% 6,219     14.25% 6,198     15.57%
51 & over 2,589     4.70% 2,531     4.63% 2,664     4.76% 2,464     4.28% 2,468     4.36% 1,967     4.01% 1,783     4.24% 1,842     4.40%
Unknown 3            0.01% 20          0.04% 18          0.03% 12          0.02% 19          0.03% 39          0.15% 67          0.28% 121        0.33%

Total 55,041   100.00% 54,621   100.00% 56,014   100.00% 57,615   100.00% 56,592   100.00% 48,405   100.00% 44,446   100.00% 43,484   100.00%

Average Age 27.7 ** 27.4 ** 27.4 ** 27.5 ** 27.4 27.3 27.2 27.2

*The methodology for indicating ethnicity change in Fall 2010 to comply with federal guidelines.
**Remove 'Unknown' age before calculating average.
All figures are calculated from the CBM001&00A reports combined.

Fall 2009 Fall 2008 Fall 2007Fall 2014 Fall 2013 Fall 2012 Fall 2011 Fall 2010

Fall 2008 Fall 2007

Fall 2014 Fall 2013 Fall 2012 Fall 2011 Fall 2010 Fall 2009 Fall 2008 Fall 2007

Ethnic Origin
Fall 2014* Fall 2013* Fall 2012* Fall 2011* Fall 2010* Fall 2009

 

Table 17 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
CONTACT HOURS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 
Table 18 

 

Fiscal Year Academic Voc Tech Total CEU 
2014-2015 15,873,248 6,122,448 21,995,696 2,290,228
2013-2014 15,931,744 5,822,268 21,754,012 1,980,830
2012-2013 16,237,296 5,744,810 21,982,106 1,933,271
2011-2012 17,354,256 5,822,072 23,176,328 1,798,940
2010-2011 17,802,080 5,924,078 23,726,158 1,914,445
2009-2010 16,652,752 5,680,164 22,332,916 1,880,857
2008-2009 14,345,992 4,883,890 19,229,882 1,810,761
2007-2008 12,739,232 4,422,336 17,161,568 1,847,195
2006-2007 12,077,904 4,378,250 16,456,154 2,091,365
2005-2006 11,487,128 4,260,486 15,747,614 1,974,799

Note:

Funded Contact Hours

In FY2012, the data in the table has been revised to reflect all fundable contact hours.  The 
contact hours has been restated to reflect the change for all year shown.
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
TRANSFERS TO SENIOR INSTITUTIONS 

2013-2014 GRADUATES* 
(Includes Only Public Senior Colleges in Texas) 

                      Table 19 
 
 

Total Student 
Count 

Academic

Total 
Student 
Count 

Technical

Total 
Student 
Count 

Tech-Prep

Total of all 
Sample 

Transfer 
Students

% of all 
Sample 
Transfer 
Students

1 Angelo State University 6 6 0.05%
2 Baylor College of Medicine 4 4 0.03%
3 Lamar University 152 8 1 161 1.36%
4 Midwestern State University 14 2 16 0.14%
5 Prairie View A&M University 335 15 1 351 2.97%
6 Sam Houston State University 344 12 1 357 3.02%
7 Stephen F. Austin State University 162 8 170 1.44%
8 Sul Ross State University 3 1 4 0.03%
9 Tarleton State University 8 8 0.07%

10 Texas A&M International University 3 3 0.03%
11 Texas A&M University 1,026 9 2 1,037 8.77%
12 Texas A&M University - Central Texas 1 1 0.01%
13 Texas A&M University - Commerce 15 2 17 0.14%
14 Texas A&M University - Corpus Christi 72 1 73 0.62%
15 Texas A&M University - Kingsville 31 2 33 0.28%
16 Texas A&M University - San Antonio 1 1 0.01%
17 Texas A&M University - Texarkana 1 1 0.01%
18 Texas A&M University at Galveston 34 1 35 0.30%
19 Texas A&M University System Health Science Center 19 19 0.16%
20 Texas Southern University 609 55 5 669 5.66%
21 Texas State University - San Marcos 353 9 362 3.06%
22 Texas Tech University 360 6 366 3.10%
23 Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center 30 4 34 0.29%
24 Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center - El Paso 1 1 0.01%
25 Texas Woman's University 146 8 154 1.30%
26 The University of Texas - Pan American 10 10 0.08%
27 The University of Texas at Arlington 136 21 1 158 1.34%
28 The University of Texas at Austin 1,122 12 1 1,135 9.60%
29 The University of Texas at Brownsville 1 1 0.01%
30 The University of Texas at Dallas 87 2 89 0.75%
31 The University of Texas at El Paso 6 6 0.05%
32 The University of Texas at San Antonio 237 4 1 242 2.05%
33 The University of Texas at Tyler 100 1 1 102 0.86%
34 The University of Texas Health Science Center at Houston 132 13 145 1.23%
35 The University of Texas Health Science Center at San Ant 10 1 11 0.09%
36 The University of Texas M.D. Anderson Cancer Center 42 3 45 0.38%
37 The University of Texas Medical Branch at Galveston 67 9 76 0.64%
38 The University of Texas of the Permian Basin 37 2 39 0.33%
39 The University of Texas Southwestern Medical Center 3 3 0.03%
40 University of Houston 3,404 113 8 3,525 29.82%
41 University of Houston - Clear Lake 193 19 212 1.79%
42 University of Houston - Downtown 1,522 134 3 1,659 14.03%
43 University of Houston - Victoria 327 27 354 2.99%
44 University of North Texas 109 4 113 0.96%
45 University of North Texas at Dallas 1 1 0.01%
46 University of North Texas at Dallas College of Law 1 1 0.01%
47 University of North Texas Health Science Center 6 6 0.05%
48 West Texas A&M University 5 5 0.04%

11,287 509 25 11,821 100.00%

Source: Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board http://www.txhighereddata.org/reports/performance/ctcasalf/ctcaddl/
*Latest information available.
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
CAPITAL ASSET INFORMATION 

FISCAL YEARS 2012 - 2015 
(Unaudited) 

 Table 20 
 
 

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2015 2014 2013 2012

Academic buildings *
Number of Academic Buildings 57 56 56 56
Square footage 3,158,812     3,141,592     3,100,787     3,117,169

Libraries 
Number of Libraries 15 15 15                 15
Square footage 166,637 168,020 148,020        148,020
Number of Volumes

Circulating books 252,646 248,133 241,382        231,099
Reference books 25,541 24,799 24,299          24,190
Media items 26,426 24,356 28,016          21,886
Magazines, Journals, Newspapers 415 589 230               210
Electronic books (Digital video) 207,507 186,540 69,609          46,195
Electronic Journals 23,746          48,758          23,535          19,136

Total 536,281 533,175 387,071 342,716

Administrative and support buildings 
Number of Administrative 

and support buildings 4 4 4 4
Square footage 656,124 656,124 656,124 656,124

Transportation
Bus 2 2 2 2
Cars 36 35 31 31
Golf Cart 24 23 28 29
Motorcycle/Segway 4 4 4 4
Motor Home/Mobile Unit 2 3 3 3
SUV 3 2 2 2
Tank 2 2 2 2
Tractors 31 33 29 29
Trailers 45 50 49 49
Truck 9 16 14 13
Truck, Heavy (Fire Truck) 6 4 4 4
Vans 24 21 21 20
Utility Vehicles 7 6 1 1

Total 195 201 190 189

*Buildings include academic, workforce, administrative, central chiller plants, and warehouses. Not including parking  
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SINGLE AUDIT 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2015 
Schedule E 

 
Pass-Through

Federal Grantor Federal  Pass-Through Disbursements 
  Pass-through Grantor CFDA Grantor's and
      Program Title Number Number Expenditures

U. S. Department of Education
Direct Programs:
Student Financial Assistance Cluster
       Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 84.007 1,019,765$                 
       Federal Work-Study Program 84.033 1,039,332                   
       Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 94,653,346                 
       Federal Direct Student Loans 84.268 87,466,957                 
       Teacher Education Assistance for College and Higher
            Education Grants (TEACH Grants) 84.379 25,380                        

Total Financial Assistance Cluster 184,204,780            

TRIO Cluster
       TRIO - Student Support Services 84.042 375,799                      
       TRIO - Upward Bound 84.047A 854,490                      

Total TRIO Cluster 1,230,289                 

Higher Education - Institutional Aid 84.031A 200,106                      
Minority Science and Engineering Improvement 84.120A 232,656                      
Transition Programs for Students with Intellectual Disabilities into
       Higher Education 84.407A 554,605                      

Pass-Through From:
       Texas A& M University
            Adult Education - Basic Grants to States 84.002 02-S140283 90,357                        

       Texas Workforce Commission
            Adult Education - Basic Grants to States 84.002A 2814ABE005 852,629                      
            Adult Education - Basic Grants to States 84.002A 2814ELC002 839                             
            Houston - Galveston Area Council
                 Adult Education - Basic Grants to States 84.002A 2814AELA00 3,338,150                   
                 Adult Education - Basic Grants to States 84.002A 2814AELA00 586,231                      

Total Texas Workforce Commission, Adult Education - Basic Grants to States 4,777,849                 

       University of St. Thomas
            Higher Education - Institutional Aid 84.031C UST HSI STEM 292,256                      

                       Delmar College
            Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 3,529                          
            Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 17,925                        

Total Delmar College- Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 21,454                      

                       Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board 
            Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 13253 31,543                        
            Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 14041 8,635                          
            Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 14033 1,285,994                   

Total THECB - Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 1,326,172                 

            Statewide Longitudinal Data Systems 84.372 R372A90010 9,197                          

Total Department of Education 192,939,721$          

 
 
 
 

See accompanying notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS - CONTINUED 

YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2015 
 

Schedule E 
 

Pass-Through
Federal Grantor Federal  Pass-Through Disbursements
  Pass-through Grantor CFDA Grantor's and
      Program Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Direct Programs:
      Hispanic Serving Institutions Education Grants 10.223 745$                       

Pass-Through From:
      Texas A&M University - Corpus Christi
           Hispanic Serving Institutions Education Grants 10.223 10-035 (1,780)                     
      University of Houston 
           Hispanic Serving Institutions Education Grants 10.223 R-14-0006 19,131                    
      Sam Houston State University 
           Capacity Building for Non-Land Grant College
             of Agriculture 10.326 22062A 13,692                    

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 31,788                  

U.S. Department of Commerce
Direct Programs:
       Minority Business Development Agency - 
           Business Center 11.805 265,908                  

Total U.S. Department of Commerce 265,908                

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Pass-Through From:
       City of Houston
            Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 B-12-MC-48-0018 700,000              

Total U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Department 700,000            

U.S. Department of Justice
Direct Programs:
       Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 825                         

Total U.S.Department of Justice 825                        

U.S. Department of State
Pass-Through From:
       Northern Virgina Community College
            Academic Exchange Programs-
               Undergraduate Programs 19.009 SECAGD-13-CA 088 137,073              

Total U.S. Department of State 137,073            

National Science Foundation
Direct Programs:
Mathematical and Physical Sciences 47.049 12,918                    
Pass-Through From:
       Texas Southern University
            Education and Human Resources 47.076 3283-5 39,341                    

Total National Science Foundation 52,259$                

 
See accompanying notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS - CONTINUED 

YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2015 
Schedule E 

 
Pass-Through

Federal Grantor Federal  Pass-Through Disbursements
  Pass-through Grantor CFDA Grantor's and
      Program Title Number Number Expenditures

U. S. Department of Veterans Affairs
Direct Programs:
        Post 9/11 Veterans Educational Assistance 64.028 2,117,048$               

Total U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs 2,117,048              

U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Pass-Through From:
       University of Houston - Dowtown
            NRC Scholarship/Fellowship and Faculty Development 
               Program 77.008 FY14 NRC HQ84-14-G-0028VI 7,431                        

Total U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission 7,431                      

U.S. Department of Energy
Direct Programs:
        Renewable Energy Research and Development 81.087 148,877                    
Pass-Through From:
       Houston - Galveston Area Council 
            Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy Information 
             Dissemination, Outreach, Training and Technical
              Analysis Assistance 81.117 UDOE.13.0103-10 9,940                        

Total U.S. Department of Energy 158,817                  

U. S. Department of Health and Human Services
Direct Programs:
Head Start Cluster
        Head Start 93.600 7,674                        
Pass-Through From:
        University of Texas at Austin
              Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services - Projects 93.243 UTA12-001074 11,938                      
                 of Regional and National Significance

        Houston - Galveston Area Council 
            TANF Cluster
              Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 2814AELA00 149,570                    

        Texas Work Force Commission
              Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 2814ABE005 12,273                      
              Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 2815SMP002 90,999                      
                 Total Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 103,272                    

        YMCA of Greater Houston
              Refugee and Entrant Assistance - Targeted Assistance Grants 93.584 529-14-0009-00036 32,693                      
              Refugee and Entrant Assistance - Targeted Assistance Grants 93.584 529-14-0009-00036 110,621                    
                 Total Refugee and Entrant Assistance - Targeted Assistance Grants 143,314                    

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 415,768$               

 
See accompanying notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS - CONTINUED 

YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2015 
Schedule E 

 
 

Pass-Through
Federal Grantor Federal  Pass-Through Disbursements
  Pass-through Grantor CFDA Grantor's and
      Program Title Number Number Expenditures

Corporation for National and Community Service
  Direct Programs:
         AmeriCorps 94.006 95,540$                      

Total Corporation for National and Community Service 95,540$                    

Total  Federal Financial Assistance 196,922,178$    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See accompanying notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

 
 
NOTE 1 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES USED IN PREPARING THE SCHEUDLE 
 
The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the federal grant activity of the System for the year 
ended August 31, 2015.  The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of 
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Government, and Non-Profit Organizations, and includes awards 
received directly from federal agencies as well as federal awards passed through other government agencies.  
 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual basis of 
accounting.  Revenue is recognized when earned and expenditures are recognized when incurred.  Revenues are 
reported only to the extent of expenditures for the current year.  Federal receivables represent amounts 
expended in excess of revenues received. 
 
 
NOTE 2 – FEDERAL ASSISTANCE RECONCILIATION  
 
Federal Grants and Contracts Revenue – per Schedule A 13,782,110$          
Reconciling items:

Schedule C – Title IV Grants 95,673,111            
Federal Direct Student Loans 87,466,957            

Total Federal Revenues per Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 196,922,178$        

 
NOTE 3 – SUBRECIPIENTS 
 
The following were sub recipients of the Adult Education Basic Grant Program (Adult Education and Family 
Literacy Act), CFDA 84.002.  These amounts are included as expenditures in the accompanying Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards. 

Alliance for Multicultural Community Services 668,445$               
Association for the Advance of Mexican Americans 582,737                 
AVANCE - Houston, Inc. 164,961                 
Chinese Community Center 145,281                 
Community Family Center 536,366                 
Houston Center for Literacy 467,748                 
Houston International University 72,909                   
Neighborhood Centers, Inc. 189,486                 

Total Passed-through to Subrecipients 2,827,933$            
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

 
 
NOTE 3 – SUBRECIPIENTS - CONTINUED 
 
The following were sub-recipients of the Minority Science and Engineering Improvement Grant, 
CFDA 84.120A.  This amount is included as expenditures in the accompanying Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
 
Houston Independent School District 12,970$                 
Rice University 32,572                   
Synergistic STEM Outreach Center 2,225                     

Total Passed-through to Subrecipients 47,767$                 

 
 
The following was a sub-recipient of the Department of Commerce Minority Business Development Agency 
Business Center grant, CFDA 11.805.  This amount is included as expenditures in the accompanying Schedule 
of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
 
Houston Minority Supplier Development Council 15,000$                 

 
 
The following was a sub-recipient of the Renewable Energy Research and Development grant, CFDA 81.087.  
These amounts are included as expenditures in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
 
Sam Houston State University 5,529$                   
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE OF TEXAS AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2015 
Schedule F 

 
Pass-Through

  Disbursements
State Grantor Grantor's and
      Program Title Number Expenditures
Texas Education Agency

Dropout Recovery Pilot Program Cycle 101045587110008 (157)$                   
Dropout Recovery Pilot Program Cycle 111045477110007 9,542                   
       Total Texas Education Agency 9,385                  

Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board
Adult Basic Education Innovation Grant 11562 100,113               
Accelerate Texas - Jobs for the Future N/A 4,000                   
Accelerate Texas - ABE Scaling & Sustaining Success 14160 1,915                   
Community in School (CIS) Counselor N/A 7,000                   
Collegiate G-Force Work-Study Mentorship Program N/A 25,543                 
Houston Pathways Initiative - College for Readiness 09928 7,796                   
Nursing Shortage Under 70 Program N/A 478,272               
Rider 58 ATCP Scholarship Grant N/A 7,600                   
Texas College Work Study Program N/A 407,397               
Texas Educational Opportunity Grant N/A 6,181,815            
Texas Grant Program N/A 364,456               

Pass-Through From:
       Austin Community College/United Way of Greater Houston - THRIVE

Texas Innovative Adult Career Education Program - Round# 1 177,989               
Texas Innovative Adult Career Education Program - Round# 2 88,802                 

       Total Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board 7,852,698          

Texas Workforce Commission
ABE - GED 2814ABE005 14,184                 
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 2814ABE005 25                        
Skilles Development - Ben E. Keith Co. 2813SDF003 (2,075)                  
Skills Development - Fugro 2813SDF006 31,963                 
Skills Development - Owens - Corning 2814SDF001 47,301                 
Skills Development - Schlumberger 2814SDF002 333,501               

Pass-Through From:
       Houston - Galveston Area Council

ABE - GED 2814AELA00 808,660               
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 2814AELA00 56,339                 

       Lone Star College
Veterans & Industry Partnerships 2814SDF005 47,988                 

       College of the Mainland
GRF COM  Texas Fast Start 2814GRF001 38,393                 

       Total Texas Workforce Commission 1,376,279          

Texas State Board of Public Accountancy
Fifth Year Accounting Student N/A 12,268                 
       Total Texas State Board of Public Accountancy 12,268               

Total State Financial Assistance 9,250,630$       

 
 

See accompanying notes to Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards. 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
 NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE OF TEXAS AWARDS 
 
 
NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 
The Schedule of Expenditures of State of Texas Awards presents the activity of State of Texas awards programs 
of Houston Community College System (the “System”) for the year ended August 31, 2015. State of Texas 
awards received directly from State agencies, as well as State of Texas awards passed-through other 
government agencies, are included in this schedule. 
 
 
NOTE 2 – BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of State of Texas Awards is presented using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Revenue is recognized when earned and expenditures are recognized when incurred. Revenues are 
reported only to the extent of expenditures for the current year. State receivables represent amounts expended in 
excess of revenue received. 
 
 
NOTE 3 – STATE ASSISTANCE RECONCILIATION 
 

State Grants and Contracts revenue – per Schedule A                            8,772,358$            
Reconciling items:

Schedule C – Nursing Shortage Reduction 478,272                 

Total State revenues per Schedule of Expenditures of State of Texas Awards   9,250,630$            

 
 
NOTE 4 – SUBRECIPIENTS 
 
The following were sub-recipients of the ABE Innovation Grant program.  These amounts are included as 
expenditures in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of State of Texas Awards. 
 
Alvin Community College 22,515$                 
Galveston College/TGCC 13,286                   

Total Passed-through to Subrecipients 35,801$                 

 
 
The following was a sub recipient of the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board CIS Counselor Grant.  
This amount is included as expenditures in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of State of Texas 
Awards. 
 
Communities in Schools in Houston 7,000$                   
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2015 
 
 
SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2015 
 
 
SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS – CONTINUED  
 

 
  
 
SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 To be updated 
 
 
SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS – MAJOR FEDERAL AND 
STATE OF TEXAS AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT 
 To be updated 
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ACTION ITEM 
 

Meeting Date:  December 17, 2015 
 

Committee:  Facilities and Finance 
 

ITEM NO. ITEM TITLE PRESENTER 
 

3 Resolution Authorizing the                                                  
Acceptance of Public Facilities from the 

Houston Community College System 
Public Facility Corporation  

Dr. Cesar Maldonado 
Teri Zamora  

Andrews Kurth LLP 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve resolution for the acceptance of public facilities from the Houston Community College System 
Public Facility Corporation (PFC).  Authorize the Chair of the Board of Trustees to execute all deeds and 
any and all other documents as necessary to convey the public facilities to the System.      
 
COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE 
The Resolution facilitates the conveyance of the properties from the PFC to the System and authorizes all 
necessary documents.     
 

DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND 
The PFC issued Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2005A (Westgate), Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2005C 
(Public Safety Institute) and Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 (Alief) to finance the acquisition and 
construction of public facilities. On July 22, 2015 the System issued Combined Fee Revenue Bonds which 
defeased (retired) the PFC Series 2005C and Series 2006 Bonds. The System made a full redemption of the 
outstanding PFC Series 2005A Bonds on October 15, 2015. As a result of these transactions, the PFC debt 
for these properties has been fully retired and the System is exercising its option to purchase the 
properties from the PFC. 
 
In connection with the original PFC bond and trust covenants, the System purchased the Westgate and 
Public Safety Institute properties from the PFC effective October 15, 2015. The System will purchase the 
Alief property from the PFC on April 15, 2016 pursuant to the Alief bond and trust documents.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Upon completion of the conveyance of the properties, the System will become the legal owner and deeds 
will be recorded in the name of the System.     
 
LEGAL REQUIREMENT 
Texas Local Government Code, Section 303.041.     
 
STRATEGIC GOAL ALIGNMENT 
Strategic Initiative:  Support Innovation 
 
 
Attachment Title(s): Board Resolution             
 

 

This item is applicable to the following: 
 Central  Coleman  Northeast  Northwest  Southeast  Southwest  3100 
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CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS      § 

COUNTIES OF HARRIS AND FORT BEND   § 

HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM   § 

 

I, the undersigned officer of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of the Houston 

Community College System (the “System”), hereby certify as follows: 

1. The Board of the System convened in a regular meeting on December 17, 2015, in 

the Board Conference Room at the Houston Community College Administration Building, 3100 

Main, 2nd Floor Auditorium, Houston, Texas, and the roll was called of the duly constituted 

officers and members of said Board, to-wit: 

Trustee Office 

Zeph Capo Chair 

Robert Glaser Vice Chair 

Dr. Adriana Tamez Secretary 

Dave Wilson Trustee 

Dr. Carolyn Evans-Shabazz Trustee 

Sandie Mullins Trustee 

Neeta Sane Trustee 

Eva Loredo Trustee 

Christopher W. Oliver Trustee 

 

and all of such persons were present, except _______________________, thus constituting a 

quorum.  Whereupon, among other business, the following was transacted at said meeting: a 

written 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC 

FACILITIES FROM THE HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 

PUBLIC FACILITY CORPORATION; AND CONTAINING OTHER 

MATTERS RELATED THERETO 

 

was duly introduced for the consideration of the Board.  It was then duly moved and seconded 

that such Resolution be passed; and, after due discussion, such motion, carrying with it the 

passage of such Resolution, prevailed and carried by the following vote: 

  ____  Ayes  ___  Noes  ___  Abstentions 

 

2. That a true, full and correct copy of such Resolution passed at the meeting 

described in the above and foregoing paragraph is attached to and follows this Certificate; that 

such Resolution has been duly recorded in such Board’s minutes of such meeting; that the above 

and foregoing paragraph is a true, full and correct excerpt from such Board’s minutes of such 

meeting pertaining to the passage of such Resolution; that the persons named in the above and 

foregoing paragraph are the duly chosen, qualified and acting officers and members of the Board 

as indicated therein; that each of the officers and members of the Board was duly and sufficiently 

notified officially and personally, in advance of the time, place and purpose of such meeting, and 
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that such Resolution would be introduced and considered for passage at such meeting, and each 

of such officers and members consented, in advance, to the holding of such meeting for such 

purpose; and that such meeting was  open to the public, and public notice of the time, place and 

purpose of such meeting was given all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as 

amended.  

SIGNED AND SEALED this _____________________, 2015. 

 

  _____________ 

Secretary, Board of Trustees 
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RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC 

FACILITIES FROM THE HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 

PUBLIC FACILITY CORPORATION; AND CONTAINING OTHER 

MATTERS RELATED THERETO 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 303, Texas Local Government Code, the Houston 

Community College System (the “System”) created the Houston Community College System 

Public Facility Corporation (the “Corporation”) for the purpose, among others, of assisting the 

System in the financing of the following public facilities: the Alief Campus (the “Alief 

Facility”), the Public Safety Institute (the “PSI Facility”) and the Westgate Campus (the 

“Westgate Facility”) (such facilities collectively referred to herein as the “Public Facilities”); 

 

WHEREAS, the Corporation issued its Lease Revenue Bonds (Westgate Campus 

Project), Series 2005A (the “Westgate Bonds”); Lease Revenue Bonds (Public Safety Institute 

Project), Series 2005C (the “PSI Bonds”); and Lease Revenue Bonds (Alief Campus Project), 

Series 2006 (the “Alief Bonds”) to finance the construction of the Public Facilities; 

 

WHEREAS, the Westgate Bonds and the PSI Bonds were fully defeased and the 

Westgate Facility and PSI Facility were purchased by the System on October 15, 2015, and an 

escrow account has been established with the trustee for the Alief Bonds that is sufficient to fully 

defease the Alief Bonds and to effect the purchase by the System of the Alief Facility on April 

15, 2016; 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of the Corporation intends to convey the Public Facilities to the 

System and the Board of Trustees of the System (the “Board”) finds it in its best interest to 

accept such conveyance; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 303.041, Texas Local Government Code, permits the Corporation to 

convey the Public Facilities to the System. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM: 

 

 SECTION  1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The recitals of this Resolution are 

hereby found to be true and correct and are incorporated fully herein. 

 

SECTION 2. ACCEPTANCE OF CONVEYANCE.  The Board hereby approves the 

acceptance by the System of the Corporation’s conveyance of the Public Facilities.  Further, the 

System hereby authorizes the Chair of the Board to execute all deeds and any and all other 

documents necessary or appropriate to effect the conveyance of the Public Facilities to the 

System and to take all other actions necessary or appropriate in furtherance of this Section and 

this Resolution generally. 

 

 SECTION 3.   SEVERABILITY.  If any provisions of this Resolution or the application 

thereof to any circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the 
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application thereof to other circumstances shall nevertheless be valid and the Board hereby 

declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid provision. 

 

 

 SIGNED AND SEALED this the ________ day of _____________, 2015. 

 

 

 

              

       Chair, Board of Trustees 

 

 

       

Secretary, Board of Trustees 

 

 

[SEAL] 
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ACTION ITEM 
 

Meeting Date:  December 17, 2015 
 

Committee:  Facilities and Finance 
 

ITEM NO. ITEM TITLE PRESENTER 
 

4 Investment Report for the  
Month of October 2015 

Dr. Cesar Maldonado 
Teri Zamora 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the Investment Report for the month of October 2015.  
 
COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE 
The monthly report advises the Board on the status of the investment portfolio and complies with the 
relevant statute.    
 

DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND 
This report provides information related to the various investments of the college, including book values 
and market values.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The interest income earned and earnings credit for the month totaled $224,794 and the interest income 
earned and earnings credit for the fiscal year totaled $444,107.  The weighted average interest rate (WAR) 
at October 31, 2015 is .43%.  
 
The Investment Report attached identifies HCC's investment holdings for the month ending October 31, 
2015.  It includes the unexpended proceeds of the various bond issues.  The portfolio is highly liquid and 
secure with 68% of the assets invested in local government pools, money markets funds, short-term 
certificates of deposit and interest bearing checking accounts.  All pools and money market funds are 
rated at the highest level.  Certificates of deposit, high yield savings and other bank deposits are secured 
with U.S. Treasuries/agencies.  The balance of the portfolio is invested in U.S. Treasuries and government-
sponsored entities/agencies with "AAA" credit ratings.  Interest rates have remained historically low.     
 
LEGAL REQUIREMENT 
This report is required by the Public Funds Investment Act (Texas Government Code 2256.023) to be 
submitted to the governing body of Houston Community College no less than quarterly.  
 
STRATEGIC GOAL ALIGNMENT 
Strategic Initiative:  Support Innovation 
 
 
 
Attachment Title(s): Investment Report - October 2015 
 
 
 

 
 

This item is applicable to the following: 
 Central  Coleman  Northeast  Northwest  Southeast  Southwest  3100 



HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM
INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION

As of  October 31, 2015

Beginning Book Value (October 1, 2015) $ 510,296,302

Beginning Market Value (October 1, 2015) $ 510,185,241

Additions/subtractions (Book value - Net) $ (25,227,325) *

Change in Market value $ (32,083)

Ending Book value (October 31, 2015) $ 485,068,977

Ending Market value (October 31, 2015) $ 484,931,283

Unrealized Gain/(Loss) $ (137,695)

WAM (73% of Portfolio's weighted average maturity - All Funds) 1

This report is in compliance with the investment strategies approved in Houston Community College  
System investment policy and is in accordance with the Public Funds Investment Act of 1999.

Note: This month's Investment does not include funds on deposit with Bank Of America which is
earning higher than market yield from earning credits.

*  Net amount provided for Operations (20,678,665)
    Net amount provided for CIP/Others (4,548,660)

(25,227,325)

Ending Ending Unrealized
Book Value Market Value Gain (Loss)

US Treasuries 18,986,800        18,984,881        (1,919)                     
US Agencies 134,162,649      134,026,874      (135,776)                
Local government pools 10,131,128        10,131,128        -                                
Money market funds 163,586,664      163,586,664      -                                
High yield savings 1,742,472           1,742,472           -                                
Certificates of deposit 145,250,000      145,250,000      -                                
Interest bearing checking 11,209,264        11,209,264        -                                
  Total 485,068,977      484,931,283      (137,695)                

WAR (weighted average interest rate) 0.43%

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
INVENTORY HOLDINGS REPORT

October 31, 2015



Description Held At Coupon 
Rate

Purchase 
Date

Maturity 
Date Par Beginning 

Mkt. Value
Beginning 

Book Value
Purchased 

(Redeemed)
Ending 

Book Value
Ending 

Mkt. Value
Change in 
Mkt. Value

Unrealized 
Gain/(Loss)

Fannie Mae ARM Pool 708686 Bank of America 2.48% 02/22/05 05/01/33 51,072 54,187                 52,671                (190) 52,481                53,977                (14)                1,496               
Fannie Mae ARM Pool 805454 Bank of America 2.64% 12/23/04 12/01/34 44,977 48,113                 50,991                (156) 50,835                47,941                (25)                (2,894)             
Federal Home Loan Bank US Domestic Multi-step 
cpn Bond Structured Note Bank of America 1.50% 07/30/12 07/30/27 2,000,000 1,952,256          2,000,000          0 2,000,000          1,941,528         (10,728)       (58,472)          

Freddie Mac Domestic MTN Unsecured Bond Bank of America 1.00% 08/22/12 02/22/18 1,000,000 998,730              1,000,000          0 1,000,000          1,001,037         2,307           1,037               

Federal Home Loan Bank US Domestic Unsecured  Bank of America 0.25% 01/23/15 01/22/16 2,000,000 2,000,150          1,999,720          0 1,999,720          2,000,008         (142)             288                  

Federal Home Loan Bank US Domestic Unsecured  Bank of America 0.52% 07/10/14 09/12/16 1,080,000 1,079,235          1,078,304          (1,078,304) 0                            -                            -                     (0)                      

Federal Home Loan Bank US Domestic Unsecured  Bank of America 0.27% 08/19/15 02/22/16 1,000,000 999,316              998,598             0 998,598              999,627             311               1,030               

Federal Home Loan Bank US Domestic Unsecured  Bank of America 0.33% 08/24/15 04/20/16 10,000,000 9,987,090          9,978,667          0 9,978,667          9,991,030         3,940           12,363            
Federal Home Loan Bank US Domestic Multi-step 
cpn Bond Structured Note Bank of America 2.00% 07/30/12 07/30/27 1,080,000 1,043,001          1,080,000          0 1,080,000          1,037,492         (5,509)         (42,508)          
Federal Home Loan Bank US Domestic Multi-step 
cpn Bond Structured Note Bank of America 2.00% 08/27/12 11/27/24 1,600,000 1,587,264          1,600,000          0 1,600,000          1,601,042         13,778        1,042               
Federal Home Loan Bank US Domestic Multi-step 
cpn Bond Structured Note Bank of America 2.00% 07/30/12 07/30/27 2,675,000 2,634,506          2,675,000          0 2,675,000          2,627,800         (6,706)         (47,200)          
Federal Farm Credit Bank US Domestic  
Unsecured Bank of America 2.00% 04/11/13 04/11/18 10,000,000 10,000,990        10,000,000       0 10,000,000       10,000,400       (590)             400                  
Fannie Mae US Domestic Multi-step cpn Bond 
Structured Note Bank of America 2.00% 06/13/13 06/13/18 10,000,000 9,984,340          10,000,000       0 10,000,000       9,981,510         (2,830)         (18,490)          
U.S. Treasury Notes US Govt. National Bank of America 0.80% 07/10/14 06/30/16 4,000,000 4,006,876          4,001,250          0 4,001,250          4,003,436         (3,440)         2,186               
Federal Home Loan Bank US Domestic Unsecured  Bank of America 0.50% 02/02/15 01/26/16 5,000,000 5,002,915          5,000,000          0 5,000,000          5,001,020         (1,895)         1,020               

Federal Home Loan Bank US Domestic Unsecured  Bank of America 0.25% 04/07/15 03/11/16 5,000,000 4,999,460          4,998,425          0 4,998,425          4,997,525         (1,935)         (900)                 

Federal Home Loan Bank US Domestic Unsecured  Bank of America #REF! 04/07/15 03/11/16 5,000,000 4,999,460          4,998,425          0 4,998,425          4,997,525         (1,935)         (900)                 
Federal Home Loan Bank US Domestic series 000 
unsecured Bank of America 0.25% 04/13/15 04/13/17 2,775,000 2,778,191          2,775,000          0 2,775,000          2,778,377         186               3,377               
Freddie Mac Global  Unsecured Bond Bank of America 0.25% 05/21/15 01/27/17 5,000,000 4,999,040          4,994,550          0 4,994,550          4,995,380         (3,660)         830                  
Federal Home Loan Bank GLOBAL Unsecured  Bank of America 0.75% 05/21/15 10/28/16 5,000,000 5,001,270          5,000,000          (5,000,000) -                             -                            -                     -                         

Federal Home Loan Bank US Domestic Unsecured  Bank of America 0.70% 05/21/15 04/29/16 5,000,000 4,998,500          4,998,850          0 4,998,850          4,997,770         (730)             (1,080)             

U.S. Treasury Notes US Govt. National Bank of America 0.25% 05/21/15 03/31/17 5,000,000 4,999,155          4,995,300          0 4,995,300          4,994,465         (4,690)         (835)                 

U.S. Treasury Notes US Govt. National Bank of America 0.25% 05/21/15 10/31/16 5,000,000 4,998,895          4,996,500          0 4,996,500          4,996,030         (2,865)         (470)                 
Federal Farm Credit Bank US Domestic 
Unsecured  Bank of America 0.50% 05/21/15 03/27/17 5,000,000 4,997,705          4,993,550          0 4,993,550          4,992,825         (4,880)         (725)                 

U.S. Treasury Notes US Govt. National Bank of America 0.50% 05/21/15 04/30/17 5,000,000 4,996,225          4,993,750          0 4,993,750          4,990,950         (5,275)         (2,800)             

Federal Home Loan Bank US Domestic Unsecured  Bank of America 1.22% 05/26/15 05/26/16 5,000,000 4,996,025          4,996,500          0 4,996,500          4,994,770         (1,255)         (1,730)             

Freddie Mac MTN Domestic  Unsecured Bond Bank of America 0.50% 05/29/15 08/25/17 10,000,000 9,996,160          10,000,000       0 10,000,000       10,002,100       5,940           2,100               
Freddie Mac MTN Domestic  Unsecured Bond Bank of America 0.25% 05/29/15 05/25/17 5,000,000 5,003,015          5,000,000          0 5,000,000          5,001,295         (1,720)         1,295               

Federal Home Loan Bank US Domestic Unsecured  Bank of America 0.70% 06/17/15 05/25/17 5,000,000 5,001,510          5,000,000          0 5,000,000          5,000,820         (690)             820                  

Federal Home Loan Bank US Domestic Unsecured  Bank of America 0.70% 10/28/15 04/29/16 5,000,000 -                             -                             4,994,889 4,994,889          4,995,275         -                     386                  

Federal Home Loan Dicount note US Domestic   Bank of America 0.60% 09/25/15 02/12/16 10,000,000 9,993,630          9,992,222          0 9,992,222          9,996,600         2,970           4,378               

Freddie Mac MTN Domestic  Unsecured Bond Bank of America 0.50% 10/01/15 02/25/16 10,000,000 -                             -                             9,992,854 9,992,854          9,996,170         -                     3,316               

Federal Home Loan Dicount note US Domestic   Bank of America 0.20% 10/02/15 02/29/16 10,000,000 -                             -                             9,992,083 9,992,083          9,996,030         -                     3,947               

INVESTMENTS
INVENTORY HOLDINGS REPORT (OPERATING AND OTHERS)

As of  October 31, 2015



Description Held At Coupon 
Rate

Purchase 
Date

Maturity 
Date Par Beginning 

Mkt. Value
Beginning 

Book Value
Purchased 

(Redeemed)
Ending 

Book Value
Ending 

Mkt. Value
Change in 
Mkt. Value

Unrealized 
Gain/(Loss)

Plant Fund Interest Checking (10060-7201) Bank Of America 0.11% 10/01/15 66,510 66,510 8 66,518 66,518 0 0

Debt Service 2001A Bond Int Checking (10080) Bank Of America 0.11% 10/01/15 465,047 465,047 21 465,068 465,068 0 0
HCCS Merchant service (10012) Bank Of America 0.30% 10/01/15 6,416,064 6,416,064 (33,517) 6,382,547 6,382,547 0 0

Checking Acoount- 10010-7306-2006 Jr. lien Bank Of America 0.11% 10/01/15 229 229 0 229 229 0 0
LTD2013 Tax Bond Grneral Checking A/C 
(10090) Bank Of America 0.11% 10/01/15 25,880,866 25,880,866 (23,519,106) 2,361,760 2,361,760 0 0

LTD2003 Tax Bond Checking A/C (10092) Bank Of America 0.11% 10/01/15 1,931,529 1,931,529 197 1,931,726 1,931,726 0 0
Managed PFI Account-10100-1110 Bank Of America 0.20% 10/01/15 1,416 1,416 0 1,416 1,416 0 0
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & smith (1110) Bank Of America 0.04% 10/01/15  455,892 455,892 29 455,921 455,921 0 0
Public Fund Money Market_Premier 
(159406615) Regions Bank 0.18% 10/01/15 80,633,333 80,633,333 (375,850) 80,257,483 80,257,483 0 0
Public Fund Money Market_Premier 
(185913820)- fund 1110 Regions Bank 0.15% 10/01/15 102,474,418 102,474,418 (19,601,158) 82,873,260 82,873,260 0 0
Chase High Yield Savings (A/C 2049911718) Chase Bank 0.03% 10/01/15 814,164 814,164 (600,009) 214,155 214,155 0 0
Chase High Yield Savings (A/C 3000684286) Chase Bank 0.03% 10/01/15 1,528,280 1,528,280 38 1,528,317 1,528,317 0 0
Fixed Time Deposit with Unity Bank Unity Bank 0.26% 06/09/15 06/09/16 100,000 100,000 0 100,000 100,000 0 0
Fixed Time Deposit with Unity Bank Unity Bank 0.25% 10/18/15 10/18/16 150,000 150,000 0 150,000 150,000 0 0
Certificate of Deposit Chase Bank 0.49% 07/25/13 01/24/16 5,000,000 5,000,000 0 5,000,000 5,000,000 0 0
Certificate of Deposit Chase Bank 0.50% 04/03/13 04/03/16 40,000,000 40,000,000 0 40,000,000 40,000,000 0 0
Certificate of Deposit Chase Bank 0.49% 07/25/13 07/24/16 5,000,000 5,000,000 0 5,000,000 5,000,000 0 0
Certificate of Deposit Chase Bank 0.69% 03/22/13 03/22/17 30,000,000 30,000,000 0 30,000,000 30,000,000 0 0
Certificate of Deposit Chase Bank 0.49% 07/25/13 07/24/17 5,000,000 5,000,000 0 5,000,000 5,000,000 0 0
Certificate of Deposit Chase Bank 0.99% 03/23/13 03/21/18 20,000,000 20,000,000 0 20,000,000 20,000,000 0 0
Certificate of Deposit Chase Bank 0.98% 03/22/13 03/22/18 20,000,000 20,000,000 0 20,000,000 20,000,000 0 0
Certificate of Deposit Chase Bank 1.02% 04/03/13 04/03/18 20,000,000 20,000,000 0 20,000,000 20,000,000 0 0
Corporate Overnight Fund Lone Star 0.19% 10/01/15  1,598,696 1,598,696 249 1,598,944 1,598,944 0 0
Tex Pool State Street Bank 0.06% 10/01/15  8,531,587 8,531,587 596 8,532,183 8,532,183 0 0
 TOTAL  510,185,241 510,296,302 (25,227,326) 485,068,977 484,931,283 (32,083) (137,695)
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RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the Financial Statement for the month of October 2015.  
 
COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE 
The monthly report advises the Board on the status of the finances of the college.   
 

DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND 
This report provides information related to the various funds of the college, including fund balances, 
comparison to previous year and comparison to budget.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Awareness and review of financial information throughout the year helps to inform decision making, and 
allows for mid-year adjustments, as needed.   
 
LEGAL REQUIREMENT 
N/A  
 
STRATEGIC GOAL ALIGNMENT 
Strategic Initiative:  Support Innovation 
 
 
 
Attachment Title(s): Financial Statement - October 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This item is applicable to the following: 
 Central  Coleman  Northeast  Northwest  Southeast  Southwest  3100 
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Houston Community College System 
Summary of Financial Statements 

As of October 31, 2015 
 
 

 

In the Unrestricted Fund as of October 31, 2015, total revenue received is $64.2 million. This 

represents 19.8% of budgeted annual revenues of $324.6 million. Expenses total $60 million to 

date; which is 18.5% of the total expense budget of $324.6 million.  Compared with the same 

time last year, revenue shows a 0.4% increase, and expenses are 18.5% higher than the prior 

year.  Actual net revenue is $4.2 million to‐date.  That translates into a like amount increase in 

fund balance. 

 

Salaries increased 6.3%.  This increase is due namely to the compensation study alignment and 

an across the board salary increase of 2% for full‐time employees. 

 

The expenses in Transfers & Debt show an increase of $8.4 million namely due to the 

redemption of the PFC Westgate Bonds Series 2005A in the amount of $8.1 million.  

 

Total revenue and expenses are expected to fall within budget plan at year end.  

 

 



Unrestricted Restricted Auxiliary

Loan & 

Endowments  Scholarship Agency          

Unexpended 

Plant     

Capital and 

Technology

Retirement of 

Debt 

Investment in 

Plant     

Public Facility 

Corp. Grand Total

Fund Balance as of 9/1/2015, Unaudited  $      123,710,238   $        510,035   $        7,828,062   $               509,932   $                      (0)  $                        ‐     $          3,991,336   $       5,660,509   $       52,039,009   $   248,278,791   $      (3,133,924)  $      439,393,989 

Revenues            64,232,497          8,535,050             1,913,063                                ‐            35,887,855                             ‐                    801,765                           ‐                2,199,934                            ‐                              ‐             113,570,164 

Expenses
Salaries 33,331,313            959,734            291,011               ‐                            270,525               ‐                         46,204                    ‐                       ‐                         ‐                        ‐                        34,898,787           

Employee Benefits 4,185,472              2,185,550         82,709                 ‐                            ‐                        ‐                         10,680                    ‐                       ‐                         ‐                        ‐                        6,464,411             

Supplies & General Exp 479,376                 22,160              95,235                 ‐                            ‐                        ‐                         142                         5,496                  ‐                         ‐                        ‐                        602,410                 

Travel 76,096                    16,959              8,543                   ‐                            ‐                        ‐                         434                         ‐                       ‐                         ‐                        ‐                        102,031                 

Marketing Costs 32,259                    1,559                 51,690                 ‐                            ‐                        ‐                         ‐                          ‐                       ‐                         ‐                        ‐                        85,507                   

Rentals & Leases 293,169                 7,266                 10,175                 ‐                            ‐                        ‐                         ‐                          ‐                       ‐                         ‐                        ‐                        310,610                 

Insurance/Risk Mgmt 4,416,896              2,324                 224                       ‐                            ‐                        ‐                         ‐                          ‐                       ‐                         ‐                        ‐                        4,419,444             

Contracted Services 1,798,858              469,766            518,956               ‐                            ‐                        ‐                         255                         26,125                12,773                   ‐                        ‐                        2,826,732             

Utilities 838,143                 ‐                     19,438                 ‐                            ‐                        ‐                         ‐                          ‐                       ‐                         ‐                        ‐                        857,581                 

Other Departmental Expenses 365,843                 11,874              297,588               ‐                            ‐                        ‐                         ‐                          ‐                       ‐                         ‐                        ‐                        675,305                 

Instructional and Other Materials 1,826,240              4,042                 39,107                 ‐                            ‐                        ‐                         ‐                          ‐                       ‐                         ‐                        ‐                        1,869,389             

Maintenance and Repair 58,740                    53,976              2,601                   ‐                            44,173                 ‐                         ‐                          47,539                ‐                         ‐                        ‐                        207,029                 

Transfers (In)/Out* 12,112,364            4,000,000         ‐                        ‐                            (1,625,606)          ‐                         500,000                 (9,000,000)         (5,986,759)           ‐                        ‐                        (0)                            

Debt ‐                          ‐                     ‐                        ‐                            ‐                        ‐                         ‐                          ‐                       10,596,016           ‐                        338,553               10,934,569           

Capital Outlay 199,387                 104,130            ‐                        ‐                            ‐                        ‐                         4,858,263              162,594              ‐                         ‐                        ‐                        5,324,373             

Depreciation ‐                          ‐                     ‐                        ‐                            ‐                        ‐                         ‐                          ‐                       ‐                         3,630,549           ‐                        3,630,549             

Scholarship Distribution ‐                          ‐                     ‐                        ‐                            37,198,764         ‐                         ‐                          ‐                       ‐                         ‐                        ‐                        37,198,764           

Total Expenses 60,014,156            7,839,340         1,417,274           ‐                            35,887,855         ‐                         5,415,978              (8,758,245)         4,622,031             3,630,549           338,553               110,407,492         

NET REVENUE/(EXPENSES) 4,218,342              695,709            495,789               ‐                            0                            ‐                         (4,614,213)             8,758,245          (2,422,097)           (3,630,549)          (338,553)             3,162,672             

Fund Balance Entries ‐                          ‐                     ‐                        ‐                            ‐                        ‐                         3,797,017              93,750                ‐                         8,264,361           (79,327)               12,075,801           

Fund Balance as of 10/31/2015 127,928,579$       1,205,744$      8,323,851$         509,932$                 0$                         ‐$                      3,174,140$            14,512,505$      49,616,913$        252,912,602$    (3,551,804)$       454,632,462$      

*Transfers include student revenue bond payment funds, scholarship matching funds, and transfers to Unexpended Plant and Capital and Technology Funds

Unaudited Fund Balances and Activities ‐ All Funds

as of October 31, 2015
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Year‐to‐Date Actuals 

Thru October 31, 

2015 FY2016 Budget

Actuals as a % 

of Budget

Year‐to‐Date Actuals 

Thru October 31, 2015

Year‐to‐Date Actuals 

Thru October 31, 

2014

Increase (Decrease) 

FY2016 Compared to 

FY2015

% Increase 

(Decrease)

REVENUES

State Appropriations 16,798,900$       69,995,427$         24.0% 16,798,900$         16,595,743$       203,157$               1.2%
Ad Valorem Taxes 19,620                  136,000,000        0.0% 19,620                  9,644                   9,976                     103.4%
Tuition, Net 17,303,293          40,925,000          42.3% 17,303,293           17,086,996         216,297                 1.3%
Fees 26,490,361          65,325,000          40.6% 26,490,361           26,795,113         (304,752)               ‐1.1%
Other Local Income 378,921                2,250,000            16.8% 378,921                322,876               56,045                   17.4%
Tuition & Fee, Net

 ‐‐ Extended Learning
3,156,441             9,500,000              33.2% 3,156,441             3,068,865             87,576                     2.9%

Indirect Cost Revenues, Grant  84,960                  620,000                13.7% 84,960                  128,380               (43,419)                  ‐33.8%
Total Revenues 64,232,497          324,615,427        19.8% 64,232,497           64,007,617         224,880                 0.4%

EXPENSES

Salaries 33,331,313          190,454,859        17.5% 33,331,313           31,364,364         1,966,950             6.3%
Employee Benefits 4,185,472            21,210,175          19.7% 4,185,472            3,395,210           790,261                 23.3%
Supplies Gen Exp 479,376                5,469,877            8.8% 479,376                607,597               (128,221)               ‐21.1%
Travel 76,096                  1,900,866            4.0% 76,096                  96,907                 (20,811)                  ‐21.5%
Marketing Costs 32,259                  982,446                3.3% 32,259                  126,413               (94,154)                  ‐74.5%
Rental & Leases 293,169                2,512,473            11.7% 293,169                305,450               (12,280)                  ‐4.0%
Insurance/Risk Mgmt 4,416,896            5,551,305            79.6% 4,416,896            6,376,167           (1,959,271)            ‐30.7%
Contract Services 1,798,858            23,751,553          7.6% 1,798,858            1,386,656           412,202                 29.7%
Utilities 838,143                10,246,651          8.2% 838,143                1,129,010           (290,867)               ‐25.8%
Other Departmental Expenses 365,843                2,470,803            14.8% 365,843                246,481               119,362                 48.4%
Instructional & Other Materials 1,826,240            9,665,164            18.9% 1,826,240            1,563,528           262,712                 16.8%
Maintenance & Repair 58,740                  1,348,393            4.4% 58,740                  64,773                 (6,033)                    ‐9.3%
Transfers/Debt 12,112,364          40,713,014          29.8% 12,112,364           3,633,235           8,479,129             233.4%
Contingency ‐                             5,051,007            0.0% ‐                             ‐                        ‐                          0.0%
Capital Outlay 199,387                3,286,840            6.1% 199,387                356,129               (156,742)               ‐44.0%

     Total Expenses  60,014,156$       324,615,427$      18.5% 60,014,156$         50,651,919$       9,362,237             18.5%

NET REVENUE/(EXPENSES) 4,218,342$          0$                           0.0% 4,218,342$          13,355,698$       (9,137,357)$           ‐68.4%

HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM
Comparison to Budget and Comparison to Previous Fiscal Year

as of October 31, 2015

  HCCS CURRENT UNRESTRICTED
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16.7% of Year Expended



Main Leasing Misc. Auxiliary* Foundation Marketing

Bookstore 

Commission

International 

Student Services

Cafe Club NEO 

3100 Main Scholarships

Subtotal 

Uncommitted

21,618,246$      (15,846,310)$       (1,919,112)$           (22,697,403)$           26,337,287$      (2,029,029)$      (1,579,123)$      (462,396)$          3,422,158$     

FY2016
 Revenue  880,410                153,948                 ‐                                ‐                                   413,643               ‐                           86,252                 ‐                           1,534,253        

 Salaries  44,341                   78,942                      18,249                        ‐                                     ‐                             47,554                   40,517                   ‐                             229,603              

 Benefits  11,132                   34,400                      4,253                          ‐                                     ‐                             12,016                   10,400                   ‐                             72,202                

 Supplies Gen Exp  1,797                     579                           17                               ‐                                     ‐                             ‐                             837                        ‐                             3,229                  

 Travel  ‐                             1,456                        1,988                          ‐                                     ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             3,443                  

 Marketing Costs  ‐                             ‐                                ‐                                  51,690                          ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             51,690                

 Rental & Leases  ‐                             9,525                        ‐                                  ‐                                     ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             9,525                  

 Contract Services  497,655                ‐                                ‐                                  ‐                                     ‐                             ‐                             263                        ‐                             497,918              

 Utilities  19,438                   ‐                                ‐                                  ‐                                     ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             19,438                

 Departmental Expenses  ‐                             64,491                      ‐                                  225,102                        ‐                             395                        ‐                             ‐                             289,988              

 Instructional & Other 

Materials 
600                        1,946                        ‐                                  ‐                                     ‐                             ‐                             36,385                   ‐                             38,931                

 Maintenance & Repair  ‐                             ‐                                ‐                                  ‐                                     ‐                             ‐                             2,601                     ‐                             2,601                  

 Insurance/Risk Mgmt  ‐                             ‐                                ‐                                  ‐                                     ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                           

 Exemptions and Waivers  ‐                             ‐                                ‐                                  ‐                                     ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             439,999                439,999              

Transfer/Debt ‐                             ‐                                ‐                                  ‐                                     ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                           

 Capital Outlay  ‐                             ‐                                ‐                                  ‐                                     ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                           

 Total Expense  574,962                191,339                   24,507                       276,791                        ‐                             59,965                  91,004                  439,999                1,658,566          

Contribution to Fund Balance 305,448              (37,392)               (24,507)                 (276,791)                 413,643             (59,965)            (4,752)               (439,999)          (124,314)        

Auxiliary Fund Balance ‐ Uncommitted Portion 3,297,845$     

* Expenditures in this category include mailroom, child day care, Minority Male Initiative, Govt. Relation, Mobile Go, etc.
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Fund Balance – 

September 1, 2015 (Unaudited )

HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM
Auxiliary Budget By Fund

as of October 31, 2015

Auxilary Funds ‐ Uncommitted Portion



Total

Saigon Tech

International 

Initiatives

Subtotal 

International

Minority 

Business 

Development 

Agency

Student 

Vending 

Commission

Student 

Activity Fee

Student  

Athletic Fee Subtotal 

Committed Total Auxiliary

336,929$      (92,954)$       1,827,145$     ‐$                  324,132$        1,079,349$    1,175,278$    2,578,759$       7,828,062$    
(Unaudited )

FY2016
 Revenue  ‐                          ‐                         ‐                           4,852                 21,000                454,062             339,520           819,434               2,353,686        

 Salaries  ‐                          ‐                         ‐                             ‐                            ‐                            17,563                43,845               61,408                   291,011             

 Benefits  ‐                          ‐                         ‐                             ‐                            ‐                            277                      10,229               10,506                   82,709                

 Supplies Gen Exp  48                       ‐                         48                         ‐                            3,104                   68,706                20,148               91,958                   95,235                

 Travel  516                    ‐                         516                       ‐                            ‐                            2,937                   1,646                  4,583                     8,543                  

 Marketing Costs  ‐                          ‐                         ‐                             ‐                            ‐                            ‐                           ‐                           ‐                              51,690                

 Rental & Leases  ‐                          ‐                         ‐                             ‐                            ‐                            ‐                           650                     650                         10,175                

 Contract Services  ‐                          ‐                         ‐                             ‐                            ‐                            7,475                   13,563               21,038                   518,956             

 Utilities  ‐                          ‐                         ‐                             ‐                            ‐                            ‐                           ‐                           ‐                              19,438                

 Departmental Expenses  ‐                          ‐                         ‐                             ‐                            500                      2,693                   4,407                  7,600                     297,588             

 Instructional & Other 

Materials 
‐                          ‐                         ‐                             ‐                            ‐                            ‐                           176                     176                         39,107                

 Maintenance & Repair  ‐                          ‐                         ‐                             ‐                            ‐                            ‐                           ‐                           ‐                              2,601                  

 Insurance/Risk Mgmt  ‐                          ‐                         ‐                             ‐                            ‐                            112                      112                     224                         224                     

 Exemptions and Waivers  ‐                          ‐                         ‐                             ‐                            ‐                            625                      ‐                           625                         440,624             

Transfer ‐                          ‐                         ‐                             ‐                            ‐                            ‐                           ‐                           ‐                              ‐                           

 Capital Outlay  ‐                          ‐                         ‐                             ‐                            ‐                            ‐                           ‐                           ‐                              ‐                           

 Total Expense  564                    ‐                         564                       ‐                            3,604                   100,387              94,776               198,767                 1,857,898          

Contribution to Fund Balance (564)               ‐                      (564)                  4,852                   17,396                 353,674              244,744             620,666                 495,789         

Auxiliary Fund Balance ‐ Intl, Committed, Total 1,826,581$     4,852$             341,528$        1,433,023$    1,420,022$    3,199,425$       8,323,851$    

HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM
Auxiliary Budget By Fund

as of October 31, 2015
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Auxiliary Funds ‐ International and Committed Portions

International Committed

Fund Balance – 

September 1, 2015 



as of October 31, 2015

 Budgeted Expenditures   CENTRAL 
 NORTH

WEST 

 NORTH

EAST 

 SOUTH

WEST 
 SOUTH EAST   COLEMAN 

 EXTENDED 

LEARNING 

 ACADEMIC 

INSTRUCTION 

Salary 10,034,023$     9,342,024$        12,163,913$             11,125,519$         5,982,328$           12,946,108$     11,597,558$         52,803,281$        

Employee Benefits ‐                      ‐                      ‐                              ‐                          ‐                         ‐                      ‐                         ‐                        

Supplies & Gen 246,905             204,076             226,157                     300,768                 222,800                 274,326             188,867                 310,487                

Travel 37,700               70,576               28,451                       43,736                   34,445                   128,697             85,414                   155,013                

Marketing Costs 13,645               39,207               56,019                       26,182                   94,606                   12,500               286,057                 8,856                    

Rentals & Leases 5,270                  57,971               935,099                     484,749                 77,305                   499,343             26,718                   24,510                  

Insurance/Risk Mgmt ‐                      ‐                      ‐                              ‐                          ‐                         ‐                      ‐                         511                       

Contracted Services 287,291             236,662             68,383                       9,108                     70,342                   200,464             143,752                 398,878                

Utilities 5,125                  ‐                      4,600                          1,826                     ‐                         ‐                      ‐                         ‐                        

Other Departmental Expenses 40,111               66,986               30,865                       24,316                   66,095                   99,713               55,916                   68,874                  

Instructional And Other Materials 296,907             56,932               125,383                     95,879                   52,376                   255,969             861,555                 1,231,136            

Maintenance and Repair 138,855             29,504               126,856                     22,061                   10,926                   69,168               121,311                 39,966                  

Transfers/Debt ‐                      ‐                      1,186                          ‐                          ‐                         ‐                      ‐                         ‐                        

Contingency 500,951             646,703             428,534                     439,743                 327,326                 513,114             300,000                 ‐                        

Capital Outlay 433,772             63,174               46,352                       207,574                 67,756                   97,785               128,968                 333,695                

 Total 12,040,555$  10,813,815$  14,241,797$          12,781,461$      7,006,305$        15,097,187$  13,796,116$      55,375,207$     

HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE
FY 2015‐16 Adjusted Budget by Divisions
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as of October 31, 2015

HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE
FY 2015‐16 Adjusted Budget by Divisions

 Budgeted Expenditures   CHANCELLOR 
 FINANCE & 

ADMIN. 
 SUSTAINABILITY 

 INSTRUCTIONAL 

SERVICES 

 STUDENT 

SERVICES 
 SYSTEM   Grand Total 

Salary 6,212,988$        29,077,138$     3,129,322$                16,558,648$         5,304,716$           4,177,293$        190,454,859$      

Employee Benefits ‐                      ‐                      ‐                              ‐                          ‐                         21,210,175        21,210,175          

Supplies & Gen 635,977             997,076             156,749                     276,230                 129,459                 1,300,000          5,469,877            

Travel 176,675             250,751             73,480                       771,428                 44,500                   ‐                      1,900,866            

Marketing Costs 265,000             173,739             6,635                          ‐                          ‐                         ‐                      982,446                

Rentals & Leases 87,100               244,510             61,179                       3,319                     5,400                     ‐                      2,512,473            

Insurance/Risk Mgmt 5,550,000          ‐                      ‐                              794                         ‐                         ‐                      5,551,305            

Contracted Services 3,028,875          15,392,219        84,619                       101,965                 1,202,942             2,526,053          23,751,553          

Utilities ‐                      1,752,227          ‐                              94                           ‐                         8,482,779          10,246,651          

Other Departmental Expenses 817,300             507,206             102,329                     539,132                 51,960                   ‐                      2,470,803            

Instructional And Other Materials 57,000               5,663,219          51,013                       592,597                 325,198                 ‐                      9,665,164            

Maintenance and Repair 5,200                  778,485             4,688                          444                         929                        ‐                      1,348,393            

Transfers/Debt 200,000             43,591               ‐                              ‐                          ‐                         40,468,237        40,713,014          

Contingency 150,000             246,064             269,101                     177,600                 233,500                 818,371             5,051,007            

Capital Outlay 118,700             1,684,393          87,330                       2,786                     14,556                   ‐                      3,286,840            

 Total 17,304,815$  56,810,618$  4,026,445$            19,025,037$      7,313,160$        78,982,908$  324,615,427$  
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CURRENT & 

LOAN FUNDS1
PLANT & BOND 

FUNDS2  Total All Funds 

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash &  cash equivalents 116,071,095$    28,436,000$          144,507,095$        
Restricted cash & cash equivalents ‐                          ‐                              ‐                              
Short term Investments ‐                          ‐                              ‐                              
Accounts/Other receivable (net) 15,607,829        3,191,926             18,799,755            
Deferred charges 5,273                  ‐                              5,273                      
Prepaids 1,911,636          1,346,598             3,258,234              

Total Current Assets 133,595,833     32,974,523           166,570,356          

Non‐current Assets:
Restricted cash & cash equivalents 799,103             193,536,134         194,335,237          
Restricted long‐term investments ‐                          137,078,528         137,078,528          
Long‐term investments 15,933,229        ‐                              15,933,229            
Capital Assets, net ‐                          950,579,717         950,579,717          

Total Non‐current Assets 16,732,332        1,281,194,380      1,297,926,711       

Total Assets 150,328,165$    1,314,168,903$    1,464,497,068$    

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 6,788,076          1,383,024             8,171,100              

Accrued liabilities 1,291,091            1,396,954               2,688,045              
Compensated absences 2,526,083          ‐                              2,526,083              
Funds held for others 642,889             189,209                 832,098                  
Deferred revenue 1,111,918          229,281                 1,341,200              
Notes payable‐current portion ‐                          8,783,299             8,783,299              
Bonds payable‐current portion ‐                          24,520,000           24,520,000            
Capital lease obligations‐current ‐                          ‐                              ‐                              

Total Current Liabilities 12,360,058        36,501,768           48,861,825            

Non‐current Liabilities:
Deposits ‐                          ‐                              ‐                              
Notes payable ‐                          153,344,687         153,344,687          
Bonds payable ‐                          752,257,231         752,257,231          
Capital lease obligations ‐                          47,849,058           47,849,058            

Total Non‐current Liabilities ‐                          953,450,976         953,450,976          

Total Liabilities 12,360,058$      989,952,743$        1,002,312,801$    

 Fund Balance‐ 

August 31, 2015 Unaudited  132,558,268       313,969,646           446,527,914          

Revenues Over Expenditures
     Unrestricted 4,714,130          4,714,130              
     Restricted 695,709             695,709                  
     Net Investment in Plant 10,246,514           10,246,514            

Total Fund Balances, Unaudited 137,968,107$    324,216,160$        462,184,267$        

 Total Liabilities &  Fund Balances  150,328,165$    1,314,168,903$    1,464,497,068$    

1  In cludes Unrestricted, Restricted, Loan & Endowment, Scholarship, Agency and Auxiliary Funds.
2  Includes Unexpended Plant, Retirement of Debt and Investment in Plant Funds.

Houston Community College
Balance Sheet By Fund

For Month Ended October 31, 2015
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FY 2014‐15 FY 2015‐16

Budget:
Adjusted Budget FY 2015‐16, Net 40,308,204$         

Revenues Received:
Tuition 45,771,753          19,938,868          20,091,172          

Waivers & Exemptions:
Dual Credit & Early College HS (5,045,017)           (2,122,493)           (2,191,889)           

Other (1,603,037)           (729,379)              (595,990)               

Total Waivers & Exemptions (6,648,054)           (2,851,872)           (2,787,879)           

Total Tuition Revenue, Net 39,123,700$        17,086,996$        17,303,293$         

Budget:
Budget FY 2015‐16, Net 6,565,665$           

Revenues Received:
Tuition 8,931,465            3,496,881            3,466,523             

Waivers & Exemptions:
Department of Corrections (2,021,386)           (428,016)              (310,082)               

Total EL Tuition Revenue, Net 6,910,079$           3,068,865$           3,156,441$           

FY 2014‐15 FY 2015‐16

Dept of Corrections 1,946,863$           428,016$              310,082$                ‐27.6%

Dual Credit & Early College HS Waiver 5,045,017            2,122,493            2,191,889              3.3%

Other:

Employee Fee Exemptions 61,121                  24,997                  24,246                   ‐3.0%

Firemen 12,870                  6,781                    2,020                      ‐70.2%

Hazelwood 942,773                445,632                314,939                 ‐29.3%

Deaf & Blind 190,174                78,333                  90,285                   15.3%

High Ranking Hi SCH Grad 1,805                    1,235                    775                         ‐37.2%

Child of Disabled Vet ETC 7,264                    5,086                    1,444                      ‐71.6%

Nonres Teach/Research Asst 6,363                    2,655                    80                           ‐97.0%

Nonres Competitive Scholar 8,558                    3,443                    2,744                      ‐20.3%

Senior Citizens 13,668                  6,660                    5,336                      ‐19.9%

Scholarship Distribution 2,800                    ‐                        2,800                      0.0%

A VISA Waiver (Non‐Alien Waiver) 888                          888                    ‐                           ‐100.0%

Foster Children‐Resident 247,117                129,699                76,148                   ‐41.3%

Undocumented Students 5,723                    2,909                    1,062                      ‐63.5%

TX Tomorrow Waiver 6,076                    2,788                    1,792                      ‐35.7%

Surviving Spouse/Children ‐                        ‐                        1,680                      0.0%

Peace Officer Exemption 3,868                    186                        615                         230.6%

Adopted Student Waiver 91,719                  18,087                  70,024                   287.2%

Stipends 250                        ‐                        ‐                          0.0%

Total Other Exemptions 1,603,037            729,379                595,990                 ‐18.3%

Grand Total Exemptions & Waivers 8,594,917$           3,279,888$           3,097,961$            ‐5.5%

Houston Community College

9

 Actuals % 
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Tuition ‐ Extended Learning
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 End of Year 
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Year‐to‐Date 
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 Year‐to‐Date 
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10/31/2015 
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ACTION ITEM 
 

Meeting Date:  December 17, 2015 
 

Committee:  Facilities and Finance 
 

ITEM NO. ITEM TITLE PRESENTER 
 

6 Authorize Procurement Method for  
Parking Lot Maintenance and  

Report on Condition   

Dr. Cesar Maldonado 
Teri Zamora  

Charles Smith 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Authorize the Chancellor to advertise for Competitive Sealed Proposals for parking lot maintenance 
projects.               
 
COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE 
Competitive Sealed Proposals allow the College to receive the benefits of a sealed bid, but allow the 
flexibility to negotiate scope of work with the selected vendor.  
 
DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND 
The College proposes to replace approximately 312,000 SF of parking lots during the current fiscal year as 
part of our on-going deferred and preventive maintenance efforts. The proposed parking lots will be 
upgraded to our system standard. This rationalized approach will save funds by allowing programmed 
replacement without the need for costly emergency repairs. 
 
As part of on-going effort to improve operations, the College has begun systematizing the information 
needed to prioritize deferred maintenance and repairs. As shown on Attachment "A", the College 
currently has approximately 2.8 million square feet of parking lots. Of this, approximately 740,000 square 
feet have been evaluated to be in "poor" condition.  
 
The basic approach is to develop a systematic capital renewal program to perform maintenance that 
should allow for the indefinite extension of pavement life. In house analysis indicates that we should be 
able to do this for an annual investment of approximately $400,000 as shown in Attachment "B". 
 
To manage this process, all parking lots are evaluated in terms of both raw condition and campus capacity 
need. The resulting scores provide a rough order of prioritization for maintenance effort as shown in 
Attachment "C".  
 
For the current year, anticipated maintenance is expected to be bid as competitive sealed proposals and 
includes: 
 

1. Joint sealing and re-striping of the concrete parking lots at Coleman College, Alief-Bissonnet 
Center, and West Loop Campus. 

 
2. Removal and reconstruction of the asphalt parking lot at the Gulfton Center.  

 
A number of projects scored higher than some of the above programmed work, but were deferred until 
FY16 for the following reasons: 
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1. Spring Branch campus, pending completion of a campus master plan that may result in 
reconfiguration of parking areas to create a campus mall or greenspace; 

 
2. Central Campus, to give faculty and students relief from nearly five years of continuous 

construction (Midtown projects will continue); 
 

3. Katy Campus, to allow consideration of alternatives resulting from the Strategic Land Concept 
Plan; 

 
4. Northline Campus, to provide adequate parking until completion of current CIP construction; and 

 
5. North Forest Campus, to prevent degradation resulting from CIP construction. 

 
Minor work at each site totaling less than $10,000 is intended to be awarded through the College's Job 
Order Contractors. Larger work packages present the opportunity for cost savings via competitive 
solicitation. State law requires the Board of Trustees to approve the method of procurement prior to 
solicitation.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The proposed slate of parking lot maintenance will require approximately $400,000. Approximately one-
quarter of the work is eligible to use deferred maintenance funds. The remainder will come from the 
annual maintenance budget.               
 
LEGAL REQUIREMENT 
This action satisfies the requirements of Texas Local Government Code Section 2269.056.         
 
STRATEGIC GOAL ALIGNMENT 
Strategic Initiative:  Support Innovation 
 
 
Attachment Title(s): A.  HCC Parking Areas 

        B.  HCC Parking Areas 2015 Assessment  
        C.  Ranking of Parking Lot Upgrades                

 
 

This item is applicable to the following: 
 Central  Coleman  Northeast  Northwest  Southeast  Southwest  3100 



Attachment A -Houston Community College Parking Areas 2015 Assessment

Description Address Map Lot Sq. Ft. Type
# of 
Stalls

Install 
Date

Est. Date 
of 

Replace Condition

JDB Bldg. – 1215 Holman St., 77004 1 B 4,640 Concrete 29 1983 2033 Fair
Fine Arts Parking Structure (5 level 3517 Austin St., 77004 1 F 213,925 Concrete 540 1986 2036 Good
Almeda (Heinen) 1500 block of Holman St., 77004 1 H 48,320 Asphalt 302 2013 2038 Good
JBW Lot 1200 Alabama St., 77004 1 E 24,000 Asphalt 150 1979 2004 Poor
Alabama Lot A 1400 Alabama St., 77004 1 G 18,400 Concrete 115 1986 2036 Fair
Alabama Lot B 1401 Alabama St., 77004 1 M 7,840 Concrete 49 1986 2036 Fair
Learning HUB and SJAC – 18,080 3500 Fannin St., 77004 1 A 18,080 Asphalt 113 2010 2035 Good
Annex  1318 Alabama St., 77004 1 L  19,200 Gravel 120 1999 2014 Poor
Central Cooling Water  Plant 1300 Alabama St; 77004 1 N 12,160 Concrete 76 2007 2057 Good
Educational Development Center (E3214 Austin St., 77004 1 C 12,000 Concrete 75 1972 2022 Fair
3601 Fannin Building 3601 Fannin St., 77004 1 K 5,920 Asphalt 37 2000 2025 Fair

Willie Gay Hall 1990 W. Airport Blvd., 77051 2 A 51,040 Concrete  319 2003 2053 Good 

Automotive Tech. Training Ctr. A 4638 Airline Dr, 77022 3 A 36,000 Concrete  225 1980 2030  Fair

Codwell Hall 555 Community College Dr, 77013 4 A, C 94,560 Concrete 591 1999 2049 Good
Global Energy Institute / Hub 555 Community College Dr, 77013 4 B 61,920 Concrete 387 2008 2058 Good
Roland Smith lot 555 Community College Dr, 77013 4 D 23,040 Concrete 144 1999 2049 Good
PSI Storage Area 555 Community College Dr, 77013 4 F 8,960 Concrete 56 2007 2057 Good
PSI Burn Bldg. 555 Community College Dr, 77013 4 G 6,000 Concrete 0 2007 2057 Good
PSI Range 555 Community College Dr, 77013 4 H 9,120 Concrete 57 2007 2057 Good

North Forest Building A 6010 Little York Road, 77016 5 A 19,200 Asphalt  120 1990 2015  Fair

 Northline Academic Center lot 8001 Fulton St.,  77022 6 A 21,920 Asphalt 137 2008 2033 Poor
Northline Academic Center lot 8001 Fulton St.,  77022 6 B 17,280 Asphalt 108 2012 2037 Good
Northline Academic Reserved 8001 Fulton St.,  77022 6 C 3,660 Concrete 23 2009 2059 Good
Lyerly Street 91 Lyerly St.,  77022 6 D 8,640 Asphalt 54 2010 2035 Good

Central Campus (Map 1)

South Campus  (Map 2)

Automotive Training Center (Map 3)

Northeast Campus ( Map 4)

Northline Campus (Map 6)

North Forest Campus (Map 5)
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Attachment A -Houston Community College Parking Areas 2015 Assessment

Main and Workforce Bldg. 13803 Bissonnet St., 77072 7 A 52,640 Concrete 329 1999 2049 Good

Katy Mills 25403 Kingsland Blvd., 77494 9 A 11,200 Concrete 70 1999 2049 Good

Katy Campus Central  lot 1550 Fox Lake Dr., 77084 10 A 53,120 Concrete 332 1983 2033 Poor
Katy Campus East  lot 1550 Fox Lake Dr., 77084 10 B 60,640 Asphalt 372 2000 2025 Fair
Katy Campus South lot 1550 Fox Lake Dr., 77084 10 C 43,680 Asphalt 273 2009 2034 Good

Main Bldg.  1010 West Sam Houston Pkwy., 77 11 A, B 183,520 Asphalt 1,147  1985 2010 Poor

Hayes Road 2811 Hayes Rd, 77082 12 A 40,000 Asphalt 250 2012 2037 Good
Early College 2811 Hayes Rd, 77082 12 B 20,000 Concrete 125 2012 2062 Good
Parking Structure (5 levels) 2811 Hayes Rd, 77082 12 C 157,000 Concrete 845 2012 2062 Good

Main building North & South lot 301 N. Drennan St.,  77003 13 A,B 50,560 Concrete 316 2009 2059 Good
Early College 220 North Milby St.,  77003 13 C 1,280 Concrete 40 2009 2059 Good

Angela Morales Bldg. 6816 Rustic St., 77087 14 A 80,800 Concrete 505 1999 2049 Good
Felix Morales Bldg. 6815 Rustic St., 77087 14 B 25,760 Concrete 161 1999 2049 Good
Workforce / SLEH Bldg. 6815 Rustic St., 77087 14 C 29,920 Concrete 187 2012 2062 Good
Parking Structure (4 levels) 2524 Garland St., 77087 14 D 163,915 Concrete 812 2013 2063 Good

Main and Rear lot 5407 Gulfton Dr, 77081 15 A 40,960 Asphalt  256 1995 2020 Poor

Missouri City Campus 5855 Sienna Spring Way, 77459 16 A 45,920 Concrete 287 2008 2058 Good

Main Bldg. lot 5601 West Loop South, 77081 17 A 166,720 Concrete 1,042  1990 2040 Good

Katy Campus  (Map 10)

Katy Mills Campus  (Map 9)

Alief Bissonnet Campus  (Map 7)

Spring Branch Campus  (Map 11)

West Loop Campus (Map 17)

Missouri City Campus (Map 16)

Gulfton Campus (Map 15)

Southeast Campus (Map 14)

Felix Fraga  (Map 13)

Alief Campus  (Map 12)
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Attachment A -Houston Community College Parking Areas 2015 Assessment

Scarcella Science & Technology Ctr. 10141 Cash Rd, 77477 18 A 138,560 Concrete 866 1999 2049 Good

SW Learning HUB Main  10041 Cash Rd, 77477 18 B 24,800 Concrete 155 2008 2058 Good

Workforce  10041 Cash Rd, 77477 18 C 103,360 Concrete 648 2008 2058 Good

SW Learning HUB Annex 10041 Cash Rd, 77477 18 D 56,320 Asphalt 352 2009 2034 Good
Fine Arts 9910 Cash Rd, 77477 18 E 51,200 Asphalt 320 1990 2015 Poor

Coleman 1900 Pressler St., 77030 19 A 6,720 Concrete 28 1999 2049 Good

Rosalie lot 3000 Main St., 77002 20 A 20,800 Asphalt 130 2012 2037 Good
Parking Structure (8 levels) 3200 Main St., 77002 20 B 337,000 Concrete 1407 1999 2049 Good

Warehouse 9424 Fannin St., 77045 21 A 50,400 Concrete  210 2004 2054 Good

Warehouse 1102 Delano St.,  77003 22 A 1000 Asphalt  10  1985 2005 Poor

Assumptions and Notes

Note 1 ‐ The estimated useful life of concrete pavement is 50 years per FannieMae 4099F, dtd October 2014.

Note 2 ‐ The estimated useful life of asphalt pavement is 25 years per FannieMae 4099F, dtd October 2014.

Note 3 ‐ The estimated useful life of gravel surface parking is 15 years per FannieMae 4099F, dtd October 2014.

Note 4 ‐ The estimated useful life of striping is five years per FannieMae 4099F, dtd October 2014.

Note 5 ‐ Properly Maintained, the useful life of pavement can be extended indefinitely.

Note 6 ‐ Parking Surfaces ldentified by italicized, sans serif type in the table above are identified in the 2009 ESPA "Facilities 

                 Assessment Final Report." Deferred Maintenance Bond funds are authorized for repairs on these lots.

Delano Warehouse (Map 22)

Fannin Warehouse (Map 21)

HCC Administration (Map 20)

Coleman Campus (Map 19)

Stafford Campus (Map 18)
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LOCATION Asphalt Concrete Gravel
Central Campus (Map 1) 96,320       268,965       19,200  
South Campus  (Map 2) 51,040         
Automotive Training Center (Map 3) 36,000         
Northeast Campus ( Map 4) 203,600       
North Forest Campus (Map 5) 19,200       
Northline Campus (Map 6) 47,840       3,660           
Alief Bissonnet Campus  (Map 7) 52,640         
Katy Mills Campus  (Map 9) 11,200         
Katy Campus  (Map 10) 104,320     53,120         
Spring Branch Campus  (Map 11) 183,520     
Alief Campus  (Map 12) 40,000       177,000       
Felix Fraga  (Map 13) 300,395       
Gulfton Campus (Map 15) 40,960       
Missouri City Campus (Map 16) 45,920         
West Loop Campus (Map 17) 166,720       
Stafford Campus (Map 18) 107,520     266,720       
Coleman Campus (Map 19) 6,720           
HCC Administration (Map 20) 20,800       337,000       
Fannin Warehouse (Map 21) 50,400         
Delano Warehouse (Map 22) 1,000         

SF 661,480     2,031,100    19,200  
Replacement Cost1 3,280,941  10,602,342  38,400  

$/Yr2 164,047     212,047       2,560    
$/Yr3

Notes

1

2

3

Estimated useful lives of 20 years for asphalt, 50 years for concrete, and 15 years for gravel 

were used based on FannieMae evaluation standards.

Capital Renewal Investment Requirement is based on a pro‐rata application of the annualized 

replacement cost for each type of surface. In actuality, this cost is slightly understated given 

the eventual replacement of all pavement with concrete.

378,654                                            

Attachment B -Houston Community College Parking Areas
2015 Assessment

Capital Renewal Investment Rate Calculation

Replacement cost is based on courtesy estimates provided by Mr. Rod Bowers, Senior 

Estimator at Tellepsen Builders. The cases for 2.5" Asphalt ($4.96/SF) and 6" Concrete 

($5.22/SF) were used. $2/Sf was used for gravel.



 

Attachment C ‐ Unqualified Ranking of Parking Lot 
Upgrade Need by Condition and Capacity Limit (2015) 

Rank Index Campus 
1 0.08 Coleman Campus (Map 19) 
2 0.27 Gulfton Campus (Map 15) 
3 0.32 Spring Branch Campus (Map 11) 
4 0.81 Central Campus (Map 1) 
5 0.99 Katy Campus (Map 10) 
6 1.18 Northline Campus (Map 6) 
7 1.32 Alief Bissonnet Campus (Map 7) 
8 1.60 North Forest Campus (Map 5) 
9 1.61 West Loop Campus (Map 17) 

10 1.86 Stafford Campus (Map 18) 
11 1.90 Alief Campus (Map 12) 
12 1.96 Missouri City Campus (Map 16) 
13 2.04 Automotive Training Center (Map 3) 
14 2.05 Southeast Campus (Map 14) 
15 2.45 Pinemont 
16 2.74 Felix Fraga (Map 13) 
17 2.99 HCC Administration (Map 20) 
18 3.11 Northeast Campus ( Map 4) 
19 4.60 South Campus (Map 2) 
20 9.09 Delano Warehouse (Map 22) 
21 191 Fannin Warehouse (Map 21) 
22 191 Katy Mills Campus (Map 9) 
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ACTION ITEM 
 

Meeting Date:  December 17, 2015 
 

Committee:  Facilities and Finance 
 

ITEM NO. ITEM TITLE PRESENTER 
 

7 Online Learning  
Management System  

Dr. Cesar Maldonado 
 Dr. Kimberly Beatty 

Rogelio Anasagasti 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Authorize the Chancellor to negotiate and execute a contract with Instructure, Inc., to provide Houston 
Community College with the Canvas online learning management system and related services in 
accordance with Texas Association of Community College's Texas Community College Cooperative 
Purchasing Network RFP 006-15. 
 
The contract terms will be for five (5) years. 
 
COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE 
Houston Community College evaluated the use of the online learning management system available 
through the Texas Association of Community College's (TACC) Texas Community College Cooperative 
Purchasing Network (TCCCPN) agreement for the implementation and support of the Canvas solution to 
be used systemwide by HCC.  The recommended firm was awarded a contract by TCCCPN following a 
publicly advertised request for proposal procurement process. 
 
Working with representatives from Faculty, Instructional Services and Technology Departments, 
demonstrations of three different systems were provided to the Learning Management System (LMS) 
Committee.  Following a thorough product demonstration and functional review where the committee 
was able to see how the different products operate which included technical functionality, the Canvas 
product was recommended by the LMS Committee on September 24, 2015.   
 
The proposed Canvas Learning Management System (LMS) is anticipated to be implemented with an 
initial test group to begin using the application in Spring 2016 followed by a second test group in Summer 
2016.  It is the goal of HCC that working with the LMS Committee and HCC Faculty that by Fall 2016 HCC 
will be fully migrated to the Canvas platform with all faculty and students. 
 
Preparations are currently underway with the development of the implementation framework, training 
and development; including the feedback and direction of the LMS Committee, Instruction and IT 
Departments.  
 
The proposed solution includes greatly improved features and functionality that will enable quick 
adoption and sustainable growth among HCC students.  Moreover, the easy to use platform includes 
improved reporting, collaboration and interactive features that will all contribute towards greater student 
success. 
  
This recommendation to the Board of Trustees is in accordance with Chapter 44.031(a) of the Texas 
Education Code and Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code. 
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DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND 
Request for Proposal (RFP 006-15) was issued by TCCCPN on February 12, 2015 and duly advertised in the 
Austin American Statesman and through the Demand Star bid service.  In addition notices were sent to a 
total of fourteen (14) vendors who offer online distance education software solutions.  Seven (7) 
proposals were received by the solicitation due date of March 5, 2015 at 11:00 a.m. 
 
Following the formally advertised Request for Proposal process, the contract was awarded to Instructure, 
Inc. and made effective for a five year term on June 29, 2015. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The total proposed cost for the five (5) year term is $2,361,199 based on the following TCCCPN published 
subscription and support rates: 
 
Year 1  $316,493 (prorated for January 1 through August 31, 2016)  
Year 2  $488,620  
Year 3  $503,426  
Year 4  $518,695  
Year 5  $533,965  
   
HCC will benefit from added tiered pricing subscription discounts at the time of annual renewal based on 
the TCCCPN then current total subscription enrollment numbers for the State of Texas as allowed under 
the contract. 
 
LEGAL REQUIRMENTS 
This recommendation to the Board of Trustees is being made to the firm offering the best value in 
accordance with Chapter 44.031(a) of the Texas Education Code and utilizing interlocal agreement 
authority under Texas Government Code Chapter 791. 
 
Chapter 44.031(a) of the Texas Education Code requires that selection of a firm shall be made through the 
procurement method that provides the best value for the district. Texas Government Code Chapter 791 
authorizes cooperative and interlocal agreements between governmental bodies and purchases such as 
the services to be provided under the proposed contract. 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL ALIGNMENT 
Strategic Initiative:  Support Innovation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This item is applicable to the following: 
 Central  Coleman  Northeast  Northwest  Southeast  Southwest  3100 
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ACTION ITEM 
 

Meeting Date:  December 17, 2015 

Committee:  Facilities and Finance 
ITEM NO. ITEM TITLE PRESENTER 
 

8 Sale of 11.75 Acres in Missouri City   
Dr. Cesar Maldonado 

Teri Zamora  
Charles Smith 

RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the sale of an 11.75 acre tract of improved property located at 5855 Sienna Springs Way to Fort 
Bend County and resolution effectuating same.         
 
COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE 
The Board of Trustees authorized the Chancellor to negotiate the sale of this property during February 2015. 
Fort Bend County has identified the funding required to complete the transaction, which will allow 
continuation of the previously approved relocation of the existing Missouri City campus to Texas Parkway.  
 
The new location will provide an enhanced presence for HCCS in a larger, more efficient building. The 
budget for the new site requires the sale of the existing real property on Sienna Springs Way. This 
transaction is one of several fiscally responsible activities previously described to the Board of Trustees that 
is required to complete the relocation.          
 

DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND 
Fort Bend County Commissioners Court took action on February 3, 2015 authorizing negotiations with HCCS 
for the purchase of the subject site and funded by means of a successful bond election during November 
2015. The HCC Board of Trustees took reciprocal action on February 23, 2015 authorizing the Chancellor to 
negotiate the sale of the site. The current action authorizes that sale.  The actual closing date will be set at a 
date agreeable to both parties.       
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Every effort is being made to ensure that the receipt of revenue from sales proceeds and other third party 
sources will ultimately result in a zero net cash outlay by HCCS for the relocation of the Missouri City 
Campus to real property located on Texas Parkway.  
 
The 11.75 acre tract is being sold at its appraised fair market value of $8,000,000.         
 
LEGAL REQUIREMENT 
This transaction meets the requirements of Article III, Section 52 of the Texas Constitution and Texas 
Government Code Section 272.001.       
 
STRATEGIC GOAL ALIGNMENT 
Strategic Initiative:  Support Innovation 
 
Attachment Title(s): 1. Plot of Tract 

        2. Metes and Bounds 
        3. Resolution and Order of Sale               
 

This item is applicable to the following: 
 Central  Coleman  Northeast  Northwest  Southeast  Southwest  3100 



 

 

RESOLUTION AND ORDER OF SALE OF LAND 

STATE OF TEXAS   §  
     §  
COUNTY OF FORT BEND  §  

 WHEREAS, Section 130.084 of the Texas Education Code provides that a public 

community college shall be governed in the establishment, management, and control of 

community college by the general law governing the establishment, management, and control of 

independent school districts; and    

 WHEREAS, Section 11.151 of the Texas Education Code provides that the trustees of an 

independent school district may convey property that is no longer necessary for the operation of 

the school district, which provision is applicable to public community colleges; and 

 WHEREAS, Section 272.001 of the Local Government Code provides for the sale or 

exchange of property owned by a political subdivision and Section 272.001(b) provides an 

exception to the requirement for publication and bids when the sale of the property is to a 

governmental entity with the power of eminent domain; 

 WHEREAS, the Houston Community College System ("HCCS" or "College") Board of 

Trustees is the governing body of College, a political subdivision of the State of Texas; 

 WHEREAS, the College owns that certain tract of land containing approximately 11.75 

acres out of Reserve “A” of the plat of H.C.C.S. Campus Sienna Plantation Section 1 as recorded 

as Plat No. 20070119 for the Fort Bend County Plat Records, which 11.75 acre tract is more 

particularly described by metes and bounds on the attached Exhibit A ("Property"); 

 WHEREAS, the HCCS Board of Trustees declared at its February 13, 2015 meeting that 

the Property was surplus and no longer necessary for the operation of the College and authorized 

the College administration ("Administration") to sell the Property; 
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 WHEREAS, the Administration and Fort Bend County, Texas (“County”) have been in 

negotiations for the County to purchase the Property at its appraised value of Eight Million and 

No/100 Dollars ($8,000,000.00) (“Purchase Price”); have agreed on the materials terms of the 

purchase and sale contract (“Contract”), which includes sale of the Property to the County for the 

Purchase Price; and are in the process of finalizing the Contract; and 

 WHEREAS, the Administration recommends to the Board of Trustees that it approve and 

order the sale to the County for the Purchase Price. 

 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED BY HOUSTON COMMUNITY 

COLLEGE SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES THAT: 

 1. all of the above paragraphs are incorporated into and made part of this Resolution 

and Order; and 

 2. the Property is to be sold to the County for the Purchase Price, that the Chair of 

the Board of Trustees is authorized to execute the deed conveying the Property, and that the 

Chancellor or his designee is authorized to take all additional actions necessary or advisable to 

consummate the conveyance of the Property to Buyer, including without limitation, finalizing 

negotiation of and executing Contract and any other documents involved in the transaction. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this _____ day of __________, 2015. 

 
       __________________________________ 
       Zeph Capo 
       Chair, Board of Trustees 
 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Dr. Adriana Tamez 
Secretary, Board of Trustees 
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EXHIBIT “A”  
 

[Attached legal Description] 
  

 



Tract "A"
Metes and Bounds Description

1 1.75 Acres (512,046 Square Feet)
Moses Shipman League, Abstract No. 86

Fort Bend County, Texas

Description of an 11.75 acre (512,046 square feet) tract of land which is out of Reserve "4" of the plat of
H.C.C.S. Campus Sienna Plantation Section 1 as recorded at Plat No.20070119 of the Fort Bend County
Plat Records (F.B.C.P.R.) and also being out of a called 30.000 acre tract described in a deed to Houston
Community College System as recorded under File No. 2002123367 of the Fort Bend County Official
Records (F.B.C.O.R.), in the Moses Shipman League, Abstract No. 86, in Fort Bend County, Texas, said
11.75 acre tract being more particularly described as follows (with bearings referenced to the northerly
line of said Reserve "A", called as North 86' 52' 50" East).

BEGINNING at a S/8-inch iron rod found on the easterly line of said 30.000 acre tract which marks the
easternmost southeasterly corner of said Reserve "4" and the northeasterly corner of a called 4.500 acre
tract of land described in a deed to Fort Bend County as recorded under File No. 2006070443 of said
F.B.C.O.R.;

THENCE, South 89' 14' 33'West, along the northerly line of said 4.500 acre tract and a southerly line of
said Reserve "A", a distance of 499.87 feet to an "X" cut in concrete set for the northwesterly corner of
said 4.500 acre tract and an interior corner of said Reserve "A"

THENCE, South 17' 47' 12" West, along the westerly line of said 4.500 acre tract and an easterly line of
said Reserve "A", a distance of 17.59 feetto a S/8-inch iron rod with cap stamped "McKim & Creed" set
for corner;

THENCE, South 81' 36'30" West, along a southerly line of this tract, a distance of 164.50 feet to a
S/8-inch iron rod with cap stamped "McKim & Creed" set for an interior corner;

THENCE, South 08" 46' 23" East, along an easterly line of this tract, a distance oî 19.25 feet to a S/8-inch
íron rod stamped "McKim & Creed" set for corner;

THENCE, South 81' 36' 30" West, along a southerly line of this tract, a distance of 78.25 feet to a
S/8-inch iron rod stamped "McKim & Creed" set for the southwesterly corner of this herein described tract;

THENCE, North 08' 23' 30" West, along the westerly line of this tract, a distance of 244.99 feet to a
5/8-inch iron rod with cap stamped "McKim & Creed" set for an angle point;

THENCE, North 03' 07' 10" West, continuing along said westerly line, a distance of 455.05 feet to a
5/8-inch iron rod with cap stamped "McKim & Creed" set on the northerly line of said Reserve "A" and said
30.000 acre tract which marks the northwesterly corner of this herein described tract;

THENCE, North 86' 52' 50" East, along the northerly line of said Reserve "A" and said 30.000 acre tract,
a distance of 751.33 feet to a S/8-inch iron rod found on the westerly right-of-way line of McKeever Road
(60 feet wide) which marks the northeasterly corner of said Reserve "4" and said 30.000 acre tract;

THENCE, South 25'00'03'East, along the easterly line of said Reserve "A" and said 30.000 acre tract, a
distance of 172.06 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with cap found for corner;

THENCE, South 64" 16' 18" West, a distance of 29.41feet to a S/8-inch iron rod with cap found for an
interior corner;
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THENCE, South 00" 45'27" East, along said easterly line, a distance of 491.16 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNING and containing a computed area of 11.75 acres (512,046 square feet) of land.

This description is accompanied by a separate survey drawing dated February 10,2015.

Compiled By:
McKim & Creed, lnc.
9960 West Sam Houston Parkway South, Suite 200
Houston, Texas 77099
Phone: 71 3-659-0021
TBPLS Firm Registration No. 101776-00
Date: February 10,2015
Job No.: 06555-0013

2'/o't6

ROBERT W. TERRY

OF

4420
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ACTION ITEM 
 

Meeting Date:  December 17, 2015 
 

Committee:  Facilities and Finance 
 

ITEM NO. ITEM TITLE PRESENTER 
 

9 Authorize Purchase of Palmetto  
Cul-de-Sac Right of Way  

at Eastside Campus   

Dr. Cesar Maldonado 
Teri Zamora  

Charles Smith 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Authorize the Chancellor to purchase tracts SY16-003 and SY16-018 from the City of Houston at the 
Eastside Campus.            
 
COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE 
Acquisition of this tract allows for continued development of the Eastside Campus in accordance with 
2010 and subsequent Master Plan Concepts (attachments A & B, respectively) by permitting optimal 
integration of the 2013 CIP Workforce Building into the campus framework.   
 
DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND 
In 2010, the firm of Llewelyen-Davies Sahni prepared a campus level Master Plan for development of the 
Eastside Campus which included the subject parcel as part of the campus. Similarly, the 2014 Master Plan 
Concept prepared by PDG Architects envisions use of this space in order to allow construction of the 
current Workforce building as well as a planned future parking garage.  
 
Early in the 2014 Master Plan re-visitation, it was established that the College had constructed a parking 
lot and other improvements on a city controlled right of way and that a short section of Palmetto Street 
intruding into the campus would need to be abandoned by the City in order to permit the "non-
acceptance" of the proposed cul de sac. Acquisition of the Palmetto stub was determined to be the most 
effective way of integrating the new structure into the overall fabric of the campus, while allowing 
sufficient clearance at the western edge of the campus for a future parking garage (considered crucial for 
the creation of a new campus "front door" and green space at some future date).  
 
An offer to sell the parcel to the College was received on November 20, 2015 and is required in order to 
continue building the Workforce parcel as planned, since the building design overlaps the right-of-way by 
approximately three feet, as shown in Attachment C. This action was budgeted for within the CIP, 
completes planned property acquisitions at Eastside, and facilitates execution of the Master Plan vision.          
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The City has offered to conclude the captioned transaction for $66,542 (subject to City Council approval). 
This amount is included in the current CIP project budget.                
 
LEGAL REQUIREMENT 
This action satisfies the requirements of the Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 272.  
 
STRATEGIC GOAL ALIGNMENT 
Strategic Initiative:  Support Innovation 
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Attachment Title(s): A.  2010 Campus Master Plan  

        B.  2014 Campus Master Plan Concept   
        C.  Property to be Acquired 
        D. Satellite View of Eastside Campus                

 
 

This item is applicable to the following: 
 Central  Coleman  Northeast  Northwest  Southeast  Southwest  3100 



 

ATTACHMENT A – 2010 CAMPUS MASTER PLAN 
 

 



 

ATTACHMENT B – 2014 CAMPUS MASTER PLAN CONCEPT 
 

 
 
 
 



 

ATTACHMENT C – PROPERTY TO BE ACQUIRED 
 

 



ATTACHMENT D – SATELLITE VIEW OF EASTSIDE CAMPUS 
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ACTION ITEM 
 

Meeting Date:  December 17, 2015 
 

Committee:  Facilities and Finance 
 

ITEM NO. ITEM TITLE PRESENTER 
 

10 Authorize Execution of Texas 
Cooperative Purchasing Network 

Contract with TDIndustries    

Dr. Cesar Maldonado 
Teri Zamora  

Charles Smith 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Authorize the Chancellor to execute a two-year Facilities Maintenance contract with TDIndustries under 
the umbrella authorization of the Texas Cooperative Purchasing Network (TCPN).                 
 
COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE 
The College is transitioning from a wholly outsourced Facilities Maintenance posture with a single large 
vendor to one which provides for basic internal capabilities and a much larger potential for small business 
engagement with some operational savings. Utilization of the existing TCPN contract with TDI provides 
both continuity of operations and the flexibility required to effect these transitions.     
 
DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND 
The vast majority of facilities maintenance and central plant operations at HCC since 2005 have been 
performed by an outside vendor. Since December 2010, that vendor has been TDIndustries (TDI).  
Although TDI has performed well, the College has lost the expertise and manpower to diagnose and 
evaluate maintenance issues in-house, making oversight of any contracted entity problematic.  
 
During 2015, the College evaluated potential performance improvement and cost-savings strategies with 
the current vendor.   A strategy was designed whereby the outside vendor would continue to provide the 
24/7 operating services for the College's central utility plants (the area in which it has the clearest 
operational advantages), and the College's Facilities Maintenance Department would assume 
responsibility for assessing and supervising minor maintenance work (the area in which it has the clearest 
potential for operational savings and performance improvement). 
 
TDIndustries is a TCPN contract holder, eliminating the need for HCC to separately bid the changing scope 
of work. All TCPN contracts are competitively bid by the State of Texas Region 4 Education Service Center 
here in Houston, and are available for the use and benefit of public and private schools, colleges and 
universities, and governmental entities.                    
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The College conservatively estimates a 5% reduction in overall costs, once the transition plan has been 
fully implemented.  The current year contract with TDI ending December 2015 is for $5.6 million.  The 
maximum (not to exceed) contract amounts with TDI for the 12 months beginning January 1, 2016 and 
January 1, 2017 are $5.5 million and $3.0 million, respectively to allow for transition.                
 
LEGAL REQUIREMENT 
This action satisfies the requirements of Texas Education Code, Chapter 8; Texas Education Code, Chapter 
44; Texas Government Code, Chapter 791; and Texas Government Code, Chapter 2269.   
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STRATEGIC GOAL ALIGNMENT 
Strategic Initiative:  Support Innovation 
 
 
Attachment Title(s):   Estimate of Cost Distribution                 
 
 

This item is applicable to the following: 
 Central  Coleman  Northeast  Northwest  Southeast  Southwest  3100 



Estimate of Cost Distribution, Facilities Maintenance Re-Alignment

Estimated Future 
Outsource Cost¹ - 

Current Model

Estimated HCC 
Internal Costs

Estimated 
Outsource Cost - 
Primary Vendor

Estimated 
Outsource Cost - 
Other Vendors²

Estimated Savings 
Potential

Administration $360,456 $76,548 $276,077 $7,831
Electro/Mechanical Svcs $1,550,012 $539,135 $505,439 $454,895 $50,543
Elevator Services $211,263 $0 $0 $190,137 $21,126
HVAC $3,383,956 $0 $1,691,978 $1,522,780 $169,198
BAS/EMS $435,109 $145,036 $0 $261,066 $29,007
Fire/Life Safety $405,963 $0 $0 $365,367 $40,596

Subtotal $6,346,759 $760,719 $2,473,494 $2,794,245 $318,301

Annual Total $6,346,759 $318,301

²Estimated New Contract Availability is 90% of the value of work to be de-sourced from Primary Contractor. 

Estimated Future Cost Under Proposed Model

¹Estimated Future Outsource Cost includes the addition of 850,000 additional square feet resulting from CIP construction and an 
increase in baseline costs from the 2010 contract as predicted by the Consumer Price Index.

$6,028,458
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ACTION ITEM 
 

Meeting Date:  December 17, 2015 
 

Committee: Facilities and Finance 
 

ITEM NO. ITEM TITLE PRESENTER 
 

11 Proposed Settlement Between  
Lorenzo Walker and HCC 

Dr. Cesar Maldonado 
Edgar A. Smith 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Authorize settlement and release of claims agreement between Lorenzo Walker and Houston Community 
College.  
 
DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND 
Upon settlement, Lorenzo Walker will forgo any and all claims against HCC regarding his employment, 
including current litigation. 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL ALIGNMENT 
Strategy Initiative:  Accountability and Strategic Decision-making 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This item is applicable to the following: 
 Central  Coleman  Northeast  Northwest  Southeast  Southwest  3100 
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ACTION ITEM 
 

Meeting Date:  December 17, 2015 
 

Committee:  Chancellor Evaluation  
 

ITEM NO. ITEM TITLE PRESENTER 
 

12 Chancellor’s Evaluation for 2014-15 
and Any Other Related Matters, as 

necessary 

Dr. Adriana Tamez 
Dr. Cesar Maldonado 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Review, discuss and approve matters related to the Chancellor’s Evaluation for 2014-15.  
 
COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE 
According to the Board bylaws, the Board shall evaluate the Chancellor on an annual basis.  
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
To be determined. 
 
LEGAL REQUIREMENT 
N/A 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL ALIGNMENT 
Strategic Initiative:  Support and Innovation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This item is applicable to the following: 
 Central  Coleman  Northeast  Northwest  Southeast  Southwest  3100 
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ACTION ITEM 
 

Meeting Date:  December 17, 2015 
 

Committee:  Chancellor Evaluation  
 

ITEM NO. ITEM TITLE PRESENTER 
 

13 Chancellor’s Evaluation Timeline for 
2015-16  

Dr. Adriana Tamez 
Dr. Cesar Maldonado 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Review, discuss and approve the Chancellor’s Evaluation Timeline for 2015-16. 
 
COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE 
According to the Board bylaws, the Board shall evaluate the Chancellor on an annual basis.  
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
To be determined. 
 
LEGAL REQUIREMENT 
N/A 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL ALIGNMENT 
Strategic Initiative:  Support and Innovation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This item is applicable to the following: 
 Central  Coleman  Northeast  Northwest  Southeast  Southwest  3100 



Topics for Discussion and/or Action 
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ACTION ITEM 
 

Meeting Date:  December 17, 2015 
 

Committee:  Board Governance 
 

ITEM NO. ITEM TITLE PRESENTER 
 

1 Personnel Agenda 
(Faculty) 

Dr. Cesar Maldonado 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the personnel action item for December 2015.    
 
COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE 
Full-time contract Faculty is hired under one-year term contracts on an annual basis under Board Policy 
A.7.1.     
 

DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND 
The hiring process for full time faculty involves a review of credentials, a screening process, evaluation 
and interview by the hiring authority.      
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Funds for these faculty positions are provided for in the 2016 Unrestricted Budget.      
 
LEGAL REQUIREMENT 
N/A       
 
STRATEGIC GOAL ALIGNMENT 
Strategic Initiative:  Support Innovation   
 
 
 
Attachment Title(s): Personnel Agenda - Faculty (December 2015)   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This item is applicable to the following: 
 Central  Coleman  Northeast  Northwest  Southeast  Southwest  3100 



Personnel Agenda -  
Faculty (For Board Approval) 

Board Meeting:  December 17, 2015 



HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
FACULTY 
December 17, 2015   
 
FACULTY (REGULAR) – FOR BOARD APPROVAL     
 
Name 

Previous 
Organization 

Proposed 
Title/Organization 

 
FLSA/Grade 

Previous 
Salary 

Current 
Salary 

Effective 
Date 

1.  Miller, Roger Service Tech-Pappas Inc. to F/T HVAC Instructor FAC/04 $ 60,000  yr. $ 51,750  yr. 11-09-15 
   10.5 months        

        
       
2.  Williams, Audrey  Remington College to F/T Cosmetology FAC/04 $    52,000  yr. $   51,750  yr. 01-04-16 
  Instructor 10.5 months    
       
       
       
       
     
     
 

 1 



Credentials & Selection Process -  
Faculty (For Board Approval)   

Board Meeting:  December 17, 2015 



HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
FACULTY/REGULAR 
December 17, 2015 
 
FACULTY (REGULAR) – FOR BOARD APPROVAL   
Name Job Title/Requirements Nominee’s Credentials Selection Process 
1.  Miller, Roger HVAC Instructor AAS in Construction/Building Technology Job Vacancy Notice-4730 

 Associate’s degree or higher.  If using  exp.  Service Tech 13 yrs. 4 mos. -HR Referred-5 
 in lieu of a degree, a minimum of three (3)      -Hiring authority evaluated and 

 to five (5) years of exp. is required.      interviewed-2 
 Minimum of three (3) years of work exp.    -Applicant selected-External 
 in the HVAC industry required.       Total                          13 yrs.  4 mos.   New Hire F/T 
      
       
        
2.  Williams, Audrey Cosmetology Instructor AAS in Cosmetology Job Vacancy Notice-4848 
 Associate’s degree required.  Must have Instructor  2 yrs. 0 mos. -HR Referred-35 
 a minimum of three (3) years exp. as an Cosmetology Dept Chair  3 yrs.  3 mos. -Screening committee evaluated 
 operator in a beauty shop. Hair Stylist  6 yrs.    1 mo.  and reviewed-11 
        -Hiring authority evaluated and 
      interviewed-3 
        Total 11 yrs.  4 mos. -Applicant selected-External 
       New Hire F/T 
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
 

1 
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  REPORT ITEM 
 

Meeting Date:  December 17, 2015 
 

Committee:  Facilities and Finance 
 

ITEM NO. ITEM TITLE PRESENTER 
 

2 Strategic Real Estate Study   
 

Dr. Cesar Maldonado 
Charles Smith  

Page Southerland Page, Inc.   
 
DISCUSSION 
Provide an update on strategic real estate study.      
 
DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND 
The Administration began a comprehensive real estate review during October 2014 with a review of 
appraisal district records in Harris and Fort Bend counties.  This then proceeded to the creation of a 
master property map and a property book containing details on each parcel. 
 
As the next step, HCC engaged planning professional Page Southerland Page to assess HCC’s property 
holdings within the larger context of system operations and the Metropolitan Area.   This study is 
intended to inform discussion regarding strategic real estate concepts and to serve as a guide for future 
decision making on real estate matters.                 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Funds are provided in the 2016 Unrestricted Operating Budget.        
 
STRATEGIC GOAL ALIGNMENT 
Strategic Initiative:  Support Innovation  
 
 
Attachment Title(s): Strategic Real Estate Executive Summary      
 

This item is applicable to the following: 
 Central  Coleman  Northeast  Northwest  Southeast  Southwest  3100 



 TEL  713 871 8484 Page Southerland Page, Inc. 
FAX  713 871 8440 1100 Louisiana Street, Suite One 

Houston, Texas  77002 
pagethink.com 
 
Jamie Flatt, Assoc. AIA 
Associate Principal 

 
 
 
 
 ARCHITECTURE / ENGINEERING / INTERIORS / PLANNING / CONSULTING 
 Austin / Dallas / Denver / Houston / San Francisco / Washington DC / 
 International Affiliate Offices 

 
 
December 3, 2015 
 
Re:  HCC Strategic Real Estate Study 
Project No: 415084 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
Key Questions Driving Study 
The Houston Community College System (HCC), in the course of delivering upon its 
educational mission, owns numerous real estate properties.  These properties serve as active 
educational campuses, administrative operational bases, and placeholders for future 
educational or administrative needs.  This strategic real estate study analyzes system provided 
and published data to outline an objective framework to inform key real estate decisions. 
 
The key questions this study addresses are: 
 

1. Are there any identifiable areas within the HCC service area where a campus 
does not currently exist, but objective research suggests a campus should be 
located? 

2. Are any of the existing HCC properties excess to the college’s need or poorly 
located based upon objective considerations? 

3. What is the optimum distance between educational campuses in a community 
college network? 

4. What is the optimum size of a single community college campus? 
 
Two parallel approaches to addressing these questions are reflected in this report.  Robert M. 
Stein, PhD, in his role as Empirical Researcher and Demographic Analyst, conducted a review of 
published literature and consensus best practices for community college system planning to 
identify any established guidelines that might inform or direct the HCC real estate strategy. Page 
built from Stein’s research to compile demographic and geographic data in a series of maps 
showing different characteristics of the service area and real estate network.  This combined 
approach establishes an objective basis for further exploration. 
 
Study Context 
In June of 2011, HCC published the HCC System Facilities Master Plan: 2011-2033.  This 
comprehensive plan generated over a full year of research and consultation with numerous 
HCC leaders and stakeholders aimed to create a, “clear vision for all future development of the 
physical environment of [HCC System] in support of its academic missions and goals.” 
Recognizing that both HCC and the region served by the system will evolve, the plan 
recommended regular updates.  The current study, now five years later, builds directly on the 
vision established in the 2011 master plan.  
 
One of the four key methods employed in the master plan was, “identification of the main 
drivers that impact basic decisions about facility location.”   The main drivers identified are: 
demographics, accessibility, and enrollment pipeline. A combination of the key driving 
questions, Stein’s research, and these drivers serve to organize this real estate study. 

http://pagethink.com/


 

Re:  HCC Strategic Real Estate Study 2 / 2 
Project No:  415084 

 
Key topics and issues being addressed in the full report include: 

1.0   Existing HCC Real Estate Property 
Definitions, Service and Taxing Areas 
Geographic Organization and Breakdown 
Defined Service Area and Taxable Boundaries 
Complete Property Listing 
HCC Existing Real Estate by Property Status 
Real Estate Building and Land Area by Location - Established/Planned 
Real Estate Land Area by Location - Properties Under Review 

2.0   How is the existing Campus network used? 
Students By Primary Campus 
Current HCC Students by Zip Code 
Current HCC Students by Zip Code – Breakdown by Primary Campus 
ISD of Origin, All HCC Students and Breakdown by Primary Campus 

3.0   Student characteristics 
Community College Students - Nationally 
HCC Students - by Age 
HCC Students – Current Saturation of Target Age Group Across Service Area 
HCC Students - by Ethnicity 
HCC Service Area Population Distribution by Ethnicity 
Reported Educational Attainment Across HCC Service Area 

4.0   Community College area coverage 
HCC Locations Drive Time Radius Maps 
All Community College Systems Serving MSA – Campus Locations and Service Area 
Boundaries 

5.0   Service area characteristics 
Projected Population Growth 
Target High School Populations 
Employment Centers 

6.0   Analysis and conclusions 
Where HCC Lacks Locations of Strategic Potential 
Where HCC Properties Lack Strategic Potential 

7.0   Appendix 
Full Text : Locating Community College Facilities 
Assembled Background Data 
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  REPORT ITEM 
 

Meeting Date:  December 17, 2015 
 

Committee:  Facilities and Finance 
 

ITEM NO. ITEM TITLE PRESENTER 
 

3 Update on Bond Capital Improvement Plan 
(CIP) Related Matters 

 

Dr. Cesar Maldonado 
Charles Smith 

 
DISCUSSION 
Provide an update on the Bond Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) related matters. 
 
DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND 
Monthly updates to the CIP Bond program are provided to keep the Board of Trustees apprised of the 
expenditures and project status.      
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
As budgeted and financed from the 2013 bond issuance.     
 
STRATEGIC GOAL ALIGNMENT 
Strategic Initiative:  Develop 21st Century Learners 
 
 
Attachment Title(s): CIP Update Report  
 

This item is applicable to the following: 
 Central  Coleman  Northeast  Northwest  Southeast  Southwest  3100 
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Strategic Plan 2012-2015 
Creating Opportunities for Our Shared Future 
Approved by the HCC Board of Trustees, June 2012 

 
Mission:  

Houston Community College is an open-admission, public institution of higher 
education offering a high-quality, affordable education for academic 
advancement, workforce training, career and economic development, and 
lifelong learning to prepare individuals in our diverse communities for life and 
work in a global and technological society. 

Vision:  
HCC will be a leader in providing high quality, innovative education leading 
to student success and completion of workforce and academic programs. 
We will be responsive to community needs and drive economic 
development in the communities we serve.  

Guiding 
Principles: 
  Our Guiding Principles direct our interactions with students, the internal and 

external communities we serve, and each other, giving focus to our primary 
purpose: devotion to the achievement of student success, defined as timely 
completion of certificates and degrees that drive real accomplishments in the 
workplace, at universities, and in society.  

• Freedom with Responsibility 
HCC subscribes to and upholds a doctrine of freedom that follows the 
principle of responsibility. 

• Commitment to Excellence 
HCC believes that a commitment to doing one’s very best without regard to 
position is the starting point of all expressions of excellence and setting of 
high standards for quality and performance.  

• Respect for the Person 
HCC holds that a principle of community mindfulness begins with respect 
for oneself and for others. Respect is the framework of personal integrity 
and provides the tie that binds us together.  

• Sound Stewardship 
Stewardship is the path to fulfilling HCC’s Mission and acknowledges our 
guardianship of its resources and positive impact on the lives of our 
students and community at large. 



 
Strategic Initiative #1 - Increase Student Completion 

HCC currently leads the state and is fifth in the nation in the number of students 
who complete associate degrees. While we are proud of this fact, we can do better. 
We will strengthen our efforts and scale up those strategies that have been proven 
to increase the rates of students’ persistence and completion. 
 
HCC will continue to serve as a national Achieving the Dream (ATD) Leader College 
and work hand in hand with our high school partners to ensure more students enter 
our doors college-ready and leave well-prepared for successful transition to jobs, 
careers, and further education.   

 
Action 1.1: Improve student preparation for higher education and transition to 

careers 

Action 1.2: Improve academic success of students in their first semester  

Action 1.3: Revamp developmental education to ensure greater success with more 
efficient delivery 

Action 1.4: Improve students’ persistence rates from one semester to the next 

Action 1.5: Ensure students complete their programs of study and transition 
successfully to jobs/careers or further education 

Strategic Initiative #2 – Respond to Business and Industry 

As the supplier of skilled workers to business and industry, we have a responsibility 
to build partnerships and to develop the means to respond quickly with the creation 
and design of programs and student-learning outcomes that meet their 
requirements. 
 
The employer is our customer. Our clear responsibility to both employers and to 
students is to narrow the jobs gap and the skills gap for both of these stakeholders. 

 
Action 2.1: Engage industry leaders in dialogue to identify present and future needs 

Action 2.2: Improve the infrastructure of workforce programs (instruction, 
curriculum, facilities, and equipment) to meet the business and industry 
needs 

Action 2.3: Ensure students have access to information and support services to 
complete career and technical education programs  



Strategic Initiative #3 – Develop 21st Century Learners 

HCC must prepare our students to become citizens and workers capable of 
productive and meaningful participation in the 21st century. Core competencies of 
critical thinking, effective communications, quantitative reasoning, teamwork, 
personal responsibility, and social responsibility must be taught in all of our 
instructional programs. 
 
All classrooms at HCC should meet minimum technology standards, and all faculty 
must be trained and supported in using effective teaching and learning strategies to 
promote success for students in their learning today as well as throughout their 
lifetime. 

 
Action 3.1: Ensure adoption and commitment by HCC to 21st century core 

curriculum skills as defined by the Texas Higher Education Coordinating 
Board (THECB) 

Action 3.2: Create new platforms and methodologies to teach and support students 
using effective methods of course delivery, teaching practices, 

Action 3.3: Provide an environment conducive to optimal learning that includes 
consideration of facilities, technology, equipment, materials, 
accessibility, and concern for students 

Strategic Initiative #4 – Support Faculty/Staff Professional Development 
and Student Leadership Development 

HCC has celebrated its 40th year by enrolling and graduating more students than ever 
before. To ensure we continue to thrive as an essential and relevant institution for 
the educational development of our students and the economic development of our 
community, we must prepare students, faculty, and staff for the leadership roles of 
tomorrow. 
 
We will do this in multiple ways – through the expansion of external resources and 
support, purposeful mentoring of leadership candidates, infusion of opportunities 
for leadership development in our instructional programs, student services, 
extracurricular activities, and human resources. 

Action 4.1: Develop a system-wide strategy to encourage leadership development 
for students 

Action 4.2: Develop a system-wide strategy for ongoing professional and leadership 
development for faculty 



Action 4.3: Develop a system-wide strategy for provision of professional and 
leadership development for HCC personnel at all levels and functions of 
the organization 

Strategic Initiative #5 - Support Innovation 

HCC recognizes that in the near term there will be continuing economic turmoil to 
challenge the funding and stability of the institution. We also recognize that 
continuous technical challenges will create disruptions and opportunities in the 
delivery and transfer of knowledge and data. 
 
To counter and overcome these difficulties, we must be an institution where 
innovation is valued and promoted. However, nothing will be accepted merely on 
the basis of custom, anecdote, or fad – everything we do must be proven to have 
long-term value in terms of strengthening our institutional resilience and capacity to 
serve our students and our community. 

Action 5.1: Reduce HCC’s reliance on debt to maximize the use of operating dollars 
for strengthening teaching and learning capabilities 

Action 5.2: Leverage current and new grant opportunities to improve the 
institution’s capability to respond to our teaching and learning needs 

Action 5.3: Expand opportunities for the HCC Foundation to fund capital projects, 
program excellence, and faculty development  

Action 5.4: Optimize technology and capital assets through planning for business 
continuity, disaster recovery, replacements, training, and environmental 
sustainability 

Strategic Initiative #6 – Support Entrepreneurialism 

Houston is an entrepreneurial, “opportunity city” where taking a risk, failing, and 
starting over again are valued. HCC is the “Opportunity College” and is grassroots in 
its approach to serving its constituents. Therefore, HCC is committed to strategic 
thinking that not only respects students wherever they are, but also inspires and 
gives them the tools and confidence to follow their dreams. 
 
HCC will commit to an entrepreneurial culture within the organization to serve as an 
example of the “spirit of Houston.” For this institution, fostering a culture that 
encourages inspiration and dreaming helps students actualize their potential. 

Action 6.1: Encourage an entrepreneurial culture among all members of the HCC 
family 

Action 6.2: Develop and implement promising practices that nurture and reward a 
spirit of entrepreneurialism throughout the institution 



Action 6.3: Strengthen HCC assessment and institutional effectiveness (IE) 
processes and activities 

Strategic Initiative #7 – Leverage Partnerships 

Houston is a global leader. The diversity of our economic structure and our 
willingness to embrace and value the partnerships encourage innovation. HCC is a 
principle partner for educational and economic opportunities, enhancing and 
advancing the community’s quality of life. HCC is a catalyst for creating jobs. 
 
Former U.S. Secretary of Defense Robert M. Gates described foreign language 
education, study abroad, and the recruitment of foreign students to U.S. campuses 
as key strategies in promoting America’s national security and economic interests. 
While addressing the audience at the 2012 NAFSA conference in Houston, Gates 
stated, “Our economic future depends on Americans who can work successfully in 
an international setting.” 
 
According to an American Council on Higher Education Blue Ribbon Panel on Global 
Engagement (November, 2011), “It is important that college graduates, whatever 
their location, be not only globally competitive but also globally competent, 
understanding their roles as citizens and workers in an international context. While 
identifying common problems, we might also discover common solutions (p.6).”I  

Action 7.1: Identify and secure new local partnerships capable of improving the 
institution’s capacity, performance, and resilience 

Action 7.2: Identify and secure new regional and state partnerships capable of 
improving the institution’s capacity, performance, and resilience  

Action 7.3: Identify and secure new international partnerships capable of improving 
the institutions’ capacity, performance, and resilience 
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Personnel Report for 
December 17, 2015 

 
(No Board Action Required) 

 
 
 



Personnel Agenda - 
Staff (No Board Action Required)  

Board Meeting:  December 17, 2015 



HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
ADMINISTRATOR/SECRETARIAL/CLERICAL/CLASSIFIED STAFF 
December 17, 2015 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS - NO BOARD ACTION REQUIRED 
NON-FACULTY (REGULAR)   

    

 
Name 

Previous 
Organization 

Proposed 
Title/Organization 

 
FLSA/Grade 

Previous 
Salary 

          Current 
          Salary 

         Effective 
         Date 

1.  Aeck, Corey HCCS F/T Advisor to F/T Dual Credit EX/08 $  49,919  yr. $  52,415  yr. 11-02-15 
                 Success Coach 12 months        
           
           
2.  Ali, Syed HCCS F/T (Temp) Budget  to F/T Budget Analyst EX/08 $  46,466  yr. $  50,000  yr. 11-09-15 

 Analyst  12 months        
           

           
3.  Alsander, University of Houston to F/T Secretary III NE/08 $  35,422  yr. $  41,823  yr. 11-23-15 
     Lashawnte   12 months        

           
           

4.  Arta, Ahourael HCCS F/T Programmer to F/T Sr. Programmer EX/11 $  65,880  yr. $  75,761  yr. 11-16-15 
                Analyst II Analyst 12 months        

           
           

5.  Bates, Terry Pentair Valves & Controls to F/T Draftsman NE/07 $  54,121  yr. $  55,000  yr. 11-30-15 
                  12 months        

           
           

6.  Davila, Melinda HCCS F/T Executive to F/T Coordinator EX/09 $  63,686  yr. $  66,870  yr. 11-09-15 
                Secretary Instructional Projects 12 months        

           
           

7.  Flowers, Melnice Houston I.S.D. to F/T College EXEC/10 $  73,862  yr. $  89,000  yr. 11-09-15 
                 Operations Officer 12 months        
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
ADMINISTRATOR/SECRETARIAL/CLERICAL/CLASSIFIED STAFF 
December 17, 2015 
 
Name 

Previous 
Organization 

Proposed 
Title/Organization 

 
FLSA/Grade 

Previous 
Salary 

Current 
Salary 

Effective 
Date 

8.  Gajanayake, Noble Drilling Services Inc. to F/T Research  EX/10 $   83,000  yr. $   72,935  yr. 11-30-15 
     Nishantha  Analyst II, Analytics and 12 months        
  Decision Support         
           
9.  Gonzalez Jr. , Daniel Harris County CSCD to F/T Instructional EX/09 $   43,000  yr. $   55,000  yr. 11-23-15 
                 Designer 12 months        
           
           
10. Hardwick, Kristina Superior Talent Resources to F/T Program EX/10 $ 105,000  yr. $   75,000  yr. 11-23-15 
                 Director, CE Industrial 12 months        
  Technology/Energy         
            
11. Herrera, Mayra HCCS F/T Secretary II to F/T Secretary III NE/08 $   35,016  yr. $   39,895  yr. 11-02-15 
   12 months        
             
           
12. Johnson, Cedrick New Caney I.S.D. to F/T Hardware/ NE/06 $   34,006  yr. $   34,006  yr. 11-30-15 
  Software Technician 12 months        
            
            
13. Quinn, Paul HCCS F/T Director-COE to F/T Senior Project EX/13 $   93,263  yr. $ 107,253 yr. 11-16-15 
                Manufacturing Manager  12 months        
             
           
14. Rivera, Roberta University of St. Thomas to F/T Business Analyst EX/10 $   39,585  yr. $   58,000  yr. 11-09-15 
                 PeopleSoft II 12 months        
                 
             
15. Sanders, Verba HCCS F/T Secretary II to F/T Office Manager NE/08 $   41,832  yr. $   47,664  yr. 11-16-15 
   12 months        
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
ADMINISTRATOR/SECRETARIAL/CLERICAL/CLASSIFIED STAFF 
December 17, 2015 
ITEMS - NO BOARD ACTION REQUIRED 
NON-FACULTY (REGULAR)   
 
Name 

Previous 
Organization 

Proposed 
Title/Organization 

 
FLSA/Grade 

Previous 
Salary 

Current 
Salary 

Effective 
Date 

16. Tidwell, Jeremy HCCS P/T Office Assistant to F/T Office Assistant NE/03 $   16,890  yr. $   21,040  yr. 11-09-15 
   12 months        
           
           
17. Vasselli, John University of Texas @ Tyler to F/T Director,  EX/10 $ 100,000  yr. $   93,000  yr 11-23-15 
                 Center of Excellence   12 months        
  Engineering         
           
18. Villegas, Rosalbina AIG to F/T Secretary II NE/07 $   42,742  yr. $   37,584  yr. 11-30-15 
                  12 months        
           
           
19. Wilson, Jason HCCS F/T Interim Dean  to F/T Dean Student EXEC/10 $   83,366  yr. $   92,629  yr. 12-01-15 
 Student Development  Development 12 months        
           
           

           
           
SEPARATIONS OF EMPLOYMENT 
 
Anthony, David   David Anthony, Computer Science Instructor, effective November 20, 2015. 
Kamrani, Sonia  Sonia Kamrani, Biology Instructor, effective November 12, 2015. 
Pena, Emilio  Emilio Pena, Director, COE-Material Science, effective November 20, 2015.   
Regan, Stephen  Stephen Regan, Benefits Manager, effective December 18, 2015. 
Salazar, Israel  Israel Salazar, Advisor, effective November 30, 2015. 
Shaikh, Shamsuddin Shamsuddin Shaikh, Chemistry Instructor, effective November 06, 2015.  
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	(Approved by the HCC Board of Trustees, June 22, 2012)
	Mission
	Houston Community College is an open-admission, public institution of higher education offering a high-quality, affordable education for academic advancement, workforce training, career and economic development, and lifelong learning to prepare individuals in our diverse communities for life and work in a global and technological society.
	Vision
	HCC will be a leader in providing high quality, innovative education leading to student success and completion of workforce and academic programs. We will be responsive to community needs and drive economic development in the communities we serve. 
	Strategic
	Initiatives 
	Initiative #1: Increase Student Completion
	Initiative #2: Respond to Business and Industry
	Initiative #3: Develop 21st Century Learners
	Initiative #4: Support Faculty/Staff Professional Development and Student Leadership
	Initiative #5: Support Innovation
	Initiative #6: Support Entrepreneurialism
	Initiative #7: Leverage Partnerships

	AI_ImagineHCC2016-19_Revised
	ITEM TITLE
	PRESENTER
	HCC Strategic Plan 2016-2019
	Dr. Cesar Maldonado



	RECOMMENDATION
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	DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND
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	Resolution Authorizing the                                                  Acceptance of Public Facilities from the Houston Community College System Public Facility Corporation 
	Dr. Cesar Maldonado
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	RECOMMENDATION
	COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE
	The Resolution facilitates the conveyance of the properties from the PFC to the System and authorizes all necessary documents.    

	DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND
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	LEGAL REQUIREMENT
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	ITEM TITLE
	PRESENTER
	Investment Report for the 
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	PRESENTER
	Monthly Financial Statement and Budget Review for October 2015
	Dr. Cesar Maldonado



	RECOMMENDATION
	COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE
	The monthly report advises the Board on the status of the finances of the college.  

	DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND
	FISCAL IMPACT
	LEGAL REQUIREMENT
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	ITEM TITLE
	PRESENTER
	Authorize Procurement Method for 
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	Dr. Cesar Maldonado
	Teri Zamora 



	RECOMMENDATION
	COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE
	Competitive Sealed Proposals allow the College to receive the benefits of a sealed bid, but allow the flexibility to negotiate scope of work with the selected vendor.
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	PRESENTER
	Online Learning 
	Dr. Cesar Maldonado
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	RECOMMENDATION
	COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE
	Houston Community College evaluated the use of the online learning management system available through the Texas Association of Community College's (TACC) Texas Community College Cooperative Purchasing Network (TCCCPN) agreement for the implementation...
	Working with representatives from Faculty, Instructional Services and Technology Departments, demonstrations of three different systems were provided to the Learning Management System (LMS) Committee.  Following a thorough product demonstration and fu...
	The proposed Canvas Learning Management System (LMS) is anticipated to be implemented with an initial test group to begin using the application in Spring 2016 followed by a second test group in Summer 2016.  It is the goal of HCC that working with the...
	Preparations are currently underway with the development of the implementation framework, training and development; including the feedback and direction of the LMS Committee, Instruction and IT Departments.
	The proposed solution includes greatly improved features and functionality that will enable quick adoption and sustainable growth among HCC students.  Moreover, the easy to use platform includes improved reporting, collaboration and interactive featur...
	This recommendation to the Board of Trustees is in accordance with Chapter 44.031(a) of the Texas Education Code and Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code.

	DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND
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	LEGAL REQUIRMENTS


	AI-PurchaseofPalmettoProperty_Revised
	ITEM TITLE
	PRESENTER
	Authorize Purchase of Palmetto 
	Cul-de-Sac Right of Way 
	Dr. Cesar Maldonado
	Teri Zamora 



	RECOMMENDATION
	COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE
	Acquisition of this tract allows for continued development of the Eastside Campus in accordance with 2010 and subsequent Master Plan Concepts (attachments A & B, respectively) by permitting optimal integration of the 2013 CIP Workforce Building into t...

	DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND
	FISCAL IMPACT
	LEGAL REQUIREMENT


	Attach-PalmettoProperty_2010CampusMasterPlan
	Attach-PalmettoProperty_2014CampusMasterPlanConcept
	Attach-PalmettoProperty_PropertytobeAcquired
	Attach-PalmettoProperty_SatelliteViewofEastside
	AI-TDIndustriesTCPNContract
	ITEM TITLE
	PRESENTER
	Authorize Execution of Texas Cooperative Purchasing Network Contract with TDIndustries   
	Dr. Cesar Maldonado
	Teri Zamora 



	RECOMMENDATION
	COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE
	The College is transitioning from a wholly outsourced Facilities Maintenance posture with a single large vendor to one which provides for basic internal capabilities and a much larger potential for small business engagement with some operational savin...

	DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND
	FISCAL IMPACT
	LEGAL REQUIREMENT


	Attach-EstimateofCost Distribution_Revised
	Sheet1

	AI-Settelment_Walker_Dec 10
	ITEM TITLE
	PRESENTER
	Proposed Settlement Between 
	Dr. Cesar Maldonado



	RECOMMENDATION
	DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND

	AI-ChancellorEvaluation_2015Dec17
	ITEM TITLE
	PRESENTER
	Chancellor’s Evaluation for 2014-15 and Any Other Related Matters, as necessary
	Dr. Adriana Tamez



	RECOMMENDATION
	COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE
	According to the Board bylaws, the Board shall evaluate the Chancellor on an annual basis.
	FISCAL IMPACT
	LEGAL REQUIREMENT


	AI-ChancellorEvaluationTimeline_2015Dec 17
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE
	According to the Board bylaws, the Board shall evaluate the Chancellor on an annual basis.
	FISCAL IMPACT
	LEGAL REQUIREMENT


	ADPC556.tmp
	ITEM TITLE
	PRESENTER
	Sale of 11.75 Acres in Missouri City  
	Dr. Cesar Maldonado
	Teri Zamora 



	RECOMMENDATION
	COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE
	The Board of Trustees authorized the Chancellor to negotiate the sale of this property during February 2015. Fort Bend County has identified the funding required to complete the transaction, which will allow continuation of the previously approved rel...
	The new location will provide an enhanced presence for HCCS in a larger, more efficient building. The budget for the new site requires the sale of the existing real property on Sienna Springs Way. This transaction is one of several fiscally responsibl...

	DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND
	FISCAL IMPACT
	LEGAL REQUIREMENT


	ADP45BE.tmp
	ITEM TITLE
	PRESENTER
	Sale of 11.75 Acres in Missouri City  
	Dr. Cesar Maldonado
	Teri Zamora 



	RECOMMENDATION
	COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE
	The Board of Trustees authorized the Chancellor to negotiate the sale of this property during February 2015. Fort Bend County has identified the funding required to complete the transaction, which will allow continuation of the previously approved rel...
	The new location will provide an enhanced presence for HCCS in a larger, more efficient building. The budget for the new site requires the sale of the existing real property on Sienna Springs Way. This transaction is one of several fiscally responsibl...

	DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND
	FISCAL IMPACT
	LEGAL REQUIREMENT
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	RESOLUTION AND ORDER OF SALE OF LAND
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	RECOMMENDATION
	COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE
	Full-time contract Faculty is hired under one-year term contracts on an annual basis under Board Policy A.7.1.    

	DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND
	FISCAL IMPACT
	LEGAL REQUIREMENT
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	Charles Smith 
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	DISCUSSION
	DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND
	FISCAL IMPACT
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	Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
	Auditor’s Responsibility
	Opinion
	Other Matters
	Required supplementary information

	Supplementary information
	Other information
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	ITEM TITLE
	PRESENTER
	Authorize Procurement Method for 
	Parking Lot Maintenance and 
	Dr. Cesar Maldonado
	Teri Zamora 



	RECOMMENDATION
	COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE
	Competitive Sealed Proposals allow the College to receive the benefits of a sealed bid, but allow the flexibility to negotiate scope of work with the selected vendor.

	DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND
	FISCAL IMPACT
	LEGAL REQUIREMENT
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	ITEM TITLE
	PRESENTER
	Sale of 11.75 Acres in Missouri City  
	Dr. Cesar Maldonado
	Teri Zamora 



	RECOMMENDATION
	COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE
	The Board of Trustees authorized the Chancellor to negotiate the sale of this property during February 2015. Fort Bend County has identified the funding required to complete the transaction, which will allow continuation of the previously approved rel...
	The new location will provide an enhanced presence for HCCS in a larger, more efficient building. The budget for the new site requires the sale of the existing real property on Sienna Springs Way. This transaction is one of several fiscally responsibl...

	DESCRIPTION OR BACKGROUND
	FISCAL IMPACT
	LEGAL REQUIREMENT
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	ITEM TITLE
	PRESENTER
	Online Learning 
	Dr. Cesar Maldonado
	 Dr. Kimberly Beatty



	RECOMMENDATION
	COMPELLING REASON/RATIONALE
	Houston Community College evaluated the use of the online learning management system available through the Texas Association of Community College's (TACC) Texas Community College Cooperative Purchasing Network (TCCCPN) agreement for the implementation...
	Working with representatives from Faculty, Instructional Services and Technology Departments, demonstrations of three different systems were provided to the Learning Management System (LMS) Committee.  Following a thorough product demonstration and fu...
	The proposed Canvas Learning Management System (LMS) is anticipated to be implemented with an initial test group to begin using the application in Spring 2016 followed by a second test group in Summer 2016.  It is the goal of HCC that working with the...
	Preparations are currently underway with the development of the implementation framework, training and development; including the feedback and direction of the LMS Committee, Instruction and IT Departments.
	The proposed solution includes greatly improved features and functionality that will enable quick adoption and sustainable growth among HCC students.  Moreover, the easy to use platform includes improved reporting, collaboration and interactive featur...
	This recommendation to the Board of Trustees is in accordance with Chapter 44.031(a) of the Texas Education Code and Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code.
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	LEGAL REQUIRMENTS
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	Attach-PersonnelAgenda_2015_Faculty.pdf
	Personnel Agenda Title Page- Faculty
	Slide Number 1

	December Agenda 2015 - Faculty
	FACULTY (REGULAR) – FOR BOARD APPROVAL
	Organization

	Title/Organization
	FLSA/Grade
	Salary


	Credentials & Selection Process-Faculty
	Slide Number 1

	December Reason 2015 - Faculty
	FACULTY (REGULAR) – FOR BOARD APPROVAL
	Nominee’s Credentials
	Selection Process

	Job Title/Requirements
	Name
	AAS in Construction/Building Technology
	HVAC Instructor
	1.  Miller, Roger
	4 mos.
	13 yrs.
	Service Tech
	Associate’s degree or higher.  If using  exp. 
	in lieu of a degree, a minimum of three (3)
	to five (5) years of exp. is required.
	Minimum of three (3) years of work exp.
	13 yrs.
	in the HVAC industry required.
	 4 mos.
	      Total                         
	AAS in Cosmetology
	Cosmetology Instructor
	2.  Williams, Audrey
	0 mos.
	Instructor
	Associate’s degree required.  Must have
	 2 yrs.
	Cosmetology Dept Chair
	a minimum of three (3) years exp. as an
	 3 mos.
	 3 yrs.
	Hair Stylist
	operator in a beauty shop.
	 1 mo.
	 6 yrs.  
	11 yrs.
	 4 mos.
	      Total


	ADP625.tmp
	Guiding
	Principles:
	Our Guiding Principles direct our interactions with students, the internal and external communities we serve, and each other, giving focus to our primary purpose: devotion to the achievement of student success, defined as timely completion of certif...

	Attach-PersonnelAgenda_2015_Staff.pdf
	Personnel Agenda-Staff 2015
	Slide Number 1

	December Agenda 2015 - Staff
	INFORMATION ITEMS - NO BOARD ACTION REQUIRED
	NON-FACULTY (REGULAR)  
	Organization

	Title/Organization
	FLSA/Grade
	          Salary
	to F/T Dual Credit
	EX/08
	$
	 49,919  yr.

	 52,415  yr.
	11-02-15
	Success Coach
	12 months
	to F/T Budget Analyst
	EX/08
	$
	 46,466  yr.

	$
	 50,000  yr.
	11-09-15
	12 months
	to F/T Secretary III
	NE/08
	$
	 35,422  yr.

	$
	 41,823  yr.
	11-23-15
	12 months
	to F/T Sr. Programmer
	EX/11
	$
	 65,880  yr.

	$
	 75,761  yr.
	11-16-15
	Analyst
	12 months
	to F/T Draftsman
	NE/07
	$
	 54,121  yr.

	$
	 55,000  yr.
	11-30-15
	12 months
	to F/T Coordinator
	EX/09
	$
	 63,686  yr.

	$
	 66,870  yr.
	11-09-15
	Instructional Projects
	12 months
	to F/T College
	EXEC/10
	 73,862  yr.

	$
	 89,000  yr.
	11-09-15
	Operations Officer
	12 months
	Organization


	$
	Current
	Salary
	Effective
	to F/T Research 
	EX/10
	$
	  83,000  yr.

	Title/Organization
	FLSA/Grade
	Previous
	Salary

	  72,935  yr.
	11-30-15
	Analyst II, Analytics and
	12 months
	Decision Support
	to F/T Instructional
	EX/09
	$
	  43,000  yr.

	$
	  55,000  yr.
	11-23-15
	Designer
	12 months
	to F/T Program
	EX/10
	$
	105,000  yr.

	$
	  75,000  yr.
	11-23-15
	Director, CE Industrial
	12 months
	Technology/Energy
	to F/T Secretary III
	NE/08
	$
	  35,016  yr.

	$
	  39,895  yr.
	11-02-15
	12 months
	to F/T Hardware/
	NE/06
	$
	  34,006  yr.

	$
	  34,006  yr.
	11-30-15
	Software Technician
	12 months
	to F/T Senior Project
	EX/13
	$

	$
	$
	11-16-15
	Manager 
	12 months
	to F/T Business Analyst
	EX/10
	$

	$
	11-09-15
	PeopleSoft II
	12 months
	to F/T Office Manager
	NE/08
	$
	  41,832  yr.

	  47,664  yr.
	11-16-15
	12 months
	Organization


	$
	ITEMS - NO BOARD ACTION REQUIRED
	Current
	Salary
	Effective
	to F/T Office Assistant
	NE/03
	$
	  16,890  yr.

	Title/Organization
	FLSA/Grade
	Previous
	Salary

	$
	11-09-15
	12 months
	to F/T Director, 
	EX/10
	11-23-15
	Center of Excellence  
	12 months
	Engineering
	to F/T Secretary II
	NE/07
	$
	  42,742  yr.

	  37,584  yr.
	11-30-15
	12 months
	to F/T Dean Student
	EXEC/10
	$

	$
	$
	12-01-15
	Development
	12 months



	ADP90DB.tmp
	NOTICE OF A REGULAR MEETING
	OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE
	December 17, 2015
	X. Adjournment to closed or executive session pursuant to Texas Government Code Sections 551.071; 551.072 and 551.074, the Open Meetings Act, for the following purposes:
	A. Legal Matters
	B. Personnel Matters
	1. Deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee, or to hear complaints or charges against the chancellor, employees or board members, unless the officer, employee, or...
	C. Real Estate Matters

	XI. Additional Closed or Executive Session Authority
	XII. Reconvene in Open Meeting
	XIII. Adjournment
	XIV. Dinner


	UCertificate of Posting or Giving Notice
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	MEMBERS PRESENT
	OTHERS PRESENT

	CALL TO ORDER
	ADJOURNMENT

	ADP832E.tmp
	MEMBERS PRESENT
	OTHERS PRESENT

	CALL TO ORDER
	QUARTERLY CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE ATTESTATION
	Dr. Maldonado informed that in an effort to help build the confidence in Administration and the trust between administration, members of the Board of Trustees, and the public, beginning this quarter he would offer a quarterly control and compliance at...
	(Trustee Evans-Shabazz returned at 3:02 p.m.)
	Mr. Glaser inquired if the external auditors had reviewed the letter.
	Dr. Maldonado explained the letter had not been reviewed with external auditors.  He noted it will be discussed with the external auditors to the extent that it can be modified to best fit the mission of the external auditors.
	ADJOURNMENT
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	MEMBERS PRESENT
	OTHERS PRESENT

	CALL TO ORDER
	Mr. Hollingsworth requested the Board consider FLD (Local) Students Rights and Complaints for future discussion.
	Mr. Hollingsworth noted that when the Chancellor is contacted by news media on Board related issues or related to Board members, it is suggested that he notify the Board through Board Services at his discretion.
	Mr. Hollingsworth noted Article H, Item 5c.d. Update to reflect the revisions for full training requirements of new Board members and the requirements to complete the financial training within the first year, rather than the first two years, along wit...
	Mr. Hollingsworth noted Article H, Item 7, Requests for Documents.  He apprised that changes made reflects the accordance with the Attorney General opinion to ensure that HCC is in compliance.
	Mr. Hollingsworth noted Article H, Item 8, Board Member Complaints. He informed that the Chair has the discretion to determine if the information requested is reasonable and related to the duty of a Trustee.  He noted that this is standard of the Atto...
	Mr. Hollingsworth noted Article H, Item 8 relates to a sitting Board member has a complaint against another Board member or a member of the administration.  He informed the complaint should be in writing and follow the process defined in Article A.
	ADJOURNMENT

	2015Nov12_ChancellorEvaluation.pdf
	MEMBERS PRESENT
	OTHERS PRESENT

	CALL TO ORDER
	Mr. Capo apprised that the 2014-15 evaluation is complete, however, the goals for 2016 need to be finalized.
	Dr. Tamez will provide an update to the Board regarding the process.
	Mr. Capo inquired regarding the rational for developing and identifying the goals and targets for the Contextual Performance Indicators (CPI), Domains: finance, participation, enrollment, and success and graduation rates.
	Dr. Maldonado stated the enrollment numbers are driven by Domain #2 Success. The number of awards and transfers in it assume 65% persistent rates to back field the students that are graduating. And we are increasing significant numbers in technical aw...
	Mr. Capo appraised as to where the plans are to engage students that have been separated from the school system for a length of time and to ensure that they get back into the workforce.
	Dr. Maldonado advised the strategies to be used to increase enrollment and to reach the 2018 plan are multiple, and will include reaching to different segments of the community. He noted it is not laid out, but are part of the strategies used to outli...
	Dr. Tamez inquired of students over 18 of age that are not included in the stretch goal.
	Dr. Maldonado advised they are included, but not broken out in the plan.  Strategies have been set to reach out to all groups.
	Dr. Tamez requested we compare with other community college enrollment goals.
	Dr. Maldonado advised other institutions are germane, but the target is what we are doing with Centers of Excellence and graduation rates.
	The motion made to approve the performance objectives for 2015-16.
	Motion – Dr. Tamez moved and Ms. Loredo seconded.
	Vote on Motion – The motion passed with a vote of 2-1, with Mr. Capo opposing.
	ADJOURNMENT
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	COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
	OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	November 12, 2015
	Minutes

	MEMBERS PRESENT
	OTHERS PRESENT

	CALL TO ORDER
	ADJOURNMENT
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	MEMBERS PRESENT
	OTHERS PRESENT

	CALL TO ORDER
	ADJOURNMENT
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	REGULAR MEETING
	OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE
	November 19, 2015
	Minutes
	MEMBERS PRESENT
	OTHERS PRESENT

	CALL TO ORDER
	PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
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Strategic Plan 2012-2015


Creating Opportunities for Our Shared Future


(Approved by the HCC Board of Trustees, June 22, 2012)

Mission


Houston Community College is an open-admission, public institution of higher education offering a high-quality, affordable education for academic advancement, workforce training, career and economic development, and lifelong learning to prepare individuals in our diverse communities for life and work in a global and technological society.

Vision


HCC will be a leader in providing high quality, innovative education leading to student success and completion of workforce and academic programs. We will be responsive to community needs and drive economic development in the communities we serve. 


Strategic


Initiatives


Initiative #1:
Increase Student Completion

Initiative #2:
Respond to Business and Industry

Initiative #3:
Develop 21st Century Learners

Initiative #4:
Support Faculty/Staff Professional Development and Student Leadership

Initiative #5:
Support Innovation

Initiative #6:
Support Entrepreneurialism

Initiative #7:
Leverage Partnerships




